
 

NOTICE OF COUNCIL MEETING - 24 JULY 2014 
 
 
Dear Councillor,  
 
A meeting of Cambridge City Council will be held in the Council Chamber - 
Guildhall on Thursday, 24 July 2014 at 6.00 pm and I hereby summon you 
to attend. 
 
Dated 16 July 2014 
 

Yours faithfully 
 

 

Chief Executive 
 
 

 
Agenda 

 
 

1 TO APPROVE AS A CORRECT RECORD THE MINUTES OF THE 
MEETING HELD ON 12 JUNE 2014  

(Pages 11 - 32) 
 

2 MAYORS ANNOUNCEMENTS  
 
 

3 PUBLIC QUESTIONS TIME - SEE AT THE FOOT OF THE 
AGENDA FOR DETAILS OF THE SCHEME  

 
 

Public Document Pack



 

4 TO CONSIDER THE RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE EXECUTIVE 
FOR ADOPTION  

 
 

4a Budget 2014/15 – Amendment by the Executive (Executive 
Councillor for Finance and Resources) 

(Pages 33 - 62) 
 

4b 2013/14 Revenue and Capital Outturn, Carry Forwards and 
Significant Variances - Overview (Executive Councillor for 
Finance and Resources) 

(Pages 63 - 120) 
 

4c Annual Treasury Management Report 2013/14, including 
changes to Treasury Management Strategy 2014/15 
(Executive Councillor for Finance and Resources) 
 

(Pages 121 - 140) 
 

4d New Convention for Planning Committee Relating to 
Decisions Contrary to Officer Advice (Executive 
Councillor for Planning Policy and Transport) 
 

(Pages 141 - 158) 
 

4e Changes to the Consideration of Planning Applications at 
Area Committees (Executive Councillor for Planning 
Policy and Transport) 

(Pages 159 - 178) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

5 TO CONSIDER THE RECOMMENDATIONS OF COMMITTEES 
FOR ADOPTION  

 

 
Civic Affairs Committee - 25 June 2014 
 

5a Code of Corporate Governance 
(Pages 179 - 214) 

 
 
Civic Affairs Committee - 15 July 2014 
 

5b Constitutional Impact - Transfer of Planning Items from 
Area to Central Planning Committee 

 

Adoption minute to follow                                        (Pages 215 - 220) 
 

5c City Council Appointment to the Conservators of the River 
Cam 

 

Adoption minute to follow 
  

 

6 TO DEAL WITH ORAL QUESTIONS  
 
 

7 TO CONSIDER THE FOLLOWING NOTICES OF MOTION, 
NOTICE OF WHICH HAS BEEN GIVEN BY:  
 

7a Councillors Price and Todd-Jones 
 

This Council supports the launch of the SHOUT (Social Housing 
Under Threat) campaign on 18 June 2014. It agrees with SHOUT 
that building social housing - social rented homes - is at the core of 
tackling the housing crisis nationally and locally in Cambridge and 
that social rented housing meets needs that other tenures cannot 
address.  



 

This Council also notes that:  
 

i. Under the coalition government the funding of social housing 
has become increasingly marginalised with the latest 
prospectus for bidders from the Homes and Community 
Agency stating that 'social rent provision will only be supported 
in very limited circumstances.'  
 

ii. The coalition government's Affordable Rent programme' linking 
grant funding to rents of up to 80% of market rents is quite 
simply unaffordable and there is evidence that even setting 
Affordable Rents of 65% of local market rents is putting homes 
out of reach of many in Cambridge.  
 

iii. Social housing faces great challenges in meeting the needs of 
those affected by welfare cuts and rule changes over the last 
three years, including the damaging ‘bedroom tax’, and 
increased pressure from the escalating number of council 
homes lost through the Right to Buy after the significant 
increase in discount in April 2012 from the coalition 
government.  

 
This Council therefore resolves:  
 

i. that the Chief Executive and Leader of the Council write to the 
two MPs for Cambridge, Julian Huppert MP and Andrew 
Lansley MP, laying out the case for a social rent level of 60% 
of local market rent as 'affordable' for current and potential City 
Homes tenants, and requesting their support for this and 
lobbying of the Minister for Communities and Local 
Government to ensure the Affordable Housing Programme 
favours a Cambridge Social Rented Programme. 
 

ii. To consider how the City Deal can deliver a programme of 
new council homes at affordable social rent levels, including 
working in partnership with other providers and local 
authorities.  
 

iii. To support the work of the SHOUT campaign and take a lead 
in affirming the positive value and purpose of social rented 
housing.  

 



 

7b Councillors Birtles and Dryden 
 

Cambridge City Council deplores the illegal practice of 'blacklisting' 
within the construction industry and will ensure that any company 
known to have been involved in blacklisting practices, and not to 
have indemnified their victims, will not be invited to tender for 
contracts until they have: 
 

i. identified the steps taken to remedy blacklisting for affected 
workers 

ii. identified the steps taken to ensure blacklisting will not happen 
again, 
 
and 
 

iii. given assurances that they do not employ individuals who 
were named contacts for the Consulting Association. 

 
The Council asks officers to prepare a report for the Leader and 
Strategy and Resources Scrutiny Committee on implementation of 
this policy.  
 

7c Councillor Cantrill 
 

This Council notes: 
 

i. that the Tour de France event in Cambridge on Monday 7th 
July was an overwhelming success for the city. 
 

ii. the hard work of council officers, volunteers and all other 
organisations involved in the holding of the event. 

 
iii. the decision taken by the City Council in 2012, to host the 

event only on the basis that the cost to the council was for the 
use of its existing resources - particularly at a time of financial 
austerity. 

 
iv. the event was a demonstration of the City Council's ability to 

work with many stakeholders over a period of two years to 
deliver an event that reinforces Cambridge as a city where 
cycling is at its heart. 



 

This Council believes that a lasting, permanent legacy of the Tour de 
France will be a true measure of its success and will create that 
legacy by resolving to: 
 

i. continue to build on its existing commitment to cycling across 
all areas of the council's activities - as illustrated by the recent 
investment in new cycle racks across the city centre. 
 

ii. commend the publication 'making space for cycling' and to 
consider, to the extent where the policy does not already exist, 
the adopting of the proposals within the publication. 

 
iii. commit to support and press for the delivery of the Chisholm 

Trail, a major piece of cycling infrastructure, by the County 
Council and other key stakeholders. 

 
iv. continue to lobby for additional cycle infrastructure on major 

roads in the city (similar to the schemes recently approved by 
the County Council on Hills Road and Huntingdon Road). 

 

8 WRITTEN QUESTIONS  
 

 No discussion will take place on this item. Members will be asked to 
note the written questions and answers document as circulated 
around the Chamber.  

 

9 SPECIAL URGENCY DECISIONS  
 

 Part 4B paragraph 16 of the Council’s Constitution, permits Special 
Urgency decisions to be taken by the relevant Executive Councillor 
with the agreement of the Chair of the relevant Scrutiny committee. 
 
Para 17.3 of the Access to Information Procedure Rules requires 
that these decisions be reported back to Council for information.   
 

9a Building Cleaning In House Bid  (Pages 221 - 238) 

9b Consultation About Area Joint Committee Proposal 
(Pages 239 - 244) 

 



 

 

Information for the Public 
 

 
 

Location 
 
 
 
 

The meeting is in the Guildhall on the Market Square 
(CB2 3QJ).  
 
Between 9 a.m. and 5 p.m. the building is accessible 
via Peas Hill, Guildhall Street and the Market Square 
entrances. 
 
After 5 p.m. access is via the Peas Hill entrance. 
 
All the meeting rooms (Committee Room 1, 
Committee 2 and the Council Chamber) are on the 
first floor, and are accessible via lifts or stairs.  
 

 
 
 

Public 
Participation 

Some meetings may have parts that will be closed to 
the public, but the reasons for excluding the press 
and public will be given.  
 
Most meetings have an opportunity for members of 
the public to ask questions or make statements.  
 
To ask a question or make a statement please notify 
the Committee Manager (details listed on the front of 
the agenda) prior to the deadline.  
 

• For questions and/or statements regarding 
items on the published agenda, the deadline is 
the start of the meeting. 

 

• For questions and/or statements regarding 
items NOT on the published agenda, the 
deadline is 10 a.m. the day before the meeting.  

 
 
Speaking on Planning or Licensing Applications is 
subject to other rules. Guidance for speaking on these 
issues can be obtained from Democratic Services on 
01223 457013 or 
democratic.services@cambridge.gov.uk.  
 

 



 

 
Further information about speaking at a City Council 
meeting can be found at; 
 
https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/speaking-at-
committee-meetings  
 
Cambridge City Council would value your assistance 
in improving the public speaking process of 
committee meetings. If you have any feedback please 
contact Democratic Services on 01223 457013 or 
democratic.services@cambridge.gov.uk. 
 
 

Filming, 
recording 
and 
photography 

The Council is committed to being open and 
transparent in the way it conducts its decision-making.  
Recording is permitted at council meetings, which are 
open to the public. The Council understands that 
some members of the public attending its meetings 
may not wish to be recorded. The Chair of the 
meeting will facilitate by ensuring that any such 
request not to be recorded is respected by those 
doing the recording.  
 
Full details of the City Council’s protocol on 
audio/visual recording and photography at meetings 
can be accessed via: 
 
http://democracy.cambridge.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx
?NAME=SD1057&ID=1057&RPID=42096147&sch=d
oc&cat=13203&path=13020%2c13203  
 

 

Fire Alarm In the event of the fire alarm sounding please follow 
the instructions of Cambridge City Council staff.  
 

 

Facilities for 
disabled 
people 

Level access to the Guildhall is via Peas Hill. 
 
A loop system is available in Committee Room 1, 
Committee Room 2 and the Council Chamber.  
 
Accessible toilets are available on the ground and first 
floor. 

 



 

 
Meeting papers are available in large print and other 
formats on request. 
 
For further assistance please contact Democratic 
Services on 01223 457013 or 
democratic.services@cambridge.gov.uk. 
 

Queries on 
reports 

If you have a question or query regarding a committee 
report please contact the officer listed at the end of 
relevant report or Democratic Services on 01223 
457013 or democratic.services@cambridge.gov.uk. 
 
 

 

General 
Information 

Information regarding committees, councilors and the 
democratic process is available at 
http://democracy.cambridge.gov.uk/  
 
 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



�������� � 	
���
�����������������

�

�
�
�

��

�������� �������������
� �������������������
�
�	
�
�
�� �����������������
����  !����� "��� �#�����$��$�%&'��(������  )���#��
!�����"����#�����$��$�%&'��*++�##��*�
#����*��#����*,�����-��.��#��-���#��
��
-��/�� -��
�  !����� "���� �#��� ��$��� ��0��
�'�� -��#����� -���/
���#�� -�����0���
���#������ )��
���  )���#�� !����� "���� �#��� ��$�1$�%&� ��0��
�'�� 2�0#
������
3��#�� 3��+��#�� 3��/���� 3�����
�� ��
������ !�(
������� !�"#�
�� !�.
�
����
!������ 456������� (������ 40����� (�##�� (������ 6�#���""��� 6��
�� 6������� 6�+��#���
6�+��#����� �������� �����##�� ����#�� ����#�� ���#
�� 	�

�������� 	��/��� ��
�
	�������""��
�

�����������������������������������

�

���������� ���
�
�
�������	���	�
�
�� �!�!"���#
�	��$����%�
�
�����������(������������
���
������������(�����������
�
�#
��������#�����"�
�����������2�����-��
����!�����"���#
��!���������7��������$������
�
�
���&
'�#
�#���
�

��� �����������2�����-��
�+������#�
�!�����"���#
��!���������7��������$�����
 �����������-��
�#
�����
��#
���#�#�#����
������#�����"������#������"�#
��
�""�����"�!����'��

�

����%����� ���
�
�
���(
" 
������	���	�
�
�� �!�!"����
�	��$����%�
�
����������� !�(
������ �������
� ��
� ����������� *�
#��� �����
�
� #
��
������#���� �"� ����������� 6�+��#� )��
��� ��� )���#�� !����� "��� #
�� !���������
7��������$������
�
�
���&
'�#
�#���
�

��� ����������� 6�+��#� )��
��� +�� ����#�
� )���#�� !����� "��� #
�� !���������
7��������$����� �����������)��
���#
�����
��#
���#�#�#����
������#����
�"������#������"�#
���""�����"�)���#��!����'��

�
�

Public Document Pack Agenda Item 1

Page 11



�������� ����$�� 	
���
�����������������

�

�
�
�

��

����)����� ��� �""	�&
� ��� �� ��		
�
� 	
��	'� 
�
�*!� 

�� ��� 
�
�*


!�+�
�
�'����,��"	!���$���
�
	
������#����"� #
����*����� ��������#��.�0���������,�
������������#� �����
�
��
���.��
�+��#
��!�������
�

����-����� �����

�
�
��

 	�!�+����!�
	.���
"�	
�
��
�
�
������/!�+���&
�
0

��
�
�

'�
��
�
����!�
������ ��!���	�
�
8#�0�����#�
�#
�#�#
��"����0��.�
�
�+��������#�
�#��#
���""�����"�������������
�
*++���9�(�#���6�+��#��
*�+����9��
����##��(�����
���#���9�!�����&������3�����
��
�
�����3��#���9�6����!�(
������
������
.��9�&�0���3��+��#�
:��#��
��#��#���9�(�#�����������
;��.��3�
.�<��9�!��#�������#�
!��/�#�9�)���6�#���""��
%�0�
���9�6�
����#�����
(�#���"���
�9�6��
��
�6�+��#������
�*��������##�
=�����:
�#
<��9�	���!�����
6������9�)�,��-��.��#�
	������.#���9�%��/�*,�����
>��#��
��#��#���9�7������*��#���
�

����1����� ��� ��

� 
�
� �""�!�
*
�
� ��� 
�
� ����	.�� ���"��!�� ��	� 
�
�

�� !�+��
�	�
�

	
�� �������� ��#�
� #
�� ������#���#� �"� 	
�� 6�,����
�� 6�#
� *
���� ��� #
��
!����<���
�������"���#
��!���������7��������$������

�

����2����� �����

�
�
��""�!�
*
�
����
�
�����	.����'

���	�
�
�
�� !�+�
�
�	�
�
	
�� �������� ��#�
� #
�� ������#���#� �"� ��������� *,����
� !��
������ ��� #
��
!����<����
�#�"���#
��!���������7��������$����
�

Page 12



�������� ����$�� 	
���
�����������������

�

�
�
�

��

���,$����� ���"�������
��� 
!����������3��
��
�
�� 
+�!�+�����	�
�
�
���&
'�  �����������'�� ��� #
�� ��������� �"� ����������� ��#
������ ����#��
�����
�
�+�������������!�.
�
���#
�#��
�

��� 	
������������?���������#����������#�����"�#
������������0
��
�#
��
�#����
�"�!�����0����
���
��.�
�+�������������(��������
����
����.�
��������
�
�"��""������
�#
�#�#
��������������+���""�?�
�#����������"�#
���������#����
"���������#�#����#��
����

�

���,������ ����	������ ��
*
�
��
�
�4� �����5��6�
�
%��*����.����
�
�+���������,�
��
�
�
�4�7�������
�
	
��!�����0������
���.������"��#�
��#��"����%��#
����+��
.��*��
����#��
0�#�
� #
�� !����� ��/��.� ���������� � 6�������#�#�,��� �"� ���#���
	�0��0����<�� 2���
� ��
� �#�
��#�� "���� #
�� @��,����#�� �"� ���+��
.�� 0����
�����0������
���
�
�
,4� ��8����������6��8����9�6��(�#:��%
��; �
�
�
	
��!��������"����
�#
�#�#
��!�##��������0���
�+�������
�
��#�3����	����#��
�
���
�������
�����#
�������#�A��������
�
�
�4� ������������������(6�����������9�7�(��6(�#:��1
��;���:�
�$���
�
	
�� !����� ���"����
� #
�#� #
�� (�������#���� �"� !�
������� B���� 0���
� #�/��
���������>�
���
����C#
�������
�
�
�
�
�

Page 13



�������� ����$�� 	
���
�����������������

�

�
�
�

��

%4� ���5���5���#��<6�(������9��� 	�'��:��)
��; �
�
�
	
��!����� �����
�
���������������.� #���##��
� #
��
�������#���������
���#��
�����.�� #�����/� #
�� #���� ����""�����"�(��������
���� #������
���� #��/�#�� "����
#
����,�����
�	0�����.�4""�������
�
�
)4����������(������6�(�#�=��1
��; �
�
�
	
�� !����� ���"����
� #
�#�� ��� ������#� �"� ��#������ *���
� B������ )���� #
��
*���
�B������B��.�0���
�+��"��0��"����#
��2���

����"����!��
������
������
"�������0��/����
�
�
-4� ��#��<6�(�#�����
�
	
��!��������"����
�#
�#�#
��!����<��)���4�#�0���
�#�/�����������	
���
���
���#�*�.��#����2���#�7�����#
��
�

���,������ ���
�
�
��	�*��*��+�
�
��
*0
	�����
�
��� ��!���� 	�>�!�!����
���
�
��!
����	�
�
�� �!�!"���#
�	��$����%�
�
����������� (����� �������
� ��
� ����������� (�##� �����
�
� #
�#� ������������
!�.
�
�����
�!�(
������+��������#�
����-����""����
�
����������� (�##� �������
� ��
� ����������� 4<6������ �����
�
� #
�#� ������������
!�������
�(������+��������#�
����-����""����
�
����������� 3��/��� �������
� ��
� ����������� 3�����
� �����
�
� #
�#� �����������
!�"#�
�+��������#�
������-����""���
�
�
���&
'�#
�#�������������!�"#�
��!�.
�
����!�(
�������!�������
�(������
+��������#�
����-����""���"�#
����#��"���#
��!���������7��������$������
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

Page 14



�������� ����$�� 	
���
�����������������

�

�
�
�

��

(
���	�
!��������

	
�
�
�

�� ��!���	� �

*� ��

	
�
�

�
���#�����

�
��$��$�%&�

�
(���������	���#����"�>��#������"��#��
�

�
6��
�

�

�
��$�C�$�%&�

�
(���������!��+����"�&2*������##���

�
	�

��������

�
��$�C+$�%&�

�
(���������!��+����"�@�������
�

�

���,,����� �������!'
	�	
��**
�'�
!���������**!



����	��'�"
!���
�
�!&!������!	��?��; �
��$��@�
�

����#�#�#����������
���#����
�!��+�����"�	
��:?���#�,��
�
	
�� !����� ���"����
� #
�#� ����������� -��/� 
�
� ����.��
� "���� #
�� ���#� �"�
&��
���#�����+�������0�����#����#��#�/���������
�
�����������-���#��
��������
���
������������(����������
�
� #
��������#����
�"������������3��+��#����&��
����"�#
����������
�
�
���&
'� �����������'�#���
�

��� :���#������������3��+��#����&��
����"�#
�������������
�

���� %�#��#
��:?���#�,�����������������"����0���
�
�� :?���#�,�� ����������� "��� �#��#�.�� ��
� 	����"����#����� �����������

3��+��#�
�

�� :?���#�,�� ����������� "��� ��#�� ���#��� ��
� (�+���� (������� �����������
4<6������

�
�� :?���#�,�������������"���B���������
�6���������������������40����

�
�� :?���#�,�������������"���3�����.�������������(�����

Page 15



�������� ����$1� 	
���
�����������������

�

�
�
�

1�

�� :?���#�,�� ����������� "��� :�,�������#�� >��#�� ��
� (�+���� 3���#
��
�����������6�+��#��

�
�� :?���#�,�� ����������� "��� (������.� (������ ��
� 	�������#�� �����������

-�����0��
�

�� :?���#�,������������� "����������#���*�#����
�6�����#����������������
��
�����

�
����� %�#�� #
�� ��,���
� :?���#�,�� ����������� ���#"������ ��#� ��#� ��� ����
�
�

*����
�?����"�#
���""����<�������#�������������#�
������
�#
���
��+�����
�
�����
�
����#
����������D8�"����#����(��/<�����
�

�,�� *����,�� #
�� ��,���
� ����#���� �����.����#�� ��#� ��#� ��� #
�� ����
�
�
*����
�?�����
�#
������
���#��#��#
������#�#�#������#���#����*����
�?�
�� �� ��� �������#�
� �����
� #
�� �
��+��� ��
� �����
�
� ��� #
�� ��������
D8�"����#����(��/<�����
�

�

*�����#���#��"������##��������$���
�
�
���&
'�#���
�

��� *.����#
�����+�����
���E���"������##�����
����+���
����"������##����
������#�
�+���0���

�

6������#�
����������
�

����������?6@� ���>��6�
 �'�F*�#����#��

����������6�

��** �!
��6
	&!�
��
�
�

&�+�����
)������#��

�
&�+����
�
�
�

�� �'�
�
�
�� �'�
�
�
�
C�	�#���
�

6������� 6��
��
*��#����
 *�#��!����'�
�
!�.
�
����
�������� -��.��#��
�����##��6�#���""���
 *�#��6�+��#���'�
�
�

Page 16



�������� ����$�� 	
���
�����������������

�

�
�
�

��

6������#�
����������
�

����������?6@� ���>��6�
 �'�F*�#����#��

����������6�

��&!	��*
�
� &�+�����
)������#��

�
&�+����
�
�
�
�

�� �'�
�
�
�� �'�
�
�
C�	�#���

(�##�� ������#��
!������
 *�#��	�������""�'�
�
2�0#
������
6�+��#�����
6�#���""��� (������
!�����#��
 *�#�������##'�
�

6������#�
����������

����������?6@��
�

���>��6�
 �'�F*�#����#��

����������6�

6
	�

+�� A�
�
�� 	�
��

&�+�����
)������#��

�
�
&�+����
�
�
�
�

�� �'�
�
�
�
�� �'�
�
�
C�	�#���
�

�-��/�� ���#
��
���#������
 *�#��������#'�
�
6�+��#�����
-���#��
��
�����##�� !�����#��
-��.��#��
 *�#��������'�

6������#�
����������
�

����������?6@� ���>��6�
 �'�F*�#����#��

����������6�

�� �!�+��
�
�

&�+�����
)������#��

�
&�+����
�
�
�
�
�
8�
��$�����
�
�

�� �'�
�
�
�� �'�
�
�
�
�
�
�� �'�
�
C�	�#���
�

-���/
���#��*,�����
 *�#��(�##'�
�
	�

��������
-��#����� -��
��
-��.��#��
6�+��#�����
 *�#��2�0#
����'�
�
3�����
��
 *�#��3��/��'�

�

Page 17



�������� ����$C� 	
���
�����������������

�

�
�
�

C�

��5������#����������6�
�

����������6�>�
����������

����������6� ���>��6�
 �'F�*�#����#��

����������6�

�������5�

�
�

&�+�����
)������#�
�
�
&�+����
�
�
�
�
�
8�
��$�����
�

�� �'�
�
�
�
�� �'�
�
�
�
�
�
�� �'�
�
C�	�#���

(�������
������#��
	�������""���
 *�#��*,���'�
�
-�����0���
2�0#
������
)��
����3��#�
 *�#��-��
'�
�
3��/����
 *�#��3�����
'��
�
�
�
���

�
�

����������6�>�
����������

����������6� ���>��6�
 �'F�*�#����#��

����������6�

;�����(�8���������
��������
����������
�

&�+�����
)������#�
�
�
&�+����
�
�

�� �'�
�
�
�
�� �'�
�
�
�
1�	�#���
�

*,�����������#��
 *�#�� 	�������""��
��
�(�����'�
�
-�����0���
6�+��#�����
)��
����(�������
 *�#���
2�0#
����� ��
�
3��+��#'�

����������6�>�
����������

����������6� ���>���
 �'F�*�#����#��

����������6�

Page 18



�������� ����$A� 	
���
�����������������

�

�
�
�

A�

�

�����6��5�

�
�
�
�

&�+�����
)������#�
�
�
&�+����
�
�
�
�
�
�
8�
��$�����

�� �'�
�
�
�
�� �'�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�� �'�
�
�
���	�#���
�

*��#���� -��/��
(������� ���#
�
 *�#��!����'�
�
-���#��
��
40����� �����##��
2�0#
������
!�(
�������
4<6������� -��
�
 *�#��-��.��#'�
�
!�"#�
�
 *�#�3�����
'�
�
�
�
�

�
���������������6

����������6�>�
����������

����������6� ���>���
 �'F�*�#����#��

����������6�

��8���������6�
�

&�+�����
)������#�
�
&�+����
�
�

� �'�
�
�
�� �'�
�
�
1�	�#���

���#������(�##��
 *�#��-��/'�
�
-���#��
�� 3��#��
!�(
�������
6�+��#�����
 *�#��!�.
�
��'�
�

����������6�>�
����������
�

����������6� ���>��6�
 �'F�*�#����#��

����������6�

�����#�����
������6�6�>�

&�+�����
)������#�

��
�

(�������������#��
�

Page 19



�������� ����$��� 	
���
�����������������

�

�
�
�

���

�
�
�

�
&�+�����
�
�
�
�
8�
��$�����
�
�

�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
C�	�#���
�

�
-��#�����
2�0#
������
(������ ��������
-�����0���
�
3��/���

����������6�>�
����������

�

����������6� ���>��6�
 �'F�*�#����#��

����������6�

����6����� �����
;����� ����������
?�;�@�

&�+�����
)������#�
�
&�+�����
�
�
�

��

�
�
��
�
�
1�	�#���
�

������#��
	�������""��

�
-�����0���
6�+��#�����
4<6�������
6�#���""��
�

�

*�����#���#��"��
�������
�G�����
���������$���
�
�
���&
'�#���
�

��� *.����#
���
�������
�G�����
��������"����0���
�

�����##��� &�+����%�����#����� &�+�����
)������#�
%�����#�����

4�����#�������/����

� �
���� G�����
���� �
����� G����
�
����

�

�������#��
���,�����
�

!�.
�
���� 6�#���""��� � � 6��
��6������

:�,�������#�
�

2�0#
����� (����� � � (�##��������#��

�#��#�.����
�
6����������
�

6�+��#���� �����##�
�
�

� � -��/�����#
���

Page 20



�������� ����$��� 	
���
�����������������

�

�
�
�

���

�
�

3�����.�
�

	�

�
�������

��	
� �B�
	����#$�
&����
��
���
�
��	
� �B�
-��#����

� � -���/
���#��3�����
�

(������.�
�

)��
��� -�����0�� � � ������#��3��/���

�)���
�

-�����0��
 ��#��&��
'�

� � � ������#�

&�������.��
�

-���#��
�� � � ���#
� ���#
��
!�"#�
�

��,���*""�����
�

!�(
������ -���#��
� � � (�##�

:��������#�
*������ ��+�
�����##���
�

(����� � � � ����#��3��/����

�
�

8�
����
��#�(��������
�)���#��
�
�
���&
'�#����
�

��� ���"����#
��������#���#��"�!�������-��
�����#
���������<��8�
����
��#�
(������ ��
� !�� 6�+��#� -����##� ��� #
�� �������<�� )���#�� 8�
����
��#�
(������"���#
��!���������7��������$����

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

��#����������������#���#��#��#
��������,�#�����"�#
��6�,�������
�
�
���&
'���
�

Page 21



�������� ����$��� 	
���
�����������������

�

�
�
�

���

��� 	
�#������������4<6������#�/��#
���������"�"�����������������>��
����#
��
������,�#�����"�#
��6�,���������

�

���,������ ��� ���6
�

*
�
��
�
�����������3��+��#����/��#����0��##���*�������#�#����#����#
��&�+����2����<��
������#����"���#
��"��#
�����.�!���������7�����0
��
�
�
�+���������
�
�#��#
��
�.��
��"���#
�����#��.���
�
�����������-��/����/��#����0��##���*�������#�#����#����#
��&�+�����)������#��
2����<�� ������#���� "��� #
�� "��#
�����.� !��������� 7����� 0
��
� 
�
� +����
�����
�
�#��#
���.��
��"���#
�����#��.���
�
����������� 3��/��� ���/�� #�� �� 0��##��� *������ �#�#����#� ��� #
��
8�
����
��#$������,�#�,�� 2����<�� ������#���� "��� #
�� "��#
�����.� !���������
7�����0
��
�
�
�+�����������#�
������
�#
���
��+�����
�

���,%����� �'�"
!��������� ������!�!
����'��	!�	!
!
��
�
@�
��� #
�� ��
���� "��� *������ �#�#����#��� #
�#� �"� ����������� 3��+��#� 0���

����
�#��+������#����"����
��#����+��#
�����������
�
�
���&
'� +�����,�#���#���'�#
�#��
�

��� 	
��*�������#�#����#��"�#
��&�+����2��������������
�
�#��#
���.��
���
+���
��#�
�������������������"�������$����

�

���,)����� � 0�!��C 
�
!�����!*
��
�
!����������

�����
�#
������������
���
��#
��"����0��.�����#���
�
��

��� 8�� *����� ����� ����������� ��
����� �������
� #�� 
���,��� �� ���+��
.��
�����#���5�B�������#
�����
�#����#
�#�
��0�������#�
���
�

���� *�� #
�� ��0�:?���#�,������������� ��������+��� "��� 
���,����.� #
��� ���� 
��
��0���/��""������#���

�

Page 22



�������� ����$��� 	
���
�����������������

�

�
�
�

���

�� +�.��� #
��������.���
��������.����������� #��
���,��� #
��� �� ������#�������

�0�#��0��/�+��#�0�#
��#�
��#�����"��#
����
���#�����
�

�� .�,�� ,���� �������������
���#���� #���� 5�������#��������.��?������5� �� #��
�����������������#��.���������������
���#��

�

��0��/� 0�#
� !�� ������� ��
� ������.���� 0��/��.� ��� �� 5�������#�� ��#����
�����#5�#
������#��+����#�*�.����6��/���@��,����#�����

�
����� *�/�
�#
��:?���#�,�������������#�������#�+��/�0�#
������.�������
�#���#�

#
����?#������������#��.���
�
�
	
��:?���#�,�������������"����������#���*�#����
�6�����#����������
�
��
�

��� 	
�����+��
.���������#�� B���� 0��� ������
� "��� ������4""������0���
�
�#��#� 
��������.� ��
� 
�,������.� ��#������ 0�#
� ���#������ ������ ��� #
��
��0�������*#�#
�������#�����#��"��""�����#����0���+���.�����#����#
��
2���#�� 6�,��0� 0
��
� 0��� �� ,���� �����#��#� ��
� ������?� ������ �"�
0��/���
�

���� 8��������#�#�������������������������.�0��/�0�#
��#�
��#���4""������0���
�
+��
��������.� �
����0�#
� #
��G����#�������#�����
����,����#�����	
���
0���
� +���
� ����� #
�� 0��/� ��� ����� "����0��.� �� &�+���� !�#���� #��
�������� +������������� 6�+��#��0
��
� �����
� "��� ������� ���/�� +�#0����
#�0����
�.�0����

�
�����4�.�����#����� ���
� ��� #
�� G����#���� ���#���� ���+��
.�� 3�+��

���+��
.�� �#�
��#� �������#�� *�#���� ��
� *�.���� 6��/��� �#�
��#5��
@����� G����#�����.� ���,���� �����
�� 
�
� �� ��#� �"� 0��/� ��#�
��.� ���
�#�
��#����
��#
���,����#�����0�#
�,����#����.�������	
����0���
�+��
�����
�#���������#
�#�#
���0��������0��/��.�#�.�#
�������������#��.�
���
��#
�����
���#�
������#��.�����,��������.�0��/���

�
�,��	
����������0��/�
���������0�#
�,����#�������#�����.�����#��������
����

���+��
.�� �������� "��� G����#���� ���,������ ���+��
.�� :#
����
�������#�� B������ #
�� G����#���� ���#���� )���+���#�� ���+��
.��
����
��
� &�,��.� ����#� #�� ������� ������� #�� #
���� ���+��� .������ "���

��������#��.� ��"����#���� ��� ���/��.� ���������� 8�� �

�#�����
���+��
.��
������#� ���,�
�
� �� "��#��#��� 
�#�+���� �"� .������� ���+��
��
���.�����#��������#
����#�����0������������#���#����"���,����#�����.��
	
����0���
�+����##�������#� ���4""����������
��.�#����
������#��.�0
�#�

Page 23



�������� ����$��� 	
���
�����������������

�

�
�
�

���

0��� �����
�� #
����� 8��#��
� �""������ 0���
� "����� #
���� #���� ���

���,����.����������#���#����&�+���5������"��#�������
�#��/���.���,��#��
��
���������?����������

�
,�� 	
��3��
��"��������#��)�,�������#�
�
�+������/�
��"�
��������������

���+����"�
����#�""�����
������#����#
��
����"�#
�������#��3�0�,����
��� ���#����
�� 4""������ 
�
� �� ,���� �
�����.��.� 0��/� ���.������ #��

���,��� ��
� 0���
� ��#� 
�,�� ������#�� #�� +������ ��,��,�
� ��� #
��
�������.� ��
� ��.�����#���� �"� #
�� �,��#�� 8#� 0��� ��..��#�
� #
�#� !��
����������#��#� #
��3��
��"��������#��)�,�������#� #�����"����
���
�##��
������

�
,���2�,��� #
��� ���������� �����#��.�+��/� #�� #
����?#������������#��.�0���
�

��#�+�������������
�
!����������

�����
�#
������������
���
��#
��"����0��.�����#���
�

��� 	
���.
��#� ����� 
�� 
�
� +���� 
��������#�
� #�� "��
� #
�#� ������ ��+����
���#��� ���#�#�#����� 0���� �.�����.� ���������
����� "���� ������ ����
��#��
#����.�#��
��
�#
���#��������#����
������#�
����������
�����"����������
��������������
�*���������##������
�

���� >
��� �#��
��.� ��� �� ���
�
�#�� 
�� 
�
� ����� "���
� #
�#� 
���
���������
�����0����.����
���
�

����� *�/�
� �"� #
�� �������� ����
� ��/�� �#� ������ #�� #
�� 
��
�� �"� ���� ������
���#�#�#���������
��.�#�?�������������#��
���,�����+�������,�����#
�#��
�
�� ���
�+�
�,�����0����������#�+�����
���������#���#��"�#
����������
�� ���
� +�
�,����� 0��� �� +������� #�0��
�� ���+��
.�� +������.� �� ��#��

.���#���#
���#
�������"��#�����#��
�

�,�� ��..��#�
� #
�#� #
�� �������<�� :?���#�,�� �����
��� ��������#��.� �� ��0��
������� �������� 0
���� #
�� &��
��� �"� #
�� �������� 0��#��� #�� �����#����
��������+��� "��� #
���� ���#�#�#����� ��/��.� "��� #
���� �����#����� "����0��.�
�����#�
���"������ #����.�.��0�#
� #
���������� ��0�#
� #
��/��0��
.�� #
�#�
�������������
�����"����#
��&��
�����"�������������#
�#�������#��
���#��
+��������
�
�#��+��!����#�����"�#
�����0���
�

,�� *�/�
�#
�#���#������"����#
���+�������#�
�+��/�#��#
����?#����#��.��"�
#
�����������

�

Page 24



�������� ����$��� 	
���
�����������������

�

�
�
�

���

�
	
��&��
����"�#
����������������
�
��
�

��� 	
��/�
�!���������"���#
��H���#������
�#
����"����#����#
�#�
����.�������
���,�
�
����
���+��.���
�

���� >
���#� #
����#����������
�
����,�����#��
��
�� ����#��.� #�� ������
��.� #��
���������
������ "��� �?������ ������
��.� #�� B���+��/$	0�##��� ���#��
0�#
��� �� 
����� ��
� ��##���$������� 0�#
��� �� 
����� �#� ����
� ��#� 
����#���
��"��������#
�������
�

����� 	
����#����������
�
�#��"���������#���0���#��
��
����
����#��������������
#
�#� 
�,�� +���� �
��#�"��
� +�� #
�� ��+���� �
���
� +�� �����
� #
���.
� #
��
����,��#�*���������##��������
�

!�����������
��#
��"����0��.����������#��������#����
�

��� 3��0�����������
�#
�#���������������
�*���������##����
�
����#��#�
�
�?#������ +�
���� ���
� ��� ��
����� ��
� +��� ���������� ��
� �����,�
� ���
���������� 	
�� �������� ���
�
� #�� "����0� #
��� ��� ��
� ������� #
�#�
����������0���������,�
�����
�

�
���� >�#
�����0��
�����#��#��������������#�0�������
����#����#����/��������#
�#�

#
���0���
���#�+��#�����#�
���
�

	
��&��
����"�#
����������������
�
��
�

��� )�����������0�#
�������
.���������#�������.����
�&��.�6��
������.��
��.��
��.� ��.�.����#� 0�#
� #
�� 
������#��� �������� 0���� ���.������.�
0������

�
���� ����������� *�
#��� 0���
� +�� "����0��.� ��� 0�#
� #
�� �#
��� ��
����� ��� #
��

���#
������#��
���������.�.����#��
�������
�

����� 	
�������##������,�����	����0���
�+����/�
�#���
����%�#
��
�����3�����
6��
���
�&��.�6��
���
����� "����0��.� #
�������#���#��#����#
�*����
�����##���#��"����0�#
�������3�0�,���#
���������5�������"��������
�
�#��
+��������������������##����#
�#�����
����#����#����������+���#�����

!����������

�����
�#
������������
���
��#
��"����0��.�����#���
�

Page 25



�������� ����$�1� 	
���
�����������������

�

�
�
�

�1�

��� *��?� *�/���� :?���#�,�� )����#��� �"� #
�� 2�,������#� ���������#�����
���,���� ����
�� ��+���#� 4""���� 
�
� ���"����
� #
�#� ������� ���
���������#���� ������0���
� ��#� +�� ���.�+��� "��� �����#����� ��� ��
�0����
��,����"�#
���
�
���#�������
�.�#����/������
���

���� *��� ������ ��+���� ���#��� I�+�� ��� ���+��
.�� #
�#� 
�,�� �� ����.����#�
"���#���� �
���
� 
�,�� +����� 
�#�� ��������� ��
� ������� ��
��� �/����� ��� ��
���
�#���������#�������
�

����� ����
� #
�� &��
��� ��
� �
��"� :?���#�,�� �"� #
�� �������� �����
��� #
���
�����"��������������
������#�+��/�#��#
����?#������������#��.���

�
	
��&��
����"�#
����������������
�
��
�

��� �����"��� �����#������� ���� +���
� ��� #
�� ��
�,�
���� ���#��� ��
� 
�.�#���

�/�����"�������#��"�#
����0
�������������#�����

�
���� 	
����������
����������#��	0�##�����
�B���+��/���.�����
��#
������#��

�"�#
���������������#�����������
���������#��#��
��������#����"����#������

�
����� B��#
��� �����,����#�� #�� #
�� �������<�� ���������#���� ���������� 0����

+���.���,��#�.�#�
���

���,-����� ���'
���/!
���	���C 
�
!����
�

�4� �	�*��� ��!���	��!

�
�

�D
� 
!&
� �� ��!���	� ��	� ��&!	��*
�
� 7��

� ��'� � 0�!�� �
��
�B�
�� ��!���	���0
	
��
�
��/� ��

�� !�� 
�
� ���
� �
�	� ��&
� �!	� E ��!
��*��!
�	�� ���/�� ��F�	'� ��
	
� �
�G�
�
	
�� :?���#�,�� ����������� ������
�
� #
�#� ���+��
.�� ��#�� �������� 
�
� ��
���#�����������#�����#�#
��"����0��.����
��
����#����
�

•� 6�.��#��#���#�

•� 2��,�����(�����

•� (��/����#���#�

•� %�0���/�#�6��
�

Page 26



�������� ����$��� 	
���
�����������������

�

�
�
�

���

•� !��#�.���6��
� �������
�����#���#
�#�0������,�������������,����#���#'�
�
(����#��#���������
��#�#
������#��������
�����#��.���
��?�
���(��#�����#��!�##���
�(!�����
���"�����"���#�����"�(��#������(!������
�
	
�� ������� ����� ������#��#���� 0��� ����� �?���
�
� �#� ���� ��#���#���
����#����.���#���������(��/����#���#����������������
�0�#
�#0����#������������
*�#
��.
�#
����
���+���������.
#�
���������#�#
�����#��������������
�
*������ ��
� 
����� ����� �+I��#�,��� "��� (!��� 0���� ��
��,�
� �#� ��#���#���
����#����.��#�#������	
��(!���
�����������+I��#�,��0����?���
�
���� #�����
��#��"��������0�+�������#�(��/����#���#���
������
����#������#�2��,�����(�����
��
�!��#�.������
�������#�,������ ������������?���
����������������0���
�+��
��+����
��"�#
���+I��#�,���'�
�
4"� #
�� ��� ���� ��#���#��� ����#����.� ��#���� �� ��#��� 
�
� �����
�
� ��,���� �#� ���
�+�,��#
��*���=����#���+I��#�,����,����������
�0�#
��������������A�����������
�
�1����������
�
�

�4� �	�*��� ��!���	��
!�
	�
�
� �D
� 
!&
� �� ��!���	� ��	� �!
�� �
�
	
� ��'� � 0�!�� ����
�B� �� ��!���	� �<�

�
!����
�
� 6�*
�	
�!'
�
��/
	
�"�
��
'�
���
�	�
��
���0� 	���'���**!


'�0
��	
�


�
�
�
�
!���
��	
*�&
�
�
��
��
�!��6
� 	0	!'+
���**��H�!���!+�
����
�!�:�
�� �'� 
�
� �D
� 
!&
� �� ��!���	� "�
��
� 

���  ��/�
�� 
�
� 	
*�&��� ��� 
�
�
�
��
�!���!3
���
����""
�G�

�
� 	
��:?���#�,�������������������
�
�#
�#� #
��#��������� "���������#���+��
.��

������� 0��� ����#�
� ��� *����� ����� #�� ���#��#� ����� �"� �����#��� �������
�
��,��+��/��	
����#�+���
��.�,�.�#�#����0���
�+���������
�����������������
��#�
0�����,���.�
�#
�#�#
��"�����0���
�+������,�
��#�#
����#�.����

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
,4� �	�*��� ��!���	�6*�	
�

Page 27



�������� ����$�C� 	
���
�����������������

�

�
�
�

�C�

�
� �D
� 
!&
� �� ��!���	� ��	� �����!�+� ���!��� ��'� �	���"�	
B� �� ��!���	�

>�
���/
�
�

��� 
�
� �
/� �'*!�!�
	�
!��� !�

�'�� 
�� �
�
	��!�
� "����!�+:� 	
*�&!�+� !
�
�	�*� 
�
� 	
*!
� ��� 
�
� �	
�� ��**!



�� ��'� +!&!�+� !
� ���� 
�� 
�
� �
�
	���
��**!



:�/!
���������+
�!��'
�
+�
!���:���������
�
!*�

�0

��*�'
�
��� 
�
� 
!*
� 
��
�/!���0
��

'
'� !�� 
�
��
�
	��������!�+���**!



G� ��� !
�
!�

�'
'�
��
�
�
�*


!�+�/!���	 ����� �
!��!
��!�!��
�:���/
&
	����+�
��
�
*!+�
�0
:��	� !����� 
����� 
!*
�
�&!��+
'G���'� !�� 
�
	
� !����� 
����� 
!*
:�
/��
�/!�����""
��
��
�
�	
*�!�!�+��""�!��
!���G�
�
	
�� :?���#�,�� ����������� ������
�
� #
�#� #
�� 
�#����
� ���������� 0���
� +��
�����
���
� �#� #
�� :�,�������#� ����#���� �����##��� ��
� #
�� B���� �������� ���
�������
�
8#�0�����,���.�
�#
�#�#
����0���
�+����.�����#�������������
��.������������#���

�������0�#
�*���������##������
�B�������������*��� ��������.��������#�����
0���
�#
���+��#�/���#���������,���
����#��.���
�

�4� �	�*��� ��!���	����
	!���
�
� �D
� 
!&
� �� ��!���	� ��	� �����!�+� ���!��� ��'� �	���"�	
B� �� ��!���	�

>�
���/
�
�

� �� �'� 
�
� �D
� 
!&
� �� ��!���	� 	
����!	*� 
�
� "��!
!��� ��� 
�
� �� ��!��
	
+�	'!�+�
�
��	
�
!������
�
���!����*��	�!�G�
�
	
��:?���#�,�������������������
�
�#
�#�#
���
��
����	�����"����
����#��"�#
��
��#��)�����	
����#��)����0���
�+����.��
���?#�0��/���
�#
���0���
����"����#
��
����#������
�

%4� �	�*��� ��!���	��
!'�
�
�D
� 
!&
� �� ��!���	� ��	� �!
�� �
�
	
� ��'� � 0�!�� ����
�B� �� ��!���	� �<�
�
!����
�
7��
� ��
!��� /!��� ��
� 0
� 
�3!�+� 
�� ��&
� 
�
� 
� 	!�
� 0���
	�� ��� I!�+.��
��	�'
�	
*�&
'G�
�
�

Page 28



�������� ����$�A� 	
���
�����������������

�

�
�
�

�A�

	
��:?���#�,�������������������
�
�#
�#��+�#���#��������#
��3�.
0������
����
*�+���
����
��#���#�+�������0������"����
�+��#
������#������������
��� #
��
3�.
0����*�#����#����������4""������
�
������#���+����0��/��.���������0�#
�#
��
)��#���#�3�.
0���!���.�����
�
�����"�������#�#����#��,���#�;��.5��(���
����
�
��/� "��� #
�� +������� #�� +�� ����,�
�� 3�0�,��� #
��� 
�
� ��+��H���#��� ���
�������
���
�#
������#���������5���+���#��#����"������.����#�#
�����#�,�#�������
��.����� +����� ��� �����#�� 0��� ����#�
�� 	
�� )��#���#� 3�.
0��� !���.��� 
�
� �����
�����
������
��+#���,���#
�������"�#
��3�.
0���*�#����#
��������
�+�������
��.����#�#
�#�#
��+�������0������#�����+�#���#�����
�
8#�0������"����
� #
�#���#����������4""������0���� ��,��#�.�#��.�0
�#
�����#����
����
�+�� #�/���+��	��
��.��#��
��
�����������"� #
��+��������#�#��� J	�����#�
8�"��2��
�
�	�����!��#��.�(���#J�0
��
�.�,���#
�������������#�������,���#����
#
�#�#
���0�������#��"������""����#�
�#���#
��4""������	�����#�8�"����#�������#����
�

)4� �	�*��� ��!���	��&
	��
� �
� �D
� 
!&
� �� ��!���	� ��	� ��&!	��*
�
:� 7��

� ��'� � 0�!�� �
��
�B�

�� ��!���	���0
	
��
�

7� �'� 
�
� �D
� 
!&
� �� ��!���	� ��	� ��&!	��*
�
:� 7��

� ��'� � 0�!��
�
��
���

�� 
�
�
�'

�!�����
�
�!*"�
*
�
�
!������
�
�J��
��
	���*0	!'+
�
>�!
F
�K�"	�+	�**
G�

�
� 	
��:?���#�,������������� ������
�
� #
�#��

�#������+����0���
�+���

�
� #
���

������� ��
� #
���� ��0� )�.� 4""������ 0���
� +�� #��/���.� /��0�� D
�#� ���#�<��
*

�#������ ���,��#�#�,�� 0��/� 0���
� ����� +�� ��
��#�/��� +�� #
�� (��#� ���#����
���,�����

�
� *

�#������ ��"����#���� ��.��
��.� #
�� K�����������+��
.��-��#E��L����.������

0���
�+��+���.
#�#��"�#����*���������##����#�����+���#
����+����#��
�,��#
����
�������
����*������6����#�0���
�+�����
���
���
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

Page 29



�������� ����$��� 	
���
�����������������

�

�
�
�

���

���,1����� �������!'
	�
�
������/!�+���
!�
�������
!��:���
!�
����/�!���
����0

��+!&
��0�B�
�
��
!�����
�
�����������6��
��������
���
������������(�##������
�
�#
��"����0��.���#�����
�
K6�,��0��"�&�����)������������#
��@;�+��#
�����.������"�&�������
�6�.������
*�#
���#�����"�#
�����������"�:�������
�
	
��� ����� ��,��0� �"� ������ 
��������� ��� #
�� @;� +�� ��#����#������ ������ 
���
��
������������"���������
�#�����������.�"���.���#���
�,���#�����"���0����#��
������ .�,������#�� ��������
� #�?�������.� ��0���� "��� ��������� ��
� �� "������
"��
��.���##�����#�"���:�.���
���������#
���#������
�
	
����������
�#���������"��������/�����.�0�#
�&2*�����������#
���������#��*��
0�#
����� ����� ��,��0��� #
������� ������ #
�� ��,��0�
�+�
��� ��� #
��� ��������#����
��
� ������ .�,������#� ��� #
�� @;�� #�� �

����� #
�� "��
��.� ��
� ������� #
��
���������������,����#����������������
�
	
����������������#�� #
��&2*�,��0� #
�#� #
�� ��,��0� ����� "���� ��"���#������� #
��
������#� ���������� "����.� ������ .�,������#�� 	
�� ������#� ��
��� "��� "�������.�
��
� ������.� ������ .�,������#� ���
�� #�� �
��.�� ��
� �
��#� #�� #�
��5��
�������#�������8#���������#��#�#
�#���������
����#����.�,������#�0��/�#�.�#
���
#���

�����#
�������������
�#�/��#
������������
�#�����"��0��
��
�
>
���#
��
���.�#������#�����#��#
��@;����"�,���������#
����,�#�����"������
���
�
+�����"����"�������
�������.�,������#�+���+���#�����/�#��#
��"�#����0�#
�����0�
�

����L�
�
�
���&
'� �����������'�#���.����#
����#���������#���#��+�,����
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

Page 30



�������� ����$��� 	
���
�����������������

�

�
�
�

���

��
!���>�
�
����������� 6�+��#�� �������
� ��
� ����������� 40���� �����
�
� #
�� "����0��.�
��#�����
�
K	
��� �������� ��#��� #
�� 
�������� �"� #
�� ��#.���.� �����.� .����� #�� ������ #
��
�������<�����#����#�������,�����
�
	
�������������#���#
�#�#
���������.������.�.�����
�,���������������.��
�#��
��,�����#
��
�����������
�#
�#���,��.�#
�����#����#�������,����#
���"������������

�������+�������
�#����
�
	
�����������,������#
�������#��#�0��/�
����+��#
�����#����#�������,����
����.�
������������"����,������
������.�����"���#
�������#���#������#�
�"���#
���#�""�
+��#
����#��#����#
�#�
������������������#����#
���
�
	
�����������#
��/��@������"���#
����0��/��������#��.�#
����+������
�������������
#��#
��
��.�����"�#
�����#����
������������#��.�#
��0��/"������""��#�
��
�
	
����������������,���#������
��#������,�����#
�������#�����"�#
���������<�����#�
���#���� ���,���� � ��
� #�� "��
� #
�� ���#���#���� �"� #
�� ���,���� +�� ��
����.� #
��
�������<����
������#�#������.�+�
.�#��"�M����C1��+����N��	
��+��������"�#
��
��,��.��0����+�������
���
������0�
���+�
.�#���,��0�����������
�
	
�����
��.���#��#
���������<��+�
.�#������
�0�����#
��#�+���+���0�L�
�
�*
�'*
�
� �$����%� �$�%��)� �$�)��-� �$�-��1�

� L� � � �

6�,����� ��,��.� K�����#���� �"�
#
��(��#����#�������,���L�

���C��� ������� ������� �������

� � � � �

6�
��#���� �"� ��� #
�� K4,������
	������.�� �������� ��
�
���"������L�+�
.�#�

 ����1�'�  ����1�'�  ����1�'�  ����1�'�

� � � � �

� � � � �

%�#�B���������8����#�� ?)�:))$@� ?�$:2)$@� ?�$:2)$@� ?�$:2)$@�

�
�
���&
'� +���1�,�#���#���'�#���.����#
����#���������#���#��+�,����
�
�
�
�

Page 31



�������� ����$��� 	
���
�����������������

�

�
�
�

���

���,2����� 7	!


��C 
�
!����
�
	
����0�������0��##���H���#�������
�

����$����� ��� ��

� 
�
� 	
��	'� ��� �
*0
	.�� �


�'���
�� �
� ��**!



:�
6 0=��**!



���'�7�	3!�+���	
��*


!�+��' 	!�+��$�,����
�
�
���&
'�#
�#���
��

��� 6����
� �"� !��+���<� �##��
������ �#� �����##���� ��+� �����##��� ��
�
>��/��.�(��#��!��#��.��
����.�����$�����+����#�
���

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

	
�����#��.���
�
��#���������
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

������
�

Page 32



RECOMMENDATION TO COUNCIL 
(EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR FOR FINANCE AND  

RESOURCES – COUNCILLOR OWERS) 
 

 
Budget 2014/15 – Amendment by the Executive 

 
The report set out a budget amendment proposed by The 
Executive. 
 
The appendices to the report presented the budget proposals in 
relation to specific budget items for both General Fund (GF) 
Revenue and Capital as follows: 
 
(i) to add new budget proposals 
(ii) to amend or delete specific existing revenue budgets 
(iii) to amend existing items on the Capital & Revenue projects 
Plan 
(iv) to create new Earmarked Funds with accompanying Remits 

 
 
The Strategy and Resource Scrutiny Committee considered and 
approved the recommendations by 5 votes to 3.  
 
Accordingly, Council is recommended to: 
 
Agree the budget changes as outlined in the following: 
 
General Fund Revenue Budgets: 
 
Approve the following revenue budget changes: 
 
- for items funded from General Fund Reserves, as shown in 

Appendix A of the officer’s report. 
 

- for items funded from External or Earmarked Funds, as shown 
in Appendix B of the officer’s report.  

 
Capital & Revenue Projects Plan: 
 
Approve the capital amendment, as shown in Appendix C of the 
officer’s report. 
 
 
 
  

Agenda Item 4a

Page 33



Approve changes as follows: 
 
Amend the ‘Keep Cambridge Moving Fund’ 
 
The Budget-Setting Report approved by Council in February 2014 
included a contribution to this fund of £1,063.9k. It is now proposed 
to reduce this to £263.9k in order to fund the new Earmarked 
Reserves outlined below. The updated Earmarked and Specific 
Funds are shown in Appendix D of the officer’s report. 
 

• Establishing an earmarked reserve of £500,000 for ‘Sharing 
Prosperity Fund’, with the remit: 
 

Sharing Prosperity Fund Formal Remit: 
To provide resources to fund fixed-term and one-off projects and 
proposals (which can be made through the budget process by 
members or officers, subject to consideration by the relevant 
scrutiny committee and the Anti- Poverty Strategy Project Board) 
that support the interim objectives of the council’s Anti-Poverty 
Strategy, namely: 
 
1 Helping people on low incomes to maximise their income and 
minimise their costs 
2 Making the move into work easier 
3 Helping low income families with the cost of raising a child 
4 Breaking the link between poor health and poverty 
5 Ensuring that vulnerable older people get the services that they 
need and reducing the social isolation they can experience 
6 Helping people with high housing costs and improving the 
condition of people’s homes 
7 Working in partnership to tackle wider barriers to employment 
and engagement (e.g. transport, learning and skills) 
 
 
 

Establishing an earmarked reserve of £300,000 for ‘Fixed-
Term Priority Project Fund’, with the remit: 
 

Fixed-Term Priority Project Fund Formal Remit: 
To use non-ongoing, potentially short-term or uncertain sources of 
income, most obviously New Homes Bonus, for fixed-term costs.  
 
The creation of this fund will allow such sources of income to be 
used for priority projects without building in unsustainable ongoing 
revenue commitments. 
 

 
Page 34



3. Earmarked Reserves 
‘Sharing Prosperity Fund’ (SPF) 
 
It is recommended that £500,000 of the balance of unapplied New 
Homes Bonus Funding for 2014/15 (currently in “Keep Cambridge 
Moving” Earmarked Fund) is used to create a ‘Sharing Prosperity 
Fund’. It will provide resources to fund fixed term and one-off 
projects and proposals (which can be made through the budget 
process by members or officers, subject to consideration by the 
relevant scrutiny committee and the Anti-Poverty Strategy Project 
Board) that support the objectives of the council’s Anti-Poverty 
Strategy, 
 
 
‘Fixed-Term Priority Project Fund’ (FTPPF) 
 
Currently the Priority Policy Fund (PPF) can be used to fund 
ongoing revenue costs as well as fixed-term or one-off projects. It 
is recommended that in future years it is used solely to fund 
ongoing revenue costs, not fixed-term or one-off projects. 
 
It is recommended that a new fund, similar to the PPF but only 
available for funding non-ongoing, fixed-term projects, be set up, 
called the Fixed-Term Priority Project Fund (FTPPF). This can then 
harness non-ongoing, potentially short-term or uncertain sources 
of income, most obviously NHB. The creation of this fund will allow 
such sources of income to be used for priority projects without 
building in unsustainable ongoing revenue commitments. It is 
recommended that £300,000 of the balance of unapplied New 
Homes Bonus Funding for 2014/1515 (currently in “Keep 
Cambridge Moving” Earmarked Fund) is used to create this fund. 
 
4. Capital 
The Executive are proposing the change identified in Appendix C, 
namely to delete the 'Capital contribution to the 'Keep Cambridge 
Moving Fund' of £111,140 and delete from Capital Plan SC593. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 35



Page 36

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 
Cambridge City Council 

 
Item 

 
To: Executive Councillor for Finance and Resources: 

George Owers  
 

Report by: Director of Business Transformation 

Relevant scrutiny 
committee:  

Strategy & Resources 14 July 2014 

Wards affected: All Wards 

 
Budget 2014/15 – Amendment by the Executive 
 
Key Decision 
 
1. Executive summary  
 
1.1 This report sets out a budget amendment proposed by The Executive. 
 
1.2 The appendices to this report present the budget proposals in relation to specific 

budget items for both General Fund (GF) Revenue and Capital as follows:  
 

(i) to add new budget proposals  
 

(ii) to amend or delete specific existing revenue budgets 
 

(iii) to amend existing items on the Capital & Revenue projects Plan 
 

(iv) to create new Earmarked Funds with accompanying Remits 
 
 
2. Recommendations  
 
2.1 To recommend to Council budget changes as outlined in the following: 

 
General Fund Revenue Budgets: 
 

2.2 Approve the following revenue budget changes: 
 

· for items funded from General Fund Reserves, as shown in Appendix 
A. 
 

· for items funded from External or Earmarked Funds, as shown in 
Appendix B 

 
Capital & Revenue Projects Plan: 
 

2.3 Approve the capital amendment, as shown in Appendix C. 
 

 
 

Page 37



 

Earmarked Reserves: 
 

2.4 Approve changes as follows: 
 

· Amend the ‘Keep Cambridge Moving Fund’. 
 
The Budget-Setting Report approved by Council in February 2014 included 
a contribution to this fund of £1,063.9k.  It is now proposed to reduce this to 
£263.9k in order to fund the new Earmarked Reserves outlined below.  The 
updated Earmarked and Specific Funds are shown in Appendix D. 
 

· Establishing an earmarked reserve of £500,000 for ‘Sharing Prosperity 
Fund’, with the remit: 
 

 
 

· Establishing an earmarked reserve of £300,000 for ‘Fixed-Term 
Priority Project Fund’, with the remit: 
 

 
 

3. Earmarked Reserves 
 

‘Sharing Prosperity Fund’ (SPF) 

3.1 It is recommended that £500,000 of the balance of unapplied New Homes Bonus 

Funding for 2014/15 (currently in “Keep Cambridge Moving” Earmarked Fund) is 

used to create a ‘Sharing Prosperity Fund’.  It will provide resources to fund fixed-

term and one-off projects and proposals (which can be made through the budget 

process by members or officers, subject to consideration by the relevant scrutiny 

committee and the Anti-Poverty Strategy Project Board) that support the 

objectives of the council’s Anti-Poverty Strategy, 

Fixed-Term Priority Project Fund Formal Remit:  

To use non-ongoing, potentially short-term or uncertain sources of income, 

most obviously New Homes Bonus, for fixed-term costs. The creation of this 

fund will allow such sources of income to be used for priority projects without 

building in unsustainable ongoing revenue commitments. 

 

Sharing Prosperity Fund Formal Remit: 

To provide resources to fund fixed-term and one-off projects and proposals 

(which can be made through the budget process by members or officers, 

subject to consideration by the relevant scrutiny committee and the Anti-

Poverty Strategy Project Board) that support the interim objectives of the 

council’s Anti-Poverty Strategy, namely: 

 

1 Helping people on low incomes to maximise their income and 

minimise their costs 

2 Making the move into work easier 

3 Helping low income families with the cost of raising a child 

4 Breaking the link between poor health and poverty 

5 Ensuring that vulnerable older people get the services that they 

need and reducing the social isolation they can experience 

6 Helping people with high housing costs and improving the condition 

of people’s homes 

7 Working in partnership to tackle wider barriers to employment and 

engagement (e.g. transport, learning and skills)   

 

Page 38



 

‘Fixed-Term Priority Project Fund’ (FTPPF) 

 
3.2 Currently the Priority Policy Fund (PPF) can be used to fund ongoing revenue 

costs as well as fixed-term or one-off projects.  It is recommended that in future 
years it is used solely to fund ongoing revenue costs, not fixed-term or one-off 
projects. 
 

3.3 It is recommended that a new fund, similar to the PPF but only available for 
funding non-ongoing, fixed-term projects, be set up, called the Fixed-Term Priority 
Project Fund (FTPPF).  This can then harness non-ongoing, potentially short-term 
or uncertain sources of income, most obviously NHB.  The creation of this fund 
will allow such sources of income to be used for priority projects without building in 
unsustainable ongoing revenue commitments.  It is recommended that £300,000 
of the balance of unapplied New Homes Bonus Funding for 2014/1515 (currently 
in “Keep Cambridge Moving” Earmarked Fund) is used to create this fund. 

 
4. Capital 
 
4.1 The Executive are proposing the change identified in Appendix C, namely to delete 

the 'Capital contribution to the 'Keep Cambridge Moving Fund' of £111,140 and 
delete from Capital Plan SC593. 

5. Implications   
 

(a) Financial Implications 
  
 The financial implications are outlined in the proposals.  Summarising the revenue 

position: 
 

 Additional Costs (£) 2014/15 2015/16 
onwards 

1 Reversal of Cessation of Pest Control 
Service (Note 1) 

13,800 54,500 

2 “Clean it up” anti-dog fouling campaign 13,350 16,700 

3 Bolstering Public Realm enforcement 51,000 102,000 

  78,150 173,200 

             

 Funded by:   

4 Increase charges at Public toilets (5,000) (10,000) 

5 Introduction of pre-application charges on 
listed building planning advice 

(2,000) (2,000) 

6 Top-slice cut of 25% in overall Training, 
Seminar, and Conference budget  (Note 1) 

(75,460) (75,460) 

7 Return planning from Area committees to 
central planning Committee 

(3,400) (3,400) 

8 Reduce budget for organisational subscriptions (7,050) (7,050) 

9 Increase Roundabout charges 0 (5,000) 

10 Waste service savings 0 (70,290) 

    

  (92,910) (173,200) 

    

 Surplus to ‘Sharing Prosperity Fund’ (14,760) 0 

 
Note 1: This change was approved at Council, June 2014 

 

Page 39



 

A review of the overall budgetary position, taking account of 2013/14 outturn 
(reported separately on this agenda) and other significant factors will be 
incorporated in the next Mid-Year Financial Review (MFR 2014). 

 
(b) Staffing Implications  
  
 Where relevant, these are included in the proposals outlined in the Appendices. 
 
(c) Equal Opportunities Implications 
 
 An Equality Impact Assessment is included as Appendix E. 
 
(d) Consultation 
 

Public consultations relating to Council services are undertaken throughout the 
year, and details can be found on the Council’s website - details of the results of 
the 2013 survey can be found on the internet at: http://alturl.com/h9jgw 
 

(e) Community Safety 
 

Where relevant, these are included in the proposals outlined in the Appendices. 
 

(g)  Environmental Implications 
 

Where relevant, officers have considered the environmental impact of budget 
proposals. 

 
6. Background papers  
 
These background papers were used in the preparation of this report: 
 

· Mid-Year Financial Review (MFR) 2013 

· Budget files: Revised 2013/14 and Original 2014/15. 
 

7. Appendices  
 

In this Report: 
 
Budget 2014/15 - Labour Amendment: 

 

· Appendix A - Revenue items 

· Appendix B - Earmarked items 

· Appendix C - Capital items 

· Appendix D - Earmarked & Specific Funds 

· Appendix E - Equality Impact Assessment 
 

8. Inspection of papers  
 
To inspect the background papers or if you have a query on the report please contact: 
 
Author’s Name: John Harvey 
Author’s Phone Number:  01223 - 458143 
Author’s Email:  john.harvey@cambridge.gov.uk 
 

Page 40



B
u

d
g

e
t 

A
m

e
n

d
m

e
n

t 
- 

R
e

v
e

n
u

e
 (

G
e

n
e

ra
l 
F
u

n
d

 R
e

se
rv

e
s)

 -
 A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 A

R
e

fe
re

n
c

e
P

o
rt

fo
lio

O
ld

 P
o

rt
fo

lio
It

e
m

 D
e

sc
ri

p
ti
o

n

2
0

1
4

/1
5

B
u

d
g

e
t

£

2
0

1
5

/1
6

B
u

d
g

e
t

£

2
0

1
6

/1
7

B
u

d
g

e
t

£

2
0

1
7

/1
8

B
u

d
g

e
t

£

C
o

n
ta

c
t

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 i
n

 J
u

n
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il

LS
R

1
E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t,

 W
a

st
e

 a
n

d
 P

u
b

li
c

 

H
e

a
lt
h

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

- 
E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l 
&

 

W
a

st
e

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

R
e

v
e

rs
e

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 R

e
v

ie
w

 S
R

3
2

9
9

 –
 C

e
ss

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 

P
e

st
 C

o
n

tr
o

l 
S
e

rv
ic

e

1
3
,8

0
0

5
4
,5

0
0

5
4
,5

0
0

5
4
,5

0
0

J
a

s 
La

lly

LS
2

F
in

a
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 R

e
so

u
rc

e
s

S
tr

a
te

g
y

 &
 R

e
so

u
rc

e
s 

- 
C

u
st

o
m

e
r 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s 

&
 R

e
so

u
rc

e
s

To
p

 s
li
c

e
 c

u
t 

o
f 
2

5
%

 o
f 
o

v
e

ra
ll
 T

ra
in

in
g

, 
S
e

m
in

a
r 

a
n

d
 C

o
n

fe
re

n
c

e
 b

u
d

g
e

t

(7
5
,4

6
0
)

(7
5
,4

6
0
)

(7
5
,4

6
0
)

(7
5
,4

6
0
)

D
e

b
o

ra
h

 

S
im

p
so

n

N
e

t
(6

1
,6

6
0

)
(2

0
,9

6
0

)
(2

0
,9

6
0

)
(2

0
,9

6
0

)

N
e

w
 i
te

m
s 

fo
r 

a
p

p
ro

v
a

l 
J
u

ly
 C

o
u

n
c

il

LN
C

L1
F
in

a
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 R

e
so

u
rc

e
s

S
tr

a
te

g
y

 &
 R

e
so

u
rc

e
s 

- 
S
tr

a
te

g
y

D
e

c
re

a
se

 c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 t

o
 K

e
e

p
 C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 

M
o

v
in

g
 F

u
n

d

(6
8
8
,8

6
0
)

0
0

0
S
im

o
n

 

P
a

y
n

e

LN
C

L2
F
in

a
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 R

e
so

u
rc

e
s

S
tr

a
te

g
y

 &
 R

e
so

u
rc

e
s 

- 
S
tr

a
te

g
y

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 t

o
 c

re
a

te
 '
S
h

a
ri

n
g

 P
ro

sp
e

ri
ty

 F
u

n
d

5
0
0
,0

0
0

0
0

0
A

n
d

re
w

 

Li
m

b

LN
C

L3
F
in

a
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 R

e
so

u
rc

e
s

S
tr

a
te

g
y

 &
 R

e
so

u
rc

e
s 

- 
S
tr

a
te

g
y

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 t

o
 c

re
a

te
 a

 F
ix

e
d

-T
e

rm
 P

ri
o

ri
ty

 

P
ro

je
c

t 
F
u

n
d

 (
F
P

P
F
)

3
0
0
,0

0
0

0
0

0
R

a
y
 W

a
rd

C
a

m
b

ri
d

g
e

 C
it
y
 C

o
u

n
c

il 
h

a
s 

a
 b

a
se

 b
u

d
g

e
t 

o
f 

£
3
0
1
,8

6
0
 o

n
 t

ra
in

in
g

, 
se

m
in

a
rs

 a
n

d
 c

o
n

fe
re

n
c

e
s 

fo
r 

it
s 

st
a

ff
. 
 I
t 

is
 

im
p

o
rt

a
n

t 
to

 m
a

in
ta

in
 h

ig
h

 l
e

v
e

ls
 o

f 
tr

a
in

in
g

 a
n

d
 e

n
su

re
 t

h
a

t 
st

a
ff

 c
a

n
 a

tt
e

n
d

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
 c

o
n

fe
re

n
c

e
s 

a
n

d
 s

e
m

in
a

rs
, 

b
u

t 
b

a
se

d
 o

n
 t

h
e

 l
e

v
e

l 
o

f 
u

n
d

e
rs

p
e

n
d

 in
 t

h
e

 l
a

st
 f

in
a

n
c

ia
l 
y
e

a
r,

 2
0
1
3
/1

4
, 
it
 is

 c
le

a
r 

th
a

t 
it
 c

a
n

 b
e

 d
o

n
e

 o
n

 a
 

c
o

n
si

d
e

ra
b

ly
 r

e
d

u
c

e
d

 r
e

so
u

rc
e

. 
 T

h
e

 s
a

v
in

g
 w

ill
 b

e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 b

y
 a

 t
o

p
-s

lic
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 o

v
e

ra
ll 

b
u

d
g

e
t.

 R
e

m
a

in
in

g
 b

u
d

g
e

t 

w
ill

 b
e

 r
e

-d
is

tr
ib

u
te

d
 a

c
c

o
rd

in
g

 t
o

 n
e

e
d

 b
y
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

re
v

ie
w

.

Th
is

 it
e

m
 w

ill
 r

e
v

e
rs

e
 t

h
is

 c
u

t 
a

n
d

 s
a

v
e

 t
h

e
 P

e
st

 C
o

n
tr

o
l 
S
e

rv
ic

e
.

W
e

 w
ill

 r
e

ta
in

 £
7
0
0
,0

0
0
 in

 t
h

e
 K

e
e

p
 C

a
m

b
ri
d

g
e

 M
o

v
in

g
 F

u
n

d
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 o

p
ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n
s 

b
e

in
g

 a
d

d
e

d
 

fr
o

m
, 
fo

r 
e

x
a

m
p

le
, 
th

e
 N

e
w

 H
o

m
e

s 
B

o
n

u
s 

fu
n

d
in

g
  
in

 f
u

tu
re

 y
e

a
rs

.

Th
is

 f
u

n
d

 is
 a

 n
e

w
 e

a
rm

a
rk

e
d

 f
u

n
d

 t
h

a
t 

is
 in

te
n

d
e

d
 t

o
 p

ro
v

id
e

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 f
o

r 
p

ro
je

c
ts

 a
im

e
d

 a
t 

m
a

x
im

is
in

g
 t

h
e

 in
c

o
m

e
s 

o
f 

th
o

se
 o

n
 l
o

w
 in

c
o

m
e

s,
 t

a
c

k
lin

g
 p

o
v

e
rt

y
 a

n
d

 a
d

d
re

ss
in

g
 e

c
o

n
o

m
ic

 in
e

q
u

a
lit

y
 c

re
a

te
d

 in
 t

h
e

 c
o

n
te

x
t 

o
f 

th
e

 c
o

st
-o

f-

liv
in

g
 c

ri
si

s 
a

n
d

 w
e

lf
a

re
 c

u
ts

 f
a

c
e

d
 b

y
 s

o
m

e
 C

a
m

b
ri
d

g
e

 r
e

si
d

e
n

ts
. 
 I
t 

w
ill

 p
ro

v
id

e
 t

h
e

 r
e

so
u

rc
e

s 
u

n
d

e
rp

in
n

in
g

 t
h

e
 

c
o

u
n

c
il’

s 
A

n
ti
-P

o
v

e
rt

y
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
. 
A

 f
u

ll 
se

t 
o

f 
c

ri
te

ri
a

 a
n

d
 a

 d
e

sc
ri
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 f

u
n

d
 is

 a
p

p
e

n
d

e
d

. 
Th

is
 w

ill
 b

e
 f

u
n

d
e

d
 b

y
 

d
iv

e
rs

io
n

 o
f 

so
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 f

u
n

d
s 

c
u

rr
e

n
tl

y
 a

p
p

o
rt

io
n

e
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 'K

e
e

p
 C

a
m

b
ri
d

g
e

 M
o

v
in

g
' f

u
n

d
.

[F
u

n
d

e
d

 f
ro

m
 N

e
w

 H
o

m
e

s 
B

o
n

u
s]

Page 41



R
e

fe
re

n
c

e
P

o
rt

fo
lio

O
ld

 P
o

rt
fo

lio
It

e
m

 D
e

sc
ri

p
ti
o

n

2
0

1
4

/1
5

B
u

d
g

e
t

£

2
0

1
5

/1
6

B
u

d
g

e
t

£

2
0

1
6

/1
7

B
u

d
g

e
t

£

2
0

1
7

/1
8

B
u

d
g

e
t

£

C
o

n
ta

c
t

LS
6

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t,

 W
a

st
e

 a
n

d
 P

u
b

li
c

 

H
e

a
lt
h

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

- 
E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l 
&

 

W
a

st
e

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

In
c

re
a

se
 c

h
a

rg
e

s 
a

t 
p

u
b

li
c

 t
o

il
e

ts
 t

h
a

t 
re

q
u

ir
e

 

p
a

y
m

e
n

t

(5
,0

0
0
)

(1
0
,0

0
0
)

(1
0
,0

0
0
)

(1
0
,0

0
0
)

B
o

b
 C

a
rt

e
r

LS
N

e
w

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t,

 W
a

st
e

 a
n

d
 P

u
b

li
c

 

H
e

a
lt
h

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

- 
E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l 
&

 

W
a

st
e

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

W
a

st
e

 S
e

rv
ic

e
0

(7
0
,2

9
0
)

(7
0
,2

9
0
)

(7
0
,2

9
0
)

J
a

s 
La

lly

LS
7

P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
o

li
c

y
 a

n
d

 T
ra

n
sp

o
rt

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

- 
P

la
n

n
in

g
 &

 C
li
m

a
te

 

C
h

a
n

g
e

In
tr

o
d

u
c

ti
o

n
 o

f 
p

re
-a

p
p

li
c

a
ti
o

n
 c

h
a

rg
in

g
 o

n
 l
is

te
d

 

b
u

il
d

in
g

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 a
p

p
li
c

a
ti
o

n
s

(2
,0

0
0
)

(2
,0

0
0
)

(2
,0

0
0
)

(2
,0

0
0
)

P
a

ts
y
 D

e
ll

LS
1

C
it
y

 C
e

n
tr

e
 a

n
d

 P
u

b
li
c

 P
la

c
e

s
E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

- 
P

u
b

li
c

 P
la

c
e

s
In

c
re

a
se

 r
o

u
n

d
a

b
o

u
t 

sp
o

n
so

rs
h

ip
0

(5
,0

0
0
)

(5
,0

0
0
)

(5
,0

0
0
)

A
lis

ta
ir
 

W
ils

o
n

LS
5

F
in

a
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 R

e
so

u
rc

e
s

S
tr

a
te

g
y

 &
 R

e
so

u
rc

e
s 

- 
C

u
st

o
m

e
r 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s 

&
 R

e
so

u
rc

e
s

R
e

tu
rn

in
g

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 f
ro

m
 a

re
a

 c
o

m
m

it
te

e
s 

to
 

c
e

n
tr

a
l 
p

la
n

n
in

g
 c

o
m

m
it
te

e

(3
,4

0
0
)

(3
,4

0
0
)

(3
,4

0
0
)

(3
,4

0
0
)

G
a

ry
 C

lif
t

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
le

g
is

la
ti
o

n
 d

o
e

s 
n

o
t 

a
llo

w
 f

o
r 

c
h

a
rg

in
g

 f
o

r 
p

la
n

n
in

g
 a

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
s 

re
la

te
d

 t
o

 l
is

te
d

 b
u

ild
in

g
s 

a
s 

h
a

p
p

e
n

s 

c
o

m
m

o
n

ly
 o

n
 m

a
n

y
 o

th
e

r 
a

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
s,

 b
u

t,
 e

sp
e

c
ia

lly
 in

 t
h

e
 c

o
n

te
x
t 

o
f 

a
n

 h
is

to
ri
c

 U
n

iv
e

rs
it
y
 c

it
y
, 
 m

a
n

y
 s

u
c

h
 

a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s 

c
o

m
e

 f
o

rw
a

rd
 a

t 
c

o
n

si
d

e
ra

b
le

 c
o

st
 t

o
 t

h
e

 c
o

u
n

c
il.

 I
n

tr
o

d
u

c
in

g
 a

 m
o

d
e

st
 p

re
-a

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
 c

h
a

rg
e

  
w

ill
 

e
n

su
re

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 c
o

st
s 

 t
o

 t
h

e
 c

o
u

n
c

il 
o

f 
a

d
m

in
is

te
ri
n

g
  
lis

te
d

-b
u

ild
in

g
s 

re
la

te
d

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s 

a
n

d
 a

ss
o

c
ia

te
d

 

p
re

-a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
 a

d
v

ic
e

 p
ro

c
e

ss
  
is

 m
in

im
is

e
d

. 
 T

h
is

 is
 a

 c
o

n
se

rv
a

ti
v

e
 e

st
im

a
te

 w
h

ic
h

 c
a

n
 b

e
 r

e
v

is
e

d
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 

im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti
o

n
.

 I
n

c
re

a
se

d
 in

c
o

m
e

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 m
o

re
 s

p
o

n
so

rs
h

ip
 s

ig
n

s 
o

n
 C

a
m

b
ri
d

g
e

 r
o

u
n

d
a

b
o

u
ts

Th
is

 a
m

o
u

n
t 

d
e

fi
n

e
s 

th
e

 m
in

im
u

m
 s

a
v

in
g

 in
 m

a
n

a
g

in
g

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 a
 s

in
g

le
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 c

o
m

m
it
te

e
 p

e
n

d
in

g
 a

 f
u

lle
r 

re
v

ie
w

 o
n

 t
h

e
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v

e
 h

a
n

d
lin

g
 o

f 
a

ll 
a

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
s.

 T
h

is
 w

ill
 e

n
a

b
le

 a
re

a
 c

o
m

m
it
te

e
s 

to
 f

o
c

u
s 

o
n

 t
h

e
ir
 p

ri
m

e
 jo

b
 o

f 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 e

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
o

n
 is

su
e

s 
in

 t
h

e
ir
 a

re
a

 a
n

d
 t

h
a

t 
a

ri
se

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 p
u

b
lic

 f
o

ru
m

s 
a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

a
g

e
n

d
a

 it
e

m
s,

 r
a

th
e

r 

th
a

n
 b

e
in

g
 d

o
m

in
a

te
d

 b
y
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 it

e
m

s.
  
It

 a
ls

o
 f

re
e

s 
u

p
 w

a
rd

 m
e

m
b

e
rs

 t
o

 b
e

 a
v

a
ila

b
le

 a
s 

a
d

v
o

c
a

te
s 

fo
r 

th
e

ir
 

re
si

d
e

n
ts

 o
n

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 is
su

e
s 

ra
th

e
r 

th
a

n
 r

is
k
in

g
 p

re
-d

e
te

rm
in

a
ti
o

n
.

Th
is

 w
ill

 b
e

 a
v

a
ila

b
le

 t
o

 f
u

n
d

 f
ix

e
d

-t
e

rm
 p

o
lic

y
 p

ri
o

ri
ty

 p
ro

je
c

ts
 o

n
ly

, 
fr

e
e

in
g

 u
p

 t
h

e
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 P

o
lic

y
 P

ri
o

ri
ty

 F
u

n
d

 t
o

 

c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 f
u

n
d

 o
n

g
o

in
g

 r
e

v
e

n
u

e
 it

e
m

s.
  
Th

is
 w

ill
 b

e
 f

u
n

d
e

d
 b

y
 d

iv
e

rs
io

n
 o

f 
so

m
e

 o
f 

th
e

 f
u

n
d

s 
c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 a

p
p

o
rt

io
n

e
d

 

to
 t

h
e

 'K
e

e
p

 C
a

m
b

ri
d

g
e

 M
o

v
in

g
' f

u
n

d
.

[F
u

n
d

e
d

 f
ro

m
 N

e
w

 H
o

m
e

s 
B

o
n

u
s]

In
c

re
a

se
 c

h
a

rg
e

s 
a

t 
p

u
b

lic
 t

o
ile

ts
 t

h
a

t 
re

q
u

ir
e

 p
a

y
m

e
n

t 
b

y
 1

0
p

 (
fr

o
m

 2
0
 t

o
 3

0
p

) 
- 

Th
is

 is
 a

 s
m

a
ll 

in
c

re
a

se
, 
st

ill
 k

e
e

p
in

g
 

p
u

b
lic

 t
o

ile
t 

c
h

a
rg

e
s 

a
t 

a
 m

o
d

e
st

 l
e

v
e

l 
to

 y
ie

ld
 in

c
re

a
se

d
 in

c
o

m
e

 f
o

r 
th

e
 c

o
u

n
c

il.
 T

h
e

 a
lt

e
ra

ti
o

n
s 

to
 t

h
e

 t
o

ile
ts

 c
a

n
 b

e
 

fu
n

d
e

d
 f

ro
m

 e
x
is

ti
n

g
 R

 &
 R

 b
u

d
g

e
ts

.

A
 r

e
v

ie
w

 o
f 

th
e

 t
ra

d
e

 w
a

st
e

 b
u

d
g

e
t 

h
a

s 
b

e
e

n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 r
e

su
lt

in
g

 in
 a

n
 o

n
g

o
in

g
 s

a
v

in
g

 d
u

e
 t

o
 m

o
re

 c
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l 

w
a

st
e

 b
e

in
g

 r
e

c
y
c

le
d

 b
y
 l
o

c
a

l 
b

u
si

n
e

ss
e

s 
a

n
d

 a
 c

o
rr

e
sp

o
n

d
in

g
 r

e
d

u
c

ti
o

n
 in

 d
is

p
o

sa
l 
o

f 
w

a
st

e
 t

o
 l
a

n
d

fi
ll.

  
F
u

rt
h

e
r 

sa
v

in
g

s 
fr

o
m

 c
o

lle
c

ti
o

n
 o

f 
fo

o
d

 w
a

st
e

 w
ill

 b
e

 e
x
p

lo
re

d
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 n

e
x
t 

tw
e

lv
e

 m
o

n
th

s 
a

s 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 g
ro

w
s.

Page 42



R
e

fe
re

n
c

e
P

o
rt

fo
lio

O
ld

 P
o

rt
fo

lio
It

e
m

 D
e

sc
ri

p
ti
o

n

2
0

1
4

/1
5

B
u

d
g

e
t

£

2
0

1
5

/1
6

B
u

d
g

e
t

£

2
0

1
6

/1
7

B
u

d
g

e
t

£

2
0

1
7

/1
8

B
u

d
g

e
t

£

C
o

n
ta

c
t

LS
4

F
in

a
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 R

e
so

u
rc

e
s

S
tr

a
te

g
y

 &
 R

e
so

u
rc

e
s 

- 
S
tr

a
te

g
y

R
e

d
u

c
e

 b
u

d
g

e
t 

fo
r 

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
su

b
sc

ri
p

ti
o

n
s

(7
,0

5
0
)

(7
,0

5
0
)

(7
,0

5
0
)

(7
,0

5
0
)

A
n

d
re

w
 

Li
m

b

LB
1

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t,

 W
a

st
e

 a
n

d
 P

u
b

li
c

 

H
e

a
lt
h

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

- 
E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l 
&

 

W
a

st
e

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

‘C
le

a
n

 i
t 

U
p

’ 
a

n
ti
-d

o
g

-f
o

u
li
n

g
 c

a
m

p
a

ig
n

1
3
,3

5
0

1
6
,7

0
0

1
6
,7

0
0

1
6
,7

0
0

A
d

ri
a

n
 A

sh

LB
2

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t,

 W
a

st
e

 a
n

d
 P

u
b

li
c

 

H
e

a
lt
h

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

- 
E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l 
&

 

W
a

st
e

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

B
o

ls
te

ri
n

g
 P

u
b

li
c

 R
e

a
lm

 E
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t 
5
1
,0

0
0

1
0
2
,0

0
0

1
0
2
,0

0
0

1
0
2
,0

0
0

A
d

ri
a

n
 A

sh

LB
3

F
in

a
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 R

e
so

u
rc

e
s

S
tr

a
te

g
y

 &
 R

e
so

u
rc

e
s 

- 
S
tr

a
te

g
y

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s 

fr
o

m
 c

o
re

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 t
o

 '
S
h

a
ri

n
g

 

P
ro

sp
e

ri
ty

 F
u

n
d

'

1
4
,7

6
0

0
0

0
R

a
y
 W

a
rd

N
e

w
 R

e
v
e

n
u

e
 i
te

m
s

1
7

2
,8

0
0

2
0

,9
6

0
2

0
,9

6
0

2
0

,9
6

0

N
e

t 
R

e
v
e

n
u

e
1

1
1

,1
4

0
0

0
0

‘C
le

a
n

 it
 U

p
’ 

a
n

ti
-d

o
g

-f
o

u
lin

g
 c

a
m

p
a

ig
n

 -
 £

1
6
,7

0
0
 t

o
 m

a
k
e

 t
h

e
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
p

a
rt

-t
im

e
 d

o
g

 w
a

rd
e

n
 p

o
st

 in
to

 a
 f

u
ll 

ti
m

e
 p

o
st

 

(i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 o

n
-c

o
st

s)
 f

ro
m

 O
c

to
b

e
r 

2
0
1
4
. 
In

 t
h

e
 f

ir
st

 y
e

a
r 

a
d

v
e

rt
is

in
g

 a
n

d
 p

o
st

e
r 

c
a

m
p

a
ig

n
 c

o
st

in
g

 £
5
,0

0
0
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 

p
o

st
e

r 
c

o
m

p
e

ti
ti
o

n
 in

 s
c

h
o

o
ls

, 
to

 e
d

u
c

a
te

 a
n

d
 w

a
rn

 p
u

b
lic

 a
b

o
u

t 
n

e
w

, 
to

u
g

h
e

r 
a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 t
o

 d
o

g
 f

o
u

lin
g

. 

A
n

 ir
re

sp
o

n
si

b
le

 f
e

w
 d

a
m

a
g

e
 o

u
r 

p
a

rk
s 

a
n

d
 p

u
b

lic
 s

p
a

c
e

s,
 d

o
 n

o
t 

p
ic

k
 u

p
 d

o
g

 m
e

ss
, 
d

ro
p

 l
it
te

r 
a

n
d

 c
re

a
te

 a
n

 u
n

ti
d

y
 

e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
th

e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

, 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
y
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 d

o
 s

o
 w

it
h

 a
lm

o
st

  
to

ta
l 
im

p
u

n
it
y
, 
d

u
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 l
a

c
k
 o

f 
re

so
u

rc
e

s 

d
e

v
o

te
d

 t
o

 e
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t.
 A

 m
o

re
 p

ro
-a

c
ti
v

e
 a

n
d

 e
ff

e
c

ti
v

e
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 a
c

ro
ss

 t
h

e
 C

it
y
 is

 n
e

e
d

e
d

. 
Th

is
 w

ill
 b

e
 f

a
c

ili
ta

te
d

 

b
y
 t

h
e

 r
a

d
ic

a
l 
m

o
v

e
 o

f 
d

o
u

b
lin

g
 t

h
e

 p
u

b
lic

 r
e

a
lm

 e
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t 
te

a
m

, 
fr

o
m

 3
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 t
o

 6
.

O
n

g
o

in
g

 c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s 

fr
o

m
 S

a
v

in
g

s 
to

 t
h

e
 'S

h
a

ri
n

g
 P

ro
sp

e
ri
ty

 F
u

n
d

"

In
 t

o
u

g
h

 t
im

e
s,

 a
ll 

a
v

e
n

u
e

s 
n

e
e

d
 t

o
 b

e
 e

x
p

lo
re

d
 f

o
r 

sa
v

in
g

s 
b

e
fo

re
 jo

b
s 

a
re

 c
u

t 
a

n
d

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s 

re
d

u
c

e
d

. 
Th

e
 c

o
u

n
c

il 

sp
e

n
d

s 
£
8
5
,0

0
0
 o

n
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
su

b
sc

ri
p

ti
o

n
s,

 m
a

n
y
 o

f 
w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 n

o
t 

c
ru

c
ia

l 
a

n
d

 c
o

u
ld

 b
e

 c
a

n
c

e
lle

d
. 
Th

is
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

 

to
p

 s
lic

e
 c

u
t,

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 r

e
m

a
in

in
g

 b
u

d
g

e
t 

re
-d

is
tr

ib
u

te
d

 a
c

c
o

rd
in

g
 t

o
 n

e
e

d
.

Page 43



B
u

d
g

e
t 

A
m

e
n

d
m

e
n

t 
- 

R
e

v
e

n
u

e
 (

E
a

rm
a

rk
e

d
 F

u
n

d
s)

 -
 A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 B

R
e

fe
re

n
c

e
P

o
rt

fo
lio

O
ld

 P
o

rt
fo

lio
It

e
m

 D
e

sc
ri

p
ti
o

n

2
0

1
4

/1
5

B
u

d
g

e
t

£

2
0

1
5

/1
6

B
u

d
g

e
t

£

2
0

1
6

/1
7

B
u

d
g

e
t

£

2
0

1
7

/1
8

B
u

d
g

e
t

£

C
o

n
ta

c
t

S
h

a
ri

n
g

 P
ro

sp
e

ri
ty

 F
u

n
d

LX
1

H
o

u
si

n
g

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s 

- 
H

o
u

si
n

g
E
x

p
a

n
d

e
d

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
‘C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y

 C
le

a
r-

O
u

t 

D
a

y
s’

9
,0

0
0

0
0

0
Li

z 
B

is
se

t

LX
2

S
tr

a
te

g
y

 a
n

d
 T

ra
n

sf
o

rm
a

ti
o

n
S
tr

a
te

g
y

 &
 R

e
so

u
rc

e
s 

- 
S
tr

a
te

g
y

Li
v

in
g

 W
a

g
e

 E
x

te
rn

a
l 
C

a
m

p
a

ig
n

 O
ff
ic

e
r

9
,8

2
0

1
9
,6

3
0

9
,8

2
0

0
D

e
b

o
ra

h
 

S
im

p
so

n

LX
3

S
tr

a
te

g
y

 a
n

d
 T

ra
n

sf
o

rm
a

ti
o

n
S
tr

a
te

g
y

 &
 R

e
so

u
rc

e
s 

- 
S
tr

a
te

g
y

P
ro

m
o

ti
o

n
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
to

 a
c

c
o

m
p

a
n

y
 L

iv
in

g
 W

a
g

e
 

c
a

m
p

a
ig

n

3
,5

0
0

7
,0

0
0

3
,5

0
0

0
D

e
b

o
ra

h
 

S
im

p
so

n

C
u

rr
e

n
tl

y
, 
th

e
se

 e
v

e
n

ts
 a

re
 v

e
ry

 s
u

c
c

e
ss

fu
l,
 b

u
t 

m
a

n
y
 a

re
a

s 
in

 n
e

e
d

 o
f 

h
e

lp
 w

it
h

 b
u

lk
y
-w

a
st

e
 a

n
d

 a
 g

e
n

e
ra

l 
'c

le
a

r 
u

p
' 

d
o

 n
o

t 
g

e
t 

th
e

 b
e

n
e

fi
t 

o
f 

th
e

se
 d

a
y
s 

v
e

ry
 o

ft
e

n
 o

r 
a

t 
a

ll.
 A

n
 e

x
p

a
n

d
e

d
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 w
o

u
ld

 a
llo

w
 6

 s
u

c
h

 e
v

e
n

ts
 p

e
r 

y
e

a
r 

in
 b

o
th

  
th

e
 N

o
rt

h
 a

n
d

 S
o

u
th

 o
f 

th
e

 c
it
y
 .
 T

h
is

 w
ill

 h
e

lp
 l
o

w
-i
n

c
o

m
e

 h
o

u
se

h
o

ld
s 

to
 c

le
a

r 
a

n
y
 l
o

c
a

l 
d

u
m

p
in

g
 a

n
d

 t
o

 

sa
v

e
 m

o
n

e
y
 o

n
 d

is
p

o
si

n
g

 b
u

lk
y
 w

a
st

e
 e

tc
. 
If
 s

u
c

c
e

ss
fu

l,
 c

o
u

ld
 b

e
 c

o
n

si
d

e
re

d
 f

o
r 

fu
n

d
in

g
 in

 f
u

tu
re

 y
e

a
rs

.

(F
u

n
d

e
d

 f
ro

m
 S

h
a

ri
n

g
 P

ro
sp

e
ri
ty

 F
u

n
d

)

C
a

m
b

ri
d

g
e

 C
it
y
 C

o
u

n
c

il 
is

 im
p

le
m

e
n

ti
n

g
 t

h
e

 l
iv

in
g

 w
a

g
e

 a
n

d
 is

 s
e

e
k
in

g
 it

s 
o

w
n

 a
c

c
re

d
it
a

ti
o

n
. 
Th

e
 c

o
u

n
c

il 
n

o
w

 n
e

e
d

s 

to
 f

o
c

u
s 

o
n

 p
ro

m
o

ti
n

g
 l
iv

in
g

 w
a

g
e

 a
c

c
re

d
it
a

ti
o

n
 e

x
te

rn
a

lly
 t

o
 m

a
k
e

 C
a

m
b

ri
d

g
e

 a
 ‘

Li
v

in
g

 W
a

g
e

 C
it
y
’.

 T
h

is
 t

w
o

-y
e

a
r 

fi
x
e

d
 t

e
rm

  
tr

ia
l 
p

o
st

 w
o

u
ld

 in
v

o
lv

e
 w

o
rk

in
g

  
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 L

iv
in

g
 W

a
g

e
 F

o
u

n
d

a
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 l
o

c
a

l 
Li

v
in

g
 W

a
g

e
 c

a
m

p
a

ig
n

e
rs

 t
o

 

p
ro

m
o

te
 a

c
c

re
d

it
a

ti
o

n
 a

m
o

n
g

 b
u

si
n

e
ss

e
s 

a
n

d
 o

th
e

r 
o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
s 

in
 C

a
m

b
ri
d

g
e

, 
su

c
h

 a
s 

C
o

lle
g

e
s 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 

U
n

iv
e

rs
it
ie

s,
 m

a
k
in

g
 t

h
e

 a
rg

u
m

e
n

t 
in

 f
a

v
o

u
r 

o
f 

th
e

 b
e

n
e

fi
ts

 t
o

 w
o

rk
e

rs
 a

n
d

 b
u

si
n

e
ss

e
s 

fr
o

m
 p

a
y
in

g
 t

h
e

 l
iv

in
g

 w
a

g
e

. 
Th

e
 

w
o

rk
 w

ill
 in

v
o

lv
e

 c
o

-o
rd

in
a

ti
n

g
 a

c
ti
o

n
, 
re

se
a

rc
h

in
g

 e
x
is

ti
n

g
 p

ra
c

ti
c

e
s,

 c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
n

g
 w

it
h

 e
x
te

rn
a

l 
o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
s 

a
n

d
 

g
ro

u
p

s,
 a

n
d

 p
ro

m
o

ti
o

n
. 
 

(F
u

n
d

e
d

 f
ro

m
 S

h
a

ri
n

g
 P

ro
sp

e
ri
ty

 F
u

n
d

)

Th
is

 w
o

u
ld

 a
c

c
o

m
p

a
n

y
 t

h
e

 L
iv

in
g

 W
a

g
e

 E
x
te

rn
a

l 
C

a
m

p
a

ig
n

 O
ff

ic
e

r,
 a

n
d

 is
 a

 b
u

d
g

e
t 

fo
r 

e
v

e
n

ts
, 
p

u
b

lic
it
y
, 
m

e
e

ti
n

g
s 

a
n

d
 o

th
e

r 
p

ro
m

o
ti
o

n
/p

ro
je

c
t 

c
o

st
s 

a
ss

o
c

ia
te

d
 w

it
h

 t
h

a
t 

p
o

st
.

(F
u

n
d

e
d

 f
ro

m
 S

h
a

ri
n

g
 P

ro
sp

e
ri
ty

 F
u

n
d

)

Page 44



R
e

fe
re

n
c

e
P

o
rt

fo
lio

O
ld

 P
o

rt
fo

lio
It

e
m

 D
e

sc
ri

p
ti
o

n

2
0

1
4

/1
5

B
u

d
g

e
t

£

2
0

1
5

/1
6

B
u

d
g

e
t

£

2
0

1
6

/1
7

B
u

d
g

e
t

£

2
0

1
7

/1
8

B
u

d
g

e
t

£

C
o

n
ta

c
t

LX
4

F
in

a
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 R

e
so

u
rc

e
s

S
tr

a
te

g
y

 &
 R

e
so

u
rc

e
s 

- 
S
tr

a
te

g
y

W
a

te
r 

a
n

d
 E

n
e

rg
y

 C
o

st
s 

A
n

ti
-P

o
v

e
rt

y
 S

c
h

e
m

e
1
5
,0

0
0

4
0
,0

0
0

4
5
,0

0
0

0
J
a

s 
La

lly

LX
5

F
in

a
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 R

e
so

u
rc

e
s

S
tr

a
te

g
y

 &
 R

e
so

u
rc

e
s 

- 
S
tr

a
te

g
y

E
x

tr
a

 p
ro

je
c

t 
b

u
d

g
e

t 
fo

r 
P

ri
v

a
te

 S
e

c
to

r 
E
n

e
rg

y
 

2
,0

0
0

2
,5

0
0

2
,5

0
0

0
J
a

s 
La

lly

LX
6

S
tr

a
te

g
y

 a
n

d
 T

ra
n

sf
o

rm
a

ti
o

n
S
tr

a
te

g
y

 &
 R

e
so

u
rc

e
s 

- 
S
tr

a
te

g
y

Y
o

u
th

 A
p

p
re

n
ti
c

e
sh

ip
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

3
1
,5

0
0

6
3
,0

0
0

9
4
,5

0
0

1
2
6
,0

0
0

D
e

b
o

ra
h

 

S
im

p
so

n

S
h

a
ri
n

g
 P

ro
sp

e
ri
ty

 F
u

n
d

 T
o

ta
l 
it
e

m
s

7
0
,8

2
0

1
3
2
,1

3
0

1
5
5
,3

2
0

1
2
6
,0

0
0

Th
e

re
 a

re
 m

a
n

y
 h

o
u

se
h

o
ld

s 
in

 C
a

m
b

ri
d

g
e

 w
h

o
 h

a
v

e
 n

o
t 

ta
k
e

n
 u

p
 e

n
e

rg
y
 o

r 
w

a
te

r 
e

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
 m

e
a

su
re

s,
 n

o
r 

h
a

v
e

 

th
e

y
 t

a
k
e

n
 a

d
v

a
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
th

e
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s 
to

 c
u

t 
th

e
ir
 b

ill
s 

fo
r 

th
e

se
 e

ss
e

n
ti
a

l 
se

rv
ic

e
s.

  
M

a
n

y
 r

e
si

d
e

n
ts

 a
re

 

st
ill

 p
a

y
in

g
 f

o
r 

th
e

ir
 w

a
te

r 
a

n
d

 s
e

w
e

ra
g

e
 b

a
se

d
 o

n
 r

a
te

a
b

le
 v

a
lu

e
s 

la
st

 r
e

v
ie

w
e

d
 o

v
e

r 
2
5
 y

e
a

rs
 a

g
o

. 
 A

lt
h

o
u

g
h

 

ra
te

a
b

le
 v

a
lu

e
s 

a
re

 n
o

 l
o

n
g

e
r 

u
se

d
 f

o
r 

p
a

y
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
c

o
u

n
c

il 
ta

x
e

s,
 t

h
e

y
 a

re
 s

ti
ll 

u
se

d
 t

o
 c

h
a

rg
e

 f
o

r 
w

a
te

r 
a

n
d

 

se
w

e
ra

g
e

 w
h

e
re

 n
o

 m
e

te
r 

h
a

s 
b

e
e

n
 f

it
te

d
. 
 M

a
n

y
 h

o
u

se
h

o
ld

s 
w

o
u

ld
 b

e
n

e
fi
t 

fr
o

m
 r

e
v

ie
w

in
g

 t
h

e
ir
 w

a
te

r 
a

n
d

 s
e

w
e

ra
g

e
 

b
ill

 in
 o

rd
e

r 
to

 e
st

a
b

lis
h

 if
 t

h
e

y
 c

o
u

ld
 b

e
n

e
fi
t 

fr
o

m
 c

h
a

n
g

in
g

 t
o

 a
 m

e
te

r,
 o

r 
m

o
v

in
g

 t
o

 t
h

e
 a

ss
e

ss
e

d
 c

h
a

rg
e

 b
a

si
s.

  
In

 

a
d

d
it
io

n
, 
th

e
re

 a
re

 o
th

e
r 

p
ro

d
u

c
ts

 o
ff

e
re

d
 b

y
 w

a
te

r 
c

o
m

p
a

n
ie

s 
th

a
t 

c
o

u
ld

 s
a

v
e

 h
o

u
se

h
o

ld
s 

m
o

n
e

y
, 
su

c
h

 a
s 

so
c

ia
l 

ta
ri
ff

s 
o

r 
w

a
te

r-
sa

v
in

g
 d

e
v

ic
e

s.

U
n

fo
rt

u
n

a
te

ly
, 
ta

k
e

-u
p

 o
f 

m
e

te
rs

 a
n

d
 s

im
ila

r 
p

ro
d

u
c

ts
, 
o

ft
e

n
 o

ff
e

re
d

 b
y
 w

a
te

r 
c

o
m

p
a

n
ie

s 
fo

r 
fr

e
e

 o
r 

a
t 

a
 l
o

w
-c

o
st

, 
is

 

v
e

ry
 l
o

w
, 
p

a
rt

ic
u

la
rl
y
 a

m
o

n
g

 l
o

w
-i
n

c
o

m
e

 h
o

u
se

h
o

ld
s,

 a
n

d
 u

ti
lit

y
 c

o
m

p
a

n
ie

s 
th

e
m

se
lv

e
s 

m
a

k
e

 l
it
tl

e
 a

c
ti
v

e
 e

ff
o

rt
 t

o
 

h
e

lp
 t

h
e

ir
 c

u
st

o
m

e
rs

 s
a

v
e

 o
n

 b
ill

s.
 T

h
is

 s
c

h
e

m
e

 w
o

u
ld

 p
a

y
 f

o
r 

a
 t

w
o

 y
e

a
r 

fi
x
e

d
-t

e
rm

 o
ff

ic
e

r 
p

o
st

 a
n

d
 s

m
a

ll 
p

ro
je

c
t 

b
u

d
g

e
t 

w
it
h

 a
 r

e
m

it
 t

o
 w

o
rk

 a
lo

n
g

si
d

e
 t

h
e

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 

h
o

m
e

 e
n

e
rg

y
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

to
 a

ss
is

t 
lo

w
-i
n

c
o

m
e

 h
o

u
se

h
o

ld
s 

in
 r

e
v

ie
w

in
g

 

th
e

ir
 w

a
te

r 
a

n
d

 e
n

e
rg

y
 c

o
st

s 
a

n
d

 t
a

k
in

g
 u

p
 t

h
e

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s 
a

v
a

ila
b

le
 f

o
r 

re
d

u
c

in
g

 u
ti
lit

y
 b

ill
s.

  
 I
t 

w
o

u
ld

 f
o

c
u

s 
o

n
 

w
a

rd
s 

a
n

d
 L

S
O

A
s 

h
ig

h
 o

n
 t

h
e

 d
e

p
ri
v

a
ti
o

n
 in

d
ic

e
s.

Th
is

 w
o

u
ld

  
c

o
n

st
it
u

te
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
p

ro
je

c
t 

b
u

d
g

e
t 

fo
r 

th
e

 e
x
is

ti
n

g
 s

ta
ff

 a
im

e
d

 a
t 

 e
n

h
a

n
c

in
g

 in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 ,
 p

u
b

lic
it
y
 a

n
d

 

u
p

ta
k
e

 o
f 

e
x
is

ti
n

g
/n

e
w

 e
n

e
rg

y
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

in
su

la
ti
o

n
 s

c
h

e
m

e
s,

 s
u

c
h

 a
s 

 e
.g

. 
 t

h
e

 E
C

O
, 
ta

rg
e

te
d

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y
 

a
t 

lo
w

-i
n

c
o

m
e

 a
re

a
s 

o
f 

C
a

m
b

ri
d

g
e

 a
n

d
 t

h
o

se
 in

 f
u

e
l 
p

o
v

e
rt

y
. 
 L

o
n

g
e

r-
te

rm
 p

h
a

si
n

g
 o

f 
th

e
 m

o
n

e
y
 o

v
e

r 
th

re
e

 y
e

a
rs

 

m
a

tc
h

e
s 

th
e

 r
e

c
e

n
t 

c
h

a
n

g
e

s 
to

 t
h

e
 a

v
a

ila
b

ili
ty

 o
f 

E
C

O
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 o

f 
e

n
e

rg
y
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
 m

e
a

su
re

s 
fo

r 
th

o
se

 o
n

 l
o

w
 

in
c

o
m

e
s.

(F
u

n
d

e
d

 f
ro

m
 S

h
a

ri
n

g
 P

ro
sp

e
ri
ty

 F
u

n
d

)

In
it
ia

lly
 a

 4
 y

e
a

r 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

. 
A

lt
h

o
u

g
h

 u
n

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
in

 g
e

n
e

ra
l 
c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

s 
to

 c
o

m
e

 d
o

w
n

, 
u

n
d

e
r-

2
5
 u

n
e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 

re
m

a
in

s 
a

 s
tu

b
b

o
rn

 p
ro

b
le

m
, 
e

sp
e

c
ia

lly
 in

 s
o

m
e

 o
f 

th
e

 c
it
y
’s

 p
o

o
re

r 
a

re
a

s.
 T

h
is

 s
c

h
e

m
e

 w
o

u
ld

 h
e

lp
 t

o
 a

d
d

re
ss

 t
h

is
 b

y
 

p
ro

v
id

in
g

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 f
o

r 
a

p
p

re
n

ti
c

e
sh

ip
s 

fo
r 

lo
c

a
l 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

, 
a

p
p

o
rt

io
n

e
d

 a
c

c
o

rd
in

g
 t

o
 a

 r
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
c

a
p

a
c

it
y
 in

 t
h

e
 

w
h

o
le

 c
o

u
n

c
il.

 E
v

e
ry

 h
e

a
d

 o
f 

se
rv

ic
e

 w
ill

 b
e

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 t

o
 e

x
a

m
in

e
 t

h
e

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
fo

r 
a

p
p

re
n

ti
c

e
sh

ip
s 

in
 t

h
e

ir
 a

re
a

, 
a

n
d

 

th
e

n
 t

h
e

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 w
ill

 b
e

 a
p

p
o

rt
io

n
e

d
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
ly

. 
It

 w
ill

 b
u

ild
 u

p
 a

s 
c

a
p

a
c

it
y
 is

 id
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
, 
fr

o
m

 5
 in

 t
h

e
 f

ir
st

 y
e

a
r 

to
 2

0
 

b
y
 t

h
e

 4
th

. 
Th

is
 w

ill
 c

o
st

 £
6
,3

0
0
 p

e
r 

a
p

p
re

n
ti
c

e
sh

ip
 p

.a
.

(F
u

n
d

e
d

 f
ro

m
 S

h
a

ri
n

g
 P

ro
sp

e
ri
ty

 F
u

n
d

)

Page 45



R
e

fe
re

n
c

e
P

o
rt

fo
lio

O
ld

 P
o

rt
fo

lio
It

e
m

 D
e

sc
ri

p
ti
o

n

2
0

1
4

/1
5

B
u

d
g

e
t

£

2
0

1
5

/1
6

B
u

d
g

e
t

£

2
0

1
6

/1
7

B
u

d
g

e
t

£

2
0

1
7

/1
8

B
u

d
g

e
t

£

C
o

n
ta

c
t

F
ix

e
d

-T
e

rm
 P

ri
o

ri
ty

 P
ro

je
c

t 
F
u

n
d

F
P

P
F
3

S
tr

a
te

g
y

 a
n

d
 T

ra
n

sf
o

rm
a

ti
o

n
E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

- 
P

la
n

n
in

g
 &

 C
li
m

a
te

 

C
h

a
n

g
e

C
a

m
b

ri
d

g
e

 S
p

e
c

if
ic

 p
ro

m
o

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 

C
a

m
b

ri
d

g
e

sh
ir

e
 C

o
ll
e

c
ti
v

e
 S

w
it
c

h
in

g
 S

c
h

e
m

e
 

a
n

d
 A

c
ti
o

n
 o

n
 E

n
e

rg
y

5
,0

0
0

2
,5

0
0

2
,5

0
0

0
J
a

s 
La

lly

F
P

P
F
2

C
it
y

 C
e

n
tr

e
 a

n
d

 P
u

b
li
c

 P
la

c
e

s
E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

- 
P

u
b

li
c

 P
la

c
e

s
C

h
e

st
e

rt
o

n
 C

o
-o

rd
in

a
to

r
1
1
,2

5
0

2
2
,5

0
0

1
1
,2

5
0

0
E
m

m
a

 

Th
o

rn
to

n

F
ix

e
d

-T
e

rm
 P

ri
o

ri
ty

 P
ro

je
c

t 
F
u

n
d

 T
o

ta
l

1
6
,2

5
0

2
5
,0

0
0

1
3
,7

5
0

0

Th
e

se
 s

c
h

e
m

e
s 

h
a

v
e

 t
h

e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
to

 w
o

rk
 in

 t
a

n
d

e
m

 t
o

 s
a

v
e

 r
e

si
d

e
n

ts
 m

o
n

e
y
 o

n
 t

h
e

ir
 e

n
e

rg
y
 b

ill
s,

 b
u

t 
o

n
ly

 if
 p

ro
p

e
r 

w
o

rk
 is

 d
o

n
e

 o
n

 p
ro

m
o

ti
n

g
 t

h
e

m
 in

 t
h

e
 C

it
y
. 
 T

o
 a

v
o

id
 l
o

w
 u

p
ta

k
e

 t
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

fu
n

d
in

g
 w

ill
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 a

 p
o

st
e

r 
c

a
m

p
a

ig
n

, 

a
n

 a
d

v
e

rt
 o

n
 l
o

c
a

l 
ra

d
io

, 
a

n
d

 a
 b

o
o

k
le

t 
d

is
tr

ib
u

te
d

 t
o

 e
v

e
ry

 h
o

u
se

h
o

ld
, 
w

it
h

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 in
 s

u
b

se
q

u
e

n
t 

y
e

a
rs

 t
o

 r
e

-

e
n

fo
rc

e
 m

e
ss

a
g

e
s 

a
n

d
 u

p
d

a
te

 r
e

si
d

e
n

ts
 o

n
 w

h
a

t 
is

 a
v

a
ila

b
le

. 
 I
n

it
ia

l 
m

a
rk

e
ti
n

g
 w

o
u

ld
 c

o
in

c
id

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 p

ro
je

c
te

d
 

O
c

to
b

e
r 

2
0
1
4
 a

n
d

 F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1
5
 C

a
m

b
ri
d

g
e

sh
ir
e

 C
o

lle
c

ti
v

e
 S

w
it
c

h
in

g
 A

u
c

ti
o

n
s.

S
o

m
e

 a
re

a
s 

o
f 

th
e

 C
it
y
 w

it
h

 a
 l
o

t 
o

f 
sh

o
p

s,
 t

ra
d

e
rs

 a
n

d
 o

th
e

r 
b

u
si

n
e

ss
e

s 
a

re
 n

o
t 

c
o

v
e

re
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 B
ID

 a
re

a
, 
b

u
t 

a
ls

o
 

n
e

e
d

 h
e

lp
 in

 t
h

e
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
c

lim
a

te
 -

 s
u

c
h

 a
s 

C
h

e
st

e
rt

o
n

. 
 T

h
is

 b
id

 is
 f

o
r 

a
 f

ix
e

d
 t

e
rm

 2
-y

e
a

r 
tr

ia
l 
p

o
st

 f
o

r 
a

 p
a

rt
-t

im
e

 s
m

a
ll 

b
u

si
n

e
ss

/c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 g

ro
u

p
/t

ra
d

e
r 

c
o

-o
rd

in
a

to
r 

p
o

st
 o

n
 t

h
e

 m
o

d
e

l 
o

f 
th

e
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
su

c
c

e
ss

fu
l 
M

ill
 R

o
a

d
 C

o
-o

rd
in

a
to

r,
 

b
u

t 
fo

r 
sh

o
p

s 
a

n
d

 b
u

si
n

e
ss

e
s,

 e
sp

e
c

ia
lly

 in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 

o
n

e
s,

 in
 t

h
e

 C
h

e
st

e
rt

o
n

 a
re

a
. 
Th

is
 w

o
u

ld
 in

c
lu

d
e

 C
h

e
st

e
rt

o
n

 

H
ig

h
 S

tr
e

e
t,

 t
h

e
 a

re
a

 a
ro

u
n

d
 M

it
c

h
a

m
’s

 C
o

rn
e

r/
C

h
e

st
e

rt
o

n
 R

o
a

d
 (

u
p

 t
o

 E
liz

a
b

e
th

 W
a

y
 R

o
u

n
d

a
b

o
u

t)
, 
 M

ilt
o

n
 R

o
a

d
, 

V
ic

to
ri
a

 R
o

a
d

 a
n

d
 o

th
e

r 
b

u
si

n
e

ss
e

s 
(f

in
a

l 
a

re
a

 s
u

b
je

c
t 

to
 c

o
n

su
lt

a
ti
o

n
).

 T
h

is
 is

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y
 p

e
rt

in
e

n
t 

g
iv

e
n

 t
h

a
t 

in
 t

h
e

 

Lo
c

a
l 
P

la
n

 E
a

st
 C

h
e

st
e

rt
o

n
 is

 d
e

si
g

n
a

te
d

 a
s 

a
n

 a
re

a
 o

f 
m

a
jo

r 
c

h
a

n
g

e
, 
a

n
d

 M
it
c

h
a

m
's

 C
o

rn
e

r 
a

s 
a

n
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y
 a

re
a

. 

Th
e

  
c

o
-o

rd
in

a
to

r 
w

o
u

ld
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h

 l
o

c
a

l 
tr

a
d

e
rs

, 
th

e
 c

o
u

n
c

il 
a

n
d

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 g

ro
u

p
s 

to
 id

e
n

ti
fy

 a
n

d
 c

a
p

it
a

lis
e

 o
n

  

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s.

Page 46



B
u

d
g

e
t 

A
m

e
n

d
m

e
n

t 
- 

C
a

p
it
a

l 
- 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 C

R
e

fe
re

n
c

e
P

o
rt

fo
lio

O
ld

 P
o

rt
fo

lio
It

e
m

 D
e

sc
ri

p
ti
o

n

2
0

1
4

/1
5

B
u

d
g

e
t

£

2
0

1
5

/1
6

B
u

d
g

e
t

£

2
0

1
6

/1
7

B
u

d
g

e
t

£

2
0

1
7

/1
8

B
u

d
g

e
t

£

C
o

n
ta

c
t

D
e

le
te

 C
a

p
it
a

l 
c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n
 t

o
 t

h
e

 '
K

e
e

p
 

C
a

m
b

ri
d

g
e

 M
o

v
in

g
 F

u
n

d
' 

LC
1

D
e

le
te

 C
3
4
4
8
 'C

a
p

it
a

l 
c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n
 t

o
 t

h
e

 'K
e

e
p

 

C
a

m
b

ri
d

g
e

 M
o

v
in

g
 F

u
n

d
' a

n
d

 d
e

le
te

 f
ro

m
 

C
a

p
it
a

l 
P

la
n

 S
C

5
9
3

[L
in

k
e

d
 t

o
 L

N
C

L1
]

(1
1
1
,1

4
0
)

0
0

0

(1
1

1
,1

4
0

)
0

0
0

R
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
t 

fo
r 

C
a

p
it
a

l 
F
u

n
d

in
g

 (
in

c
lu

d
e

d
 a

b
o

v
e

)

Page 47



Budget Amendment - Earmarked Funds - Appendix D

Earmarked & Specific Funds (all figures in £’000s)

Sharing Prosperity Fund

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18

(Surplus) / Deficit Balance b/f 0.0 (444.0) (311.9) (156.6)

Contributions (500.0) 0.0 0.0 0.0 

Contributions (14.8) 0.0 0.0 0.0 

Total surplus available (514.8) (444.0) (311.9) (156.6)

Expenditure approvals 70.8 132.1 155.3 126.0 

Pending approvals 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 

(Surplus) / Deficit Balance c/f (444.0) (311.9) (156.6) (30.6)

Fixed-Term Priority Project Fund

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18

(Surplus) / Deficit Balance b/f 0.0 (283.8) (258.8) (245.0)

Contributions (300.0) 0.0 0.0 0.0 

Total surplus available (300.0) (283.8) (258.8) (245.0)

Expenditure approvals 16.3 25.0 13.8 0.0 

(Surplus) / Deficit Balance c/f (283.8) (258.8) (245.0) (245.0)

Keep Cambridge Moving Fund

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18

(Surplus) / Deficit Balance b/f (436.1) (700.0) (700.0) (700.0)

Contributions (263.9) 0.0 0.0 0.0 

Total surplus available (700.0) (700.0) (700.0) (700.0)

Expenditure approvals 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 

(Surplus) / Deficit Balance c/f (700.0) (700.0) (700.0) (700.0)

Page 48



Appendix E 

Page 1 

Cambridge City Council Equality Impact Assessment 

Completing an Equality Impact Assessment will help you to think about what 
impact your strategy, policy, plan, project, contract or major change to your 
service may have on people that live in, work in or visit Cambridge, as well 
as on City Council staff.

The template is easy to use. You do not need to have specialist equalities knowledge to 
complete it. It asks you to make judgements based on evidence and experience. There are 
guidance notes on the intranet to help you. You can also get advice from Suzanne Goff, 
Strategy Officer on 01223 457174 or email suzanne.goff@cambridge.gov.uk or from any 
member of the Joint Equalities Group.

1. Title of strategy, policy, plan, project, contract or major change to your service: 

Budget 2014/15 – Amendment by the Executive 

2. What is the objective or purpose of your strategy, policy, plan, project, contract or 
major change to your service? 

The objective of the Executive amendment is to propose changes to the agreed budget for 
the General Fund for 2014/15. The proposed amendments include: new budget proposals; 
amendments to, or deletion of, specific existing revenue budgets; amendments to existing 
items on the Capital and Revenue Projects Plan; and the creation of earmarked Funds with 
accompanying Remits, including a dedicated Sharing Prosperity Fund.  

This EQIA provides an assessment of the equality impacts of the amendments proposed by 
the Executive, based on the information available about each project contained in the report 
to Strategy and Resources Scrutiny Committee on 14 July 2014 and the accompanying 
appendix. Some of the amendments are the subject of separate reports to Scrutiny 
Committees, and are accompanied by more detailed EQIAs. For example LS5 (returning 
planning from area committees to a central planning committee) is the subject of a separate 
report and EqIA to Environment Scrutiny Committee on 8 July. 

3. Who will be affected by this strategy, policy, plan, project, contract or major 
change to your service? (Please tick those that apply) 

 Residents

 Visitors

 Staff

A specific client group or groups (please state):

This is an assessment of proposed amendments to the Council's budget. The amendments 
relate to a number of different City Council service areas. Some of the proposals will have a 
universal impact, while others may have a differential impact on particular client groups. 
Further information on these impacts is set out in section 7 of this assessment. 

Page 49



Appendix E 

Page 2 

4. What type of strategy, policy, plan, project, contract or major change to your 
service is this? (Please tick)

 New

 Revised

 Existing   

5. Responsible directorate and service 

Directorate: Business Transformation  

Service:  Accounting Services 

6. Are other departments or partners involved in delivering this strategy, policy, plan, 
project, contract or major change to your service? 

  No 

  Yes (please give details):

The proposed amendments would require action by a number of City Council services, 
including City Homes, Corporate Strategy, Human Resources, Planning, Property Services, 
Refuse and Environment, Streets and Open Spaces, and Tourism and City Centre 
Management

Page 50



Appendix E 

Page 3 

7. Potential impact 

Please list and explain how this strategy, policy, plan, project, contract or major change to 
your service could positively or negatively affect individuals from the following equalities 
groups.

When answering this question, please think about:

 The results of relevant consultation that you or others have completed (for example with 
residents, people that work in or visit Cambridge, service users, staff or partner 
organisations).

 Complaints information.  

 Performance information.   

 Information about people using your service (for example whether people from certain 
equalities groups use the service more or less than others).

 Inspection results.  

 Comparisons with other organisations.  

 The implementation of your piece of work (don’t just assess what you think the impact will 
be after you have completed your work, but also think about what steps you might have to 
take to make sure that the implementation of your work does not negatively impact on 
people from a particular equality group).

 The relevant premises involved.  

 Your communications.  

 National research (local information is not always available, particularly for some 
equalities groups, so use national research to provide evidence for your conclusions).  

Page 51



Appendix E 

Page 4 

(a) Age (any group of people of a particular age, including younger and older people – in 
particular, please consider any safeguarding issues for children and vulnerable adults)

LS6 - Increased charges at public toilets that require payment - The proposed 
amendment to increase charges from 20p to 30p at those public toilets which require 
payment may have a small negative impact on those people who need to use toilets more 
frequently, which could include some older people. 

LS5 - Returning planning from area committees to central planning committee – 
Moving planning decisions from area committee meetings held in community venues to a 
central planning committee held in the Guildhall could have both positive and negative 
impacts for different age groups. There could be benefits for some people who have mobility 
issues, including some older people, as the Guildhall is located in the centre of Cambridge, 
arguably the most accessible part of Cambridge by public transport. The Guildhall is also an 
accessible public building, set up and fully equipped for meetings to take place. However, 
there could be a potential negative impact from this proposal for some people with mobility 
issues, including some older people, who might find it more difficult to travel from the area in 
which they live into the centre of the City to attend meetings.

Moving from evening meetings to afternoon meetings could also have both positive and 
negative impacts for different age groups. Meetings that take place in the afternoon are 
better for people who may not wish to be out in the evenings or late at night or who are not 
normally available in the evening. The availability of public transport is also better during the 
daytime compared to late evening. However, working people, people of school age or 
anyone normally unavailable during the day would need to arrange time off to attend an 
afternoon meeting.

LX2 - Living Wage External Campaign Officer and LX3 - Promotion Budget to 
accompany Living Wage Campaign - If the employment of an officer to promote the living 
wage within the City results in more businesses and other organisations within the City, 
including the Universities, paying a Living Wage to their staff, this will have a positive impact 
on those residents who are currently not paid the Living Wage. There may be a 
disproportionate representation of some of the protected characteristics amongst those who 
are currently paid less than the Living Wage in the City. For example, recent national 
research by the Resolution Foundation (Low Pay Britain, 2012) found that people aged 16-20 
(76%), 21-30 (27%) and 60+ (23%) are most likely to receive less than the living wage. 
However, further research would be needed to demonstrate the impact on particular groups 
within Cambridge, as trends may differ from those observed nationally.

LX6 - Youth Apprenticeship Programme - If the proposed additional funding enables 
Heads of Service to identify and support more youth apprenticeships than are currently 
available in City Council services, this could have a positive impact on the skills and 
employability of those young people that benefit from the apprenticeships created. 

FPPF1 - City Centre Accessibility Review - The proposed review is likely to have a 
positive impact on older residents and visitors to the City Centre, because it will review 
existing access issues (advertising boards, street cafes blocking pavements, pavement 
conditions, and the location and availability of disabled parking bays) and suggest potential 
solutions that the City Council could take forward with other partners, including the Business 
Improvement District (BID) team and Cambridgeshire County Council. 

Page 52



Appendix E 

Page 5 

(b) Disability (including people with a physical impairment, sensory impairment, learning 
 disability, mental health problem or other condition which has an impact on their daily life)

LS6 - Increased charges at public toilets that require payment - The proposed 
amendment to increase charges from 20p to 30p at those public toilets which require 
payment may have a small negative impact on those people who need to use toilets more 
frequently, which could include some people with disabilities or medical conditions. 

LS5 - Returning planning from area committees to central planning committee - The 
change to considering all planning matters at the Guildhall means there is a consistent, 
accessible, centrally-located venue available for people wishing to attend the meetings. It is 
recognised that the venues currently used for Area Committees vary and not all of them are 
to the same standard of accessibility and convenience for users. However, it could have a 
potential negative impact for some people with disabilities who might find it more difficult to 
travel from the area in which they live into the centre of the City to attend meetings. 

FPPF1 - City Centre Accessibility Review - The proposed review is likely to have a 
positive impact on disabled residents and visitors to the City Centre, because it will review 
existing access issues (advertising boards, street cafes blocking pavements, pavement 
conditions, and the location and availability of disabled parking bays) and suggest potential 
solutions that the City Council could take forward with other partners, including the Business 
Improvement District (BID) team and Cambridgeshire County Council. 

(c) Gender  

LX2 - Living Wage External Campaign Officer and LX3 - Promotion Budget to 
accompany Living Wage Campaign - If the employment of an officer to promote the living 
wage within the City results in more businesses and other organisations within the City, 
including the Universities, paying a Living Wage to their staff, this will have a positive impact 
on those residents who are currently not paid the Living Wage. There may be a 
disproportionate representation of some of the protected characteristics amongst those who 
are currently paid less than the Living Wage in the City. For example, recent national 
research by the Resolution Foundation (Low Pay Britain, 2012) found that a higher 
proportion of women (25%) receive less than the living wage than men (15%). However, 
further research would be needed to demonstrate the impact on particular groups within 
Cambridge, as trends may differ from those observed nationally.

LS5 - Returning planning from area committees to central planning committee - There 
are no specific gender implications from this proposed change.  However, attending 
meetings in the afternoon may be more difficult if individuals have primary childcare or caring 
responsibilities, but this may apply equally to the evening. It may have a positive impact on 
personal safety of those wanting to attend meetings on planning issues, as they would no 
longer need to attend Area Committee meetings which can finish quite late at night.

.

Page 53



Appendix E 

Page 6 

(d) Pregnancy and maternity

LS6 - Increased charges at public toilets that require payment - The proposed 
amendment to increase charges from 20p to 30p at those public toilets which require 
payment may have a small negative impact on those people who need to use toilets more 
frequently, including those who are pregnant or those with young children. 

(e) Transgender (including gender re-assignment) 

LS6 - Increased charges at public toilets that require payment - The proposed 
amendment to increase charges from 20p to 30p at those public toilets which require 
payment may have a disproportionate impact on transgender people. The City Council 
provides toilets in 21 locations, of which 14 are free and 7 are subject to a 20p charge for 
use. Of the 7 which are subject to charges, 6 are unisex toilets, while a mixture of male, 
female and unisex toilets are provided at the seventh location (Drummer Street). 
Transgender residents and visitors may feel more comfortable using unisex toilets rather than 
designated male or female toilets in the city. 

(f) Marriage and Civil Partnership

No differential impact on people of particular marital or civil partnership status has been 
identified through this assessment of the proposed budget amendments. 

(g) Race or Ethnicity 

No differential impact on people of a particular race or ethnicity has been identified through 
this assessment of the proposed budget amendments. 

(h) Religion or Belief 

No differential impact on people of particular religion or beliefs has been identified through 
this assessment of the proposed budget amendments 

(i) Sexual Orientation 

No differential impact on people of a particular sexual orientation has been identified through 
this assessment of the proposed budget amendments 

(j) Other factors that may lead to inequality – in particular – please consider the impact 
of any changes on low income groups or those experiencing the impacts of poverty 
(please state): 

LNCL1 - Decreasing the contribution to the Keep Cambridge Moving Fund and LNCL2 
- Contribution to Sharing Prosperity Fund. - These amendments propose to retain 
£700,000 in the Keep Cambridge Moving Fund, and use the remaining £800,000 to invest for 
new purposes from 2014/15 onwards. This would include investing £500,000 in the 
Executive’s proposed 'Sharing Prosperity Fund' to support the delivery of an Anti-Poverty 

Page 54



Appendix E 

Page 7 

(j) Other factors that may lead to inequality – in particular – please consider the impact 
of any changes on low income groups or those experiencing the impacts of poverty 
(please state): 

Strategy.

These amendments could have a positive impact on residents on low incomes, through 
providing an earmarked fund which would support projects that aim to assist those on low 
incomes, reduce economic inequality and ameliorate deprivation. The amendment sets out a 
number of initial projects that will be supported by the Fund and are likely to have a positive 
impact on those on low incomes, including the expanded programme of ‘Community Clear-
Out Days’, the Living Wage Campaign Officer, the Water and Energy Costs Anti-Poverty 
Scheme, the extra project budget for private sector energy and the Youth Apprenticeship 
Programme. The   remainder of the Fund will be used to support projects which meet the 
objectives of the Anti-Poverty Strategy. The likely impacts of these individual projects on 
poverty would need to be assessed as the come forward. 

LX1 - Expanded programme of 'Community Clear Out Days' - The proposal to increase 
the number of events held in the North and South of the City could have a positive impact on 
those residents living on low incomes and others who may find it difficult to access existing 
locations. It would increase access to free disposal of bulky waste rather than paying for 
these services. 

LX2 - Living Wage External Campaign Officer and LX3 - Promotion Budget to 
accompany Living Wage Campaign - If the employment of an officer to promote the living 
wage within the City results in more businesses and other organisations within the City, 
including the Universities, paying a Living Wage to their staff, this will have a positive impact 
on those residents who are currently not paid the Living Wage. There may be a 
disproportionate representation of some of the protected characteristics amongst those who 
are currently paid less than the Living Wage in the City.

LX4 - Water and Energy Costs Anti-Poverty Scheme - This proposal would provide officer 
capacity to assist residents to review their water usage and assess whether they would 
achieve savings through having a water meter installed.  Cambridge Water currently offers 
customers a free trial of water meters for a year and to remove them if no savings are 
identified. The scheme would also encourage take-up of water and energy efficiency 
measures. If additional support and promotion in lower income areas resulted in greater 
awareness and take-up of water meters, and energy and water efficiency measures, this 
could have could potentially have a positive impact on some residents living on low incomes 
if it led to a reduction in their water bills. 

LX5 - Extra project budget for Private Sector Energy Officer - The proposal to increase 
the budget for promotion of energy efficiency and insulation schemes (such as the Energy 
Company Obligation) could have a positive impact on those living on low incomes if the 
proposed targeting of low income areas of the City results in greater take-up in these areas. 

LX6 - Youth Apprenticeship Programme - If the proposed additional funding enables 
Heads of Service to identify and support more youth apprenticeships than are currently 
available in City Council services, this could have a positive impact on the skills and 
employability of those young people that benefit from the apprenticeships created. If these 
young people are from low income households, this could have a positive impact on poverty. 

Page 55



Appendix E 

Page 8 

(j) Other factors that may lead to inequality – in particular – please consider the impact 
of any changes on low income groups or those experiencing the impacts of poverty 
(please state): 

FPPF3 - Extra Cambridge promotion of the Cambridgeshire Collective Energy 
Switching Scheme - This proposed amendment could have a positive impact on those on 
low incomes and those suffering from fuel poverty if it leads to greater awareness and take-
up of the County-wide collective energy-switching scheme amongst Cambridge residents. 

8. If you have any additional comments please add them here 

LSR1 - Reverse Service Review SR3299 - Cessation of the Pest Control Service - This 
amendment would reinstate the Council's free pest control service. Without further 
information on which groups currently access the free pest control service, it is not possible 
to assess whether reinstating this service would have a positive impact on particular groups. 

LS2 - Top slice cut of 25% of overall training, seminar and conference budget – As the 
proposed reduction in the budget is intended to come from the annual underspend on the 
corporate training budget, it is likely that there would not be an impact on the availability of 
training opportunities for City Council staff. There is therefore not likely to be a 
disproportionate impact on any particular group of staff from reducing this budget.

LS4 - Reduce budget for organisational subscriptions - Depending on which 
subscriptions were discontinued in order to achieve this saving, it could potentially have a 
disproportionate impact on different groups of staff. However, the Council does not monitor 
the usage of corporate subscriptions by equality group so it is not possible to make this 
assessment.

FPPF2 - Chesterton Co-ordinator - This proposal would provide a fixed-term 2-year part-
time co-coordinator post for shops and businesses in Chesterton, based on the model of the 
current Mill Road Co-ordinator. Depending on the demographic profile of small business 
owners in Chesterton, this could have a positive impact on particular equality groups, but 
information is not currently available to be able to make this assessment.

Page 56



Appendix E 

Page 9 

9. Conclusions and Next Steps 

 If you have not identified any negative impacts, please sign off this form.

 If you have identified potential negative actions, you must complete the action plan at the 
end of this document to set out how you propose to mitigate the impact. If you do not feel 
that the potential negative impact can be mitigated, you must complete question 8 to 
explain why that is the case.

 If there is insufficient evidence to say whether or not there is likely to be a negative 
impact, please complete the action plan setting out what additional information you need 
to gather to complete the assessment. 

All completed Equality Impact Assessments must be emailed to Suzanne Goff, Strategy 
Officer, who will arrange for it to be published on the City Council’s website.
Email suzanne.goff@cambridge.gov.uk

10. Sign off 

Name and job title of assessment lead officer: David Kidston, Strategy and Partnerships 
Manager

Names and job titles of other assessment team members and people consulted: 

Date of completion: 24 June 2014  

Date of next review of the assessment:   

Page 57



Appendix E 

Page 10 

Action Plan 

Equality Impact Assessment title:   
   
Date of completion:       

Equality Group Age 

Details of possible disadvantage 
or negative impact 

Action to be taken to address the 
disadvantage or negative impact 

Officer responsible for 
progressing the action 

Date action to be completed by       

Equality Group Disability 

Details of possible disadvantage 
or negative impact 

Action to be taken to address the 
disadvantage or negative impact 

Officer responsible for 
progressing the action 

Date action to be completed by       

Equality Group Gender

Details of possible disadvantage 
or negative impact 

Action to be taken to address the 
disadvantage or negative impact 

Officer responsible for 
progressing the action 

Date action to be completed by       

Page 58



Appendix E 

Page 11 

Equality Group Pregnancy and Maternity 

Details of possible disadvantage 
or negative impact 

Action to be taken to address the 
disadvantage or negative impact 

Officer responsible for 
progressing the action 

Date action to be completed by       

Equality Group Transgender 

Details of possible disadvantage 
or negative impact 

Action to be taken to address the 
disadvantage or negative impact 

Officer responsible for 
progressing the action 

Date action to be completed by       

Equality Group Marriage and Civil Partnership 

Details of possible disadvantage 
or negative impact 

Action to be taken to address the 
disadvantage or negative impact 

Officer responsible for 
progressing the action 

Date action to be completed by       

Page 59



Appendix E 

Page 12 

Equality Group Race or Ethnicity 

Details of possible disadvantage 
or negative impact 

Action to be taken to address the 
disadvantage or negative impact 

Officer responsible for 
progressing the action 

Date action to be completed by       

Equality Group Religion or Belief 

Details of possible disadvantage 
or negative impact 

Action to be taken to address the 
disadvantage or negative impact 

Officer responsible for 
progressing the action 

Date action to be completed by       

Equality Group Sexual Orientation 

Details of possible disadvantage 
or negative impact 

Action to be taken to address the 
disadvantage or negative impact 

Officer responsible for 
progressing the action 

Date action to be completed by       

Page 60



Appendix E 

Page 13 

Other factors that may lead to inequality 

Details of possible disadvantage 
or negative impact 

Action to be taken to address the 
disadvantage or negative impact 

Officer responsible for 
progressing the action 

Date action to be completed by       

Page 61



Page 62

This page is intentionally left blank



RECOMMENDATION TO COUNCIL 
(EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR FOR FINANCE AND  

RESOURCES – COUNCILLOR OWERS) 
 

2013/14 Revenue and Capital Outturn, Carry Forwards and 
Significant Variances - General Fund - OVERVIEW 

 
The report presents a summary of the 2013/14 outturn position 
(actual income and expenditure) for all portfolios, compared to the 
final budget for the year. The position for revenue and capital is 
reported and variances from budgets are highlighted. Explanations 
have been reported to individual Executive Councillors / Scrutiny 
Committees and are reproduced here. 
 
The Strategy and Resource Scrutiny Committee considered and 
approved the recommendations unanimously.  
 
Accordingly, Council is recommended: 
 
Revenue: 
a) To agree the final carry forward requests, totalling £469,010, as 
detailed in Appendix C of the officers report, subject to the final 
outturn position. 
 
Capital: 
b) To carry forward (net) capital resources to fund re-phased 
capital spending of £15,828,000 as shown in Appendix D of the 
officers report - Overview. (Note: this includes HRA £11,733,000) 

Agenda Item 4b

Page 63



Page 64

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

Cambridge City Council  
 

Item  

 

To: Executive Councillor for Finance & Resources 

 
Report by: 

 
Director of Business Transformation 
 

Relevant scrutiny 
committee:  

Strategy & Resources 14 July 2014 

 
2013/14 Revenue and Capital Outturn, Carry Forwards and Significant 
Variances - General Fund - OVERVIEW 
 
Key Decision 
 
1. Executive summary  
 
1.1 This report presents a summary of the 2013/14 outturn position 

(actual income and expenditure) for all portfolios, compared to the 
final budget for the year.  The position for revenue and capital is 
reported and variances from budgets are highlighted.  Explanations 
have been reported to individual Executive Councillors / Scrutiny 
Committees and are reproduced here.  

 
1.2 Requests to carry forward funding arising from certain budget 

underspends into 2014/15 are identified. 
 

1.3 It should be noted that outturn reports being presented in this 
Committee cycle reflect the reporting structures in place prior to the 
recent changes in Executive portfolios.  In light of those changes 
(together with the requirement to report outturn on the basis of 
portfolios in place during 2013/14) members of all committees have 
been asked to consider the proposals to carry forward budgets and 
make their views known to Executive Councillor for Finance & 
Resources, for consideration at Strategy & Resources Scrutiny 
Committee prior to his recommendations to Council.  As this report 
was published prior to completion of all the Scrutiny Committee 
meetings a list of all comments received will be published once 
available. 
 

1.4 The outturn position for Housing Revenue Account (HRA) has been 
reported to Housing Scrutiny Committee and the Executive Councillor 
for Housing on 1 July 2014. 
 
 

Page 65



 

 
Revenue Outturn 
 

1.5 The 2013/14 final revenue budget for all portfolios is £21,276,170. 
The final outturn for the year is now £19,165,416 giving an overall 
under-spend of £2,110,754.  Of this total under-spend requests for 
carrying forward budgets into the next financial year are being sought 
for £469,010, as detailed in Appendix C. 
 
Capital Outturn 
 

1.6 The latest approved capital budget for all portfolios is £40,605,000.  
Actual expenditure on capital schemes and programmes during 
2013/14 is £24,101,000 giving an overall under-spend of 
£16,504,000.  Of this net underspend £15,828,000 is due to net 
slippage and Council approval is sought to rephase the required 
capital resources from 2013/14 into 2014/15 and future years. 

 
2. Recommendations  
 
The Leader is recommended, taking account of the views of Executive 
Councillors and members of the Scrutiny Committees on the following 
proposals: 
 

Revenue:  
 

a) To agree which of the final carry forward requests, totalling 
£469,010, as detailed in Appendix C, are to be recommended to 
Council for approval, subject to the final outturn position. 

 
Capital: 

 
b) To seek approval from Council to carry forward (net) capital 

resources to fund re-phased capital spending of £15,828,000 as 
shown in Appendix D - Overview.  
(Note:  this includes HRA £11,733,000) 

 
3. Background  
 

Revenue Outturn 
 
3.1 The revenue budget for 2013/14, initially approved by Council on 21 

February 2013, was considered in the January 2014 Committee cycle 
and revised as appropriate.  The final outturn position for all 
portfolios, compared to final revenue budget, is presented in detail in 
Appendix A. 

Page 66



 

   
3.2 Explanations for the main variances from the final budget for 2013/14 

have been reported to appropriate Executive Councillors / Scrutiny 
Committees and are reproduced as Appendix B. 

 
3.3 Appendix C sets out the list of items, for all portfolios, for which 

approval is sought to carry forward unspent budget from 2013/14 to 
the next financial year, 2014/15.  

 
3.4 A summary of the final revenue outturn position for all portfolios is 

shown below: 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Capital Outturn 
 
3.5 All capital schemes were reviewed in detail in January 2014 and the 

Capital Plan amended to account for rephasing and anticipated 
over/underspends on individual schemes. 

 
3.6 Appendix D - Overview summarises the final outturn position against 

2013/14 final capital budgets.   Explanations for the main variances 
from final budgets for 2013/14 have been reported to appropriate 
Executive Councillors / Scrutiny Committees and are reproduced as 

2013/14 General Fund Revenue 
Summary 

£ 

Original Budget 20,560,460 

Adjustments 715,710 

Final Budget 21,276,170 

Outturn 19,165,416 

Net Variation / underspend for the year 
on committees 

(2,110,754) 

Carry Forward Requests: 469,010 

Net Variance on committees (1,641,744) 

Capital / revenue Projects financed from 
revenue - rephasing 

405,262 

Other net variances 32,641 

Net Variance and reduced use of 
General Fund Reserves 

(1,203,841) 

Page 67



 

Appendices D (General Fund Detail) and Appendix E (Housing).  The 
net under-spend of £16,504,000 is mainly due to slippage.   

 
3.7 The Capital Plan will be updated as necessary to reflect changes in 

the phasing of capital projects. 
 
4. Implications  
 
4.1 The net variance from final revenue budget, after approvals to carry 

forward £469,010 revenue budgets from 2013/14 into 2014/15 will 
result in a reduced use of General Fund reserves of £1,641,744.  
After Capital / revenue Projects financed from revenue rephasing and 
other variances the net overall variance and reduced use of General 
Fund Reserves is £1,203,841. 

 

4.2 In relation to requests to carry forward either revenue or capital 
budgets into 2014/15 and future years the decisions made may have 
a number of implications.  A decision not to approve a carry forward 
request will impact on officers’ ability to deliver the service or scheme 
in question and this could have staffing, equal opportunities, 
environmental and/or community safety implications. 

 
5. Background papers  
 
These background papers were used in the preparation of this report: 

· Reports for all Portfolios to the June 2014 Scrutiny Committee cycle 
 

6. Appendices  
 

· Appendix A - Revenue Budget 2013/14 - Outturn 

· Appendix B - Revenue Budget 2013/14 - Major Variances 
from Final Revenue Budgets 

· Appendix C - Revenue Budget 2013/14 - Carry Forward Requests   

· Appendix D - Capital Budget 2013/14 - Outturn – Overview 

· Appendix D - Capital Budget 2013/14 - Outturn – Detail  
(General Fund) 

· Appendix E - Capital Budget 2013/14 - Outturn – Detail (HCIP) 

· Appendix E - Notes to the Housing Capital Investment Plan (HCIP) 
 

7. Inspection of papers  
To inspect the background papers or if you have a query on the report please contact: 
 
Author’s Name: 

 
Contact: John Harvey 

Author’s Phone Number:  Telephone: 01223 - 458143 
Author’s Email:  Email:  john.harvey@cambridge.gov.uk 

O:\accounts\Committee Reports & Papers\Strategy & Resources from July 2007\2014 June\Final\Overview\Overview 
2013-14 - Outturn Report FINAL.doc 

 

Page 68



Appendix A

Committee / Portfolio

Original

Budget

Final

Budget Outturn

Variation 

Increase / 

(Decrease)

Carry Forward 

Requests - see 

Appendix C Net Variance

£ £ £ £ £ £

Customer & Community Services

Community Wellbeing 7,427,180 7,564,700 7,468,807 (95,893) 94,000 (1,893)

Public Places (moved from 

Environment)
1,992,220 2,052,060 2,108,913 56,853 1,980 58,833

Total Customer & Community 

Services
9,419,400 9,616,760 9,577,720 (39,040) 95,980 56,940

Environment

Environmental & Waste Services 8,537,550 8,265,820 7,860,112 (405,708) 57,400 (348,308)

Planning & Climate Change 1,173,270 1,721,280 1,231,069 (490,211) 33,790 (456,421)

Total Environment 9,710,820 9,987,100 9,091,181 (895,919) 91,190 (804,729)

Housing

Housing (moved from Customer & 

Community Services)
3,412,590 3,654,640 3,479,117 (175,523) 84,000 (91,523)

Strategy & Resources

Customer Services and Resources (4,843,360) (5,546,160) (6,351,186) (805,026) 180,520 (624,506)

Strategy 2,861,010 3,563,830 3,368,584 (195,246) 17,320 (177,926)

Total Strategy & Resources (1,982,350) (1,982,330) (2,982,602) (1,000,272) 197,840 (802,432)

Total Portfolios / Committees 20,560,460 21,276,170 19,165,416 (2,110,754) 469,010 (1,641,744)

Capital Accounting Adjustments (4,593,190) (4,616,410) (4,611,678) 4,732 4,732

Capital / Revenue Projects 

Expenditure Financed from Revenue
1,237,000 1,008,000 602,738 (405,262) 405,262 0

Contributions to Earmarked Reserves 1,294,530 1,730,670 1,687,610 (43,060) (43,060)

Contributions to NNDR Earmarked 

Reserves
3,207,320 3,207,320 3,207,320

Contributions (from) Earmarked 

Reserves
(541,760) (421,492) 120,268 120,268

Other (31,699) (31,699) (31,699)

Contributions to/(from) Reserves (713,280) (897,000) 1,181,113 2,078,113 (874,272) 1,203,841

(2,774,940) (3,316,500) 1,613,912 4,930,412 (469,010) 4,461,402

Net General Fund Spending 17,785,520 17,959,670 20,779,328 2,819,658 0 2,819,658

0

Financed by: 0

Government Revenue Support Grant (5,609,370) (5,609,370) (5,638,944) (29,574) (29,574)

NNDR (3,731,760) (3,861,760) (6,649,966) (2,788,206) (2,788,206)

Other Government Grants: 0 0

New Homes Bonus (2,085,290) (2,085,290) (2,085,283) 7 7

Other specific grants (105,780) (149,930) (151,814) (1,884) (1,884)

Council Tax (6,393,560) (6,393,560) (6,393,560) 0 0

Collection Fund (Surplus)/Deficit 140,240 140,240 140,239 (1) (1)
Total Financing (17,785,520) (17,959,670) (20,779,328) (2,819,658) 0 (2,819,658)

Net Total 0 0 0 0 0 0

Revenue Budget - 2013/14 Outturn

General Fund Overview / Strategy & Resources Scrutiny Committee

Page 69



Appendix B

Service Grouping Reason for Variance
Amount

£
Contact

Arts & Recreation

Arts & Events

Folk Festival - The overspend is due to an underachievement 

on sponsorship income and lower than planned ticket sales for 

2013 full festival tickets.

41,652 J Wilson

Outdoor Events - The Arts Council grant for Tour de France 

arts project was received in 2013-14 of which £51,000 has 

been spent, a further £49,000 has been committed for delivery 

in 2014/15 and a request for a carry forward of that sum has 

been included  to support those activities. Staffing and other 

budgets have been managed in the short term to contribute to 

wider issues elsewhere in the service

(105,937) J Wilson

Business & 

Marketing

City Centre Box Office - Over achievement is due to the full 

retention of booking fees for Folk Festival ticket sales which 

were previously out at a ticket agent (due to investment in new 

ticketing software) and more people using new Box Office 

online system for Corn Exchange shows resulting in higher 

income levels. 

(108,135) N Jones

Cultural Facilities

Corn Exchange Front of House - This shortfall is partly due 

to insufficient staffing budget and also as a result of an 

increasing agency staff cost base that is irrecoverable from 

recharges to promoters. These issues are being addressed in 

2014/15

62,220 S Bagnall

Corn Exchange Events -  Trading conditions continue to be 

challenging both in terms of ticket sales and availability of 

profitable product. 

59,374 S Bagnall

Central

Administration

Central costs - Staffing and other budgets have been 

managed in the short term to contribute to wider issues 

elsewhere in the service

(45,046) D Kaye

Sport & Recreation

Leisure Contract Client Costs - Impact of budget for RPIX 

and Carbon Management savings being overstated in the 

second half of the year, following tender award to new 

contractor

50,772 I Ross

Central administration - Savings in employees codes, with 

two staff off on maternity leave, and buildings maintenance 

budget through the rescheduling of planned maintenance 

works. Staffing and other budgets have been managed in the 

short term to contribute to wider issues elsewhere in the 

service

(77,182) I Ross

Community Development

Community

Development Admin

Overspend due to restructuring of service and the subsequent 

redundancy costs - the majority of which have been met by 

various underspends across the service.

39,997 J Hanson

Community Centres 

See £20,000 carry forward request for St Luke's Barn.  The 

balance of underspends contribute to funding restructuring 

costs.

(55,205) J Hanson

Grants

See £9,000 carry forward request for Growing City Grant.  The 

balance of underspends contribute to funding restructuring 

costs.

(38,044) J Hanson

Community Wellbeing / Community Services Scrutiny Committee

 Revenue Budget 2013/14 - Major Variances 

from Final Revenue Budgets

Page 70



Appendix B

Service Grouping Reason for Variance Amount                  

£

Contact

Business 

Transformation
Finance - General The main variance relates to credits reflecting a reduction in 

the impairments previously assessed on the Council's 

deposits with Heritable Bank and LBI. These result from an 

increase in the recovery percentage for Heritable and the 

likelihood of recovery of monies over a shorter period in 

respect of LBI.

(431,697) Charity Main

General Properties 

and Grand Arcade

The underspend is mainly due to the receipt of backdated 

rental income following the completion of rent reviews and 

audits during the latter stages of the 2013/14 financial year.

(81,975) Dave Prinsep

Cashiers The variance relates to minor underspends on staffing and 

supplies and services costs.  Ongoing savings have been 

built into the budgets from the 2014/15 financial year 

onwards.

(25,053) Jonathan 

James

Customer Service 

Centre

The variance relates to minor underspends across a number 

of supplies and services budgets and a small underspend on 

employee costs due to staff turnover.

(43,820) Jonathan 

James

Customer and 

Community
Revenues and 

Benefits

The main variance is due to unspent Homelessness 

Prevention Funding of (£129,520) for which a carry forward of 

budget is requested (see Appendix C).

(122,813) Alison Cole

Environment
Land Charges and 

Searches

Increased income over and above revised budget set, due to 

buoyant market conditions; Land Charge requests for Full 

Search up by 23% on last year.  A carry forward request to 

transfer £35,000 to top up the existing ringfenced reserve to 

assist with the future repayment of fees and charges related 

to the on-going litigation by Personal Search Companies is 

included in Appendix C. 

(39,129) Paul Boucher

Support Services

Internal Audit The temporary/agency staff costs that were incurred pending 

recruitment to the Senior Auditor vacant post were less than 

originally forecast.

(36,313) Steve Crabtree

Human Resources The underspend includes the balance of the organisational 

change budget of £21,190, which has been allocated to the 

Managers' Skills programme. The Managers' Skills 

programme has now been implemented and will be 

completed by the end of August 2014.  A carry forward of 

budget of £16,000 is requested to complete the programme 

(see Appendix C). The remaining variance relates to minor 

supplies and services underspends.

(65,082) Deborah 

Simpson

Legal Services Income recovery from third parties was higher than target. (22,696) Simon Pugh

Customer Services & Resources Portfolio / 

Strategy & Resources Scrutiny Committee

 Revenue Budget 2013/14 - Major Variances 

from Final Revenue Budgets

Page 71



Appendix B

Cost Centre Reason for Variance
Amount                  

£
Contact

Street Cleaning

Employee costs have reduced whilst waiting for long 

term staff issues to be resolved. This is now complete 

and posts are currently being filled. Reduced overtime, 

vehicle and sub contractor costs have also contributed to 

the underspend.

(58,902) B Carter

Trade Refuse

There is a significant over achievement of income from 

an increased number of contracts for Chargeable 

Household waste services. There is also a reduced 

expenditure on disposal costs as a result of less tonnage 

being landfilled and a one off reduction in the cost of 

landfill for Chargeable Household waste.

(163,178) J Robertson

College/Bring Bank 

Recycling

Mainly attributable to an underspend on vehicle 

maintenance which will be reviewed for the 2014/15 

budgets.

(25,099) M Parsons

Recycling Strategy

There has been an over achievement of income due to 

an increase in tonnage recycled and an increase in the 

rate of recycling credit paid per tonne.

(61,637) J Robertson

Refuse & Environment 

Operational Support

This is due to minor underspends on a range of budgets 

including relocation, stationery, postage, consultants and 

refreshments. These will be reviewed for the 2014/15 

budgets. 

(36,060) Y O'Donnell

Head of Streets & 

Open Spaces

There is an underspend on training and a carry forward 

of £20,000 is requested to fund training for additional 

staff members

(20,000) A Ash

Environmental & Waste Services Portfolio / Environment Scrutiny 

Committee

 Revenue Budget 2013/14 - Major Variances 

from Final Revenue Budgets

Page 72



Appendix B

Service Grouping Reason for Variance
Amount

£
Contact

Homelessness

Costs

Spending on bed and breakfast provision continued its 

previously upward trajectory in the early stages of 2013/14 

and funding was vired from the CLG Homelessness Grant 

cost centre to meet the anticipated shortfall, putting other 

potential projects on hold as a result. The increased supply of 

new Affordable Housing; introduction of more alternative 

provision using both our own housing stock and some leased 

accommodation, reduced the need to use bed and breakfast 

provision inn the latter part of the year, resulting in an 

underspend against the final budget for the year. A carry 

forward request is being made to resurrect some of the 

projects that were not undertaken during 2013/14 as a result 

of the uncertainty in this area.

(51,321) D Greening

Home Aid / Home 

Improvement Grants

Additional income was received in 2013/14, with £23k of small 

value grant and loan repayments being repaid to the authority 

by the clients. It is not possible to budget for this income as 

there may be no grant or loan repayments in any one year.

(28,711) H Reed

CLG Homelessness 

Grant

Underspending in CLG Homelessness Grant for 2013/14, 

based on projects completed by 31st March 2014. Local 

authorities are free to carry over underspent sums between 

financial years. A carry forward of this external grant balance 

is requested, in line with delegations given to the Head of 

Strategic Housing, to allow use of the monies in line with CLG 

expectations and existing commitments in respect of 

homelessness prevention work and homeless support activity.

(17,869) D Greening

Housing Strategy

Underspending in employee costs where vacant hours exist in 

the establishment, but have neither been recruited to nor 

utilised on a project basis during 2013/14.

(11,249) J Hovells

Minor Variations (6,227)

Total (115,377)

General Fund Housing Portfolio / Housing Committee

 Revenue Budget 2013/14 - Major Variances 

from Final Revenue Budgets

Customer & Community Services - Housing Strategy, Development, Housing Advice, Private Sector Housing and 

Miscellaneous Housing

Page 73



Appendix B

Service Grouping Reason for Variance
Amount

£
Contact

General Fund Housing Portfolio / Housing Committee

 Revenue Budget 2013/14 - Major Variances 

from Final Revenue Budgets

Housing Standards

A delay in the appointment of the Empty Homes Officer post 

resulted in an underspend of £17,450 and the CPO budget has 

been underspent by £7,000 due to the time to take CPOs to 

committee. A request for the carry forward of these budgets to 

2014/15 is included in Appendix C. The balance of £16,750 is 

split over many account codes within the Housing Standards.

(41,201)

Miscellaneous

Licensing - Housing
Due to an overachievement of HMO income of £10,023. (10,186)

Minor Variations (8,759)

Total (60,146)

Total for Housing Portfolio / Community Services Scrutiny Committee (175,523)

Environment - Refuse and Environment

Page 74



Appendix B

Service Grouping Reason for Variance
Amount                  

£
Contact

Environment - Parking Services

Car Parks

The overall variance on the Parking Services budget 

results from a marginal improvement compared with 

forecast income (around 2%) and also from further 

savings of 1% of budgeted expenditure in the maIn 

car parks in the final quarter of the year.

(71,364) Paul Necus

Environment - Planning 

Building Control Other
Minor underspends on salaries (due to vacant post), 

departmental support costs and supplies & services.
(24,894) Patsy Dell

City Development

The underspend is mainly due to a reduced recharge 

from the Business Support cost centre.  The cost 

centre delivered an underspend which was returned 

to the users of the service and a high proportion was 

allocated to City Development (CD) as a primary user 

of that support service.  The costs of Planning Online 

have also reduced and there is a potential saving of 

£7,500 next year.  Reduced expenditure on staff 

recruitment costs resulted from a fairly stable year for 

the team in terms of recruitment.  Application fee 

income is difficult to predict in CD, but was generally 

greater than expected.  There was an under-

achievement on the s106 monitoring budget, but fees 

have been adjusted to address this in 2014/15.

(43,414) Patsy Dell

New Neighbourhoods

Over-achievement on major applications fee and pre-

application income as a result of increased 

development activity, with a number of delayed 

strategic projects starting to move forward again, 

resulting in application fees being generated which 

had not been expected in this financial year. This has 

included NIAB1, following the signing of the S106 in 

December 2013 and Phase 2 Trumpington Meadows 

and the Pinks land on Cambridge East.

(199,963) Patsy Dell

Planning Policy

Savings are already committed from this service area 

in 2015/16 when work on the local plan was 

anticipated to be reducing, taking the saving now will 

reduce the services ability to deliver on the local plan 

and on already commited savings. The underspend 

on salaries is due to posts being held vacant to 

achieve savings in 2015/16. The funding is still 

needed in 2014/15 to deliver on the local plan 

commitments, through use of temporary staff or 

consultants as needed. Maternity leave cover 

arrangements in 2013/14 were a two days per week 

SLA with Peterborough City Council rather than a full 

time appointment so delivered a salary saving for that 

year.

(48,700) Patsy Dell

Planning & Climate Change / Environment Scrutiny Committee

 Revenue Budget 2013/14 - Major Variances 

from Final Revenue Budgets

Page 75



Appendix B

Service Grouping Reason for Variance
Amount                  

£
Contact

Planning & Climate Change / Environment Scrutiny Committee

 Revenue Budget 2013/14 - Major Variances 

from Final Revenue Budgets

Urban Design & 

Conservation

Underspend relates principally to pro-active 

conservation work for which the funding is either 

committed or represents project work requested by 

members and still to be completed.  A request to carry 

forward funding (£28,610) for these projects is 

included in Appendix C.  There is also a one-off 

underspend in salary due to one officer moving to part-

time work and additional income from work 

undertaken as part of a Planning Performance 

Agreement.

(52,716) Patsy Dell

Taxicard Service Underspend due to possible reduction in usage. (25,869) Patsy Dell

Page 76



Appendix B

Service Grouping Reason for Variance
Amount

£
Contact

Environment - Bereavement Services

Cambridge

Crematorium

A falling death rate has resulted in a reduction 

in income from cremations.
46,779 Paul Necus

Environment - Open Space Management 

River Frontage 

Management

Provision for business rates from prior years 

(£27,000) has not been spent.
(27,965) Adrian Ash

Environment - Streets and Open Spaces

Environmental

Projects

Variance mainly due to additional external 

income, including Pre-Application and Planning 

Performance Agreements recharges.

(35,799) Adrian Ash

Project Delivery

Overspend due to recruitment and relocation 

expense costs [£13k] and unsupported project 

costs [£8.5k].  Also due to additional resources 

needed for project delivery on non EIP 

schemes.

75,798 Adrian Ash

Public Places / Community Services Scrutiny Committee

 Revenue Budget 2013/14 - Major Variances 

from Final Revenue Budgets

Page 77



Appendix B

Service 

Grouping
Reason for Variance

Amount

£
Contact

Corporate 

Strategy
Minor variances (21,526) A Limb

CCTV

Projects to install CCTV cameras were delayed and will now be carried out in 2014/15.  As 

these projects are fully rechargeable there will be no effect on the 2014/15 (Shared Service) 

budget.

(52,780) M Beaumont

Community 

Safety

Underspending in Community Safety results predominantly from under-utilisation of funding 

for Safer City Grants coupled with delays in organisations being awarded some of the 

grants making claims for the funding.  In respect of the former, the ongoing budget was 

reduced as part of the 2014/15 budget process and in respect of the latter, the funding has 

been requested as a carry forward to allow commitments to be upheld in 2014/15.  Funding 

for domestic violence co-ordination across the city was also underspent in 2013/14, with a 

request to carry this forward to meet any unavoidable costs associated with domestic 

violence and homicide on behalf of the Community Safety Partnership.

(39,614) L Kilkelly

Major variances include underspends of:

£25k due to reduced consultants and professional fees.

£31k Maternity Fund - the base budget provision of £168k was supplemented by £70k in 

the Budget-Setting Report, but demand on this fund (which is difficult to anticipate) has 

been less than the revised estimate.

£25k central overheads.

(81,326) John Harvey

Total (195,246)

Strategy Portfolio / Strategy & Resources Scrutiny Committee

 Revenue Budget 2013/14 - Major Variances 

from Final Revenue Budgets

Central 

Provisions, 

Centrally 

allocated costs 

and Corporate 

& Democratic 

Services

Page 78



Appendix C

Item Request Contact

£

Arts & Recreation - External Events

1
Tour de France Art project:  2014/15 costs to be met from Arts 

Council grant received 2013/14
49,000 J Wilson

Arts & Recreation - Leisure Contract Client Costs

2

Health and Wellbeing Swimming Iniatives for specific groups such 

as the disabled, BME groups and non-swimmers - adults & 

children which will be delivered in 2014/15

16,000 I Ross

Community Development:

3

Community Facilities (formerly St Luke's Community

School):  Negotiations are currently underway regarding the 

withdrawal of the council's community  access arrangements at St 

Luke's Barn. Although the council does not own the building it has 

an obligation to demolish and reinstate the ground should the 

Trustees request. The 12 month notice period given by the council 

ends in July 2014 when this amount will be required.

20,000 J Hanson

4

Community Development Growing City Grant: new 

communities have only just moved in to Southern Fringe so there 

has been a delay in community development activity and the 

generation of projects for grant funding.

9,000 J Hanson

Total Carry Forward Requests for Community Wellbeing / 

Community Services Scrutiny Committee
94,000

Request to Carry Forward Budgets from 2013/14 into 2014/15

Community Wellbeing / Community Services Scrutiny Committee

Revenue Budget 2013/14 - Carry Forward Requests

Page 79



Appendix C

Item Reason for carry forward request

Carry 

Forward 

Requests Contact
£

1

Revenues and Benefits

Request to carry forward unspent Homelessness Prevention funding 

of £129,520 to support Discretionary Housing Payments as outlined 

within the report to Strategy & Resources Scrutiny Committee on 17 

March 2014.

129,520 Alison Cole

2

Land Charges

Transfer of over-achieved fee income to top up existing earmarked 

reserve (existing balance £34,000) - to offset on-going litigation claim 

by Personal Search companies.

35,000
Paul 

Boucher

3

Human Resources

The HR service underspend includes the balance of a corporate 

budget earmarked to support organisational change and allocated to 

the Managers' Skills Programme.  There is a request to carry forward 

£16,000 of the remaining budget of £21,190 to complete the 

programme.  The Managers' Skills programme has been implemented 

and will be completed by the end of August 2014.

16,000
Deborah 

Simpson

Total Carry Forward Requests for Customer Services & 

Resources Portfolio
180,520

Request to Carry Forward Budgets from 2013/14 into 2014/15

Customer Services & Resources Portfolio /

Strategy & Resources Scrutiny Committee

Revenue Budget 2013/14 - Carry Forward Requests

Page 80



Appendix C

Item

Final 

Request Contact

£

1

Trade Refuse - carry forwards are requested within this cost 

centre and the Waste Development cost centre to fund a one year 

fixed term administrative post in 2014/15 to cover work, in 

particular the ISO accreditation work, which could not be 

progressed in 2013/14 due to a staff vacancy that had to go 

through the recruitment process twice in order to fill.  This caused 

a delay with the post being vacant for six months. 

12,000 J Robertson

2

Recycling Strategy - There was a delay in the appointment of the 

two year fixed post of recycling champion coordinator. Therefore a 

carry forward of the balance of the budget to 2014/15 is 

requested.

7,400 J Robertson

3 Waste Development - see trade refuse above. 18,000 J Robertson

4
Head of Streets and Open Spaces - a carry forward is requested 

to fund training for additional and new staff members
20,000 A Ash

Total Carry Forward Requests for Environmental & Waste 

Services Portfolio / Environment Scrutiny Committee
57,400

Request to Carry Forward Budgets from 2013/14 into 2014/15

Environmental & Waste Services Portfolio / Environment Scrutiny 

Committee

Revenue Budget 2013/14 - Carry Forward Requests

Page 81



Appendix C

Item Request Contact

£

Director of Customer & Community Services

1

Homelessness Costs - Funding was transferred into this cost centre during 

2013/14 to meet the anticipated overspend in Bed and Breakfast expenditure. 

This meant putting other potential homelessness projects on hold. Action taken 

to reduce the increase in Bed and Breakfast costs was effective, and not all of 

the additional resource allowed was utilised. It is requested to carry forward a 

proportion of the under-spend to meet the cost of 3 specific projects. These are 

an additional grant to Cambridge Cyrenians of £5k for an older persons project, 

additional grant to Wintercomfort of  £20k for the learning and development 

service and an increase in Assessment and Support Officer hours on a 

temporary basis to reduce registration waiting times on the housing register.

37,930 D Greening

2

CLG Homelessness Grants - Carry forward of these external grant balances are 

requested to allow existing commitments in respect of homelessness prevention 

work and support activity to be fully met. This grant is no longer ring-fenced, but 

local authorities are strongly encouraged to utilise the resource for the purpose it 

was awarded, with the Head of Strategic Housing having delegated authority to 

approve spending across the spending review period.

17,870 D Greening

Director of Environment 

4

Housing Standards - Carry forward of the underspend within the Empty Homes 

Officer budget due to the delay in appointment of the two year fixed term 

contracted post.

17,450 Y O'Donnell

5
Housing Standards - Carry forward CPO revenue budget to continue to progress 

CPOs that did not progress in 2013/14.
7,000 Y O'Donnell

6

Energy Officer - Carry forward of funding into 2015/16 for the purchase of a 

thermal camera for which a budget was allocated in 2013/14. The goods were 

not delivered by 31/3 so a budget carry forward of £3,750 is requested.

3,750 Y O'Donnell

Total Carry Forward Requests for Housing Portfolio / Community Services 

Scrutiny Committee
84,000

General Fund Housing Portfolio / Housing Committee

Revenue Budget 2013/14 - Carry Forward Requests

Request to Carry Forward Budgets from 2013/14 into 2014/15 and future years

Page 82



Appendix C

Item Final Request Contact

£

Director of Environment 

1
Urban Design & Conservation - To complete the remaining priorities of the 

Pro-Active Conservation work programme.
15,990 Patsy Dell

2
Urban Design & Conservation - To complete the approved programme of 

works relating to the Historic Signage Project.
12,620 Patsy Dell

3

Green Deal - The start of the Home Energy Officer (Green Deal) fixed term 

post was delayed. The contract started in July 2013 not April 2013 as 

planned. 

5,180 Jo Dicks

Total Carry Forward Requests for Planning & Climate Change Portfolio / 

Environment Scrutiny Committee
33,790

Request to Carry Forward Budgets from 2013/14 into 2014/15

Planning & Climate Change / Environment Scrutiny Committee

Revenue Budget 2013/14 - Carry Forward Requests

Page 83



Appendix C

Item

Final

Request Contact

£

Bereavement Services

1

To complete an unfinished path in the gardens of remembrance. 

Initial works are complete but the contractor needs to provide the 

top dressing material.

1,980 Tracy Lawrence

Total Carry Forward Requests for Public Places Portfolio / 

Environment Scrutiny Committee
1,980

Request to Carry Forward Budgets from 2013/14 into 2014/15 and future years

Public Places / Community Services Scrutiny Committee

Revenue Budget 2013/14 - Carry Forward Requests

Page 84



Appendix C

Item Amount Contact

£

Director of Customer & Community Services

1

Carry forwards are requested in respect of grants awarded in 

2013/14 for Footpath Lighting in Derby Road / Flamsteed Road 

(£5,000) and the North City Girl's Group (£2,960), where payments 

were not claimed by March 2014, but where the recipient will be 

expecting to receive the funding once the project reaches an 

appropriate stage.

7,960 L Kilkelly

2

A carry forward of funding for domestic violence co-ordination work 

is requested to meet any costs arising from domestic violence and 

homicide on behalf of the Community Safety Partnership.

6,160 L Kilkelly

3

A carry forward is requested in respect of the balance of funding for 

training and facilitation of the Neighbourhood Resolution Panel 

Volunteers, where a small outlay is ensuring that input is 

appropriately made by a number of volunteers in this key area.

3,200 L Kilkelly

Total Carry Forward Requests for Strategy Portfolio / Strategy 

& Resources Scrutiny Committee
17,320

Request to Carry Forward Budgets from 2013/14 into 2014/15 and future years

Strategy Portfolio / Strategy & Resources Scrutiny Committee

Revenue Budget 2013/14 - Carry Forward Requests

Page 85



Appendix D - Overview

Committee
Original

Budget

Final

Budget
Outturn Variance Rephase

Over / 

(Under) 

Spend

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Community Services: 

Community Wellbeing 2,859 1,895 1,410 (485) 452 (33)

Public Places (moved from Environment) 2,443 2,310 1,505 (805) 820 15

Total Community Services 5,302 4,205 2,915 (1,290) 1,272 (18)

Environment:

Environmental & Waste Services 2,041 1,568 1,080 (488) 410 (78)

Planning & Climate Change 2,359 1,566 1,081 (485) 484 (1)

Total Environment 4,400 3,134 2,161 (973) 894 (79)

Housing
Housing (moved from Customer & 

Community Services)
575 75 42 (33) 34 1

Strategy & Resources:
Customer Services and Resources 3,375 2,966 1,425 (1,541) 1,459 (82)
Strategy 0 469 36 (433) 436 3
Total Strategy & Resources 3,375 3,435 1,461 (1,974) 1,895 (79)

Total Committees 13,652 10,849 6,579 (4,270) 4,095 (175)

Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 26,889 28,840 16,674 (12,166) 11,733 (433)

General Fund Housing 765 916 848 (68) 0 (68)

Total for Housing Capital Investment 

Programme
27,654 29,756 17,522 (12,234) 11,733 (501)

Total Capital Plan 41,306 40,605 24,101 (16,504) 15,828 (676)

Changes between original and final budgets may be made to reflect:

 - rephased capital spend from the previous financial year
 - rephased capital spend into future financial periods
 - approval of new capital programmes and projects

and are detailed and approved:

 - in the June/July committee cycle (outturn reporting and carry forward requests)
 - in September (as part of the Mid-Year Financial Review, MFR)
 - in the January committee cycle (as part of the Budget Setting Report, BSR)
 - via technical adjustments/virements throughout the year

Overview (Committees and Housing Capital Investment Plan) / 

Strategy & Resources Scrutiny Committee

Capital Budget 2013/14 - Outturn

Page 86



C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 W

e
ll

b
e
in

g
 P

o
rt

fo
li

o
 /

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e
 

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 D

C
a
p

it
a
l

R
e
f

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

O
ri

g
in

a
l

B
u

d
g

e
t

2
0
1
3
/1

4

F
in

a
l

B
u

d
g

e
t

2
0
1
3
/1

4

O
u

tt
u

rn

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 -

 

O
u

tt
u

rn

c
o

m
p

a
re

d
 t

o
 

F
in

a
l

B
u

d
g

e
t

R
e
-p

h
a
s
e

S
p

e
n

d

O
v
e
r 

/ 

(U
n

d
e
r)

S
p

e
n

d

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 E

x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 /
 C

o
m

m
e
n

ts

S
C

3
6
1

D
is

a
b
le

d
 A

c
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 F

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 -

 

G
u
ild

h
a
ll 

H
a
lls

S
 B

a
g
n
a
ll

5
5

4
5

2
8

(1
7
)

0
(1

7
)

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 o
n
 h

e
a
ri
n
g
 e

n
h
a
n
c
e
m

e
n
t 

s
y
s
te

m
 a

n
d
 s

ta
g
e
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
1
4
. 

Im
p
ro

v
e
d
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 v

ia
 G

u
ild

h
a
ll 

P
la

c
e
 h

a
s
 

n
o
t 

b
e
e
n
 r

e
s
o
lv

e
d
 a

n
d
 f

u
n
d
in

g
 w

ill
 b

e
 

re
tu

rn
e
d
 t

o
 R

e
s
e
rv

e
s

S
C

4
3
6
 

P
y
e
's

 P
it
c
h
 R

e
c
 F

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 (

S
1
0
6
)

I 
R

o
s
s

7
3

1
8

4
(1

4
)

5
(9

)
F

in
a
l 
w

o
rk

s
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 Q

2
 2

0
1
4
/1

5

S
C

4
4
0

K
in

g
 G

e
o
rg

e
 V

 R
e
c
 G

ro
u
n
d
 

(c
o
n
s
o
lid

a
te

d
) 

(S
1
0
6
)

T
 W

o
o
lla

m
s

0
1
6

1
7

1
0

1
P

ro
je

c
t 

C
o
m

p
le

te
.

S
C

4
5
0

C
h
a
n
g
in

g
 F

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 a

t 
C

h
e
rr

y
 

H
in

to
n
 V

ill
a
g
e
 C

e
n
tr

e
 (

S
1
0
6
)

I 
R

o
s
s

2
2

2
0

0
0

P
ro

je
c
t 

C
o
m

p
le

te
.

S
C

4
6
0

K
in

g
s
 H

e
d
g
e
s
 L

e
a
rn

e
rs

 P
o
o
l 

E
le

c
tr

ic
it
y

I 
R

o
s
s

2
0

1
0

0
(1

0
)

1
0

0

W
o
rk

in
g
 u

p
 w

it
h
 S

p
la

s
h
p
a
d
 p

ro
je

c
t 

to
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 n

e
w

 p
o
w

e
r 

fe
e
d
 t

o
 s

p
la

s
h
p
a
d
 

fe
a
tu

re
s
.

S
C

4
7
6

W
a
te

r 
P

la
y
 A

re
a
 A

b
b
e
y
 P

a
d
d
lin

g
 

P
o
o
l 
(S

1
0
6
)

I 
R

o
s
s

1
3
0

1
2
2

0
(1

2
2
)

1
2
2

0
C

o
n
tr

a
c
to

rs
 o

n
s
it
e
 c

re
a
ti
n
g
 a

 n
e
w

 

s
p
la

s
h
p
a
d
 -

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
4

S
C

4
7
7

C
o
le

ri
d
g
e
 P

a
d
d
lin

g
 P

o
o
l 

E
n
h
a
n
c
e
m

e
n
t 

(S
1
0
6
)

I 
R

o
s
s

9
0

9
7

0
(9

7
)

9
7

0
C

o
n
tr

a
c
to

rs
 o

n
s
it
e
 c

re
a
ti
n
g
 a

 n
e
w

 

s
p
la

s
h
p
a
d
 t

o
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
1
4

2
0
1
3
/1

4
 C

a
p

it
a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

P
o

s
it

io
n

 (
£
 '
0
0
0
s
)

Page 87



C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 W

e
ll

b
e
in

g
 P

o
rt

fo
li

o
 /

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e
 

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 D

C
a
p

it
a
l

R
e
f

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

O
ri

g
in

a
l

B
u

d
g

e
t

2
0
1
3
/1

4

F
in

a
l

B
u

d
g

e
t

2
0
1
3
/1

4

O
u

tt
u

rn

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 -

 

O
u

tt
u

rn

c
o

m
p

a
re

d
 t

o
 

F
in

a
l

B
u

d
g

e
t

R
e
-p

h
a
s
e

S
p

e
n

d

O
v
e
r 

/ 

(U
n

d
e
r)

S
p

e
n

d

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 E

x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 /
 C

o
m

m
e
n

ts

2
0
1
3
/1

4
 C

a
p

it
a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

P
o

s
it

io
n

 (
£
 '
0
0
0
s
)

S
C

4
7
8

W
a
te

r 
P

la
y
 A

re
a
 K

in
g
s
 H

e
d
g
e
s
 

"P
u
lle

y
" 

(S
1
0
6
)

I 
R

o
s
s

1
3
0

1
2
2

0
(1

2
2
)

1
2
2

0
C

o
n
tr

a
c
to

rs
 o

n
s
it
e
 c

re
a
ti
n
g
 a

 n
e
w

 

s
p
la

s
h
p
a
d
 t

o
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
1
4

S
C

4
9
3
 

J
e
s
u
s
 G

re
e
n
 T

e
n
n
is

 C
o
u
rt

 (
S

1
0
6
)

A
 P

re
s
to

n
0

3
0

(3
)

0
(3

)
P

ro
je

c
t 

c
o
m

p
le

te

S
C

5
1
2

H
o
b
b
s
 P

a
v
ili

o
n
 R

e
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n
t 

(S
1
0
6
)

I 
R

o
s
s

3
0

3
4

1
5

(1
9
)

1
0

(9
)

M
in

o
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 a

d
d
it
io

n
s
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 

o
u
t 

fo
r 

e
x
te

n
d
e
d
 u

s
e
 o

f 
m

u
lt
ip

u
rp

o
s
e
 

ro
o
m

 o
u
t 

o
f 

s
e
a
s
o
n
 -

 f
in

a
l 
w

o
rk

s
 t

o
 b

e
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 s

h
o
rt

ly
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 r

e
m

a
in

in
g
 

a
llo

c
a
te

d
 f

u
n
d
s
 b

e
in

g
 r

e
tu

rn
e
d
 t

o
 S

e
c
ti
o
n
 

1
0
6
 f

u
n
d
s

S
C

5
2
2

N
e
w

 S
o
u
n
d
 E

q
u
ip

m
e
n
t 

a
t 

C
a
m

b
ri
d
g
e
 C

o
rn

 E
x
c
h
a
n
g
e

D
 K

a
y
e

2
0
0

1
6
0

1
6
7

7
0

7
P

ro
je

c
t 

C
o
m

p
le

te
.

S
C

5
4
5

P
a
rk

s
id

e
 P

o
o
l 
V

a
ri
a
b
le

 S
p
e
e
d
 

D
ri
v
e

I 
R

o
s
s

0
9

9
0

0
0

P
ro

je
c
t 

C
o
m

p
le

te
.

S
C

5
5
6
 

A
rb

u
ry

 C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 C

e
n
tr

e
 (

S
1
0
6
)

T
 W

o
o
lla

m
s

8
0

8
0

8
0

0
0

0
P

ro
je

c
t 

C
o

m
p
le

te
.

S
C

5
6
0

G
u
ild

h
a
ll 

&
 C

o
rn

 E
x
c
h
a
n
g
e
 C

a
p
 

S
c
h
e
m

e
s
 R

O
 A

R
9

S
 B

a
g
n
a
ll

1
5
0

7
0

1
9

(5
1
)

5
1

0

G
u
ild

h
a
ll 

K
it
c
h
e
n
 p

ro
je

c
t 

u
n
d
e
rw

a
y
 -

 

a
w

a
it
in

g
 l
is

te
d
 b

u
ild

in
g
 c

o
n
s
e
n
t.

 

S
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

C
o
rn

 E
x
c
h
a
n
g
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

e
le

m
e
n
ts

 w
e
re

 r
e
fu

s
e
d
 l
is

te
d
 b

u
ild

in
g
 

c
o
n
s
e
n
t.

 A
lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 s

c
h
e
m

e
s
 a

re
 n

o
w

 

b
e
in

g
 w

o
rk

e
d
 u

p
.

Page 88



C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 W

e
ll

b
e
in

g
 P

o
rt

fo
li

o
 /

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e
 

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 D

C
a
p

it
a
l

R
e
f

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

O
ri

g
in

a
l

B
u

d
g

e
t

2
0
1
3
/1

4

F
in

a
l

B
u

d
g

e
t

2
0
1
3
/1

4

O
u

tt
u

rn

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 -

 

O
u

tt
u

rn

c
o

m
p

a
re

d
 t

o
 

F
in

a
l

B
u

d
g

e
t

R
e
-p

h
a
s
e

S
p

e
n

d

O
v
e
r 

/ 

(U
n

d
e
r)

S
p

e
n

d

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 E

x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 /
 C

o
m

m
e
n

ts

2
0
1
3
/1

4
 C

a
p

it
a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

P
o

s
it

io
n

 (
£
 '
0
0
0
s
)

S
C

5
6
3

C
o
rn

 E
x
c
h
a
n
g
e
 H

e
a
ti
n
g
 M

g
t 

S
y
s
te

m
S

 B
a
g
n
a
ll

2
0

2
0

0
(2

0
)

2
0

0
W

o
rk

 n
o
w

 c
o
m

p
le

te
 a

w
a
it
in

g
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 o

f 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
.

S
C

5
7
8
 

B
o
x
 O

ff
ic

e
 T

ic
k
e
ti
n
g
 S

o
ft

w
a
re

N
 J

o
n
e
s

0
6
4

7
7

1
3

(1
3
)

0

T
w

o
 y

e
a
r 

p
a
y
m

e
n
t 

p
la

n
 f

o
r 

n
e
w

 C
o
rn

 

E
x
c
h
a
n
g
e
 B

o
x
 O

ff
ic

e
 s

y
s
te

m
. 

2
n
d
 l
u
m

p
 

s
u
m

 d
u
e
 t

o
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
in

 J
u
ly

 2
0
1
4
. 

B
u
d
g
e
t 

re
p
h
a
s
e
d
 b

a
c
k
 i
n
to

 2
0
1
3
/1

4
 f

ro
m

 

2
0
1
4
/1

5

S
C

5
8
2

C
o
rn

 E
x
c
h
a
n
g
e
 F

ro
n
t 

o
f 

H
o
u
s
e
 

T
o
ile

ts
S

 B
a
g
n
a
ll

0
5
3

5
3

0
0

0
P

ro
je

c
t 

C
o
m

p
le

te
.

A
c
ti
v
e
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 S

m
a
ll 

P
ro

je
c
ts

 (
u
n
d
e
r 

£
1
5
k
) 

(S
1
0
6
)

A
 P

re
s
to

n
0

0
2

2
0

2
T

o
 b

e
 f

u
n
d
e
d
 f

ro
m

 S
e
c
ti
o
n
 1

0
6

9
8
0

9
2
5

4
7
3

(4
5
2
)

4
2
4

(2
8
)

P
V

5
2
6

C
la

y
 F

a
rm

 C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 C

e
n
tr

e
 -

 

P
h
a
s
e
 1

 (
S

1
0
6
)

A
 C

a
rt

e
r

4
7
1

1
1
8

3
3
7

2
1
9

(2
1
9
)

0
T

h
is

 b
u
d
g
e
t 

a
n
d
 c

o
s
t 

is
 f

o
r 

th
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
 

s
ta

g
e
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
w

 C
e
n
tr

e
.

9
4
4

1
1
8

3
3
7

2
1
9

(2
1
9
)

0

P
R

0
2
5

N
e
w

 T
o
w

n
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

C
a
p
it
a
l 
G

ra
n
ts

 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 (

S
1
0
6
)

T
 W

o
o
lla

m
s

6
9

2
0

0
(2

0
)

2
0

0

£
2
0
k
 a

llo
c
a
te

d
 t

o
 R

o
c
k
 R

o
a
d
 L

ib
ra

ry
 -

 

c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 w

ill
 s

lip
 i
n
to

 A
p
ri
l.
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 1

0
 O

c
t 

2
0
1
3
 a

g
re

e
d
 t

o
 

e
n
d
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 a

n
d
 d

is
tr

ib
u
te

 r
e
m

a
in

in
g
 

fu
n
d
s
 t

o
 A

re
a
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 d

e
v
o
lv

e
d
 

b
u
d
g
e
ts

T
o

ta
l 

P
ro

v
is

io
n

s

T
o

ta
l 

P
ro

je
c
ts

Page 89



C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 W

e
ll

b
e
in

g
 P

o
rt

fo
li

o
 /

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e
 

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 D

C
a
p

it
a
l

R
e
f

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

O
ri

g
in

a
l

B
u

d
g

e
t

2
0
1
3
/1

4

F
in

a
l

B
u

d
g

e
t

2
0
1
3
/1

4

O
u

tt
u

rn

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 -

 

O
u

tt
u

rn

c
o

m
p

a
re

d
 t

o
 

F
in

a
l

B
u

d
g

e
t

R
e
-p

h
a
s
e

S
p

e
n

d

O
v
e
r 

/ 

(U
n

d
e
r)

S
p

e
n

d

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 E

x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 /
 C

o
m

m
e
n

ts

2
0
1
3
/1

4
 C

a
p

it
a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

P
o

s
it

io
n

 (
£
 '
0
0
0
s
)

P
R

0
2
6

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

G
ra

n
ts

 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 (

S
1
0
6
)

T
 W

o
o
lla

m
s

3
0
0

3
6
6

2
6
6

(1
0
0
)

1
0
0

0

£
1
0
0
k
 a

llo
c
a
te

d
 t

o
 S

ta
n
e
s
fi
e
ld

 S
c
o
u
t 

H
u
t,

 

c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 w

ill
 s

lip
 i
n
to

 2
0
1
4
/1

5
. 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 1

0
 O

c
t 

2
0
1
3
 a

g
re

e
d
 t

o
 e

n
d
 f

u
tu

re
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

a
n
d
 d

is
tr

ib
u
te

 r
e
m

a
in

in
g
 f

u
n
d
s
 t

o
 A

re
a
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 d

e
v
o
lv

e
d
 b

u
d
g
e
ts

P
R

0
3
0
c

In
s
ta

lla
ti
o
n
 o

f 
A

d
u
lt
 G

y
m

 

E
q
u
ip

m
e
n
t 

n
e
x
t 

to
 D

it
to

n
 F

ie
ld

s
 

P
la

y
 A

re
a
 (

S
1
0
6
)

I 
R

o
s
s

3
0

3
0

2
9

(1
)

0
(1

)
P

ro
je

c
t 

C
o
m

p
le

te
.

P
R

0
3
1
b

B
M

X
 t

ra
c
k
 n

e
x
t 

to
 B

ro
w

n
's

 F
ie

ld
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 C

e
n
tr

e
 (

S
1
0
6
)

A
 W

ils
o
n

3
0

3
0

1
(2

9
)

2
9

0

A
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

re
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 r

e
a
p
p
ra

is
a
l 
o
f 

th
e
 

s
c
h
e
m

e
 i
s
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 f

o
r 

A
re

a
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 i
n
 

J
u
ly

. 
 A

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 

p
o
s
t 

e
le

c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

e
x
p
lo

ra
ti
o
n
 o

f 

m
it
ig

a
ti
o
n
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 n

e
e
d
e
d
.

P
R

0
3
1
c

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 N

u
n
's

 W
a
y
 

S
k
a
te

 P
a
rk

 (
S

1
0
6
)

A
 W

ils
o
n

6
5

6
5

9
(5

6
)

5
6

0

W
o
rk

 h
a
s
 n

o
w

 c
o
m

m
e
n
c
e
d
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 a

p
p
ro

v
a
l.
 

R
e
p
h
a
s
in

g
 i
s
 t

h
e
re

fo
re

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 f

o
r 

th
e
 

s
c
h
e
m

e
 t

o
 b

e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 i
n
 2

0
1
4
/1

5

P
R

0
3
2
a

C
o
n
v
e
rs

io
n
 o

f 
H

a
n
o
v
e
r 

C
o
u
rt

/P
ri
n
c
e
s
s
 C

o
u
rt

 L
a
u
n
d
ry

 i
n
to

 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 M

e
e
ti
n
g
 S

p
a
c
e
 

(S
1
0
6
)

T
 W

o
o
lla

m
s

1
0
0

1
0
0

9
8

(2
)

2
0

A
ll 

c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 w

o
rk

s
 n

o
w

 c
o
m

p
le

te
, 

c
re

d
it
 f

ro
m

 c
o
n
tr

a
c
to

rs
 t

o
 f

o
llo

w
. 

R
e
m

a
in

in
g
 a

m
o
u
n
t 

to
 b

e
 s

p
e
n
t 

o
n
 

e
q
u
ip

m
e
n
t.

P
R

0
3
2
b

T
ri
m

 T
ra

il/
O

u
td

o
o
r 

F
it
n
e
s
s
 

E
q
u
ip

m
e
n
t 

a
t 

N
ig

h
ti
n
g
a
le

 A
v
e
 R

e
c
 

(S
1
0
6
)

I 
R

o
s
s

3
0

3
0

3
0

0
0

0
P

ro
je

c
t 

C
o
m

p
le

te
.

Page 90



C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 W

e
ll

b
e
in

g
 P

o
rt

fo
li

o
 /

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e
 

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 D

C
a
p

it
a
l

R
e
f

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

O
ri

g
in

a
l

B
u

d
g

e
t

2
0
1
3
/1

4

F
in

a
l

B
u

d
g

e
t

2
0
1
3
/1

4

O
u

tt
u

rn

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 -

 

O
u

tt
u

rn

c
o

m
p

a
re

d
 t

o
 

F
in

a
l

B
u

d
g

e
t

R
e
-p

h
a
s
e

S
p

e
n

d

O
v
e
r 

/ 

(U
n

d
e
r)

S
p

e
n

d

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 E

x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 /
 C

o
m

m
e
n

ts

2
0
1
3
/1

4
 C

a
p

it
a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

P
o

s
it

io
n

 (
£
 '
0
0
0
s
)

P
R

0
3
2
d

C
h
e
rr

y
 H

in
to

n
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 C

e
n
tr

e
 -

S
ta

g
e
 1

 (
a
t 

C
h
e
rr

y
 H

in
to

n
 L

ib
ra

ry
) 

(S
1
0
6
)

T
 W

o
o
lla

m
s

9
9

1
1

2
0

2
A

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
£
2
k
 o

f 
S

1
0
6
 f

u
n
d
in

g
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 

S
e
p
t 

1
3
. 

P
ro

je
c
t 

n
o
w

 c
o
m

p
le

te
.

P
R

0
3
3
d

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 s

p
a
c
e
 a

t 

C
e
n
tr

e
 3

3
 (

S
1
0
6
)

T
 W

o
o
lla

m
s

1
2

1
2

1
2

0
0

0
P

ro
je

c
t 

C
o
m

p
le

te
.

P
R

0
3
3
e

G
re

a
t 

S
t 

M
a
ry

's
 C

h
u
rc

h
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

(S
1
0
6
)

T
 W

o
o
lla

m
s

0
5
0

5
0

0
0

0
P

ro
je

c
t 

C
o
m

p
le

te
.

P
R

0
3
4
g

G
ra

n
t 

fo
r 

e
x
te

n
s
io

n
 t

o
 S

t 

A
n
d
re

w
's

 H
a
ll 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 

d
e
d
ic

a
te

d
 s

p
a
c
e
 f

o
r 

a
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

c
a
fe

 (
S

1
0
6
)

T
 W

o
o
lla

m
s

1
4
0

4
0

0
(4

0
)

4
0

0

T
e
n
d
e
rs

 f
o
r 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 c
a
m

e
 i
n
 h

ig
h
e
r 

th
a
n
 

o
ri
g
in

a
lly

 a
n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
, 

S
t 
A

n
d
re

w
s
 

re
n
e
g
o
ti
a
te

d
 w

it
h
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
to

rs
 w

h
ic

h
 

p
u
s
h
e
d
 b

a
c
k
 s

ta
rt

 d
a
te

 t
o
 2

0
1
4
/1

5
.

P
R

0
3
4
h

G
ra

n
t 

to
 t

h
e
 C

h
e
rr

y
 T

re
e
s
 C

e
n
tr

e
 

R
e
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n
t 

(S
1
0
6
)

T
 W

o
o
lla

m
s

5
0

5
0

4
4

(6
)

0
(6

)

P
ro

je
c
t 

C
o
m

p
le

te
. 

R
e
m

a
in

in
g
 £

6
k
 t

o
 b

e
 

d
is

tr
ib

u
te

d
 t

o
 a

re
a
 c

o
m

m
it
te

e
 d

e
v
o
lv

e
d
 

b
u
d
g
e
ts

P
R

0
3
4
i

G
ra

n
t 

to
 t

h
e
 C

e
n
tr

e
 a

t 
S

t 
P

a
u
l's

 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

- 
P

h
a
s
e
 3

 (
S

1
0
6
)

T
 W

o
o
lla

m
s

5
0

5
0

5
0

0
0

0
P

ro
je

c
t 

C
o
m

p
le

te
.

9
3
5

8
5
2

6
0
0

(2
5
2
)

2
4
7

(5
)

2
,8

5
9

1
,8

9
5

1
,4

1
0

(4
8
5
)

4
5
2

(3
3
)

T
o

ta
l 

fo
r 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 &

 W
e
ll

b
e
in

g

T
o

ta
l 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s

Page 91



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 D

C
a
p

it
a

l 

R
e
f

D
e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

L
e

a
d

 O
ff

ic
e

r

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0

1
3

/1
4

F
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0

1
3

/1
4

O
u

tt
u

rn

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
 -

 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

c
o

m
p

a
re

d
 t

o
 

F
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t

R
e
p

h
a

s
e

 

S
p

e
n

d

O
v
e

r 
/ 

(U
n

d
e

r)
 

S
p

e
n

d

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
 E

x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 /
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

S
C

5
8

6
W

id
e

 A
re

a
 N

e
tw

o
rk

 P
ro

je
c
t

T
 A

lle
n

0
3

6
7

(2
9

)
2

9
0

P
ro

je
c
t 

is
 o

n
 t

a
rg

e
t 

fo
r 

c
o

m
p

le
ti
o

n
 b

y
 t

h
e

 

e
n

d
 o

f 
th

e
 2

0
1

4
/1

5
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
y
e

a
r.

S
C

5
7

9
O

ff
ic

e
 A

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y

F
 B

a
rr

a
tt

0
2

3
1

1
2

4
(1

0
7

)
1

0
7

0

B
u

d
g

e
t 

o
f 

£
1

0
7

k
 n

e
e

d
s
 t

o
 b

e
 r

e
-p

h
a

s
e

d
 t

o
 

th
e

 2
0

1
4

/1
5

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
y
e

a
r 

to
 r

e
fl
e

c
t 

th
e

 

a
d

ju
s
te

d
 s

c
h

e
d

u
le

 f
o

r 
re

fu
rb

is
h

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 

G
u

ild
h

a
ll 

re
c
e

p
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 M
a

n
d

e
la

 H
o

u
s
e

 

tr
a

in
in

g
 r

o
o

m
. 

 P
ro

je
c
t 

o
v
e

ra
ll 

re
m

a
in

s
 o

n
 

ta
rg

e
t 

to
 v

a
c
a

te
 L

io
n

 H
o

u
s
e

 a
t 

th
e

 

te
rm

in
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 L

e
a

s
e

 o
n

 5
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 

2
0

1
4

. 
  

T
h

e
 s

e
p

a
ra

ti
o

n
 w

o
rk

s
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 t
o

 

fa
c
ili

ta
te

 t
h

e
 l
e

tt
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 A

n
n

e
x
e

 a
t 

th
e

 

G
u

ild
h

a
ll 

a
re

 e
s
ti
m

a
te

d
 t

o
 s

ta
rt

 t
o

w
a

rd
s
 t

h
e

 

e
n

d
 o

f 
2

0
1

4
 w

it
h

 r
e

n
ta

l 
in

c
o

m
e

 c
o

m
in

g
 o

n
 

s
tr

e
a

m
 a

s
 s

c
h

e
d

u
le

d
 i
n

 2
0

1
6

/1
7

.

S
C

5
8

0
E

le
c
to

ra
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 S

o
ft

w
a

re
G

 C
lif

t
0

2
5

0
(2

5
)

0
(2

5
)

S
c
h

e
m

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

. 
 F

o
llo

w
in

g
 a

 

p
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
a

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
w

it
h

 F
e

n
la

n
d

 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
C

o
u

n
c
il,

 a
 d

e
c
is

io
n

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 m

a
d

e
 

to
 r

e
ta

in
 t

h
e

 e
x
is

ti
n

g
 s

o
ft

w
a

re
 p

ro
v
id

e
r.

  

T
h

e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 n

e
e

d
 f

o
r 

th
e

 i
n

it
ia

l 
c
a

p
it
a

l 
o

u
tl
a

y
 

re
q

u
ir

e
d

 w
h

e
n

 c
h

a
n

g
in

g
 s

u
p

p
lie

r.

S
C

5
0

8
E

-B
e

n
e

fi
ts

A
 C

o
le

0
5

2
(3

)
0

(3
)

S
c
h

e
m

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

. 
 T

h
e

re
 w

ill
 b

e
 n

o
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 

e
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 o

n
 t

h
is

 s
c
h

e
m

e
.

S
C

5
5

2
L

o
c
a

lis
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

T
a

x
 -

 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 C

o
s
ts

A
 C

o
le

0
1

1
1

(1
0

)
1

0
0

T
h

e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

is
 n

o
w

 s
c
h

e
d

u
le

d
 t

o
 b

e
 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 2

0
1

4
/1

5
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
y
e

a
r.

  

T
h

e
 r

e
m

a
in

in
g

 b
u

d
g

e
t 

o
f 

£
1

0
k
 i
s
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 f
o

r 

fi
n

a
l 
p

ro
je

c
t 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t/

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 c
o

s
ts

.

S
C

3
9

1
L

a
 M

im
o

s
a

 P
u

n
ti
n

g
 S

ta
ti
o

n
P

 D
o

g
g

e
tt

0
1

0
8

(2
)

2
0

F
in

a
l 
in

s
ta

lla
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 p

o
n

to
o

n
 w

a
s
 d

e
la

y
e

d
 

fo
r 

a
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
e

x
te

rn
a

l 
re

a
s
o

n
s
. 

 

In
s
ta

lla
ti
o

n
 i
s
 d

u
e

 t
o

 t
a

k
e

 p
la

c
e

 d
u

ri
n

g
 

J
u

n
e

/J
u

ly
 2

0
1

4
 w

h
e

n
 t

h
e

 b
a

la
n

c
in

g
 s

u
m

 o
f 

£
2

k
 w

ill
 b

e
 p

a
id

.

C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 &

 R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

 P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 /
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 &

 R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

 S
c

ru
ti

n
y
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e

C
a
p

it
a

l 
B

u
d

g
e

t 
2

0
1

3
/1

4
 -

 O
u

tt
u

rn

Page 92



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 D

C
a
p

it
a

l 

R
e
f

D
e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

L
e

a
d

 O
ff

ic
e

r

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0

1
3

/1
4

F
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0

1
3

/1
4

O
u

tt
u

rn

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
 -

 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

c
o

m
p

a
re

d
 t

o
 

F
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t

R
e
p

h
a

s
e

 

S
p

e
n

d

O
v
e

r 
/ 

(U
n

d
e

r)
 

S
p

e
n

d

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
 E

x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 /
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 &

 R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

 P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 /
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 &

 R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

 S
c

ru
ti

n
y
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e

C
a
p

it
a

l 
B

u
d

g
e

t 
2

0
1

3
/1

4
 -

 O
u

tt
u

rn

S
C

3
3

5
C

u
s
to

m
e

r 
A

c
c
e

s
s
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 -

 

IT
 W

o
rk

s
tr

e
a

m
J
 J

a
m

e
s

0
2

0
0

(2
0

)
0

(2
0

)
S

c
h

e
m

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

. 
 T

h
e

re
 w

ill
 b

e
 n

o
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 

e
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 o

n
 t

h
is

 s
c
h

e
m

e
.

S
C

5
3

8
In

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 K

io
s
k
s
 t

o
 b

e
 

In
s
ta

lle
d

 i
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
A

re
a

J
 J

a
m

e
s

0
2

5
2

6
1

0
1

S
c
h

e
m

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

. 
 M

in
o

r 
o

v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 o

f 

£
1

k
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 f

in
a

n
c
e

d
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 C

u
s
to

m
e

r 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 C

e
n

tr
e

's
 r

e
p

a
ir

s
 a

n
d

 r
e

n
e

w
a

ls
 f

u
n

d
.

S
C

5
5

5
S

ie
m

e
n

s
 M

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

 

C
o
n

tr
a

c
t

J
 J

a
m

e
s

0
6

7
3

3
(3

4
)

2
(3

2
)

B
u

d
g

e
t 

o
f 

£
2

k
 i
s
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 f
o

r 
fi
n

a
l 
s
c
h

e
m

e
 

c
o

s
ts

. 
 T

h
e

 r
e

m
a

in
in

g
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
o

f 
£

3
2

k
 i
s
 n

o
t 

re
q

u
ir

e
d

 a
s
 t

h
e

 s
w

it
c
h

b
o

a
rd

 r
e

p
la

c
e

m
e

n
t 

e
le

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 p
ro

je
c
t 

w
ill

 n
o

t 
ta

k
e

 p
la

c
e

 d
u

e
 

to
 s

o
ft

w
a

re
 i
n

c
o

m
p

a
ti
b

ili
ty

 i
s
s
u

e
s
. 

S
C

5
8

7

T
e

le
p

h
o

n
e

 P
a

y
m

e
n

ts
 

U
p
g

ra
d

e
 a

n
d

 O
n
lin

e
 

P
a

y
m

e
n

ts
 C

o
n

te
n

t 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

S
y
s
te

m
 (

C
M

S
)

J
 J

a
m

e
s

0
2

7
1

0
(1

7
)

1
7

0

O
n

lin
e

 p
a

y
m

e
n

ts
 i
n

s
ta

lla
ti
o

n
 w

a
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 

in
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

4
. 

T
e

le
p

h
o

n
e

 p
a

y
m

e
n

ts
 

u
p

g
ra

d
e

 i
s
 s

c
h

e
d

u
le

d
 t

o
 t

a
k
e

 p
la

c
e

 d
u

ri
n

g
 

J
u

n
e

/J
u

ly
 2

0
1

4
.

S
C

5
5

9
C

B
id

 S
o

ft
w

a
re

K
 J

a
y

0
3

0
(3

)
0

(3
)

S
c
h

e
m

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

. 
 T

h
e

re
 w

ill
 b

e
 n

o
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 

e
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 o

n
 t

h
is

 s
c
h

e
m

e
.

S
C

4
2

9
T

e
le

p
h

o
n

y
 S

y
s
te

m
 U

p
g

ra
d

e
J
 N

ig
h

ti
n

g
a

le
3

5
0

0
0

0
0

B
u

d
g

e
t 

o
f 

£
3

5
k
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 r

e
-p

h
a

s
e

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 

2
0

1
4

/1
5

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
y
e

a
r.

S
C

5
4

1
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

C
 R

e
p

la
c
e

m
e

n
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
J
 N

ig
h

ti
n

g
a

le
0

1
1

6
1

1
6

0
0

0
S

c
h

e
m

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

.

Page 93



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 D

C
a
p

it
a

l 

R
e
f

D
e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

L
e

a
d

 O
ff

ic
e

r

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0

1
3

/1
4

F
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0

1
3

/1
4

O
u

tt
u

rn

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
 -

 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

c
o

m
p

a
re

d
 t

o
 

F
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t

R
e
p

h
a

s
e

 

S
p

e
n

d

O
v
e

r 
/ 

(U
n

d
e

r)
 

S
p

e
n

d

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
 E

x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 /
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 &

 R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

 P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 /
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 &

 R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

 S
c

ru
ti

n
y
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e

C
a
p

it
a

l 
B

u
d

g
e

t 
2

0
1

3
/1

4
 -

 O
u

tt
u

rn

S
C

3
6

2
L

ig
h

ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 P
o

w
e

r 
in

 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 R

o
o

m
s

J
 S

to
c
k
e

r
0

1
4

0
(1

4
)

1
4

0

L
ig

h
ti
n

g
 d

e
s
ig

n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

. 
 

H
o
w

e
v
e

r,
 t

h
e

 t
y
p

e
 o

f 
lig

h
ti
n

g
 f

it
ti
n

g
s
 t

h
a

t 

h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 s
u

g
g

e
s
te

d
 d

o
 n

o
t 

m
e

e
t 

th
e

 

L
is

ti
n

g
 O

ff
ic

e
r'
s
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
b

ro
n

z
e

 

c
o

lo
u

re
d

 l
ig

h
ti
n

g
 f

it
ti
n

g
s
.

W
h

e
n

 t
h

e
 b

ro
n

z
e

 c
o

lo
u

re
d

 l
ig

h
ti
n

g
 f

it
ti
n

g
s
 

h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 s
o

u
rc

e
d

, 
M

e
m

b
e

rs
' a

p
p

ro
v
a

l 
w

ill
 

n
e

e
d

 t
o

 b
e

 o
b

ta
in

e
d

 b
e

fo
re

 c
o

m
m

e
n

c
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 i
n

s
ta

lla
ti
o

n
.

3
5

5
9

0
3

2
7

(2
6

3
)

1
8

1
(8

2
)

P
V

5
5

4
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

L
a

n
d

 a
t 

C
la

y
 

F
a

rm
A

 C
a

rt
e

r
1

,5
0

2
7

8
3

3
0

3
(4

8
0

)
4

8
0

0

T
h

e
 c

o
s
ts

 i
n

c
u

rr
e

d
 a

re
 i
n

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t 

o
f 

th
e

 

C
o
lla

b
o

ra
ti
o

n
 A

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
w

it
h

 C
o

u
n

tr
y
s
id

e
 

P
ro

p
e

rt
ie

s
. 

R
a
te

 o
f 

in
v
o

ic
e

s
 f

ro
m

 

C
o
u

n
tr

y
s
id

e
 P

ro
p

e
rt

ie
s
 r

e
la

te
 d

ir
e

c
tl
y
 t

o
 r

a
te

 

o
f 

h
o

u
s
e

-b
u

ild
in

g
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 v

a
ri

a
b

le
 a

n
d

 

b
e

y
o

n
d

 o
u

r 
c
o

n
tr

o
l.
 T

a
rg

e
t 

c
o

m
p

le
ti
o

n
 d

a
te

 

is
 l
o

n
g

 s
to

p
 d

a
te

 i
n

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 e

q
u

a
te

s
 t

o
 f

o
u

r 
y
e

a
rs

 f
ro

m
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 a
p

p
ro

v
a

l.

P
V

1
9

2

D
e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

L
a

n
d

 o
n

 t
h

e
 

N
o
rt

h
 S

id
e

 o
f 

K
in

g
s
 H

e
d

g
e

s
 

R
o
a

d

P
 D

o
g

g
e

tt
1

7
6

1
2

4
1

2
8

4
(4

)
0

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 f

o
r 

th
e

 2
0

1
3

/1
4

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
y
e

a
r 

w
a

s
 m

a
rg

in
a

lly
 h

ig
h

e
r 

th
a

n
 t

h
e

 e
s
ti
m

a
te

 

s
u

p
p

lie
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 m
a

n
a

g
in

g
 a

g
e

n
t.

 

T
o

ta
l 

P
ro

je
c

ts

Page 94



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 D

C
a
p

it
a

l 

R
e
f

D
e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

L
e

a
d

 O
ff

ic
e

r

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0

1
3

/1
4

F
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0

1
3

/1
4

O
u

tt
u

rn

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
 -

 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

c
o

m
p

a
re

d
 t

o
 

F
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t

R
e
p

h
a

s
e

 

S
p

e
n

d

O
v
e

r 
/ 

(U
n

d
e

r)
 

S
p

e
n

d

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
 E

x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 /
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 &

 R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

 P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 /
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 &

 R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

 S
c

ru
ti

n
y
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e

C
a
p

it
a

l 
B

u
d

g
e

t 
2

0
1

3
/1

4
 -

 O
u

tt
u

rn

P
V

2
2

1
b

L
io

n
 Y

a
rd

 -
 C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n
 t

o
 

W
o

rk
s
 -

 P
h

a
s
e

 2
P

 D
o

g
g

e
tt

6
1

7
6

1
7

1
6

7
(4

5
0

)
4

5
0

0

T
h

is
 i
s
 a

 s
c
h

e
m

e
 w

h
e

re
b

y
 w

e
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
te

 

2
5

%
 o

f 
th

e
 o

v
e

ra
ll 

c
o

s
t 

o
f 

th
e

 c
a

p
it
a

l 
w

o
rk

s
 

a
t 

L
io

n
 Y

a
rd

. 
 T

h
e

 P
h

a
s
e

 2
 c

a
p

it
a

l 
w

o
rk

s
 

w
e

re
 n

o
t 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 2

0
1

3
/1

4
 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
y
e

a
r.

 T
h

e
 r

e
m

a
in

in
g

 b
u

d
g

e
t 

th
e

re
fo

re
 n

e
e

d
s
 t

o
 b

e
 r

e
-p

h
a

s
e

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 

2
0

1
4

/1
5

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
y
e

a
r.

P
V

3
2

9
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 D

o
c
u

m
e

n
t 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

(D
IP

 &
 E

D
R

M
)

J
 N

ig
h

ti
n

g
a

le
3

6
2

5
0

3
3

(1
7

)
1

7
0

D
e
la

y
s
 i
n

 w
o

rk
 b

e
in

g
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 b
y
 a

 t
h

ir
d

 

p
a

rt
y
 s

u
p

p
lie

r 
m

e
a

n
s
 t

h
a

t 
s
o

m
e

 p
ro

je
c
t 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 w

ill
 n

o
w

 b
e

 f
in

a
lis

e
d

 d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 

2
0

1
4

/1
5

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
y
e

a
r.

2
,6

5
7

1
,5

7
4

6
3

1
(9

4
3

)
9

4
3

0

P
R

0
2

3
A

d
m

in
 B

u
ild

in
g

s
 A

s
s
e

t 

R
e
p

la
c
e

m
e

n
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
W

 B
a

rf
ie

ld
4

0
1

6
4

9
6

(6
8

)
6

8
0

T
h

e
 A

d
m

in
 B

u
ild

in
g

s
 A

s
s
e

t 
R

e
p

la
c
e

m
e

n
t 

w
o

rk
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 w
ill

 b
e

 r
e

v
ie

w
e

d
 d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 

2
0

1
4

/1
5

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
y
e

a
r 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
 

o
f 

n
e

w
 c

o
n

d
it
io

n
 s

u
rv

e
y
s
.

P
R

0
2

4

C
o
m

m
e

rc
ia

l 
P

ro
p

e
rt

ie
s
 

A
s
s
e

t 
R

e
p

la
c
e

m
e

n
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e

W
 B

a
rf

ie
ld

4
3

2
8

2
1

1
1

2
9

(2
9

)
0

T
h

e
 C

o
m

m
e

rc
ia

l 
P

ro
p

e
rt

ie
s
 A

s
s
e

t 

R
e
p

la
c
e

m
e

n
t 

w
o

rk
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 w
ill

 b
e

 

re
v
ie

w
e

d
 d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 2

0
1

4
/1

5
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
y
e

a
r 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
 o

f 
n

e
w

 c
o

n
d

it
io

n
 

s
u

rv
e

y
s
.

T
o

ta
l 

P
ro

v
is

io
n

s

Page 95



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 D

C
a
p

it
a

l 

R
e
f

D
e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

L
e

a
d

 O
ff

ic
e

r

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0

1
3

/1
4

F
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0

1
3

/1
4

O
u

tt
u

rn

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
 -

 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

c
o

m
p

a
re

d
 t

o
 

F
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t

R
e
p

h
a

s
e

 

S
p

e
n

d

O
v
e

r 
/ 

(U
n

d
e

r)
 

S
p

e
n

d

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
 E

x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 /
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 &

 R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

 P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 /
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 &

 R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

 S
c

ru
ti

n
y
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e

C
a
p

it
a

l 
B

u
d

g
e

t 
2

0
1

3
/1

4
 -

 O
u

tt
u

rn

P
R

0
2

0
IC

T
 I

n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
J
 N

ig
h

ti
n

g
a

le
2

1
1

5
5

6
2

6
0

(2
9

6
)

2
9

6
0

A
 m

a
jo

r 
p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 h

a
s
 s

u
ff

e
re

d
 

fr
o

m
 d

e
la

y
s
 f

ro
m

 t
h

ir
d

 p
a

rt
y
 s

u
p

p
lie

rs
 a

n
d

 i
s
 

b
e

in
g

 r
e

-p
la

n
n

e
d

. 
 T

h
e

 p
la

n
n

e
d

 w
o

rk
 w

a
s
 

n
o

t 
c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 e
n

d
 o

f 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

4
, 

s
o

 

a
 c

a
rr

y
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 o
f 

b
u

d
g

e
t 

o
f 

£
2

9
6

k
 t

o
 t

h
e

 

2
0

1
4

/1
5

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
y
e

a
r 

is
 r

e
q

u
e

s
te

d
.

6
8

3
8

0
2

4
6

7
(3

3
5

)
3

3
5

0

3
,3

7
5

2
,9

6
6

1
,4

2
5

(1
,5

4
1

)
1

,4
5

9
(8

2
)

C
h
a

n
g

e
s
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 o

ri
g

in
a

l 
a

n
d

 f
in

a
l 
b

u
d

g
e

ts
 m

a
y
 b

e
 m

a
d

e
 i
n

 A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 D

 t
o

 r
e

fl
e

c
t:

 -
 r

e
p

h
a

s
e

d
 c

a
p

it
a

l 
s
p

e
n

d
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
y
e

a
r

 -
 r

e
p

h
a

s
e

d
 c

a
p

it
a

l 
s
p

e
n

d
 i
n

to
 f

u
tu

re
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
p

e
ri

o
d

s
 -

 a
p

p
ro

v
a

l 
o

f 
n

e
w

 c
a

p
it
a

l 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

je
c
ts

a
n

d
 a

re
 d

e
ta

ile
d

 a
n

d
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

d
:

 -
 i
n

 t
h

e
 J

u
n

e
/J

u
ly

 c
o

m
m

it
te

e
 c

y
c
le

 (
o

u
tt

u
rn

 r
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 a

n
d

 c
a

rr
y
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 r
e

q
u

e
s
ts

)
 -

 i
n

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

(a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 M
id

-Y
e

a
r 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
R

e
v
ie

w
, 

M
F

R
)

 -
 i
n

 t
h

e
 J

a
n

u
a

ry
 c

o
m

m
it
te

e
 c

y
c
le

 (
a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

S
e

tt
in

g
 R

e
p

o
rt

, 
B

S
R

)
 -

 v
ia

 t
e

c
h

n
ic

a
l 
a

d
ju

s
tm

e
n

ts
/v

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

o
u

t 
th

e
 y

e
a

r

T
o

ta
l 

fo
r 

C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 &

 R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

 

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

T
o

ta
l 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s

Page 96



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 D

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

ta
l 
&

 W
a
s
te

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 P

o
rt

fo
li
o

 /
 E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e

C
a
p

it
a
l 

R
e

f
D

e
s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e

r
O

ri
g

in
a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t

F
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t

O
u

tt
u

rn

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 -

 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

c
o

m
p

a
re

d
 t

o
 

F
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t

R
e
-p

h
a
s
e

 

S
p

e
n

d

O
v
e
r 

/ 
(U

n
d

e
r)

 

S
p

e
n

d
V

a
ri

a
n

c
e
 E

x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 /
 C

o
m

m
e
n

ts

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

S
C

4
2
3

R
e
c
y
c
lin

g
 B

in
s
 f

o
r 

F
la

ts
J
 R

o
b
e

rt
s
o
n

0
2

5
2

9
4

0
4

 
S

lig
h
tl
y
 o

v
e
rs

p
e
n

t 
a
s
 m

o
re

 f
la

ts
 t

h
a

n
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 

n
e

e
d

e
d

 c
h

a
n

g
in

g
 t

o
 c

o
m

m
in

g
le

d
 b

in
s
.

S
C

5
3
1

In
 C

a
b

 T
e
c
h
n
o

lo
g
y
 f

o
r 

T
ra

d
e

 

W
a
s
te

 S
e
rv

ic
e

M
 P

a
rs

o
n
s

5
0

3
8

2
8

(1
0
)

1
0

0
 

P
h
a
s
e
 3

 -
 d

e
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

to
 T

ra
d
e

 v
e
h
ic

le
s
 i
s
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
. 

  
T

h
e
 r

e
m

a
in

in
g
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 i
s
 s

e
t 

a
s
id

e
 f

o
r 

s
y
s
te

m
s
 i
n
te

g
ra

ti
o
n
. 

 T
h
is

 c
a
n
n

o
t 

p
ro

c
e
e
d

 u
n

ti
l 
w

e
 

a
re

 c
le

a
r 

o
n
 t

h
e
 w

a
s
te

 s
h
a
re

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

p
la

n
 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 f
u

tu
re

 u
s
e

 o
f 

th
e

 C
o

n
te

n
d

e
r 

s
y
s
te

m
 

S
C

5
6
6

R
a
p
id

 R
e
s
p
o
n

s
e
 T

e
a
m

 -
 

V
e
h
ic

le
 &

 E
q
u
ip

m
e
n
t

A
 A

s
h

7
5

7
5

7
2

(3
)

0
(3

)

P
ro

je
c
t 

is
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 -

 V
e
h
ic

le
, 

tr
a
ile

r 
a
n

d
 e

q
u
ip

m
e
n

t 

d
e
liv

e
re

d
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
3

. 
R

a
p

id
 R

e
s
p
o
n

s
e
 T

e
a
m

 

n
o
w

 f
u
lly

 o
p

e
ra

ti
o
n
a

l

S
C

5
6
7

P
u
rc

h
a
s
e
 o

f 
S

tr
e
e
t 

C
le

a
n

s
in

g
 V

e
h
ic

le
s
 &

 P
la

n
t

B
 C

a
rt

e
r

7
0

7
0

4
2

(2
8
)

2
8

0
 

T
h
e
 v

e
h
ic

le
 w

a
s
 o

rd
e
re

d
 b

u
t 

n
o

t 
d
e

liv
e
re

d
 a

s
 a

t 

3
1

/0
3

/1
4

 a
n

d
 a

s
 a

 r
e

s
u

lt
 a

 r
e

-p
h

a
s
e

 o
f 

th
e

 r
e

m
a

in
in

g
 

b
u

d
g

e
t 

is
 r

e
q

u
e

s
te

d
.

S
C

5
8
5

F
le

e
tm

a
s
te

r 
S

o
ft

w
a
re

M
 P

a
rs

o
n
s

0
1

5
1

5
0

0
0

 

N
e
w

 F
le

e
t 

M
a
n
a

g
e
m

e
n
t 

s
y
s
te

m
 l
iv

e
 f

ro
m

 2
4
/3

/2
0

1
4
. 

 

P
ro

je
c
t 

s
p
e
n

d
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 u

n
d
e
r 

te
rm

s
 o

f 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
t.

 

In
te

rf
a
c
e
 w

it
h
 O

ra
c
le

 c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 i
n
 t

e
s
ti
n
g
. 

 S
o
m

e
 I
T

 

te
e

th
in

g
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 t

o
 o

v
e
rc

o
m

e
 a

n
d
 t

h
e

n
 p

ro
c
e
e
d

 t
o
 

o
p
e

ra
ti
o
n
a

l 
h
a

n
d
o

v
e
r.

1
9

5
2

2
3

1
8

6
(3

7
)

3
8

1
 

P
R

0
1
6

P
u
b
lic

 C
o
n
v
e
n
ie

n
c
e
s

B
 C

a
rt

e
r

7
7

8
3

3
7

7
4

(2
6
3

)
2

6
3

0
 

A
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 

d
e

la
y
 t

o
 t

h
e

 c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 L

io
n
 Y

a
rd

 

R
e
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

je
c
t,

 c
a
u
s
e
d
 p

ri
m

a
ri

ly
 b

y
 d

e
s
ig

n
 

a
n
d

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 i
s
s
u
e
s
, 

h
a

s
 l
e
d
 t

o
 t

h
is

 

u
n
d

e
rs

p
e
n

d
. 

T
h
e
 w

o
rk

 w
a
s
 o

ri
g
in

a
lly

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
d
 t

o
 

b
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 b

y
 3

1
s
t 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
4

, 
b
u

t 
w

a
s
 f

in
a
lly

 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 t

w
o
 m

o
n
th

s
 b

e
h
in

d
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
. 

T
h
e
 

u
n
d

e
rs

p
e
n

d
 i
s
 a

ls
o
 r

e
q
u

e
s
te

d
 t

o
 b

e
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 t
o

 

2
0

1
5

/1
6

, 
b

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 t

h
e

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 f

o
r 

d
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
th

e
 

S
ilv

e
r 

S
t 

T
o
ile

t 
P

ro
je

c
t 

th
a
t 

is
 n

o
t 

p
la

n
n

e
d
 t

o
 

c
o
m

m
e
n
c
e
 c

o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 u

n
ti
l 
th

e
 a

u
tu

m
n
 o

f 
2
0

1
5
.

7
7

8
3

3
7

7
4

(2
6
3

)
2

6
3

0
 

C
a
p

it
a
l 
B

u
d

g
e
t 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
 -

 O
u

tt
u

rn

T
o

ta
l 

P
ro

je
c
ts

T
o

ta
l 

P
ro

v
is

io
n

s

Page 97



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 D

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

ta
l 
&

 W
a
s
te

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 P

o
rt

fo
li
o

 /
 E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e

C
a
p

it
a
l 

R
e

f
D

e
s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e

r
O

ri
g

in
a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t

F
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t

O
u

tt
u

rn

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 -

 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

c
o

m
p

a
re

d
 t

o
 

F
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t

R
e
-p

h
a
s
e

 

S
p

e
n

d

O
v
e
r 

/ 
(U

n
d

e
r)

 

S
p

e
n

d
V

a
ri

a
n

c
e
 E

x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 /
 C

o
m

m
e
n

ts

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

C
a
p

it
a
l 
B

u
d

g
e
t 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
 -

 O
u

tt
u

rn

P
R

0
1
7

V
e
h
ic

le
 R

e
p

la
c
e
m

e
n
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
D

 C
o
x

8
6

4
8

0
5

6
3

5
(1

7
0

)
9

0
(8

0
)

T
h
re

e
 v

e
h
ic

le
s
 w

e
re

 o
rd

e
re

d
 b

u
t 

n
o

t 
d
e

liv
e
re

d
 i
n
 

1
3
/1

4
 s

o
 a

 b
u

d
g
e

t 
re

p
h

a
s
e
 o

f 
£
9

0
k
 t

o
 2

0
1

4
/1

5
 i
s
 

re
q
u

e
s
te

d
. 
A

 t
o
ta

l 
u
n

d
e
rs

p
e
n

d
 o

f 
£
8

0
k
 h

a
s
 r

e
s
u
lt
e
d

 

o
n
 p

u
rc

h
a
s
e
s
 o

f 
a
ll 

o
th

e
r 

v
e
h
ic

le
s
.

P
R

0
2
8

L
it
te

r 
B

in
 R

e
p

la
c
e
m

e
n
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
B

 C
a
rt

e
r

1
2

5
1

3
8

1
1

9
(1

9
)

1
9

0
 

P
h
a
s
e
 t

w
o
 o

f 
4
 y

e
a
r 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
  

c
o
m

p
le

te
d

P
R

0
3
5

W
a
s
te

 &
 R

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 B

in
s
 -

 

N
e
w

 D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 (
S

1
0
6

)
J
 R

o
b
e

rt
s
o
n

7
9

6
5

6
6

1
0

1
 

1
,0

6
8

1
,0

0
8

8
2

0
(1

8
8

)
1

0
9

(7
9
)

2
,0

4
1

1
,5

6
8

1
,0

8
0

(4
8
8

)
4

1
0

(7
8
)

C
h
a
n

g
e
s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n

 o
ri

g
in

a
l 
a
n

d
 f

in
a
l 
b
u

d
g
e

ts
 m

a
y
 b

e
 m

a
d
e

 i
n
 A

p
p
e

n
d
ic

e
s
 D

 t
o
 r

e
fl
e
c
t:

 -
 r

e
p
h

a
s
e
d
 c

a
p
it
a
l 
s
p
e
n

d
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 f

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r

 -
 r

e
p
h

a
s
e
d
 c

a
p
it
a
l 
s
p
e
n

d
 i
n
to

 f
u
tu

re
 f

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
p
e

ri
o
d
s

 -
 a

p
p
ro

v
a
l 
o
f 

n
e
w

 c
a
p
it
a
l 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
je

c
ts

a
n
d

 a
re

 d
e
ta

ile
d
 a

n
d

 a
p

p
ro

v
e
d
:

 -
 i
n
 t

h
e
 J

u
n
e

/J
u
ly

 c
o
m

m
it
te

e
 c

y
c
le

 (
o
u
tt

u
rn

 r
e
p
o

rt
in

g
 a

n
d

 c
a
rr

y
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 r
e
q
u

e
s
ts

)

 -
 i
n
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

(a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 M
id

-Y
e
a
r 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
R

e
v
ie

w
, 

M
F

R
)

 -
 i
n
 t

h
e
 J

a
n
u

a
ry

 c
o
m

m
it
te

e
 c

y
c
le

 (
a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 B
u
d
g

e
t 

S
e
tt

in
g
 R

e
p
o

rt
, 

B
S

R
)

 -
 v

ia
 t

e
c
h
n
ic

a
l 
a
d

ju
s
tm

e
n
ts

/v
ir

e
m

e
n
ts

 t
h
ro

u
g
h

o
u
t 

th
e

 y
e
a
r

T
o

ta
l 

fo
r 

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

ta
l 

&
 W

a
s
te

 S
e
rv

ic
e

s
 P

o
rt

fo
li

o

T
o

ta
l 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s

Page 98



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 D

C
a
p

it
a
l

R
e
f

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

L
e
a
d

O
ff

ic
e
r

O
ri

g
in

a
l

B
u

d
g

e
t

F
in

a
l

B
u

d
g

e
t

O
u

tt
u

rn

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 -

 

O
u

tt
u

rn

c
o

m
p

a
re

d

to
 F

in
a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t

R
e
-p

h
a
s
e

S
p

e
n

d

O
v
e
r 

/ 

(U
n

d
e
r)

S
p

e
n

d

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 E

x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 /
 C

o
m

m
e
n

ts

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

P
V

1
6
3

C
o
m

p
u
ls

o
ry

 P
u
rc

h
a
s
e
 

O
rd

e
rs

 (
C

P
O

s
)

R
 R

a
y

4
0
0

0
0

0
0

0
 

C
P

O
 a

c
ti
o
n
 o

n
 3

 p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 i
s
 

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 p

u
rs

u
e
d
. 

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
t 

to
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

fu
n
d
s
 a

re
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 i
f 

w
e
 c

h
o
o
s
e
 t

o
 

c
o
m

p
u
ls

o
ry

 p
u
rc

h
a
s
e
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s

P
V

3
8
6

H
M

O
s
 -

 M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

O
rd

e
rs

R
 R

a
y

5
0

0
0

0
0

0
 

N
o
 H

M
O

 I
n
te

ri
m

 M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

O
rd

e
rs

 a
re

 b
e
in

g
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 a

t 

p
re

s
e
n
t.

  
T

h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 

re
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
t 

to
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

fu
n
d
s
 a

re
 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 i
f 

w
e
 d

e
c
id

e
 t

o
 s

e
rv

e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

o
rd

e
rs

 o
n
 H

M
O

 

la
n
d
lo

rd
s

P
V

4
1
4

P
ro

p
e
rt

y
 A

c
c
re

d
it
a
ti
o
n
 

S
c
h
e
m

e
R

 R
a
y

2
5

7
8

1
0

1
 

S
c
h
e
m

e
 C

o
m

p
le

te

P
V

5
2
7

E
n
e
rg

y
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 p

ri
v
a
te

 

s
e
c
to

r 
h
o
u
s
in

g

J
 D

ic
k
s

0
4
8

2
3

(2
5
)

2
5

0
 

T
h
e
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 f

u
lly

 f
u
n
d
e
d
 a

 

lim
it
e
d
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

in
s
ta

lla
ti
o
n
s
, 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
s
in

g
 t

h
o
s
e
 o

ri
g
in

a
lly

 a
llo

c
a
te

d
 

fu
n
d
in

g
 i
n
 c

o
n
ju

n
c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 C

E
R

T
 

w
h
o
 m

is
s
e
d
 o

u
t 

th
is

, 
h
a
s
 a

c
c
o
u
n
te

d
 

fo
r 

2
3
K

 o
f 

s
p
e
n
d
 i
n
 t

h
is

 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 

y
e
a
r.

 T
h
e
re

 i
s
 n

o
w

 d
im

in
is

h
in

g
 

d
e
m

a
n
d
 f

o
r 

th
is

 w
o
rk

 a
n
d
 E

x
e
c
. 

C
llr

 

fo
r 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 h

a
s
 d

ir
e
c
te

d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 

re
m

a
in

in
g
 f

u
n
d
in

g
 b

e
 t

a
rg

e
te

d
 a

t 

e
x
e
m

p
la

r 
G

re
e
n
 D

e
a
l 
re

tr
o
fi
ts

 t
o
 a

 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

th
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 G

re
e
n
 D

e
a
l 
P

io
n
e
e
r 

P
la

c
e
s
 P

ro
je

c
t.

 T
h
re

e
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
 

h
a
v
e
 n

o
w

 b
e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 

w
o
rk

 q
u
o
te

d
 f

o
r 

b
u
t 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 w

o
rk

 t
o
 

e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
 l
e
g
a
lit

y
 o

f 
th

e
 s

e
le

c
ti
o
n
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 i
s
 n

o
w

 u
n
lik

e
ly

 

b
e
fo

re
 t

h
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
J
u
n
e
 2

0
1
4

G
e
n

e
ra

l 
F

u
n

d
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 P

o
rt

fo
li

o
 /

 H
o

u
s
in

g
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e

C
a
p

it
a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
 -

 O
u

tt
u

rn

Page 99



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 D

C
a
p

it
a
l

R
e
f

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

L
e
a
d

O
ff

ic
e
r

O
ri

g
in

a
l

B
u

d
g

e
t

F
in

a
l

B
u

d
g

e
t

O
u

tt
u

rn

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 -

 

O
u

tt
u

rn

c
o

m
p

a
re

d

to
 F

in
a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t

R
e
-p

h
a
s
e

S
p

e
n

d

O
v
e
r 

/ 

(U
n

d
e
r)

S
p

e
n

d

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 E

x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 /
 C

o
m

m
e
n

ts

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

G
e
n

e
ra

l 
F

u
n

d
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 P

o
rt

fo
li

o
 /

 H
o

u
s
in

g
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e

C
a
p

it
a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
 -

 O
u

tt
u

rn

P
V

5
2
9

U
p
g
ra

d
e
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 a

t 
1
2
5
 

N
e
w

m
a
rk

e
t 

R
o
a
d

D
 G

re
e
n
in

g
1
0
0

2
0

1
1

(9
)

9
0
 

W
o
rk

 t
o
 u

p
g
ra

d
e
 t

h
e
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 a

t 
1
2
5
 

N
e
w

m
a
rk

e
t 

R
o
a
d
 i
s
 n

o
w

 u
n
d
e
rw

a
y
, 

b
u
t 

w
ill

 n
o
t 

b
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 u

n
ti
l 
2
0
1
4
/1

5
 

w
h
e
n
 t

h
e
 r

e
m

a
in

d
e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 1

2
0
,0

0
0
 

to
ta

l 
b
u
d
g
e
t 

is
 a

llo
c
a
te

d
. 

R
e
p
h
a
s
in

g
 

o
f 

th
e
 b

a
la

n
c
e
 o

f 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

in
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
 i
s
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t

o
 f

a
c
ili

ta
te

 

c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
je

c
t.

5
7
5

7
5

4
2

(3
3
)

3
4

1

5
7
5

7
5

4
2

(3
3
)

3
4

1

C
h
a
n
g
e
s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
a
n
d
 f

in
a
l 
b
u
d
g
e
ts

 m
a
y
 b

e
 m

a
d
e
 i
n

 A
p
p
e
n
d
ic

e
s
 D

 a
n
d
 E

 t
o
 r

e
fl
e
c
t:

 -
 r

e
p
h
a
s
e
d
 c

a
p
it
a
l 
s
p
e
n
d
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r

 -
 r

e
p
h
a
s
e
d
 c

a
p
it
a
l 
s
p
e
n
d
 i
n
to

 f
u
tu

re
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
p
e
ri
o
d
s

 -
 a

p
p
ro

v
a
l 
o
f 

n
e
w

 c
a
p
it
a
l 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
je

c
ts

a
n
d
 a

re
 d

e
ta

ile
d
 a

n
d
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
:

 -
 i
n
 t

h
e
 J

u
n
e
/J

u
ly

 c
o
m

m
it
te

e
 c

y
c
le

 (
o
u
tt

u
rn

 r
e
p
o
rt

in
g
 a

n
d
 c

a
rr

y
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 r
e
q
u
e
s
ts

)

 -
 i
n
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

(a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 M

id
-Y

e
a
r 

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
R

e
v
ie

w
, 

M
F

R
)

 -
 i
n
 t

h
e
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 c
o
m

m
it
te

e
 c

y
c
le

 (
a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 B

u
d
g
e
t 

S
e
tt

in
g
 R

e
p
o
rt

, 
B

S
R

)

 -
 v

ia
 t

e
c
h
n
ic

a
l 
a
d
ju

s
tm

e
n
ts

/v
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 

th
e
 y

e
a
r

T
o

ta
l 

fo
r 

H
o

u
s
in

g

T
o

ta
l 

P
ro

v
is

io
n

s

Page 100



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 D

C
a
p

it
a
l 

R
e
f

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t

2
0
1
3
/1

4

F
in

a
l 
B

u
d

g
e
t 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
O

u
tt

u
rn

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 -

 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

c
o

m
p

a
re

d
 t

o
 

F
in

a
l 
B

u
d

g
e
t

R
e
-p

h
a
s
e
 

S
p

e
n

d

O
v
e
r 

/ 

(U
n

d
e
r)

 

S
p

e
n

d

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 E

x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 /
 C

o
m

m
e
n

ts

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

S
C

4
1
6

U
N

If
o
rm

 e
-c

o
n
s
u
lt
e
e
 A

c
c
e
s
s
 

M
o
d
u
le

P
 B

o
u
c
h
e
r

1
0

0
0

0
0

0
 

S
c
h
e
m

e
 c

/f
 t
o
 2

0
1
4
/1

5
 -

 a
s
 d

e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

u
p
o
n
 I
D

O
X

 D
M

S
 U

p
g
ra

d
e
 t
o
 V

4
. 
S

e
e
 

S
C

4
1
7
.

S
C

4
1
7

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

U
N

If
o
rm

 

S
y
s
te

m
P

 B
o
u
c
h
e
r

6
6

9
3

(3
)

0
 

P
ro

je
c
t 
c
o
m

p
le

te
d
. 
O

v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 o

f 
£
3
k
 

re
la

ti
n
g
 t
o
 d

a
ta

 c
o
n
v
e
rs

io
n
 c

o
s
ts

 t
o
 b

e
 

m
e
t 
fr

o
m

 S
C

4
1
6
 U

n
if
o
rm

 e
-c

o
n
s
u
lt
e
e
 

p
ro

je
c
t 
fu

n
d
in

g
 (

a
s
 s

a
m

e
 f

u
n
d
in

g
).

S
C

5
0
5

L
a
n
d
 E

x
p
lo

re
r 

S
o
ft

w
a
re

/3
D

 

M
o
d
e
lli

n
g
 E

S
R

I

G
 

R
ic

h
a
rd

s
o
n

1
0

0
3

3
(3

)
0
 

P
ro

je
c
t 
c
o
m

p
le

te
. 
 B

a
la

n
c
e
 o

f 
p
ro

je
c
t 

fu
n
d
in

g
 i
n
 2

0
1
4
/1

5
.

S
C

5
0
6

R
e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 
G

ra
n
d
 A

rc
a
d
e
 

C
a
r 

P
a
rk

 P
a
y
 o

n
 F

o
o
t 

M
a
c
h
in

e
s

S
 C

le
a
ry

3
8
3

3
4
7

2
6
4

(8
3
)

8
3

0
 

M
a
in

 i
n
s
ta

lla
ti
o
n
 w

a
s
 i
n
 O

c
t 
2
0
1
3
. 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
tu

a
l 
is

s
u
e
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 

re
s
o
lv

e
d
 a

n
d
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 

d
a
te

 o
f 

fu
ll 

in
s
ta

lla
ti
o
n
 n

o
w

 J
u
n
e
 2

0
1
4
.

S
C

5
1
6

R
e
lo

c
a
ti
o
n
 G

ra
n
d
 A

rc
a
d
e
 

C
a
r 

P
a
rk

 C
o
n
tr

o
l 
R

o
o
m

S
 C

le
a
ry

0
1

0
(1

)
0

(1
)

P
ro

je
c
t 
c
o
m

p
le

te
.

S
C

5
3
5

R
e
p
a
ir
s
 t
o
 G

ra
ft

o
n
 W

e
s
t 
C

a
r 

P
a
rk

S
 C

le
a
ry

1
5
0

1
8
0

1
6
6

(1
4
)

1
4

0
 

R
e
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n
t 
is

 c
o
m

p
le

te
. 
D

e
c
is

io
n
 

re
f 

C
C

T
V

 i
n
te

g
ra

ti
o
n
 t
o
 b

e
 c

o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 

a
lo

n
g
s
id

e
 b

u
d
g
e
t 
a
llo

c
a
ti
o
n
. 

S
C

5
5
7

G
ra

n
d
 A

rc
a
d
e
 A

n
n
e
x
 C

a
r 

P
a
rk

 -
 D

ra
in

a
g
e
 G

u
lle

y
s

S
 C

le
a
ry

5
2

5
2

5
2

0
0

0
 

P
ro

je
c
t 
c
o
m

p
le

te
.

S
C

5
6
9

T
o
p
o
g
ra

p
h
ic

a
l 
S

u
rv

e
y
 o

f 

M
u
lt
i-
S

to
re

y
 C

a
r 

P
a
rk

s
P

 N
e
c
u
s

3
0

2
5

1
7

(8
)

8
0
 

F
in

a
l 
s
u
rv

e
y
s
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
, 
re

v
ie

w
in

g
 w

it
h
 

C
it
y
 A

rc
h
it
e
c
t 
to

 c
h
e
c
k
 b

e
fo

re
 

a
p
p
ro

v
in

g
 p

a
y
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

in
v
o
ic

e
s

S
C

5
7
0

E
s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 
S

tr
u
c
tu

ra
l/
H

o
ld

in
g
 

R
e
p
a
ir
s
 -

 P
a
rk

 S
tr

e
e
t 
M

u
lt
i-

S
to

re
y
 c

a
r 

p
a
rk

S
 C

le
a
ry

1
0
0

1
3
9

1
3
1

(8
)

8
0
 

Y
e
a
r 

1
 o

f 
3
 y

e
a
r 

p
ro

je
c
t 
c
o
m

p
le

te
. 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 p

la
n
n
e
d
 w

it
h
 p

ro
je

c
t 
m

a
n
a
g
e
r 

&
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
to

 a
rr

a
n
g
e
 y

e
a
r 

2
 

s
c
h
e
d
u
le

 o
f 

w
o
rk

s
.

S
C

5
7
1

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
o
f 

IT
 S

y
s
te

m
 t
o
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

In
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 L

e
v
y

S
 S

a
u
n
d
e
rs

2
0

0
0

0
0

0
 

B
u
d
g
e
t 
re

p
h
a
s
e
d
 t
o
 2

0
1
4
/1

5
.

P
la

n
n

in
g

 a
n

d
 C

li
m

a
te

 C
h

a
n

g
e

 P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 /
 E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

S
c

ru
ti

n
y
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e

 

2
0

1
3

/1
4

 C
a

p
it

a
l 
B

u
d

g
e

t 
P

o
s

it
io

n

Page 101



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 D

C
a
p

it
a
l 

R
e
f

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t

2
0
1
3
/1

4

F
in

a
l 
B

u
d

g
e
t 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
O

u
tt

u
rn

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 -

 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

c
o

m
p

a
re

d
 t

o
 

F
in

a
l 
B

u
d

g
e
t

R
e
-p

h
a
s
e
 

S
p

e
n

d

O
v
e
r 

/ 

(U
n

d
e
r)

 

S
p

e
n

d

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 E

x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 /
 C

o
m

m
e
n

ts

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

P
la

n
n

in
g

 a
n

d
 C

li
m

a
te

 C
h

a
n

g
e

 P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 /
 E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

S
c

ru
ti

n
y
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e

 

2
0

1
3

/1
4

 C
a

p
it

a
l 
B

u
d

g
e

t 
P

o
s

it
io

n

S
C

5
7
7

U
n
d
e
rg

ro
u
n
d
 I
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
ti
o
n
s
 

a
t 
P

a
rk

 S
t 
M

u
lt
i 
S

to
re

y
 C

a
r 

P
a
rk

P
 N

e
c
u
s

1
6
5

6
0

5
7

(3
)

3
0
 

W
o
rk

s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
, 
h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

£
2
k
 

re
te

n
ti
o
n
 p

a
y
a
b
le

 i
n
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
4
.

9
2
6

8
1
0

6
9
9

(1
1
1
)

1
1
0

(1
)

P
R

0
1
4

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
S

a
fe

ty
 F

u
n
d

D
 F

o
le

y
-

N
o
rm

a
n

1
6

0
0

0
0
 

F
u
n
d
in

g
 t
ra

n
s
fe

rr
e
d
 t
o
 S

C
5
8
4
 P

a
rk

e
r'
s
 

P
ie

c
e
 L

ig
h
ti
n
g
 P

ro
je

c
t 
(P

u
b
lic

 P
la

c
e
s
 

p
o
rt

fo
lio

)

1
6

0
0

0
0

0

P
V

0
0
7

C
y
c
le

w
a
y
s

A
 P

re
s
to

n
3
5
0

1
8
6

1
0
3

(8
3
)

8
3

0
 

F
in

a
l 
c
o
s
ts

 f
o
r 

D
o
w

n
h
a
m

's
 L

a
n
e
 w

e
re

 

lo
w

e
r 

th
a
n
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
, 
a
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
 f

o
r 

u
n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 o

f 
£
2
3
k
. 
D

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

th
e
 

J
e
s
u
s
 G

re
e
n
 F

o
o
tp

a
th

 w
o
rk

s
 d

e
la

y
e
d
 

p
e
n
d
in

g
 C

o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 o

f 

b
ri
d
g
e
 m

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 w

o
rk

s
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 n

o
w

 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 o

n
c
e
 t
h
e
 a

d
ja

c
e
n
t 
d
ra

in
a
g
e
 

w
o
rk

s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
. 
L
e
g
a
l 

a
d
v
ic

e
 b

e
in

g
 s

o
u
g
h
t 
o
v
e
r 

o
p
ti
m

u
m

 

m
e
a
n
s
 o

f 
p
ro

c
u
ri
n
g
 w

o
rk

s
.

T
o

ta
l 
P

ro
je

c
ts

T
o

ta
l 
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
s

Page 102



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 D

C
a
p

it
a
l 

R
e
f

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t

2
0
1
3
/1

4

F
in

a
l 
B

u
d

g
e
t 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
O

u
tt

u
rn

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 -

 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

c
o

m
p

a
re

d
 t

o
 

F
in

a
l 
B

u
d

g
e
t

R
e
-p

h
a
s
e
 

S
p

e
n

d

O
v
e
r 

/ 

(U
n

d
e
r)

 

S
p

e
n

d

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 E

x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 /
 C

o
m

m
e
n

ts

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

P
la

n
n

in
g

 a
n

d
 C

li
m

a
te

 C
h

a
n

g
e

 P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 /
 E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

S
c

ru
ti

n
y
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e

 

2
0

1
3

/1
4

 C
a

p
it

a
l 
B

u
d

g
e

t 
P

o
s

it
io

n

P
V

0
1
8
 

B
u
s
 S

h
e
lt
e
rs

A
 P

re
s
to

n
1
9
2

2
5
0

1
1
9

(1
3
1
)

1
3
1

0
 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 h

a
s
 d

e
la

y
e
d
 

th
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

th
is

 p
ro

je
c
t.
 I
s
s
u
e
s
 w

it
h
 

q
u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
in

s
ta

lla
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 b

e
n
c
h
 h

e
ig

h
ts

 

h
a
v
e
 t
a
k
e
n
 t
im

e
 t
o
 d

e
a
l 
w

it
h
, 
b
u
t 
a
re

 

b
e
in

g
 r

e
c
ti
fi
e
d
 a

t 
th

e
 C

o
n
tr

a
c
to

rs
 c

o
s
t 

a
n
d
 p

a
y
m

e
n
t 
is

 b
e
in

g
 h

e
ld

 b
a
c
k
 u

n
ti
l 
it
 

is
 r

e
s
o
lv

e
d
. 
U

ti
lit

ie
s
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 h

a
v
e
 

lim
it
e
d
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

n
e
w

 s
it
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
re

 

fe
a
s
ib

le
, 
b
u
t 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 u

n
d
e
rw

a
y
 

fo
r 

th
o
s
e
 t
h
a
t 
a
re

, 
w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 l
e
a
d
in

g
 t
o
 

o
b
je

c
ti
o
n
s
 f

ro
m

 a
d
ja

c
e
n
t 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

. 

B
o
th

 o
f 

th
e
s
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 w

e
re

 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

s
 

k
e
y
 r

is
k
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t.

P
V

0
3
3
B

S
tr

e
e
t 
L
ig

h
ti
n
g

A
 P

re
s
to

n
4
0

0
0

0
0

0
 

B
u
d
g
e
t 
re

p
h
a
s
e
d
 t
o
 2

0
1
4
/1

5
.

P
V

5
3
2

C
a
m

b
ri
d
g
e
 C

it
y
 2

0
m

p
h
 

Z
o
n
e
s
 P

ro
je

c
t

P
 D

e
ll

3
5
0

1
5
3

1
0
9

(4
4
)

4
4

0
 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
w

o
rk

s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f

ir
s
t 

p
h
a
s
e
 (

N
o
rt

h
 a

re
a
) 

c
o
m

m
e
n
c
e
d
 i
n
 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
4
 a

n
d
 i
s
 n

e
a
ri
n
g
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 

(a
t 
e
n
d
 A

p
ri
l)
. 
T

h
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 o

f 
p
u
b
lic

 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 V

ic
to

ri
a
 R

o
a
d
 

a
re

 t
o
 b

e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 i
m

m
in

e
n
tl
y
 b

y
 

N
o
rt

h
 A

re
a
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
. 
P

u
b
lic

 a
n
d
 

s
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
r 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 f

o
r 

p
h
a
s
e
 t
w

o
 (

E
a
s
t 
a
re

a
) 

w
e
re

 c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 

b
y
 A

re
a
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 o

n
 1

0
 A

p
ri
l,
 w

h
e
re

 

it
 w

a
s
 r

e
s
o
lv

e
d
 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 

o
n
 C

h
e
rr

y
 H

in
to

n
 R

d
 -

 b
u
t 
n
o
t 

C
o
ld

h
a
m

s
 L

a
n
e
.

Page 103



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 D

C
a
p

it
a
l 

R
e
f

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t

2
0
1
3
/1

4

F
in

a
l 
B

u
d

g
e
t 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
O

u
tt

u
rn

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 -

 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

c
o

m
p

a
re

d
 t

o
 

F
in

a
l 
B

u
d

g
e
t

R
e
-p

h
a
s
e
 

S
p

e
n

d

O
v
e
r 

/ 

(U
n

d
e
r)

 

S
p

e
n

d

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 E

x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 /
 C

o
m

m
e
n

ts

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

P
la

n
n

in
g

 a
n

d
 C

li
m

a
te

 C
h

a
n

g
e

 P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 /
 E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

S
c

ru
ti

n
y
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e

 

2
0

1
3

/1
4

 C
a

p
it

a
l 
B

u
d

g
e

t 
P

o
s

it
io

n

P
V

5
4
9

C
it
y
 C

y
c
le

 P
a
rk

A
 P

re
s
to

n
4
8
5

1
6
7

5
1

(1
1
6
)

1
1
6

0
 

D
e
la

y
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 a

p
p
ro

v
a
l 
o
f 

fo
u
r 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
a
re

a
s
 o

f 
p
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 o

n
-s

tr
e
e
t 

c
y
c
le

 p
a
rk

in
g
 h

a
s
 p

u
s
h
e
d
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 

b
e
y
o
n
d
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
4
. 
C

o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 w

o
rk

 

h
a
s
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
d
 a

n
d
 i
s
 f

o
re

c
a
s
t 
to

 

c
o
m

p
le

te
 b

y
 e

n
d
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
1
4
.

1
,4

1
7

7
5
6

3
8
2

(3
7
4
)

3
7
4

0

2
,3

5
9

1
,5

6
6

1
,0

8
1

(4
8
5
)

4
8
4

(1
)

C
h
a
n
g
e
s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
a
n
d
 f

in
a
l 
b
u
d
g
e
ts

 m
a
y
 b

e
 m

a
d
e
 i
n
 A

p
p
e
n
d
ix

 D
 t
o
 r

e
fl
e
c
t:

 -
 r

e
p
h
a
s
e
d
 c

a
p
it
a
l 
s
p
e
n
d
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r

 -
 r

e
p
h
a
s
e
d
 c

a
p
it
a
l 
s
p
e
n
d
 i
n
to

 f
u
tu

re
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
p
e
ri
o
d
s

 -
 a

p
p
ro

v
a
l 
o
f 

n
e
w

 c
a
p
it
a
l 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
je

c
ts

a
n
d
 a

re
 d

e
ta

ile
d
 a

n
d
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
:

 -
 i
n
 t
h
e
 J

u
n
e
/J

u
ly

 c
o
m

m
it
te

e
 c

y
c
le

 (
o
u
tt
u
rn

 r
e
p
o
rt

in
g
 a

n
d
 c

a
rr

y
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 r
e
q
u
e
s
ts

)

 -
 i
n
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

(a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 M

id
-Y

e
a
r 

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
R

e
v
ie

w
, 
M

F
R

)

 -
 i
n
 t
h
e
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 c
o
m

m
it
te

e
 c

y
c
le

 (
a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 B

u
d
g
e
t 
S

e
tt
in

g
 R

e
p
o
rt

, 
B

S
R

)

 -
 v

ia
 t
e
c
h
n
ic

a
l 
a
d
ju

s
tm

e
n
ts

/v
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 
th

e
 y

e
a
r

T
o

ta
l 
fo

r 
P

la
n

n
in

g
 a

n
d

 C
li
m

a
te

 C
h

a
n

g
e

T
o

ta
l 
P

ro
v
is

io
n

s

Page 104



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 D

C
a
p

it
a
l

R
e
f

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

O
ri

g
in

a
l

B
u

d
g

e
t

2
0
1
3
/1

4

F
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
O

u
tt

u
rn

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 -

 

O
u

tt
u

rn

c
o

m
p

a
re

d
 t

o
 

F
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t

R
e
-p

h
a
s
e

S
p

e
n

d

O
v
e
r 

/ 

(U
n

d
e
r)

S
p

e
n

d

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 E

x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 /
 C

o
m

m
e
n

ts

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

S
C

2
3
4

H
is

to
n
 R

o
a
d
 C

e
m

e
te

ry
 

L
a
n
d
s
c
a
p
in

g
 (

S
1
0
6
)

A
 W

ils
o
n

0
5

1
(4

)
0

(4
)

P
ro

je
c
t 

C
o
m

p
le

te
. 

 P
la

n
ti
n
g
 w

o
rk

s
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
4
.

S
C

3
7
9

M
e
rc

u
ry

 A
b
a
te

m
e
n
t

T
 L

a
w

re
n
c
e

0
0

2
9

2
9

0
2
9
 

P
ro

je
c
t 

c
o
m

p
le

te
. 

 S
p
e
n
d
 w

a
s
 f

o
r 

re
te

n
ti
o
n
.

S
C

4
1
0

M
ill

 R
o
a
d
 C

e
m

e
te

ry
A

 W
ils

o
n

2
5

2
5

1
(2

4
)

2
4

0
 

T
h
e
 i
n
te

rp
re

ta
ti
o
n
 b

o
a
rd

s
 a

re
 n

o
w

 

c
o
m

p
le

te
. 

 T
h
e
 f

in
a
l 
c
o
m

p
o
n
e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 

p
ro

je
c
t 

is
 t

h
e
 e

x
c
a
v
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 o

ld
 

c
h
a
p
e
l 
fo

u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 t

h
is

 i
s
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
d
 f

o
r 

la
te

 s
u
m

m
e
r 

2
0
1
4
.

S
C

4
3
2

M
ill

 R
o
a
d
 C

e
m

e
te

ry
 M

e
m

o
ri
a
l 

A
rt

w
o
rk

 (
S

1
0
6
)

A
 P

re
s
to

n
1
2

4
4

5
2

8
0

8
 

P
ro

je
c
t 

C
o
m

p
le

te
. 

 A
rt

w
o
rk

 w
a
s
 i
n
s
ta

lle
d
 

in
 t

h
e
 c

e
m

e
te

ry
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 w

e
e
k
e
n
d
 o

f 

8
th

/9
th

 F
e
b
ru

a
ry

. 
O

p
e
n
in

g
 C

e
re

m
o
n
y
 

to
o
k
 p

la
c
e
 2

2
n
d
/2

3
rd

 w
e
e
k
e
n
d
.

S
C

4
5
6

C
o
ld

h
a
m

s
 C

o
m

m
o
n
 L

o
c
a
l 

N
a
tu

re
 R

e
s
e
rv

e
 (

L
N

R
) 

(S
1
0
6
)

G
 B

e
lc

h
e
r

1
8

4
1

(3
)

3
0
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 r

e
p
o
rt

 c
o
m

p
le

te
. 

D
ra

ft
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
 w

ill
 b

e
 p

re
p
a
re

d
 f

o
r 

J
u
ly

 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

S
c
ru

ti
n
y
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 

fo
r 

a
p
p
ro

v
a
l 
to

 g
o
 t

o
 s

e
c
o
n
d
 s

ta
g
e
 o

f 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
. 

W
o
rk

s
 a

n
d
 f

in
a
l 
s
p
e
n
d
 

re
s
u
lt
in

g
 f

ro
m

 n
e
w

 m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

p
la

n
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
 b

y
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
4
.

P
u

b
li

c
 P

la
c
e
s
 P

o
rt

fo
li

o
 /

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e
 

C
a
p

it
a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
 -

 O
u

tt
u

rn

Page 105



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 D

C
a
p

it
a
l

R
e
f

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

O
ri

g
in

a
l

B
u

d
g

e
t

2
0
1
3
/1

4

F
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
O

u
tt

u
rn

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 -

 

O
u

tt
u

rn

c
o

m
p

a
re

d
 t

o
 

F
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t

R
e
-p

h
a
s
e

S
p

e
n

d

O
v
e
r 

/ 

(U
n

d
e
r)

S
p

e
n

d

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 E

x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 /
 C

o
m

m
e
n

ts

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

P
u

b
li

c
 P

la
c
e
s
 P

o
rt

fo
li

o
 /

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e
 

C
a
p

it
a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
 -

 O
u

tt
u

rn

S
C

4
6
8

V
ie

 P
la

y
 A

re
a
 (

S
1
0
6
)

A
 W

ils
o
n

0
2
1

2
1

0
2
1
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
 l
o
c
a
l 
M

e
m

b
e
rs

 a
n
d
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 o
n
 

th
e
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 s

u
rp

lu
s
 p

la
y
 

a
re

a
 e

q
u
ip

m
e
n
t 

(o
ri
g
in

a
lly

 p
u
rc

h
a
s
e
d
 f

o
r 

th
e
 V

ie
 s

it
e
 b

u
t 

n
o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 

n
e
e
d
e
d
 t

h
e
re

) 

a
t 

o
th

e
r 

lo
c
a
l 
p
la

y
 a

re
a
s
 i
n
 N

o
rt

h
 A

re
a
).

 

S
e
e
 i
n
 c

o
n
ju

c
n
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 u

n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 

a
t 

S
C

4
6
9

S
C

4
6
9

V
ie

 P
u
b
lic

 O
p
e
n
 S

p
a
c
e
 

(S
1
0
6
)

A
 W

ils
o
n

2
6

3
5

2
(3

3
)

3
3

0
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
 l
o
c
a
l 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 o
n
 t

h
e
 d

e
ta

ils
 o

f 

th
e
 t

ri
m

 t
ra

il 
to

 b
e
 i
n
s
ta

lle
d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 V

ie
 

O
p
e
n
 S

p
a
c
e
, 

g
iv

e
n
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 e

a
rl
ie

r 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w

a
s
 i
n
 2

0
1
0
.

S
C

4
7
4

C
h
e
rr

y
 H

in
to

n
 H

a
ll 

G
ro

u
n
d
s
 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 -
 P

h
a
s
e
 1

 

(S
1
0
6
)

A
 W

ils
o
n

0
1
9

1
9

0
0

0
 

P
ro

je
c
t 

C
o
m

p
le

te
.

S
C

4
7
9

A
b
b
e
y
 P

o
o
l 
P

la
y
 A

re
a
 

F
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 (

S
1
0
6
)

A
 P

re
s
to

n
8
8

2
2

0
0

0
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 C

o
u
n
c
ill

o
r 

d
e
c
is

io
n
 t

o
 a

w
a
it
 

th
e
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 o

f 
th

e
 S

e
c
re

ta
ry

 o
f 

S
ta

te
 o

n
 

th
e
 P

la
y
 A

re
a
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 3

8
 

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
.

S
C

4
9
2

J
e
s
u
s
 G

re
e
n
 P

la
y
 A

re
a
 

(S
1
0
6
)

A
 P

re
s
to

n
1
5
1

1
4
7

1
4
5

(2
)

2
0
 

S
3
8
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
re

q
u
e
s
t 

fo
r 

fe
n
c
in

g
 a

ro
u
n
d
 t

h
e
 

p
la

y
 a

re
a
. 

T
h
e
 S

3
8
 a

p
p
 h

a
s
 n

o
w

 b
e
e
n
 

a
p
p
ro

v
e
d
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 f

e
n
c
in

g
 w

ill
 b

e
 o

rd
e
re

d
 

a
n
d
 i
n
s
ta

lle
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
M

a
y
 2

0
1
4
.

Page 106



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 D

C
a
p

it
a
l

R
e
f

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

O
ri

g
in

a
l

B
u

d
g

e
t

2
0
1
3
/1

4

F
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
O

u
tt

u
rn

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 -

 

O
u

tt
u

rn

c
o

m
p

a
re

d
 t

o
 

F
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t

R
e
-p

h
a
s
e

S
p

e
n

d

O
v
e
r 

/ 

(U
n

d
e
r)

S
p

e
n

d

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 E

x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 /
 C

o
m

m
e
n

ts

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

P
u

b
li

c
 P

la
c
e
s
 P

o
rt

fo
li

o
 /

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e
 

C
a
p

it
a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
 -

 O
u

tt
u

rn

S
C

4
9
4

K
in

g
s
 H

e
d
g
e
s
 "

P
u
lle

y
" 

P
la

y
 

A
re

a
 (

S
1
0
6
)

A
 P

re
s
to

n
0

7
1

7
2

1
0

1
 

P
ro

je
c
t 

C
o
m

p
le

te
.

S
C

4
9
6

P
e
te

rs
fi
e
ld

 P
la

y
 A

re
a
 (

S
1
0
6
)

A
 P

re
s
to

n
0

6
4

6
9

5
0

5
 

P
ro

je
c
t 

C
o
m

p
le

te
.

S
C

4
9
7

P
e
v
e
re

l 
R

o
a
d
 P

la
y
 A

re
a
 

(S
1
0
6
)

A
 P

re
s
to

n
0

8
4

7
8

(6
)

0
(6

)
P

ro
je

c
t 

C
o
m

p
le

te
.

S
C

5
0
0

T
ru

m
p
in

g
to

n
 R

e
c
 O

u
td

o
o
r 

S
p
a
c
e
 (

S
1
0
6
)

A
 W

ils
o
n

0
1

0
(1

)
0

(1
)

P
ro

je
c
t 

C
o
m

p
le

te
.

S
C

5
0
7

V
is

it
 C

a
m

b
ri
d
g
e
 W

e
b
s
it
e

E
 T

h
o
rn

to
n

0
2

0
(2

)
2

0
 

P
ro

je
c
t 

w
ill

 b
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 b

y
 e

n
d
 M

a
y
 

2
0
1
4
.

S
C

5
2
3

R
e
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

N
e
w

m
a
rk

e
t 

R
d
 C

e
m

e
te

ry
 B

u
ild

in
g
s

T
 L

a
w

re
n
c
e

4
0

7
5

5
7

(1
8
)

0
(1

8
)

P
ro

je
c
t 

C
o
m

p
le

te
.

S
C

5
2
4

C
a
m

b
ri
d
g
e
 C

re
m

a
to

ri
u
m

 -
 

C
h
a
p
e
ls

 &
 P

u
b
lic

 A
re

a
s
 

R
e
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n
t

T
 L

a
w

re
n
c
e

9
5

1
2
0

1
1
3

(7
)

7
0
 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
to

rs
 s

u
p
p
lie

r 
d
e
la

y
 i
n
 p

ro
v
id

in
g
 

p
ro

d
u
c
t,

 n
a
m

e
ly

 l
ig

h
ts

 f
o
r 

th
e
 W

e
s
t 

C
h
a
p
e
l 
a
n
d
 m

a
ts

 f
o
r 

th
e
 C

re
m

a
to

ri
u
m

 

s
it
e
.

S
C

5
2
5

C
a
m

b
ri
d
g
e
 C

re
m

a
to

ri
u
m

 -
 

S
ta

ff
 R

o
o
m

 R
e
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n
t

T
 L

a
w

re
n
c
e

3
0

0
0

0
0

0
 

B
u
d
g
e
t 

re
p
h
a
s
e
d
 t

o
 2

0
1
4
/1

5

Page 107



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 D

C
a
p

it
a
l

R
e
f

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

O
ri

g
in

a
l

B
u

d
g

e
t

2
0
1
3
/1

4

F
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
O

u
tt

u
rn

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 -

 

O
u

tt
u

rn

c
o

m
p

a
re

d
 t

o
 

F
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t

R
e
-p

h
a
s
e

S
p

e
n

d

O
v
e
r 

/ 

(U
n

d
e
r)

S
p

e
n

d

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 E

x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 /
 C

o
m

m
e
n

ts

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

P
u

b
li

c
 P

la
c
e
s
 P

o
rt

fo
li

o
 /

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e
 

C
a
p

it
a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
 -

 O
u

tt
u

rn

S
C

5
3
9

M
e
te

re
d
 s

y
s
te

m
 f

o
r 

th
e
 

s
u
p
p
ly

 o
f 

e
le

c
tr

ic
it
y
 o

n
 t

h
e
 

M
a
rk

e
t

A
 W

h
it
e

5
0

5
0

1
1

(3
9
)

2
4

(1
5
)

T
h
e
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t

o
 t

h
is

 p
ro

je
c
t 

h
a
s
 

c
h
a
n
g
e
d
. 

T
h
e
 e

le
c
tr

ic
a
l 
in

fr
a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 i
s
 

b
e
in

g
 u

p
g
ra

d
e
d
 e

n
s
u
ri
n
g
 t

h
a
t 

it
 i
s
 

fu
tu

re
p
ro

o
f 

to
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
te

 a
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 

m
e
te

ri
n
g
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 f

u
tu

re
. 

T
h
e
 

re
v
is

e
d
 q

u
o
te

 i
s
 £

3
5
k
, 

s
o
 t

h
e
re

 w
ill

 b
e
 a

 

£
1
5
k
 u

n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 a

t 
y
e
a
r 

e
n
d
. 

T
h
is

 w
o
rk

 

w
ill

 b
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 b

y
 m

id
 M

a
y
.

S
C

5
4
0

E
le

c
tr

o
n
ic

 M
a
rk

e
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

S
o
ft

w
a
re

A
 W

h
it
e

0
1
4

5
(9

)
9

0
 

T
h
e
 f

in
a
l 
in

te
g
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
w

 s
y
s
te

m
 

w
it
h
 O

ra
c
le

 h
a
s
 d

e
la

y
e
d
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 o

f 

th
is

 p
ro

je
c
t 

a
lo

n
g
 w

it
h
 l
o
n
g
 t

e
rm

 

s
ic

k
n
e
s
s
 i
s
s
u
e
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 M

a
rk

e
ts

 t
e
a
m

. 

T
h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 w

it
h
in

 

th
e
 f

ir
s
t 

3
 m

o
n
th

s
 o

f 
th

e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r 

s
o
 

re
q
u
e
s
t 

th
a
t 

th
is

 r
e
s
id

u
a
l 
a
m

o
u
n
t 

b
e
 

c
a
rr

ie
d
 f

o
rw

a
rd

.

S
C

5
4
4

C
o
le

ri
d
g
e
 R

e
c
re

a
ti
o
n
 G

ro
u
n
d
 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 (
S

1
0
6
)

A
 W

ils
o
n

2
8
9

1
8
1

2
3

(1
5
8
)

1
5
8

0
 

T
h
e
 r

e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 

te
n
n
is

 c
o
u
rt

 i
s
 n

o
w

 

c
o
m

p
le

te
. 

 T
h
e
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

th
e
 s

e
c
o
n
d
 t

e
n
n
is

 c
o
u
rt

 i
s
 p

re
p
a
re

d
. 

 A
n
 

e
x
e
m

p
ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

th
e
 p

la
y
 e

q
u
ip

m
e
n
t 

h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
.

Page 108



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 D

C
a
p

it
a
l

R
e
f

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

O
ri

g
in

a
l

B
u

d
g

e
t

2
0
1
3
/1

4

F
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
O

u
tt

u
rn

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 -

 

O
u

tt
u

rn

c
o

m
p

a
re

d
 t

o
 

F
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t

R
e
-p

h
a
s
e

S
p

e
n

d

O
v
e
r 

/ 

(U
n

d
e
r)

S
p

e
n

d

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 E

x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 /
 C

o
m

m
e
n

ts

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

P
u

b
li

c
 P

la
c
e
s
 P

o
rt

fo
li

o
 /

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e
 

C
a
p

it
a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
 -

 O
u

tt
u

rn

S
C

5
4
8

S
o
u
th

e
rn

 C
o
n
n
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 P

u
b
lic

 

A
rt

 C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 (

S
1
0
6
)

N
 B

la
c
k

7
3

9
1
2

3
(3

)
0
 

T
h
e
 v

a
ri
a
n
c
e
 r

e
la

te
s
 t

o
 a

n
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 

p
a
y
m

e
n
t 

fo
r 

th
e
 g

ra
ft

in
g
 o

f 
a
p
p
le

 t
re

e
s
, 

w
h
ic

h
 w

a
s
 n

o
t 

e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 a

t 
th

is
 s

ta
g
e
 i
n
 

th
e
 p

ro
je

c
t.

A
 d

e
ta

ile
d
 p

ro
je

c
t 

s
p
e
n
d
 p

ro
fi
le

 h
a
s
 n

o
w

 

b
e
e
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 i
n
 c

o
n
ju

n
c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 

a
rt

is
t,

 w
h
ic

h
 w

ill
 n

e
e
d
 t

o
 b

e
 r

e
fl
e
c
te

d
 i
n
 

th
e
 c

a
p
it
a
l 
p
la

n

S
C

5
5
1

S
to

u
rb

ri
d
g
e
 C

o
m

m
o
n
 -

 

R
iv

e
rb

a
n
k
 P

ro
je

c
t

A
 W

ils
o
n

1
0
0

1
0
0

1
0
0

0
0

0
 

P
ro

je
c
t 

C
o
m

p
le

te
. 

 A
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

e
x
te

n
s
io

n
 o

f 

w
o
rk

s
 w

a
s
 a

g
re

e
d
 b

y
 E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
ill

o
r,

 f
u
n
d
e
d
 f

ro
m

 R
&

R
, 

is
 n

o
w

 

a
ls

o
 c

o
m

p
le

te
.

S
C

5
6
2

R
e
v
ie

w
 -

 S
tr

e
e
t 

&
 O

p
e
n
 

S
p
a
c
e
s
 B

e
n
c
h
e
s

A
 W

ils
o
n

2
5

2
5

3
(2

2
)

2
2

0
 

 A
ll 

b
e
n
c
h
e
s
 a

re
 o

rd
e
re

d
 a

n
d
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 

b
e
in

g
 i
n
s
ta

lle
d
.

S
C

5
7
3

In
s
ta

lla
ti
o
n
 o

f 
A

ir
 C

o
n
d
it
io

n
in

g
 

u
n
it
s
 a

t 
th

e
 T

o
u
ri
s
t 

In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 C

e
n
tr

e

E
 T

h
o
rn

to
n

2
5

3
5

3
3

(2
)

2
0
 

P
ro

je
c
t 

C
o
m

p
le

te
.

S
C

5
8
1

E
p
ilo

g
 U

p
g
ra

d
e

T
 L

a
w

re
n
c
e

0
5

1
3

8
(8

)
0
 

P
ro

je
c
t 

re
p
h
a
s
e
d
 t

o
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
4
 d

u
e
 t

o
 

s
u
p
p
lie

rs
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

in
g
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 v

a
ri
o
u
s
 

p
ro

je
c
ts

.

Page 109



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 D

C
a
p

it
a
l

R
e
f

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

O
ri

g
in

a
l

B
u

d
g

e
t

2
0
1
3
/1

4

F
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
O

u
tt

u
rn

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 -

 

O
u

tt
u

rn

c
o

m
p

a
re

d
 t

o
 

F
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t

R
e
-p

h
a
s
e

S
p

e
n

d

O
v
e
r 

/ 

(U
n

d
e
r)

S
p

e
n

d

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 E

x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 /
 C

o
m

m
e
n

ts

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

P
u

b
li

c
 P

la
c
e
s
 P

o
rt

fo
li

o
 /

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e
 

C
a
p

it
a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
 -

 O
u

tt
u

rn

S
C

5
8
4

P
a
rk

e
r'
s
 P

ie
c
e
 L

ig
h
ti
n
g
 

P
ro

je
c
t

A
 P

re
s
to

n
0

6
0

3
2

(2
8
)

2
8

0
 

B
a
lf
o
u
r 

B
e
a
tt

y
 w

o
rk

s
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
d
 

2
2
/0

4
/2

0
1
4
 -

 n
e
w

 c
o
lu

m
n
s
 a

n
d
 l
a
n
te

rn
s
 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 i
n
s
ta

lle
d
 a

n
d
 d

u
c
ti
n
g
 f

o
r 

p
o
w

e
r 

s
u
p
p
ly

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
in

g
. 

In
c
o
rp

o
ra

ti
n
g
 

n
e
w

 W
i-
F

i 
a
n
te

n
n
a
e
 f

o
r 

C
a
m

b
ri
d
g
e
 

U
n
iv

e
rs

it
y
.

1
,0

4
7

1
,1

7
7

8
9
4

(2
8
3
)

3
0
3

2
0

P
R

0
0
3

C
it
y
 C

e
n
tr

e
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
E

 T
h
o
rn

to
n

2
0

1
0

5
(5

)
5

0
 

A
 g

ra
n
t 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

w
a
rd

e
d
 f

o
r 

a
 

W
a
y
fi
n
d
in

g
 p

ro
je

c
t 

fo
r 

M
ill

 R
o
a
d
. 

T
h
is

 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
la

y
e
d
, 

b
u
t 

s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
 b

y
 e

n
d
 M

a
y
. 

It
 i
s
 t

h
e
re

fo
re

 

re
q
u
e
s
te

d
 t

h
a
t 

th
is

 a
m

o
u
n
t 

b
e
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 

fo
rw

a
rd

.

P
R

0
1
0
a

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 -

 N
o
rt

h
 A

re
a

A
 P

re
s
to

n
1
3
4

7
2

4
2

(3
0
)

3
0

0
 

C
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 1

3
 a

d
o
p
te

d
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 t
o
ta

lli
n
g
 

£
9
8
k
. 

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
s
e
d
 t

o
 o

th
e
r 

c
a
p
it
a
l 
p
ro

je
c
ts

 w
it
h
 h

ig
h
 p

ro
fi
le

 a
n
d
 

c
h
a
lle

n
g
in

g
 d

e
a
d
lin

e
s
 f

o
r 

c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
.

P
R

0
1
0
b

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 -

 S
o
u
th

 A
re

a
A

 P
re

s
to

n
1
7
2

1
5
4

3
2

(1
2
2
)

1
2
2

0
 

C
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 8

 a
d
o
p
te

d
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 t
o
ta

lli
n
g
 

£
1
4
2
k
. 

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
s
e
d
 t

o
 o

th
e
r 

c
a
p
it
a
l 
p
ro

je
c
ts

 w
it
h
 h

ig
h
 p

ro
fi
le

 a
n
d
 

c
h
a
lle

n
g
in

g
 d

e
a
d
lin

e
s
 f

o
r 

c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
.

T
o

ta
l 

P
ro

je
c
ts

Page 110



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 D

C
a
p

it
a
l

R
e
f

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

O
ri

g
in

a
l

B
u

d
g

e
t

2
0
1
3
/1

4

F
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
O

u
tt

u
rn

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 -

 

O
u

tt
u

rn

c
o

m
p

a
re

d
 t

o
 

F
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t

R
e
-p

h
a
s
e

S
p

e
n

d

O
v
e
r 

/ 

(U
n

d
e
r)

S
p

e
n

d

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 E

x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 /
 C

o
m

m
e
n

ts

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

P
u

b
li

c
 P

la
c
e
s
 P

o
rt

fo
li

o
 /

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e
 

C
a
p

it
a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
 -

 O
u

tt
u

rn

P
R

0
1
0
c

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 -

 W
e
s
t/

C
e
n
tr

a
l 

A
re

a

A
 P

re
s
to

n
1
1
3

1
4
3

6
2

(8
1
)

8
1

0
 

C
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 1

6
 a

c
ti
v
e
 p

ro
je

c
ts

, 
to

ta
lli

n
g
 

£
1
1
0
k
. 

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
s
e
d
 t

o
 o

th
e
r 

c
a
p
it
a
l 
p
ro

je
c
ts

 w
it
h
 h

ig
h
 p

ro
fi
le

 a
n
d
 

c
h
a
lle

n
g
in

g
 d

e
a
d
lin

e
s
 f

o
r 

c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
.

P
R

0
1
0
d

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 -

 E
a
s
t 
A

re
a

A
 P

re
s
to

n
1
5
7

1
1
5

4
5

(7
0
)

7
0

0
 

C
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 1

7
 a

c
ti
v
e
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 t
o
ta

lli
n
g
 

£
1
4
1
k
. 

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
s
e
d
 t

o
 o

th
e
r 

c
a
p
it
a
l 
p
ro

je
c
ts

 w
it
h
 h

ig
h
 p

ro
fi
le

 a
n
d
 

c
h
a
lle

n
g
in

g
 d

e
a
d
lin

e
s
 f

o
r 

c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
.

P
R

0
1
0
d

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 -

 

R
iv

e
rs

id
e
/A

b
b
e
y
 R

o
a
d
 

J
u
n
c
ti
o
n

A
 P

re
s
to

n
0

1
1

0
1

1
 

P
ro

je
c
t 

C
o
m

p
le

te
. 

R
e
m

a
in

in
g
 u

n
s
p
e
n
t 

b
u
d
g
e
t 

to
 b

e
 m

o
v
e
d
 t

o
 r

a
ili

n
g
 

re
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

je
c
t.

P
R

0
1
0
j

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 -

 F
it
z
ro

y
/B

u
rl
e
ig

h
 

S
tr

e
e
t

A
 P

re
s
to

n
0

7
0

7
1

1
0

1
 

P
ro

je
c
t 

C
o
m

p
le

te
.

P
R

0
2
7

R
e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

P
a
rk

s
 &

 

O
p
e
n
 S

p
a
c
e
 W

a
s
te

/L
it
te

r 

B
in

s

A
 W

ils
o
n

7
5

1
5
0

9
6

(5
4
)

5
4

0
 

P
h
a
s
e
 o

n
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
, 

u
n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 t

o
 

c
a
rr

y
 o

v
e
r 

to
 t

h
is

 c
o
m

in
g
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r.

P
R

0
3
0
a

In
c
re

a
s
e
 B

io
d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 a

t 

S
to

u
rb

ri
d
g
e
 C

o
m

m
o
n
 (

S
1
0
6
)

G
 B

e
lc

h
e
r

1
5

7
6

(1
)

1
0
 

P
ro

je
c
t 

C
o
m

p
le

te
.

Page 111



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 D

C
a
p

it
a
l

R
e
f

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

O
ri

g
in

a
l

B
u

d
g

e
t

2
0
1
3
/1

4

F
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
O

u
tt

u
rn

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 -

 

O
u

tt
u

rn

c
o

m
p

a
re

d
 t

o
 

F
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t

R
e
-p

h
a
s
e

S
p

e
n

d

O
v
e
r 

/ 

(U
n

d
e
r)

S
p

e
n

d

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 E

x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 /
 C

o
m

m
e
n

ts

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

P
u

b
li

c
 P

la
c
e
s
 P

o
rt

fo
li

o
 /

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e
 

C
a
p

it
a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
 -

 O
u

tt
u

rn

P
R

0
3
0
b

Im
p
ro

v
e
 A

c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 A

b
b
e
y
 

P
a
d
d
lin

g
 P

o
o
ls

 F
ro

m
 

C
o
ld

h
a
m

's
 C

o
m

m
o
n
 (

S
1
0
6
)

A
 W

ils
o
n

1
0

1
0

0
(1

0
)

1
0

0
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 C

o
u
n
c
ill

o
r 

d
e
c
is

io
n
 t

o
 a

w
a
it
 

th
e
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 o

f 
th

e
 S

e
c
re

ta
ry

 o
f 

S
ta

te
 o

n
 

th
e
 P

la
y
 A

re
a
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 3

8
 

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
. 

 I
f 

th
e
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 o

f 
th

e
 S

O
S

 

in
c
lu

d
e
s
 a

 c
o
n
d
it
io

n
 r

e
la

ti
n
g
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

fo
o
tp

a
th

 i
ts

 d
iv

e
rs

io
n
 o

r 
e
x
ti
n
g
u
is

h
m

e
n
t 

th
e
n
 w

e
 w

ill
 n

e
e
d
 t

o
 a

d
d
re

s
s
. 

 I
f 

th
e
re

 

a
re

 n
o
 c

o
n
d
it
io

n
s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 S

e
c
ti
o
n
 3

8
 i
s
 

g
ra

n
te

d
 t

h
e
 p

la
y
 a

re
a
 c

a
n
 b

e
 i
n
s
ta

lle
d
 

(n
o
t 

o
n
 t

h
e
 f

o
o
tp

a
th

) 
w

it
h
 t

h
e
 f

e
n
c
e
lin

e
 

(b
u
t 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 g

a
te

s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 r

ig
h
t 

o
f 

w
a
y
 

ro
u
te

).

P
R

0
3
2
c

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 C

h
e
rr

y
 

H
in

to
n
 R

e
c
. 

(S
1
0
6
)

A
 W

ils
o
n

6
5

1
2
2

7
9

(4
3
)

4
3

0
 

W
o
rk

s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 s

k
a
te

 p
a
rk

 t
o
 s

ta
rt

 i
n
 m

id
 

M
a
y
. 

T
h
e
 P

a
n
n
a
 a

n
d
 E

x
p
lo

re
r 

D
o
m

e
 

w
e
re

 b
o
th

 c
o
m

p
le

te
 b

y
 t

h
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
4
.

P
R

0
3
3
a

B
e
n
c
h
e
s
 i
n
 P

a
rk

s
 &

 O
p
e
n
 

S
p
a
c
e
s
 (

S
1
0
6
)

A
 W

ils
o
n

3
0

3
0

1
0

(2
0
)

2
0

0
 

A
ll 

b
e
n
c
h
e
s
 a

re
 o

rd
e
re

d
 a

n
d
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 

b
e
in

g
 i
n
s
ta

lle
d
.

P
R

0
3
3
b

A
c
c
e
s
s
 I

m
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 

M
id

s
u
m

m
e
r 

C
o
m

m
o
n
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 O

rc
h
a
rd

 (
S

1
0
6
)

A
 W

ils
o
n

2
0

1
5

6
(9

)
0

(9
)

P
ro

je
c
t 

C
o
m

p
le

te
.

Page 112



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 D

C
a
p

it
a
l

R
e
f

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

O
ri

g
in

a
l

B
u

d
g

e
t

2
0
1
3
/1

4

F
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
O

u
tt

u
rn

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 -

 

O
u

tt
u

rn

c
o

m
p

a
re

d
 t

o
 

F
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t

R
e
-p

h
a
s
e

S
p

e
n

d

O
v
e
r 

/ 

(U
n

d
e
r)

S
p

e
n

d

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 E

x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 /
 C

o
m

m
e
n

ts

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

P
u

b
li

c
 P

la
c
e
s
 P

o
rt

fo
li

o
 /

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e
 

C
a
p

it
a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
 -

 O
u

tt
u

rn

P
R

0
3
3
c

P
u
b
lic

 A
rt

 e
le

m
e
n
t 

o
f 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 t

h
e
 

e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
s
 a

t 
H

is
to

n
 R

d
 R

e
c
 

(S
1
0
6
)

A
 P

re
s
to

n
5
0

8
1
0

2
(2

)
0
 

P
ro

je
c
t 

s
te

e
ri
n
g
 g

ro
u
p
 h

a
v
e
 s

e
le

c
te

d
 t

h
e
 

p
re

fe
rr

e
d
 c

o
n
c
e
p
t 

fo
r 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

d
e
ta

ile
d
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t,

 w
h
ic

h
 w

ill
 t

a
k
e
 p

la
c
e
 

d
u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 p

u
rd

a
h
 p

e
ri
o
d
, 

w
it
h
 a

 p
u
b
lic

 

e
x
h
ib

it
io

n
 i
m

m
e
d
ia

te
ly

 a
ft

e
r 

th
e
 e

le
c
ti
o
n
. 

T
h
e
 p

u
rd

a
h
 p

e
ri
o
d
 h

a
s
 d

e
la

y
e
d
 t

h
e
 

p
ro

je
c
t 

s
lig

h
tl
y
, 

a
lo

n
g
 w

it
h
 g

e
tt

in
g
 

a
p
p
ro

v
a
l 
fr

o
m

 C
o
u
n
c
ill

o
rs

 t
o
 p

ro
c
e
e
d
 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 c

h
o
s
e
n
 c

o
n
c
e
p
t.

P
R

0
3
4
a

L
o
g
a
n
's

 M
e
a
d
o
w

 L
o
c
a
l 

N
a
tu

re
 R

e
s
e
rv

e
 (

L
N

R
) 

E
x
te

n
s
io

n
 (

S
1
0
6
)

G
 B

e
lc

h
e
r

1
6
0

1
7

2
1

4
(4

)
0
 

A
w

a
it
in

g
 H

e
a
d
s
 o

f 
T

e
rm

s
 f

ro
m

 a
d
ja

c
e
n
t 

la
n
d
o
w

n
e
r 

in
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 g

a
in

 a
c
c
e
s
s
 f

o
r 

p
la

n
t 

a
n
d
 e

a
rt

h
w

o
rk

 m
o
v
e
m

e
n
ts

. 
W

o
rk

s
 

m
a
y
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
 r

e
s
c
h
e
d
u
lin

g
 u

n
ti
l 
la

te
 

s
u
m

m
e
r 

to
 a

llo
w

 s
u
it
a
b
le

 c
o
n
d
it
io

n
s
 f

o
r 

s
o
w

in
g
 a

n
d
 p

la
n
ti
n
g
 i
n
 t

h
e
 a

u
tu

m
n
.

P
R

0
3
4
b

P
a
ra

d
is

e
 L

o
c
a
l 
N

a
tu

re
 

R
e
s
e
rv

e
 (

L
N

R
) 

(S
1
0
6
)

G
 B

e
lc

h
e
r

1
0
0

9
4

1
0
2

8
(6

)
2
 

P
ro

je
c
t 

C
o
m

p
le

te
.

P
R

0
3
4
c

D
ra

in
a
g
e
 o

f 
J
e
s
u
s
 G

re
e
n
 

(S
1
0
6
)

A
 W

ils
o
n

9
5

9
5

1
3

(8
2
)

8
2

0
 

W
o
rk

s
 t

o
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
 i
m

m
e
d
ia

te
ly

 a
ft

e
r 

th
e
 B

e
e
r 

F
e
s
ti
v
a
l.
 A

ll 
p
e
rm

is
s
io

n
s
 

g
ra

n
te

d

Page 113



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 D

C
a
p

it
a
l

R
e
f

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

O
ri

g
in

a
l

B
u

d
g

e
t

2
0
1
3
/1

4

F
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
O

u
tt

u
rn

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 -

 

O
u

tt
u

rn

c
o

m
p

a
re

d
 t

o
 

F
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t

R
e
-p

h
a
s
e

S
p

e
n

d

O
v
e
r 

/ 

(U
n

d
e
r)

S
p

e
n

d

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 E

x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 /
 C

o
m

m
e
n

ts

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

P
u

b
li

c
 P

la
c
e
s
 P

o
rt

fo
li

o
 /

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e
 

C
a
p

it
a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
 -

 O
u

tt
u

rn

P
R

0
3
4
d

P
u
b
lic

 A
rt

 -
 1

5
0
th

 &
 4

0
0
th

 

A
n
n
iv

e
rs

a
ry

 (
S

1
0
6
)

A
 P

re
s
to

n
8
8

6
3

(3
)

3
0
 

A
 s

h
o
rt

lis
t 

o
f 

fo
u
r 

a
rt

is
ts

 i
s
 c

lo
s
e
 t

o
 

c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
, 

a
ft

e
r 

w
h
ic

h
 t

h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

b
ri
e
f 

w
ill

 b
e
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 f

o
r 

th
e
m

 t
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 

c
o
n
c
e
p
t 

p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 o
v
e
r 

a
 3

 m
o
n
th

 

p
e
ri
o
d
.

1
,3

7
9

1
,1

1
9

6
0
4

(5
1
5
)

5
1
0

(5
)

P
V

3
4
8

A
llo

tm
e
n
t 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 

(S
1
0
6
)

A
 W

ils
o
n

1
7

1
4

7
(7

)
7

0
 

T
h
is

 f
u
n
d
in

g
 i
s
 a

llo
c
a
te

d
 t

o
 a

llo
tm

e
n
t 

s
o
c
ie

ti
e
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
la

te
d
 t

o
 s

u
m

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
d
 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 t

h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

p
a
rt

 o
f 

W
h
it
e
h
ill

 A
llo

tm
e
n
ts

 b
y
 C

a
m

b
ri
d
g
e
 

U
n
it
e
d
. 

 T
h
is

 f
u
n
d
e
d
 i
s
 a

llo
c
a
te

d
 a

s
 t

h
e
 

A
llo

tm
e
n
t 

S
o
c
ie

ti
e
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 a

re
a
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 

s
p
e
n
d
.

1
7

1
4

7
(7

)
7

0

2
,4

4
3

2
,3

1
0

1
,5

0
5

(8
0
5
)

8
2
0

1
5

C
h
a
n
g
e
s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
a
n
d
 f

in
a
l 
b
u
d
g
e
ts

 m
a
y
 b

e
 m

a
d
e
 t

o
 r

e
fl
e
c
t:

 -
 r

e
p
h
a
s
e
d
 c

a
p
it
a
l 
s
p
e
n
d
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r

 -
 r

e
p
h
a
s
e
d
 c

a
p
it
a
l 
s
p
e
n
d
 i
n
to

 f
u
tu

re
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
p
e
ri
o
d
s

 -
 a

p
p
ro

v
a
l 
o
f 

n
e
w

 c
a
p
it
a
l 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
je

c
ts

a
n
d
 a

re
 d

e
ta

ile
d
 a

n
d
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
:

T
o

ta
l 

fo
r 

P
u

b
li

c
 P

la
c
e
s

T
o

ta
l 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s

T
o

ta
l 

P
ro

v
is

io
n

s

Page 114



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 D

C
a
p

it
a
l

R
e
f

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

O
ri

g
in

a
l

B
u

d
g

e
t

2
0
1
3
/1

4

F
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
O

u
tt

u
rn

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 -

 

O
u

tt
u

rn

c
o

m
p

a
re

d
 t

o
 

F
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t

R
e
-p

h
a
s
e

S
p

e
n

d

O
v
e
r 

/ 

(U
n

d
e
r)

S
p

e
n

d

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 E

x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 /
 C

o
m

m
e
n

ts

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

P
u

b
li

c
 P

la
c
e
s
 P

o
rt

fo
li

o
 /

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e
 

C
a
p

it
a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
 -

 O
u

tt
u

rn

 -
 i
n
 t

h
e
 J

u
n
e
 c

o
m

m
it
te

e
 c

y
c
le

 (
o
u
tt

u
rn

 r
e
p
o
rt

in
g
 a

n
d
 c

a
rr

y
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 r
e

q
u
e
s
ts

)

 -
 i
n
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

(a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 M

id
-Y

e
a
r 

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
R

e
v
ie

w
 (

M
F

R
))

 -
 i
n
 t

h
e
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 c
o
m

m
it
te

e
 c

y
c
le

 (
a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 b

u
d
g
e
t 

s
e
tt

in
g
 r

e
p
o
rt

)

Page 115



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 D

C
a
p

it
a
l 

R
e
f

D
e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

L
e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0

1
3

/1
4

F
in

a
l 
B

u
d

g
e
t 

2
0

1
3

/1
4

O
u

tt
u

rn

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 -

 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

c
o

m
p

a
re

d
 t

o
 

F
in

a
l 
B

u
d

g
e
t

R
e
-p

h
a
s

e
 

S
p

e
n

d

O
v
e
r 

/ 

(U
n

d
e
r)

 

S
p

e
n

d

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

S
C

5
4

3
V

o
lt
a
g

e
 O

p
ti
m

is
a
ti
o
n

 R
o
ll-

o
u

t
D

 K
id

s
to

n
0

3
3

3
6

3
0

3
P

ro
je

c
t 
c
o
m

p
le

te
d

. 
 O

v
e
rs

p
e

n
d

 o
f 

£
3

k
 

fi
n
a

n
c
e
d

 f
ro

m
 t
h
e

 C
lim

a
te

 C
h
a

n
g

e
 F

u
n

d
.

S
C

5
9

3
K

e
e

p
 C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 M

o
v
in

g
 

F
u
n

d
 C

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n

S
 P

a
y
n
e

0
4

3
6

0
(4

3
6
)

4
3

6
0

C
o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n

 t
o
 E

a
rm

a
rk

e
d

 R
e
s
e
rv

e
 i
n
 

2
0

1
3

/1
4

 a
h

e
a

d
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
 b

e
in

g
 

fo
rm

u
la

te
d

0
4

6
9

3
6

(4
3

3
)

4
3

6
3

0
4

6
9

3
6

(4
3

3
)

4
3

6
3

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 P

o
rt

fo
li

o
 /

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 &

 R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e

2
0
1
3
/1

4
 C

a
p

it
a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

P
o

s
it

io
n

T
o

ta
l 
fo

r 
S

tr
a

te
g

y
 P

o
rt

fo
li
o

T
o

ta
l 
P

ro
je

c
ts

Page 116



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 E

B
u

d
g

e
t

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t

C
u

rr
e
n

t 
  

B
u

d
g

e
t

 O
u

tt
u

rn
V

a
ri

a
n

c
e

R
e

-p
h

a
s

e

S
p

e
n

d
N

o
te

s
2
0
1
4
/1

5
2
0
1
5
/1

6
2
0
1
6
/1

7

P
o

s
t

2
0
1
6
/1

7
2
0
1
4
/1

5
£
0
0
0
's

£
0
0
0
's

£
0
0
0
's

£
0
0
0
's

£
0
0
0
's

£
0
0
0
's

£
0
0
0
's

£
0
0
0
's

£
0
0

0
's

£
0
0
0
's

G
e
n

e
ra

l 
F

u
n

d
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 C

a
p

it
a

l 
S

p
e

n
d

In
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
in

 N
o
n
-H

R
A

 A
ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 H
o
u
s
in

g
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

O
th

e
r 

G
e
n
e
ra

l 
F

u
n
d
 H

o
u
s
in

g
7
6
5

9
1
6

8
4
8

(6
8
)

0
1

0
0

0
0

7
6
5

T
o

ta
l 
G

e
n

e
ra

l 
F

u
n

d
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 C

a
p

it
a

l 
S

p
e

n
d

7
6

5
9

1
6

8
4

8
(6

8
)

0
0

0
0

0
7
6
5

H
R

A
 C

a
p

it
a
l 
S

p
e

n
d

D
e
c
e
n
t 
H

o
m

e
s
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
9
,0

0
3

9
,7

8
2

8
,2

3
3

(1
,5

4
9
)

1
,4

6
9

2
1
,3

2
5

5
8

(2
5
1
)

3
3
7

1
0
,6

0
3

O
th

e
r 

S
p
e
n
d
 o

n
 H

R
A

 S
to

c
k

3
,1

4
9

4
,4

1
5

2
,3

3
8

(2
,0

7
7
)

1
,8

0
5

3
1
,2

0
9

4
3
2

1
6
4

0
4
,6

8
5

H
R

A
 N

e
w

 B
u
ild

1
1
,9

7
7

1
1
,1

0
1

5
,1

4
0

(5
,9

6
1
)

5
,9

6
0

4
5
,9

6
0

0
0

0
2
1
,8

9
7

C
a
m

b
ri
d
g
e
 S

ta
n
d
a
rd

 W
o
rk

s
2
0
0

3
7
2

2
6
5

(1
0
7
)

1
0
6

5
1
0
6

0
0

0
3
0
6

S
h
e
lt
e
re

d
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 C

a
p
it
a
l 
In

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t

1
,9

0
0

1
,9

2
7

1
3
5

(1
,7

9
2
)

1
,9

0
0

6
0

1
,9

0
0

0
0

1
,9

0
0

O
th

e
r 

H
R

A
 C

a
p
it
a
l 
S

p
e
n
d

6
6
0

1
,2

4
3

5
6
3

(6
8
0
)

4
9
3

7
4
9
3

0
0

0
1
,2

3
8

In
fl
a
ti
o
n
 A

llo
w

a
n
c
e

0
0

0
0

0
5
3
8

T
o

ta
l 
H

R
A

 C
a
p

it
a
l 
S

p
e
n

d
2
6
,8

8
9

2
8
,8

4
0

1
6
,6

7
4

(1
2
,1

6
6
)

1
1
,7

3
3

9
,0

9
3

2
,3

9
0

(8
7
)

3
3
7

4
1

,1
6
7

T
o

ta
l 
H

o
u

s
in

g
 C

a
p

it
a
l 
S

p
e
n

d
2
7
,6

5
4

2
9
,7

5
6

1
7
,5

2
2

(1
2
,2

3
4
)

1
1
,7

3
3

9
,0

9
3

2
,3

9
0

(8
7
)

3
3
7

4
1

,9
3
2

H
o

u
s

in
g

 C
a

p
it

a
l 
R

e
s

o
u

rc
e

s

R
ig

h
t 
to

 B
u
y
 R

e
c
e
ip

ts
 (

G
e
n
e
ra

l 
U

s
e
)

(4
4
1
)

(4
4
1
)

(4
0
0
)

4
1

0
8

0
0

0
0

(4
9
5
)

R
ig

h
t 
to

 B
u
y
 R

e
c
e
ip

ts
 (

R
e
ta

in
e
d
 f
o
r 

N
e
w

 B
u

ild
 /
 A

c
q

u
is

it
io

n
)

0
0

(3
,7

0
3
)

(3
,7

0
3
)

0
8

0
0

0
0

(8
8
4
)

R
ig

h
t 
to

 B
u
y
 R

e
c
e
ip

ts
 (

D
e
b
t 
S

e
t-

A
s
id

e
)

0
0

(1
,6

0
3
)

(1
,6

0
3
)

0
8

0
0

0
0

0

O
th

e
r 

C
a

p
it
a
l 
R

e
c
e

ip
ts

 (
L

a
n

d
 a

n
d

 D
w

e
lli

n
g

s
)

(5
,3

0
8

)
(3

,4
0

9
)

(1
,9

0
0

)
1

,5
0

9
(1

,5
0

9
)

9
(1

,5
0

9
)

0
0

0
(6

,4
6

8
)

M
R

A
 /
 M

R
R

(1
2
,3

7
4
)

(9
,6

9
8
)

(7
,8

7
0
)

1
,8

2
8

(1
,8

2
8
)

1
0

(1
,8

2
8
)

0
0

0
(1

2
,6

7
9
)

C
lie

n
t 
C

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
s

0
0

(1
8
0
)

(1
8
0
)

0
1
1

0
0

0
0

0

D
ir
e
c
t 
R

e
v
e
n
u
e
 F

in
a
n
c
in

g
 o

f 
C

a
p
it
a
l

(7
,1

6
2
)

(1
0
,0

9
7
)

(6
,4

0
6
)

3
,6

9
1

(2
,9

0
9
)

1
2

(2
,9

0
9
)

0
0

0
(1

1
,8

2
0
)

O
th

e
r 

C
a
p
it
a
l 
R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 (

G
ra

n
ts

 /
 S

h
a
re

d
 O

w
n
e
rs

h
ip

 /
 L

o
a
n
 R

e
p
a
y
m

e
n
ts

 /
 R

&
R

)
(1

,8
6
6
)

(1
,8

7
7
)

(6
4
0
)

1
,2

3
7

(8
8

9
)

1
3

(8
8
9
)

0
0

0
(2

,6
5
6
)

D
e
v
e
lo

p
e
r'
s
 C

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
s
 (

A
ff
o

rd
a
b
le

 H
o
u
s
in

g
)

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
(4

,4
6
9
)

P
ru

d
e
n
ti
a
l 
B

o
rr

o
w

in
g

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

T
o

ta
l 
H

o
u

s
in

g
 C

a
p

it
a
l 
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s

(2
7
,1

5
1
)

(2
5
,5

2
2
)

(2
2
,7

0
2
)

2
,8

2
0

(7
,1

3
5
)

(7
,1

3
5
)

0
0

0
(3

9
,4

7
1
)

N
e
t 

(S
u

rp
lu

s
) 

/ 
D

e
fi

c
it

 o
f 

R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s

5
0
3

4
,2

3
4

(5
,1

8
0
)

(9
,4

1
4
)

2
,4

6
1

C
a
p

it
a
l 
B

a
la

n
c
e
s
 b

/f
(1

1
,3

4
7
)

(1
1
,3

4
7
)

(1
1
,3

4
7
)

(8
,1

4
4
)

U
s
e
 o

f 
/ 
(C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 t
o

) 
B

a
la

n
c
e
s
 i
n

 Y
e
a
r

5
0
3

4
,2

3
4

(5
,1

8
0
)

(9
,4

1
4
)

2
,4

6
1

S
e
t-

a
s
id

e
 f
o
r 

fu
tu

re
 D

e
b
t 
R

e
d
e
m

p
ti
o
n

2
,0

8
0

2
,0

8
0

2
,6

0
0

8

E
a
r-

m
a
rk

e
d
 f
o
r 

s
p
e
c
if
ic

 R
e
ta

in
e
d
 R

ig
h
t 
to

 B
u
y
 R

e
c
e
ip

ts
 1

-4
-1

 I
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t

9
9
7

9
9
7

5
,7

8
3

8

R
e
s
id

u
a
l 
c
a
p

it
a
l 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 r

e
m

a
in

in
g

 t
o

 f
u

n
d

 f
u

tu
re

 H
o

u
s
in

g
 I
n

v
e
s
tm

e
n

t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
(7

,7
6
7
)

(4
,0

3
6
)

(8
,1

4
4
)

(5
,6

8
3
)

2
0
1
3
/1

4
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 C

a
p

it
a
l 
In

v
e
s
tm

e
n

t 
P

la
n

 -
 H

R
A

 &
 G

e
n

e
ra

l 
F

u
n

d
 H

o
u

s
in

g

R
e

-P
h

a
s

in
g

 Y
e

a
r

Page 117



Appendix E Notes

Note

1

2

3

4 The apparent underspend in the new build programme in 2013/14 relates to the timing of the spend in 

respect of the 146 new and re-development programme. A net resource of £5,960,000 is required to be 

re-phased into 2014/15 and beyond to ensure that contractual commitments can be met. Payments are 

made under the development contract once the developer has spent more on building out the Affordable 

Housing element of the site than the notional value of the land that the market housing will occupy. The 

timing of this is difficult to predict at project outset, as the length of time taken to get on site in each case 

varies, dependent upon the number of existing residents that requires re-housing and any planning 

constraints on the site. The net re-phasing combines slippage of resource for Roman Court, Barnwell 

Road, Wadloes Road, Campkin Road , Colville Road, Stanesfield Road, Aylesborough Close, Atkins 

Close and Water Lane, partially offset by use of resource for Latimer Close and Clay Farm slightly ahead 

of profile against the latest capital plan.

The underspending of £68,000 is a combination of the following - a) an overspend on the Assessment 

Centre on East Road of £15,000, where final invoices and retention sums were higher than anticipated, b) 

no demand for the use of the budget to tackle unfit housing in the private sector (£20,000), c) an 

overspend in respect of Disabled Facilities Grants of £27,000 and d) an underspend in Private Sector 

Housing Grants and Loans of £149,000, where demand in the year was lower than previously 

experienced.

Notes to the Housing Capital Investment Plan

Reason for Variance

A net underspend of £2,077,000 was evident in 2013/14, combining underspending in a number of areas 

where work is still required and funds will need to be re-phased, including; disabled adaptations (£60,000 

into 2014/15), works to communal areas (£150,000 into 2014/15 and £376,000 into 2015/16), hard 

surfacing works on HRA land (£24,000 into 2014/15), hard-surfacing recycling works (£142,000 into 

2016/17), works to communal flooring (£50,000 into 2014/15), fencing (£15,000 into 2014/15), fire safety 

works (£638,000 into 2014/15) and lifts (£28,000 into 2014/15). Contractor overheads are requested to be 

re-phased pro rata to the re-phased work elements, with £144,000 into 2014/15, and £78,000 into 

2015/16 and beyond.  In addition to re-phasing, there was residual underspending in respect of asbestos 

removal and disabled adaptation works. In addition to re-phasing £15,000 into 2014/15 in respect of 

investment in fencing, it is proposed to carry forward £100,000 of the net underspend in the Housing 

Capital Programme in 2013/14 into 2014/15 to allow the increase in fencing investment proposed as part 

of the Labour Alternative Budget in February 2014 to be delivered with immediate effect. The desire to 

invest in fencing at the higher level of £200,000 per annum on an ongoing basis will be considered as part 

of the review of capital investment in the HRA Mid-Year Financial Review in the context of all future 

investment priorities.

A net underspend of £1,549,000 in decent homes expenditure during 2013/14 relates predominantly to 

delivery of year 3 of the Planned Maintenance Contract, which was due to run until March 2014. 

Overspending in heating ad boilers (£218,000), re-wiring (£85,000), doors (£67,000), kitchens (£26,000), 

bathrooms (£7,000) and major voids (£253,000) was more than offset by underspending in masonry 

decorating (£193,000) re-roofing (£1,030,000) roof strengthening (£299,000), window replacement 

(£17,000), sulphate works (£101,000), chimneys (£90,000), smoke detectors (£8,000) health and safety 

works (£68,000) wall structure work (£13,000) and fees and overheads (£501,000), where not all of the 

planned work was completed during 2013/14, and where re-phasing of resources is required to allow 

completion of the anticipated programme in later years. This includes re-phasing into 2014/15 in respect 

of re-roofing (£946,000), roof structure works (£145,000), chimneys (£90,000), smoke detectors (£8,000), 

health and safety works (£17,000) and wall structures (£13,000). Re-phasing into 2015/16 and beyond is 

requested in respect of deferred masonry decorating (£193,000), sulphate works (£100,000), health and 

safety works (£50,000) and to the end of the existing funding, 2028/29, in respect of sulphate works 

(£204,000). Resource for heating and boilers (£218,000) has been brought forward into 2013/14 to fund 

the apparent overspend, as works were completed ahead of schedule in this area. Contractor overheads 

are requested to be re-phased pro rata to the re-phased work elements, with £173,000 into 2014/15, and 

£19,000 into 2015/16 and beyond. 

Page 118



5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

Underspending of £1,900,000 in respect of the budget for work to re-develop Ditchburn Place is 

requested to be re-phased into 2015/16 to allow this scheme to be progressed in phases across the next 

2 years, following some delay in the early stages of the project in 2013/14. Overspending has occurred in 

respect of Brandon Court (£85,000) where final costs were greater than anticipated due to the need to 

undertake some remedial works following problems with a sub-contractor and in the budget for upgrade 

and installation of emergency alarm equipment (£23,000), where the costs of upgrade for the sheltered 

schemes identified were higher than originally anticipated.

Approval was given for the 2013/14 Cambridge Standard allocation to be spent on a variety of 

environmental projects across the city. Some of these projects are yet to be completed and resources of 

£106,000 are requested to be carried forward into 2014/15 to allow these, and other projects to take 

place.

Slippage in the decent homes and other investment in the housing stock in 2013/14 resulted in a lower 

than anticipated call on the use of funding from the major repairs reserve for the year. The balance of use 

of the reserve (£1,828,000) will need to re-phased in line with the expenditure to ensure that sufficient 

resource is available to finance the expenditure at year end.

Homes and Communities Agency Grant of £425,000 was received in 2013/14 for 3 schemes which 

started on site and 1 scheme which reached completion. An additional £889,000 is due for schemes 

which were expected to start on site during the year, but which have been delayed until early 2014/15, the 

point at which this resource is now anticipated to be received. 

Due to slippage in the housing capital plan in 2013/14, the use of revenue funding for capital purposes 

was significantly less than anticipated. A request to increase the use of revenue funding of capital 

expenditure in 2014/15 and beyond by the £2,909,000 not utilised in 2013/14, will ensure that there is 

sufficient funding to meet the rephased expenditure requested above.

Income was due from leaseholders in 2013/14 in relation to their share of the cost of major improvements 

undertaken as part of the decent homes programme (£122,000) and was also received from private 

residents in relation to contributions towards, or repayments of, private sector housing repair grants 

(£58,000).

Capital receipts totalling an estimated £1,509,000 in respect of the value of land transfer for the market 

housing at Latimer Close, Barnwell Road and Stanesfied Road are now anticipated during 2014/15, at the 

point at which the expenditure incurred by the developer in respect of the affordable housing element of 

the site exceeds the value of the land and cash payments start to be made.

 60 properties were sold in total during 2013/14. £400,000 of the capital receipt is available for general 

use, while £1,603,000 of the overall capital receipt is identified as set-aside to be offset against the debt 

associated with the unit no longer owned. A further £3,703,000 of right to buy receipts have been retained 

by the local authority in 2013/14, but must be re-invested in financing up to 30% of additional social 

housing units, provided this is done within a 3 year time frame.

Projects to upgrade aspects of the Orchard Housing Management System and to implement a new 

Repairs IT Solution and Mobile Working Application have been completed, with underspending of

£23,000 and £12,000 respectively. The funding identified to procure an IT system for the Anti-Social 

Behaviour Service is no longer required as the authority has opted to pilot use of the system deployed by 

the Police Authority. Resources of £148,000 are requested to be rephased to complete the roofing work 

to HRA commercial premises in Campkin Road. The remaining allocation from 2013/14 for buying back 

ex-Council dwellings of £333,000 is also requested as a carry forward, to allow the authority to proceed 

with acquisitions to ensure appropriate utilisation of retained right to buy receipts, which need 70% match 

funding.

Page 119



Page 120

This page is intentionally left blank



RECOMMENDATION TO COUNCIL 
(EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR FOR FIANNCE AND RESOURCES 

– COUNCILLOR OWERS) 
 
 

ANNUAL TREASURY MANAGEMENT REPORT 2013/14, 
INCLUDING CHANGES TO TREASURY MANAGEMENT 

STRATEGY 2014/15 
 
The Council is required by regulations issued under the Local 
Government Act 2003, to produce an annual treasury report 
reviewing treasury management activities and the actual prudential 
and treasury indicators for each financial year.  
 
The report met the requirements of both the CIPFA Code of 
Practice on Treasury Management (the Code) and the CIPFA 
Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities (the 
Prudential Code 2011) in respect of 2013/14.  
 
The report also included information on capital activity during the 
year together with associated prudential & treasury indicators.  
 
It is a requirement of the Code of Practice on Treasury 
Management (2011 Edition) that the changes as referred to in 
Paragraph 4.2 & Appendix D of the officers report require the 
approval of this Committee and Full Council.  
 
 
The Strategy and Resources Scrutiny Committee considered and 
voted (unanimously) to amend the recommendations (see 
underlined amendment below).   
 
The Strategy and Resources Scrutiny Committee then considered 
and approved the amended recommendations unanimously.   
 
Accordingly, Council is recommended: 
 

i. To approve the report, which includes the Council’s actual 
prudential and treasury indicators for 2013/14.  
 

ii. To Approve the amendments to the Treasury Management 
Strategy which are summarised below:- 

 

- Increase Counterparty limits  

- Increase the limits for longer term investments  

- Include other Building Societies on Counterparty list  

Agenda Item 4c

Page 121



- Include suggested foreign banks on Counterparty list  

- Include Investment Commercial Properties on Counterparty list 
pending a more detailed report on commercial property to the 
Chair, Executive Councillor and Spokes.  

 
The details of the above recommendations are shown in 
Paragraph 4.2 & Appendix D of the officer’s report.  
 

Page 122



Report Page No: 1 

 

 

Cambridge City Council 
 

Item 

 

To: The Executive Councillor for Finance & Resources:  

Report by: Head of Finance (The Council’s Section 151 Officer) 

Relevant scrutiny 
committee:  

Strategy & 
Resources 
Scrutiny 
Committee 

14/7/2014 

Wards affected: All Wards 
 
ANNUAL TREASURY MANAGEMENT REPORT 2013/14, INCLUDING 
CHANGES TO TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 2014/15 
Key Decision 
 
1. Executive summary  
 
1.1 The Council is required by regulations issued under the Local 

Government Act 2003, to produce an annual treasury report reviewing 
treasury management activities and the actual prudential and treasury 
indicators for each financial year.  

 
1.2 This report meets the requirements of both the CIPFA Code of 

Practice on Treasury Management (the Code) and the CIPFA 
Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities (the 
Prudential Code 2011) in respect of 2013/14. 

 
1.3 This report also includes information on capital activity during the year 

together with associated prudential & treasury indicators. 
 

1.4 It is a requirement of the Code of Practice on Treasury Management 
(2011 Edition) that the changes as referred to in Paragraph 4.2 & 
Appendix D require the approval of this Committee and Full Council. 

 
2. Recommendations  
 
2.1 The Executive Councillor is asked to recommend this report, which 

includes the Council’s actual prudential and treasury indicators for 
2013/14.  

 
2.2 The Executive Councillor is also asked to recommend these 

amendments to the Treasury Management Strategy which are 
summarised below:- 

 

Page 123



Report Page No: 2 

· Recommendation 1 – Increase Counterparty limits 

· Recommendation 2 – Increase the limits for longer term investments 

· Recommendation 3 – Include other Building Societies on Counterparty 
list 

· Recommendation 4 – Include suggested foreign banks on 
Counterparty list 

· Recommendation 5 – Include Investment Commercial Properties on 
Counterparty list 

 
2.3 The details of the above recommendations are shown in Paragraph 4.2  
      & Appendix D and are approved by this Committee and Full Council,  
      scheduled for 24th July 2014. 
 
3. Background  

 
3.1 This report provides information on:  

· Capital expenditure and financing activity during the year 

· The impact of capital spending on the Council’s ‘need to  

     borrow’  

· The overall treasury position as at 31st March 2014 

· An update on Icelandic Bank Deposits 

· The Council’s compliance with prudential & treasury 
indicators 

· Treasury Management Position as at 31st March 2014 
(Appendix A) 

· The Council’s Treasury Management advisors(Capita 

     Asset Services) view on UK Interest & Investment rates 

     (Appendix B) 

· The actual prudential and treasury indicators (Appendix C) 

· Changes  to Treasury Management  Strategy (Appendix D) 

· A Glossary of Terms and Abbreviations (Appendix E) 

 

3.2 The Council’s Capital Expenditure and Financing 2013/14 

The Council undertakes capital expenditure on long-term assets. 
These activities may either be: 

 

· Financed immediately through the application of capital or 
revenue resources (capital receipts, capital grants, 
developer contributions, revenue contributions, reserves 
etc.), which has no resultant impact on the Council’s 
borrowing need; or; 

Page 124



Report Page No: 3 

· If insufficient financing is available, or a decision is taken not 
to apply other resources, the funding of capital expenditure 
will give rise to a borrowing need.   

 

The actual capital expenditure forms one of the required prudential 
indicators.  The table below shows the actual capital expenditure and 
how this was financed. 

* Per Mid-Year Financial Review (MFR) agreed on 24th October 2013 

3.3 The Council’s overall borrowing need 

During 2013/14, there was no requirement for external borrowing. Un-
financed capital expenditure for the Clay Farm Collaboration 
Agreement of £303,000, as shown above, was met temporarily from 
internal cash borrowing, until the expected future capital receipt can 
be used. 

3.4 Current Debt as at 31st March 2014 

The table below shows the Council’s current outstanding debt and 
headroom (the amount of additional borrowing that is possible without 
breaching the Authorised Borrowing Limit):- 

 

 
2012/13 
£’000 

Actual 

2013/14 
£’000 

Revised 
Estimate * 

2013/14 
£’000 

Actual 

Non-HRA capital expenditure 8,704 10,272 7,425 

HRA capital expenditure 11,529 29,756 16,675 

Total capital expenditure 20,233 40,028 24,100 

    

Resourced by:    

· Capital receipts -920 -3,266 -3,413 

· Other contributions -17,561 -36,762 -20,384 

Total available resources for 
financing capital expenditure 

 
-18,481 

 
-40,028 

 
-23,797 

Un-financed capital 
expenditure  

 
1,752 

 
- 

 
303 

Page 125



Report Page No: 4 

 

At present the only debt held by the authority relates to the twenty 
loans from PWLB for self-financing the HRA. 

3.5 Treasury Position as at 31 March 2014 

The Council’s debt and deposit position is managed in order to ensure 
adequate liquidity for revenue and capital activities, security for 
deposits and to manage risk in relation to all treasury management 
activities. Procedures and controls to achieve these objectives are 
well established both through the application of approved Treasury 
Management Practices and regular reporting to Members.  
 
The tables below provide a comparison of deposit activity and outturn 
for 2013/14 against 2012/13. 
 

Actual  
Returns 

2012/2013 2013/2014 

Deposit Type 
Average 
Deposits 

Average Rate of 
Return 

Average Deposits 
Average Rate of 

Return 

 1.  Internally Managed Funds 

Fixed Short-Term        
(<365 days) 

£58.47m 0.86% 49.21m 0.64% 

Call/Overnight 
Accounts 

£17.53m 0.65% 33.99m 0.64% 

Fixed Long-Term 
(>365 days) 

- - 0.65m 1.09% 

 2.  Overall Deposit Return 

 £76.00m 0.81% £83.85m 
 

0.64% 
 

 Principal (£) 

Authorised Borrowing Limit (A) 250,000,000 

HRA Debt Limit (B) 230,839,000 

2011/12 Borrowing (for HRA Self-Financing, C) 213,572,000 

General Fund Headroom (A minus B) 19,161,000 

HRA Headroom (B minus C) 17,267,000 

2012/13 Borrowing NIL 

2013/14 Borrowing NIL 

Total Current Headroom (A minus C) 36,428,000 

Page 126



Report Page No: 5 

Benchmark 
Returns 

2012/2013 2013/2014 

Deposit Period 
Offer 

(LIBOR) 
Bid 

(LIBID) 
Offer 

(LIBOR) 
Bid 

(LIBID) 

Overnight 0.51% 0.38% 0.47% 0.35% 

7 day 0.52% 0.39% 0.48% 0.35% 

1 month 0.55% 0.43% 0.49% 0.36% 

3 month 0.69% 0.56% 0.52% 0.39% 

6 month 0.91% 0.78% 0.60% 0.47% 

1 year 1.33% 1.21% 0.89% 0.76% 

Average 0.75% 0.63% 0.57% 0.45% 

 
Notes:  
The ‘Benchmark Return’ figures are based upon Capita Asset 
Services average money market LIBOR & LIBID rates respectively. 
The benchmark returns shown above equate to the average annual 
rate for deposits as quoted on 31st March 2014. Similarly, the actual 
returns shown above equates to the Council’s recorded average 
annual rate, also, on 31st March 2014. 
 
Low market interest rates contributed to a lower yield in 2013/14 than 
in 2012/13. However, achievements compared favourably against the 
‘Benchmark Returns’ for 2013/14. 
  

3.6 Interest of £538,000 has been earned on the Council’s deposits during 
2013/14 at an average rate of 0.64%.  This rate of return compares 
favourably with the average LIBOR & LIBID rate of 0.57% & 0.45%, 
respectively, as issued on 31st March 2014 by Capita. The budget for 
interest earned in 2013/14 was £576,000.   
 

3.7 Interest yield has under-achieved the interest income budget by 
£38,000 for the year 2013/14. This was mainly due to further 
significant falls in market interest rates. The revised Treasury 
Management Strategy was agreed by Council on 24th October 2013 
which will alleviate some of the effects of the downturn in market 
interest rates during 2014/15.  
 

3.8 All of the Council’s deposits had maturities of less than two years. A 
summary of deposits is shown at Appendix A. 

 

Page 127



Report Page No: 6 

3.9 Icelandic Bank Deposits Update 

 This authority had the following deposit (s) in Icelandic banks and their 
UK subsidiaries at the time of the collapse of the Icelandic banking 
system in October 2008, as detailed below:- 

 
   Counterparty Principal % Rate Deposit Date 

   Heritable Bank Limited 1,000,000 5.65000% 09-Jan-08 

   Heritable Bank Limited 1,000,000 6.21000% 13-Jun-08 

   LBI hf 2,000,000 6.22000% 30-Jun-08 

   Heritable Bank Limited 2,000,000 6.00000% 05-Sep-08 

   LBI hf 1,000,000 6.35000% 01-Jul-08 

   LBI hf 2,000,000 6.42000% 01-Jul-08 

   Total:- 9,000,000   

   

  Heritable Bank Limited 

The total of distributions now received from the administrators of 
Heritable Bank Plc represents 94.02 pence in the pound of the total 
claim. 

  LBI hf 

  The total of distributions now received from LBI (formerly Landsbanki 
Islands Hf) represents approximately 55% of the claim.    

3.10 Interest Rate Update  

Capita Asset Services is the Council’s independent treasury advisor. 
In support of effective forecasting the Council needs to be aware of 
the potential influence of market interest & investment rates for the 
Council. Capita’s opinion is presented at Appendix B, and provides an 
overview as at 31st March 2014. 

3.11 The Bank of England’s May 2014 Inflation Report gives additional 
information on growth, inflation and interest rates. The Bank of 
England Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) noted that the economy 
appeared on course to absorb remaining spare capacity over the next 
few years, thereby keeping inflation close to the 2% target, reducing 
the need for an increase in interest rates.  

  The margin of spare capacity had probably narrowed slightly over 
recent months, but the central view of most MPC members was that it 
remained in the region of 1% to 1.5% of GDP. The Committee judged 
that there was scope to make further inroads into slack before an 
increase in Bank Rate was necessary. 

Page 128



Report Page No: 7 

3.12 Compliance with Treasury Limits 

During the financial year the Council operated within the ‘authorised’ 
and ‘operational’ borrowing limits contained within the Prudential 
Indicators set out in the Council’s Treasury Management Strategy 
Statement.  The outturn for these Prudential Indicators is shown in 
Appendix C. 
 

4. Proposed Changes to Treasury Management Strategy 2014/15 (to 
    include an  assessment of any associated risks) 
 
4.1  Due to reduced market interest rates, with no anticipated 
       increases in the near future, a number of recommendations are 
       being proposed that maintain interest returns, while minimising any 
       associated risks. 
 
4.2  These proposals are highlighted in the table shown below:- 
 

Proposed Treasury Strategy 
Change 

 

Reason for Change 
 
 

Risk 
 
 

1.Increase counterparty limits 
by £5m (banking group by 
£7.5m) 

Provides the opportunity for 
not using the lower yield 
alternatives with deposit 
balances increasing 

A major proportion of 
the deposit portfolio is 
placed in one area 

2.Increase the limit for 
investments greater than 1 
year to £30m 

To give greater diversity to 
this Council, for options that 
avoids depositing funds in 
the Debt Management 
Office (DMO) at a low 
interest rate currently at 
0.25%. 
Also, to achieve better 
yields at the longer end of 
the market 

Interest rates increase 
sooner than expected 
making current 
deposits ‘tied up’ for 
longer at the previous 
interest rate 

 

3.Include other building  
societies on counterparty list 
with an asset value greater 
than £5 billion 

Improve  diversity in 
accessing counterparties 

 

No guarantee of 
security 

 

4.Include other highly rated  
foreign banks to our 
counterparty list of £5m each 
(Deutsche Bank, Santander 
UK, Svenska Handelsbanken) 

Rates on our current call 
accounts are reducing 
substantially. This sector 
will increase our access to 
better interest rates with 
quality foreign institutions 

Not backed by the 
Bank of England 
(except Santander UK), 
which may compromise 
security and liquidity  

 
5.Include the Council's UK 
Investment Property Portfolio 
on counterparty list and 
‘pooled’ property vehicles (e.g. 
CCLA Local Authorities’ 
Property Fund) – up to £10m    

Improve yields from capital 
investment & ‘pooled’ 
property funds in order to 
gain increased revenue 
returns from commercial 
property 

Any downturns in the 
property market could 
compromise the 
preservation of capital 
and liquidity (thus area 
continually monitored) 

Page 129



Report Page No: 8 

5. Implications 
  
 
(a) Financial Implications 
           
 The recommendations will improve interest receipts with the current 

level of interest rates being continually reduced.        
 
(b) Staffing Implications 
 
 None. 
 
(c) Equality & Poverty Implications 
 

No negative impacts identified. 
 

(d) Environmental Implications 
  
 None. 
 
(e)   Procurement 
 
 None. 
 
(f) Consultation and communication 

 
 None required. 
 

 (g)  Community Safety 
 
 No community safety implications. 
 
6. Background papers  
 
6.1 None.   
 
7. Appendices  
 
7.1 Appendix A – The Council’s deposits as at 31st March 2014 

Appendix B – Capita’s opinion on UK interest rates 
Appendix C – Prudential Indicators – outturn for 2013/14  
Appendix D – Summarised amendments to the current Treasury  
                       Management Strategy 
Appendix E – Glossary of Terms and Abbreviations 
 

 

Page 130



Report Page No: 9 

8. Inspection of papers  
 
8.1 To inspect the background papers or if you have a query on the report 

please contact: 
 
         Author’s Name:                                                     Stephen Bevis 
         Author’s Tel. No.                                                     01223 - 458153 
         Author’s Email:                         stephen.bevis@cambridge.gov.uk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 131



Report Page No: 10 

Appendix A 

 
 

TREASURY MANAGEMENT POSITION AS AT 31st March 2014 
   

 
CURRENT DEPOSITS 
 
The Council’s current deposits are summarised (by counterparty) in the table below, this 
does not include deposits with Icelandic banks. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Counterparty 
% Rate Duration Principal 

(£) 

Fixed Term Deposits    

Bank of Scotland Plc 0.98 1 year 3,000,000 

Bank of Scotland Plc 0.98 1 year 3,000,000 

Bank of Scotland Plc 0.98 1 year 2,000,000 

Bank of Scotland Plc 0.95 1 year 2,000,000 

Bank of Scotland Plc 0.95 1 year 3,000,000 

Bank of Scotland Plc 0.95 1 year 1,000,000 

Lloyds TSB Bank Plc 0.95 1 year 2,500,000 

Lloyds TSB Bank Plc 0.85 9 months 3,000,000 

Lloyds TSB Bank Plc 0.83 9 months 3,000,000 

Nationwide BS 0.47 3 months 2,000,000 

Nationwide BS 0.47 3 months 1,000,000 

Nationwide BS 0.47 3 months 2,000,000 

Nationwide BS 0.47 3 months 2,000,000 

Nationwide BS 0.47 3 months 2,000,000 

Nationwide BS 0.47 3 months 1,000,000 

Nationwide BS 0.47 3 months 2,000,000 

Nationwide BS 0.47 3 months 2,000,000 

Nationwide BS 0.47 3 months 1,000,000 

Cheshire West & Cheshire Council 1.15 2 years 2,000,000 

Leeds City Council 0.45 1 day 4,000,000 

Thurrock Borough Council 0.47 4 months 2,000,000 

Wolverhampton City Council 1.00 18 months 3,000,000 

West Yorkshire PCC 0.40 10 days 500,000 

Total Fixed Term Deposits   49,000,000 

    

Variable Rate Notice Accounts    

Barclays Bank Plc 0.62188 100 Day Notice 15,000,000 

The Royal Bank of Scotland 0.60 Same Day Notice 4,960,023 

National Westminster Bank Plc 0.60 95 Day notice 10,000,000 

HSBC Bank Plc 0.30 Same Day Notice 1,210,000 

Total Variable Rate Notice Accounts   31,170,023 
    

TOTAL    80,170,023 

 

The above deposits include any forward-deals or forward-renewals that have been 
agreed (i.e. where the deposit/renewal will take place at a future date).   

 
 
 
 
 

Page 132



Report Page No: 11 

Appendix B 
 

Capita’s Opinion on UK Interest & Investment Rates as at 31
st

 
March 2014. 

UK INTEREST RATES 

The original expectation for 2013/14 was that Bank Rate would not rise 
during the year and for it only to start gently rising from quarter 1 2015.  This 
forecast rise has now been pushed back to a start in quarter 3 2015.  
Economic growth (GDP) in the UK was virtually flat during 2012/13 but 
surged strongly during the year.  Consequently there was no additional 
quantitative easing during 2013/14 and Bank Rate ended the year 
unchanged at 0.5% for the fifth successive year.  While CPI inflation had 
remained stubbornly high and substantially above the 2% target during 
2012, by January 2014 it had, at last, fallen below the target rate to 1.9% 
and then fell further to 1.7% in February.  It is also expected to remain 
slightly below the target rate for most of the two years ahead.   

UK INVESTMENT RATES 

Market expectations as to the timing of the start of monetary tightening 
ended up unchanged at early 2014.  The Funding for Lending Scheme 
resulted in deposit rates remaining depressed during the whole of the year, 
although the part of the scheme supporting provision of credit for mortgages 
came to an end in the first quarter of 2014. The table below represents 
graphically the comparison between market investment rates with the Bank 
of England Base Rate. 
 

 

Page 133



Report Page No: 12 

Appendix C 

 
PRUDENTIAL & TREASURY MANAGEMENT INDICATORS 

 
 Actual 

2012/13 
£’000 

Original 
2013/14 
£’000 

Revised 
2013/14 
£’000 

Actual 
2013/14 
£’000 

 

      
 
PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS 

     

      
Capital expenditure       
 - General Fund        8,704      6,761      10,272 7,425  
 - HRA      11,529    21,581      29,756  16,675  
Total      20,233            28,342     40,028 24,100  
      
Incremental impact of  
capital deposit decisions on: 

     

Band D Council Tax (City 
element) 

0 0 0 0  

Average weekly housing rent 0 0 0 0  
      
Capital Financing Requirement 
(CFR) as at 31 March 

     

 - General Fund 858         858 858 1,161  
 - HRA 214,748 214,748 214,748 214,748  
Total 
 

215,606 215,606 215,606 215,909  

Deposits at 31 March (Note 2) 
 

65,543 59,027 76,206 82,796  

Net borrowing Requirement 150,063 156,579 139,400 133,113  
 
Change in the CFR 

 
1,752 

 
0 

 
0 

 
303 

 

      
External Gross Debt           213,572 213,572 213,572 213,572  
      
Ratio of financing costs to net 
revenue stream 

 
  

  

-General Fund -2.85% -2.64% -2.65%       -2.77%  
-HRA 20.04% 19.50% 19.50%      19.50%  
Total 17.19% 16.86%     16.85%      16.73%  

 
Note1: ‘Original’ refers to the Council’s Budget Setting Report 2013/14 as agreed by Council 
on 21st February 2013. 
 
Note 2: As per the Council’s Balance Sheet. 
 

 

 
 

 

 

Page 134



Report Page No: 13 

 

PRUDENTIAL & TREASURY MANAGEMENT INDICATORS 

 

 Actual 
2012/13 
£’000 

Original 
2013/14 
£’000 

Revised 
2013/14 
£’000 

Actual 
2013/14 
£’000 

 

      
TREASURY INDICATORS      
      
Authorised limit      
for borrowing 250,000 250,000 250,000 250,000  
for other long term liabilities 0 0 0 0  
Total 250,000 250,000 250,000 250,000  
 
HRA Debt Limit 
 

 
230,839 

 
230,839 

 
230,839 

 
230,839 

 

Operational boundary      
for borrowing 215,606 215,606 215,606 215.909  
for other long term liabilities 0 0 0 0  
Total 215,606 215,606 215,606 215,909  
 
Upper limit for total principal 
sums deposited for over 364 
days & up to 3 years 

 
 
 

5,000 

 
 
 

5,000 

 
 
 

5,000 

 
 
 
        5,000 

 

      
Upper limit for fixed & variable 
interest rate exposure 

 
  

  

Net interest on fixed rate 
borrowing/deposits 

 
6,840 6,942 6,942 

 
6,916 

 

      
Net interest on variable rate 
borrowing/deposits 

 
-23 -23 -23 

 
-23 

 

 
Maturity structure of new fixed 
rate borrowing during 2012/13 

 
Upper 
Limit 

Lower 
Limit 

  

10 years and above (PWLB 
borrowing for HRA Reform) 

 
100% 100% 

  

 
Note1: ‘Original’ refers to the Council’s Budget Setting Report 2013/14 as agreed by 
Council on 21st February 2013. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 135



Report Page No: 14 

Appendix D 

 
Recommended Changes to the Treasury Management 

Strategy to take effect from 25
th

 July 2014 
 

Counterparty Duration Current Limit  
(£) 

Revised Limit 
(£) 

Increase Single 
Counterparty limit i.e. 
UK Nationalised & 
Non-Nationalised UK 
Domiciled Banks and 
Local Authorities 

 
 
 
 
 

Up to 1 year 

 
 

 
 

 
15m 

 
 

 
 

 
20m 

Increase counterparty 
Group Bank limit i.e. 
UK Nationalised & 
Non-Nationalised UK 
Domiciled Banks 

 
 
 
 

Up to 1 year 

 
22.5m (1.5 times 

Single 
Counterparty limit) 

 
30m (1.5 times 

Single 
Counterparty 

limit) 

Increasing the 
financial limit for non-
specified investments 
(local authorities only) 

 
Over 1 year 
and up to 5 

years 

 
 

 
5m 

 
 

 
Up to 30m 

Increase the limit for 
UK Investment 
Commercial Properties 
(Including CCLA Local 
Authorities’ Property 
Fund) 

 
 
 

Over 1 year 
and up to 5 

years 

 
 
 
 
 

NIL 

 
 
 
 
 

Up to 10m 

Increase the HSBC 
Deposit A/C limit 

 
Up to 1 year 

 
20m 

 
25m 

Increase the Certificate 
of Deposit (single 
counterparty) limit 

Liquid Rolling 
Balance  

 

 
 

10m 

 
 

15m 

Increase the Money 
Market Fund (single 
counterparty) limit 

Liquid Rolling 
Balance  

 

 
 

10m 

 
 

15m 

Include other UK 
Building Societies 
(that fall just outside 
our criteria) 

1 month or in 
line with 

Capita’s Credit 
Worthiness 

Methodologies, 
if longer 

 
 
 
 
 

NIL 

 
 
 
 

2m per Building 
Society 

Making use of highly 
rated foreign banking 
institutions (e.g. 
Deutsche Bank, 
Santander UK & 
Svenska 
Handelsbanken) 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Up to 1 year 

 
 
 
 
 
 

NIL 

 
 
 

 
 

5m per foreign 
bank 

Note:- An updated Counterparty list incorporating the above changes are shown, 
also under Appendix D, for additional information. 
 

Page 136



Report Page No: 15 

Proposed Revised Counterparty List (Recommendations shown in 
bold) 

The full listing of approved counterparties is shown below, showing the category under 
which the counterparty has been approved, the appropriate deposit limit and current 
duration limits.  The changes recommended are shown in bold.  
 

Name 
Council’s 
Current 

Deposit Period 
Category Limit (£) 

All UK Local Authorities N/A Local Authority 20m 

All UK Local Authorities – 
longer term limit 

Over 1 year 
and up to 5 

years 
Local Authority Up to 30m 

UK Investment Commercial 
Properties (Including CCLA 
Local Authorities’ Property 
Fund) 

N/A 
UK Commercial 
Property Portfolio 

 
 

Up to 10m 

All UK Passenger Transport 
Authorities 

N/A 
Passenger 
Transport 
Authority 

20m 

All UK Police Authorities N/A Police Authority 20m 

All UK Fire Authorities N/A Fire Authority 20m 

All UK Nationalised 
Industries 

N/A 
Nationalised 
Industry 

20m 

Debt Management Account 
Deposit Facility 

N/A DMADF None 

Barclays Bank Plc 100 days UK Bank 20m  

HSBC Bank Plc 1 year UK Bank 25m 

Standard Chartered Bank 1 year UK Bank 20m  

Bank of Scotland Plc 1 Year 
UK Nationalised 
Bank 

20m 

Lloyds TSB Bank Plc 1 Year 
UK Nationalised 
Bank 

20m 

National Westminster Bank 
Plc 

1 Year 
UK Nationalised 
Bank 

20m 

The Royal Bank of Scotland 
Plc 

1 Year 
UK Nationalised 
Bank 

20m 

Members of a Bank Group 1 Year 
UK Nationalised 
Bank 

30m 

Deutsche Bank 

In line with 
Capita’s Credit 

Worthiness 
Methodologies 

Foreign Banking 
Institution 

5m 

Santander Bank UK Plc 

In line with 
Capita’s Credit 

Worthiness 
Methodologies 

Foreign Banking 
Institution 
(domiciled in UK) 

5m 

Page 137



Report Page No: 16 

Name 
Council’s 
Current 

Deposit Period 
Category Limit (£) 

Svenska Handelsbanken 

In line with 
Capita’s Credit 

Worthiness 
Methodologies 

Foreign Banking 
Institution 
 
 

5m 
 
 
 

Nationwide Building Society 

In line with 
Capita’s Credit 

Worthiness 
Methodologies 

UK Building 
Society 
 
 

20m  
 
 
 

Other UK Building 
Societies with an asset 
value greater than £5 
billion 
 
 

1 month or in 
line with 

Capita’s Credit 
Worthiness 

Methodologies, 
if longer 

UK Building 
Society 
 
 
 
 

2m per 
Building 
Society 

 
 
 

Money Market Funds – 
AAA mmf 

Liquid Rolling 
Balance 

Financial 
Instrument 

15m (in total, 
per fund) 

Certificate of Deposits (CDs 
with UK Banking 
Institutions)  – AAA 

Liquid Rolling 
Balance 

Financial 
Instrument 

15m  
(per single 

counterparty)  

Certificate of Deposits 
(CDs with UK Building 
Societies)  – AAA 

Liquid Rolling 
Balance 

Financial 
Instrument 

2m  
(per single 

counterparty)  

Certificate of Deposits 
(CDs with Foreign 
Banking Institutions)  – 
AAA 

Liquid Rolling 
Balance 

Financial 
Instrument 

2m  
(per single 

counterparty)  

Custodian of Funds - AAA 

Requirement for 
Undertaking 

Financial 
Instruments 

Fund Managers 
Up to 15m  
(per single 

counterparty) 

UK Government Gilts 
(longer term Government 
debt) – AAA 

Over 1 year & 
up to 30 Years 

Financial 
Instrument 

None (through 
DMADF, via 
secondary 

market) 

UK Government Treasury 
Bills (shorter term 
Government debts) - AAA 

Up to 6 months 
Financial 
Instrument 

None (via 
DMADF) 

Supranational Bonds - AAA 
Over 1 year & 
up to 50 Years 

Multi-lateral 
Development 
Bank Bond 

In line with 
Capita’s Lending 
Methodologies 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 138



Report Page No: 17 

Appendix E 

Treasury Management – Glossary of Terms and Abbreviations 

Term Definition 

Authorised Limit for External 
Borrowing 

Represents a control on the maximum level of borrowing 

Capital Expenditure 

Expenditure capitalised in accordance with regulations i.e. 
material expenditure either by Government Directive or on 
capital assets, such as land and buildings, owned by the 
Council (as opposed to revenue expenditure which is on 
day to day items including employees’ pay, premises costs 
and supplies and services) 

Capital Financing Requirement 

A measure of the Council’s underlying borrowing need i.e. it 
represents the total historical outstanding capital 
expenditure which has not been paid for from either 
revenue or capital resources 

CIPFA   Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy 

Consumer Price Index (CPI) 
Measures changes in the price level of a market of 
consumer goods and services purchased by households 

Counter-parties Financial Institutions with which funds may be placed 

Credit Risk 
Risk of borrower defaulting on any type of debt by failing to 
make payments which it is obligated to do 

DCLG  Department for Communities & Local Government 

Eurocurrency 
Any deposits residing in banks located outside borders of 
the country that issues the deposit that it is denominated in 

Gross Domestic Product (GDP) 
GDP per capita is considered an indicator of a country’s 
‘standard of living’ 

HRA  
Housing Revenue Account - a ‘ring-fenced’ account for local 
authority housing account where a council acts as landlord 

HRA Self-Financing 
A new funding regime for the HRA introduced in place of the 
previous annual subsidy system 

LBI hf Formerly Landsbanki Islands hf  

London Inter-bank Bid Rate 
(LIBID) 

The average estimated interest rate leading banks in 
London are willing to pay for eurocurrency deposits 

London Inter-bank Offered Rate 
(LIBOR) 

The average interest rate estimated by leading banks in 
London would be charged if borrowing from other banks 

Liquidity A measure of how readily available an investment is 

MPC  
Monetary Policy Committee - The Bank of England 
Committee responsible for setting the UK’s bank base rate 

Net Borrowing Requirement External borrowing less deposits 

Operational Boundary 
Limit which external borrowing is not normally expected to 
exceed 

PWLB   
Public Works Loans Board  - an Executive Government 
Agency of HM Treasury from which local authorities & other 
prescribed bodies may borrow at favourable interest rates 

Security A measure of the creditworthiness of a counter-party 

Yield Interest, or rate of return, on an investment 

 

Page 139



Page 140

This page is intentionally left blank



RECOMMENDATION TO COUNCIL 
(EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR FOR PLANNING  

POLICY AND TRANSPORT–  
COUNCILLOR BLENCOWE) 

 

 
PROPOSED NEW CONVENTION FOR PLANNING COMMITTEE 
RELATING TO DECISIONS CONTRARY TO OFFICER ADVICE 

 
Planning Committee Members considered a report in January 
2014 examining the council’s performance with planning appeals 
and the recent appeal case relating to the redevelopment of 32 – 
38 Station Road Cambridge.   

 
The committee agreed a number of follow up actions including the 
holding of a facilitated member review session and the introduction 
of a new convention to be followed in the event that the committee 
is minded to refuse/approve major/significant planning applications 
against the advice of its officers. The review session was held on 
14 April and was supported by external facilitators. 

 
Planning Committee considered a further report in late April 
detailing how the new convention might be introduced and agreed 
by a majority that Environment Scrutiny Committee should be 
asked to look at this issue. The report to Planning Committee and 
the notes from the discussion at the April meeting are attached at 
Appendix A and B. 

 
Environment Scrutiny Committee was asked to review the 
operation of the convention being proposed, to take account of the 
previous comments of Planning Committee and make a 
recommendation to Full Council that the convention is introduced. 
Appendix C of the officers report outlined the proposed convention. 
 
 
The Environment Scrutiny Committee considered and approved 
the recommendations unanimously.  
 

 
Accordingly, Council is recommended: 
 

i. To approve an amendment to the constitution to include a 
new convention for the Planning Committee involving a 
deferred decision making process for appropriate cases.  

 

Agenda Item 4d

Page 141



ii. The convention process to be introduced for a 12 month trial 
period from September 2014. The convention to apply in the 
circumstances where the committee resolves that it is 
minded to refuse or approve major applications schemes 
contrary to the recommendation of its officers and be subject 
to the operational arrangements outlined in Appendix C of 
the officers report. 

iii. To delegate to the Heads of Legal and Planning Services 
authority to amend the constitution to include the new 
convention, amend procedures, update guidance, provide 
training as necessary to ensure the smooth implementation 
of the new convention 

iv. To request the Head of Planning Services to provide a 
review report to Environment Scrutiny Committee on cases 
where the convention has applied, after 12 months operation 

 

Page 142



Report Page No: 1 

 

 

Cambridge City Council 
 

Item 

 

To: Executive Councillor for Planning Policy and 
Transport: Councillor Kevin Blencowe 

Report by: Head of Planning Services 

Relevant scrutiny 
committee:  

Environment 
Scrutiny 
Committee 

8/7/2014 

Wards affected: All 
 

PROPOSED NEW CONVENTION FOR PLANNING COMMITTEE 
RELATING TO DECISIONS CONTRARY TO OFFICER ADVICE 

 
 
Not a Key Decision 

 
 
1. Executive summary  
 
1.1 Planning Committee Members considered a report in January 2014 

examining the council’s performance with planning appeals and the 
recent appeal case relating to the redevelopment of 32 – 38 Station 
Road Cambridge.   
 

1.2 The committee agreed a number of follow up actions including the 
holding of a facilitated member review session and the introduction of 
a new convention to be followed in the event that the committee is 
minded to refuse/approve major/significant planning applications 
against the advice of its officers. The review session was held on 14 
April and was supported by external facilitators. 
 

1.3 Planning Committee considered a further report in late April detailing 
how the new convention might be introduced and agreed by a majority 
that Environment Scrutiny Committee should be asked to look at this 
issue. The report to Planning Committee and the notes from the 
discussion at the April meeting are attached at Appendix A and B. 
 

1.4 Environment Scrutiny Committee is asked to review the operation of 
the convention being proposed, to take account of the previous 
comments of Planning Committee and make a recommendation to 
Full Council that the convention is introduced. Appendix C outlines the 
proposed convention. 

 
2. Recommendations  

Page 143



Report Page No: 2 

 
2.1 The Executive Councillor is asked to recommend Council: 
 

[1] Approve an amendment to the constitution to include a new 
convention for the Planning Committee involving a deferred 
decision making process for appropriate cases.  

[2] The convention process to be introduced for a 12 month trial 
period from September 2014. The convention to apply in the 
circumstances where the committee resolves that it is minded to 
refuse or approve major applications schemes contrary to the 
recommendation of its officers and be subject to the operational 
arrangements outlined in Appendix C. 

[3] To delegate to the Heads of Legal and Planning Services 
authority to amend the constitution to include the new 
convention, amend procedures, update guidance, provide 
training as necessary to ensure the smooth implementation of 
the new convention 

[4] To request the Head of Planning Services to provide a review 
report to Environment Scrutiny Committee on cases where the 
convention has applied, after 12 months operation 

 
3. Background  
 
3.1 In January 2014 Planning Committee considered a report on planning 

appeals including the 32-38 Station Road/Wilton Terrace case where 
an award of costs had been made against the council. (The costs 
claim in relation to the appeals has now been concluded and the 
council’s liability was £170,000 which is lower than was originally 
anticipated.)  A range of actions were suggested at that time and it 
was agreed that a facilitated review session would be held with 
committee members and senior officers to consider the outcomes of 
the 32 – 38 Station Road/Wilton Terrace appeal case. That review 
took place on 14th April.  

 
3.2 One of the outcomes of the review and the various reports that have 

been considered by the Planning Committee has been the potential 
benefit to the Council from introducing a new convention for Planning 
Committee, where decisions contrary to the recommendations from 
officers on major planning applications are being moved. Full Council 
in March also agreed that consideration would be given to the 
introduction of this kind of approach.   

 
3.3 A number of councils have introduced a process whereby in the 

situation where the committee is minded to make a decision contrary 

Page 144



Report Page No: 3 

to its officers advice, a minded-to resolution is recorded allowing an 
agreed period of time for the intended reasons for refusal (or approval 
where this is the case) to be evaluated for any undue risks. This is to 
ensure that the risks from any decision have been subject to further 
consideration and the benefit of additional relevant legal or technical 
advice (as appropriate) is available before the decision is confirmed.  
This approach represents best administrative practice and both the 
Planning Advisory Service and the Local Government Association 
recommend this way of working. 
 

3.4  There are a number of factors for and against the introduction of this 
approach. These are tabulated below.  

 
A new convention for Planning Committee to deal with decisions contrary to officer 

recommendation 
 

Pro’s Cons 

• Reduces the risk of adverse 
planning appeal costs and claims of 
‘unreasonable behaviour’ against 
the local planning authority 

• Takes stock of the grounds for the 
‘minded-to’ decision and ensures all 
relevant information about those 
reasons, and any attendant risks are  
available to the local planning 
authority before the decision is 
confirmed 

• Enables conditions and reasons and 
s.106 matters to be properly thought 
through, outside of the committee 
meeting 

• This approach may give the 
appearance of the local planning 
authority having reticence at 
engaging in the appeal process 

• May give the appearance that 
Member (or democratic) discretion 
is being stifled or constrained 

• May lead to the impression that 
Officers are attempting to apply 
undue influence over member 
discretion  

• Increases the possibility of  appeals 
against non-determination which 
might  generate additional work 

• Delays in concluding major planning 
applications undermines  the 
council’s ability to meet national 
planning application performance 
targets 

 
 
3.5 Environment Scrutiny Committee is asked to consider the merits of 

introducing such an approach. The possible day to day operation of 
this arrangement is set out in Appendix C and it is anticipated that it 
would only apply to a small number of major planning application 
cases.  

 
3.6 The convention will need to be designed to address a number of 

issues and the principles set out in Appendix C cover these: 

• When it applies 

• What type of cases it relates to 

• Who initiates it 

Page 145



Report Page No: 4 

• What procedure is followed once the convention is initiated 

• Whether presentation of and reconsideration of the entire 
original officer report needs to take place and whether it is 
necessary to have public speaking repeated or not 

 
3.7 Planning Committee considered this approach previously and the 

report is included at Appendix A for information.  The comments made 
by Members are included at Appendix B. The principles set out in 
Appendix C have been amended to take account of Member 
comments (however a clear steer is needed in relation to the desired 
approach to public speaking). 

 
3.8 The new convention arrangements are an appropriate way of 

managing the council’s risks particularly with major application cases 
where costs can be significant if a claim against the local planning 
authority on the grounds of unreasonable behaviour is found to be 
justified. This will ensure that members have the fullest possible 
advice and awareness of any undue risks to the council where they 
are making decisions on planning grounds against their officers’ 
advice.  

 
3.9 It is suggested that the convention and any associated arrangements 

are reviewed after 12 months implementation.  
 

4. Implications  
 
(a) Financial Implications 
 
 The new process will involve additional time in decision making on 

specific types of planning application. The frequency with which this 
new procedure will apply is expected to be low. External legal or other 
technical advice may need to be procured from time to time to support 
good decision making. These costs will be found from the planning 
service budget.   

 
(b) Staffing Implications    
 
 There are no direct staffing implications, some additional time may be 

needed to prepare additional advice but this is considered necessary 
to assist good decision making and to manage adverse risks to the 
council. 

 
(c) Equalities and Poverty Implications 

 

 There are no direct equal opportunities implications from this report 
and no EQIA assessment has been undertaken. 

 

Page 146



Report Page No: 5 

(d) Environmental Implications 
 

There are no direct environmental implications but good decision 
making through the planning process is a key aspect of delivering 
sustainable development. 

 
(e) Procurement and risk management implications 
 

There are no adverse procurement implications. The committee 
convention being considered would support the council’s approach to 
risk management. 

 
(f) Consultation and communication 
 

The recommendations of this report were considered by the Planning 
Committee on 30/4/14 – the notes of that meeting are attached at 
Appendix B. The issue was also debated as part of a motion at 
Council in March and was considered at the Station Road member 
review session on 14/4/14.  
 

 (g) Community Safety 
 
 There are no adverse community safety implications. 

 
5.0 Background Papers 
 
6. Appendices 
 

 

 6.1 Appendix A – Report to Planning Committee 30/4/14 
Appendix B – Notes of Member Feedback, Planning Committee 
30/4/14  

 Appendix C – New convention principles 
  
7. Inspection of papers 
 

 

7.1 To inspect the background papers or if you have a query on the report 
please contact: 

 
Author’s Name: Patsy Dell 
Author’s Phone Number:  01223 - 457103 
Author’s Email:  patsy.dell@cambridge.gov.uk 
 

Page 147



Report Page No: 6 

8.0 Appendices 
 
Appendix A: Report to Planning Committee April 2014 
 

Agenda Item          
 

CAMBRIDGE CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
REPORT OF: Head of Planning Services 
   
 TO: Planning Committee 30/4/2014 
   
 WARDS: All 
 

FOLLOW UP REPORT: 32-38 STATION ROAD APPEAL, 
MEMBER REVIEW SESSION AND NEW PLANNING COMMITTEE 

CONVENTION FOR OVERTURN CASES INVOLVING 
MAJOR/SIGNIFICANT PLANNING APPLICATIONS 

 
1 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  
 
1.5 Members considered a report in January 2014 examining the council’s 

performance with planning appeals and the recent appeal case 
relating to the redevelopment of 32 – 38 Station Road Cambridge.   
 

1.6 The committee agreed a number of follow up actions including the 
holding of a facilitated member review session and investigation of the 
introduction of a new convention to be followed in the event that the 
committee is minded to refuse/approve major/significant planning 
applications against the advice of its officers. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 That Planning Committee: 
 

A: Notes the outcomes of the review session held on 14th April and 
the identified actions set out in paragraph 3.4; and 

B: Recommends to Full Council that a new convention for the 
Planning Committee involving a deferred decision making process for 
appropriate cases is introduced for a 12 month trial period from 
August 2014. The process to apply in the circumstances where the 
committee resolves that it is minded to refuse or approve 
major/significant schemes contrary to the recommendation of its 

Page 148



Report Page No: 7 

officers and be subject to the operational arrangements outlined in 
paragraph 3.6.    

 
3. BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 In January 2014 the planning committee considered a report on 

planning appeals including 32-38 Station Road/Wilton Terrace case. A 
range of further actions were suggested at that time and it was agreed 
that a  facilitated review session would be held with planning 
committee members and senior officers to consider the outcomes of 
the 32 – 38 Station Road/Wilton Terrace appeal case. A new planning 
committee convention was also suggested where decisions contrary 
to the recommendation from officers on major/significant planning 
applications are contemplated. 

 
The facilitated review session 

 
3.2 The review session was held on April 14th with 11 members including 

the Executive Councillor, Planning Committee Chair and Vice-Chair, 
the Chief Executive and the Heads of Legal and Planning Services 
attending.  The session was facilitated jointly by an external consultant 
Geoff Cross from the Planning Officers Society and Theresa Higgins a 
peer member who is the Planning Committee Chair at Colchester 
Borough Council and also a member of Essex County Council. 

 
3.3 The review session was focussed around the role of the planning 

committee in taking account of evidence and representations in 
determining planning applications and how to avoid costs awards on 
appeals in future. The facilitators led the discussion through the 
following areas: 

• The legal context for making planning decisions 

• The councillors role and the framework within that role operates 

• Localism, the Development Plan and the National Planning 
Policy Framework (NPPF) 

• Duties of elected members on planning committees 

• The planning committee decision framework including the 
presumption in favour of sustainable development in the NPPF 

• The planning committee decision process and material 
considerations 

• Reasonableness in decision making and avoiding the risk of 
costs awards 

• Key issues in the planning history of 32-38 Station Road 

• Use of a deferral process to manage council’s risks in overturn 
cases leading to appeals and relevant experience from 

Page 149



Report Page No: 8 

Colchester Borough and Essex County Council in operating a 
similar approach 

• Managing meetings and expectations about the role of the 
planning committee members  

 
3.4 The review meeting identified a number of key issues and action 

points that are set out below.  
 

Learning Point/Issue Action to be followed 
up/Responsibility 

Public perceptions and 
managing public expectations: 
Reminder that each planning 
committee meeting has a “new 
gallery” in terms of the public who 
are in the gallery observing the 
meeting. These observers will 
have varying degrees of 
familiarity with the planning 
process and the role and 
discretion of committee 
members. 

• Review the script read out by 
the chair at the start of the 
committee meeting to ensure 
the content is informative and 
helpful about the quasi-judicial 
nature of the meeting and the 
role and scope of councillors in 
making decisions on planning 
applications    

• Review the guidance notes in 
the committee agenda papers 
to see if they contain enough 
information for the public and 
members to understand the 
limits of discretion that apply to 
the committee 

• Investigate the production of a 
committee leaflet or guidance 
note about the role and function 
of the planning committee that 
can be available at the 
meetings  

• Investigate sampling feedback 
from members of the public 
attending planning committee 
to see if they understood 
enough about what was going 
on or whether we could provide 
more clarity and/or information 
to them 

Managing disruption in 
Planning Committees 

• Review the script read out by 
the chair at the start of the 
committee meeting to ensure 
the content is clear on the way 
the meeting will be managed if 
there is disruption.  

Page 150



Report Page No: 9 

• Where disturbances at the 
committee can be anticipated, 
arrangements for managing this 
to be discussed at chair’s 
briefing and put in place  

• Clear guidance for chairs on 
use of adjournments where 
necessary 

Member training and 
development. 
 
Need to ensure that training is 
appropriate and targeted so it is 
suitable for both new and 
experienced members. New 
members should be given 
training before they sit on a 
committee dealing with planning 
matters. 
 
A mix of types of member 
development works best for 
planning committee members 
including development review 
(site tours) and briefings, 
delivered on an on-going basis. 

• New member training on 
planning set up for 17th June.   

• Planning Committee tour date 
to be confirmed in new 
municipal year, to take place in 
the summer 

• Briefing topics and 
development needs for 
planning committee members 
to be canvassed in first meeting 
after the elections – to ensure 
an mix of ‘refresher’ and new 
development sessions are 
provided, in an appropriate way 

Advice to members about 
planning matters 
 
Encourage members to speak to 
planning officers or managers 
before committee if they have 
concerns/need advice on 
potential overturns that are being 
contemplated 
 

• Head of Planning Services to 
write to all members reminding 
that officers are here to help 
with any member queries on 
committee items 

• Review the standing guidance 
in our planning committee 
agenda papers to see if 
additional information would be 
helpful 

Deferral process in the event of 
overturns on significant cases: 
 
This was felt to be a helpful 
approach to managing the 
council’s risks and should be 
introduced on a trial basis. The 
approach would involve a 
“minded-to” resolution resulting in 
a deferral of the item for further 

• The proposed planning 
committee deferral convention 
was not discussed at the March 
Planning Committee specifically 
to enable the outcomes of the 
review workshop to be 
incorporated into the approach 
(this has been picked up). The 
details of how this might work 
are included within this report 

Page 151



Report Page No: 10 

advice to be obtained and 
brought back to a subsequent 
committee 
 
The new deferral convention 
should also cover minded-to 
approvals where this is also an 
overturn of an officer 
recommendation. Different risks 
and issues apply but should still 
be covered by the convention 

(amended in the light of the 
review session and comments 
from last Full Council). 

 
 

The new planning committee convention 
 

3.5 It was agreed that a new convention be introduced where decisions on 
major or significant planning applications contrary to officers’ advice 
are contemplated. The new procedures will provide the local planning 
authority with further advice on the implications of the proposed 
reasons for refusal in terms including their likely ‘defendability’ and 
potential for future risk of adverse costs awards for the authority. The 
new convention will also apply in cases where a minded-to approve 
planning permission resolution is contemplated. The risk profiles in 
these types of cases are different but the approach is an appropriate 
one towards managing the council’s risks in the small number of 
cases that it will apply to.  
 

3.6 The new deferral process: 

• The new process will only apply to items considered by the 
council’s main planning committee 

• The process will only apply to major/significant planning 
applications (using the Department of Communities and Local 
Government (DCLG) definition of major - >10 dwellings or 
>1,000m2 floorspace), and 

• Where there is a majority resolution that is minded to make a 
decision contrary to officer advice  

• The procedure will be initiated as appropriate by the Chair/Vice-
Chair in consultation with the Head of Planning Services/ City 
Development Manager. This will operate where the item has 
been presented by officers, public speaking has taken place and 
members have debated the merits of the proposal. The Chair of 
the Planning Committee (or Vice Chair when acting in that 
capacity) will seek a resolution and the specific grounds upon 
which the members of the committee agree by a majority that 
they are minded to refuse planning permission (including the 
member reasons for that refusal based on relevant planning 

Page 152



Report Page No: 11 

policy, technical and other matters which in the committee’s 
judgement means the application should be refused); or 
alternatively, minded to approve planning permission in which 
case planning conditions, reasons and s.106 matters may be 
involved 

• The item will then be deferred and officers will prepare a further 
report providing advice on the committee resolution. This would 
normally be brought back to the next available meeting but may 
be delayed to a later meeting if external legal or technical advice 
needs to be sought  

• To ensure safe decision making, the original planning officer’s 
report and the new advice will need to be re-presented and 
reconsidered by the planning committee. Public speakers will be 
contacted and given a second opportunity to address the 
committee, (reconsideration of the items along with further 
advice and repeated public speaking will address any probity 
issues arising with a different  committee composition) 

• The committee will determine if their original minded-to 
resolution (reasons for refusal) are still appropriate, should be 
amended or whether the original officer recommendation should 
be followed, likewise the means by which a permission can be 
granted with planning conditions and s.106 requirements will be 
outlined 

• The committee’s final decision will be confirmed and the 
decision and reasons for it noted in the minutes of the meeting 

• Should the decision result in an appeal, the approach to 
defending the council’s case at the appeal will be managed by 
officers and reported back to committee if needed.  

 
Conclusions 

 
3.7 The new convention arrangements are an appropriate way of 

managing the council’s risks in particularly major/sensitive 
cases. It will ensure that members have the fullest possible 
advice where they are making decisions on planning grounds 
against their officers’ advice. This will reduce the council’s 
potential risk of adverse cost awards against the local planning 
authority. It is suggested that the convention and arrangements 
are reviewed 12 months after implementation.  

 
3.8 It is appropriate for scrutiny purposes that Planning Committee 

recommends this convention approach to Full Council for 
approval as an addition the constitution. 

    
4.0. IMPLICATIONS 
 

Page 153



Report Page No: 12 

(a) Financial Implications 
 
 The two stage process will involve additional time in decision making 

on specific types of application. The frequency with which this new 
procedure will apply is expected to be low. External legal or other 
technical advice may need to be procured from time to time to support 
good decision making. These costs will be found from the planning 
service budgets.   

 
(b) Staffing Implications    
 
 There are no direct staffing implications, some additional time may be 

needed to prepare additional advice but this is considered necessary 
to assist good decision making and to manage adverse risks to the 
council. 

 
(c) Equal Opportunities Implications 

 

 There are no direct equal opportunities implications from this report 
and no EQIA assessment has been undertaken. 

 
(d) Environmental Implications 
 

There are no direct environmental implications but good decision 
making through the planning process is a key aspect of delivering 
sustainable development. 

 
(e) Procurement and risk management implications 
 

There are no adverse procurement implications. The committee 
convention being considered would support the council’s approach to 
risk management. 

 
(f) Consultation and communication 
 

The recommendations of this report have been discussed informally 
with a number of Councillors. The issue was debated as part of a 
motion at Council and was considered at the member review session 
referred to above on 14/4/14.  
 

 (g) Community Safety 
 
 There are no adverse community safety implications. 

 
 

5.0 Background Papers 
 

Page 154



Report Page No: 13 

Report to Planning Committee 8 January and 5 March 2014. 
 
6.0 Contacts 
 

The author and contact officer for queries on the report is Patsy Dell, 
Head of Planning Services on extension 7103 
patsy.dell@cambridge.gov.uk 

 
 

 
Appendix B: Planning Committee Member comments 
 

30 April 2014: Planning Committee Item 5b: Notes from meeting;  
 
In response to the report the Committee made the following comments:  
 

i. A definite conclusion is required if public speakers are required for a 
second time.  

ii. If public speakers are permitted at the second meeting should this be 
open to those who made written representation but did not speak at 
the first meeting?  

iii. Reservations expressed regarding public speakers. If public speaking 
is permitted at the second meeting this should only be open to those 
previous speakers but what would the benefits be, is this appropriate?  

iv. It is the Committee’s right to go against Officer recommendation.  
v. More time is needed to look at the detail.  
vi. Welcomed the suggestion of being passed to Environment Scrutiny 

Committee.  
vii. While it is right and legal to overturn an Officer’s recommendations 

Members of the Committee must behave responsibly.  
viii. Issue of continuity needs to be addressed, should the same 

Committee Members who made the original decision make the second 
decision?  

ix. Looked at the similarities to that of a jury who had the right to ask the 
Judge for more information when considering a case.   

x. Noted that the Jury were protected from the public in terms of 
expressing an opinion in the gallery.  

xi. Questioned if it was possible to ensure the same Committee Members 
for this process.   

 
Suggested Changes to the report:  
 

• Paragraph 3.4 of the Officers report:  
Suggested additional action / responsibility to be included:  
 

Page 155



Report Page No: 14 

Members of the public must not express their views to the Committee during 
the determination of the application.  
 

• Paragraph 3.6 of the Officers report (bullet point 4): 
 
Expressed concern at the phrase        ‘The procedure will be initiated as 
appropriate by the Chair / Vice-Chair in consultation with the Head of 
Planning Services / City Development Manager’ as this should be a 
Committee decision/ process and questioned what this would mean in 
practical terms.  
 

• Paragraph 3.6 of the Officers report (bullet point 5): 
Change of wording (new text underlined) 
 
The item will then be deferred and officers will prepare a further report 
providing relevant additional advice on the committee resolution. This would 
normally be brought back to the next available meeting but may be delayed 
to a later meeting if external legal or technical advice needs to be sought  
 

• Paragraph 3.7 of the Officers report:  
Change of wording (new text underlined and original struck through) 
 
The new convention arrangements are an appropriate way of managing the 
council’s risks in particularly major/sensitive cases. It will ensure that 
members have the fullest possible advice where they are making decisions 
on planning grounds against their officers’ advice. This will reduce the 
council’s potential risk of adverse cost awards against the local planning 
authority. It is suggested that the convention and arrangements are 
reviewed after 12 months after of implementation. 
 
 

 
Appendix C: The new convention principles 
 

• The new process will only apply to major planning applications 
considered by the council’s planning committee (using the Department of 
Communities and Local Government (DCLG) definition of major - >10 
dwellings or >1,000m2 floorspace), and 

• Where there is a majority resolution that is minded to make a decision 
contrary to officer advice  

• The procedure will be initiated as appropriate by the Chair/Vice-Chair in 
consultation with the Head of Planning Services/ City Development 
Manager.  

• This convention will operate where the item has been presented by 
officers, public speaking has taken place and members have debated the 
merits of the proposal. The Chair of the Planning Committee (or Vice 

Page 156



Report Page No: 15 

Chair when acting in that capacity) will seek a resolution and the specific 
grounds upon which the members of the committee agree by a majority 
that they are minded to refuse planning permission (including the 
member reasons for that refusal based on relevant planning policy, 
technical and other matters which in the committee’s judgement means 
the application should be refused); or alternatively, minded to approve 
planning permission in which case planning conditions, reasons and 
s.106 matters may be involved 

• The item will then be deferred and officers will prepare a further report 
providing relevant additional advice on the committee resolution. This 
would normally be brought back to the next available meeting but may be 
delayed to a later meeting if external legal or technical advice needs to 
be sought  

• To ensure safe decision making, the original planning officer’s report and 
the new advice will need to be re-presented and reconsidered by the 
planning committee. Public speakers will be contacted and given a 
second opportunity to address the committee, (reconsideration of the 
items along with further advice and repeated public speaking will address 
any probity issues arising with a different  committee composition) 

• The committee will determine if their original minded-to resolution 
(reasons for refusal) are still appropriate, should be amended or whether 
the original officer recommendation should be followed, likewise the 
means by which a permission can be granted with planning conditions 
and s.106 requirements will be outlined 

• The committee’s final decision will be confirmed and the decision and 
reasons for it noted in the minutes of the meeting 

• Should the decision result in an appeal, the approach to defending the 
council’s case at the appeal will be managed by officers and reported 
back to committee if needed.  

 
 
 

 

 

Page 157



Page 158

This page is intentionally left blank



RECOMMENDATION TO COUNCIL 
(EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR FOR PLANNING  

POLICY AND TRANSPORT–  
COUNCILLOR BLENCOWE) 

 

 
TRANSFER OF PLANNING ITEMS FROM AREA TO CENTRAL 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 
The report considered the issues inherent in moving to a single 
planning committee dealing with development management and 
enforcement decisions in the City, reverting to the way decisions 
were made prior to 2003. The report considered the benefits and 
dis-benefits of this change, along with two potential options for a 
single committee and concluded that a single planning committee 
operating on a monthly cycle but with a carefully ordered agenda 
and operating principles should be considered.  A transition period 
would be necessary in the implementation of this change and 1st 
October 2014 was suggested as the start of any new 
arrangements. There should be a review of the operation of any 
new arrangement after 6 months. 
 
 
The Environment Scrutiny Committee considered and approved 
the recommendations by 4 votes to 3 (with 1 abstention).  
 

 
Accordingly, Council is recommended: 
 

i. To rescind the delegation of powers to Area Committees to 
determine planning applications and enforcement matters set 
out in paragraph 11.3 of the terms of reference for Area 
Committees (section 11 of Part 3 of the Constitution) to come 
into effect from 1 October 2014, 
 

ii. To delegate responsibility for determining those applications 
and enforcement matters to the Planning Committee with 
effect from 1 October 2014,  
 

iii. To endorse the operating principles for the Planning 
Committee set out in paragraph 3.10 of the officers report 
and adopting the approach set out in option1 in the officers 
report, 
 

 
 

Agenda Item 4e

Page 159



iv. To delegate authority to the Heads of Corporate Strategy, 
Legal and Planning Services to make changes to the 
constitution, committee operating arrangements, 
publications, procedures and any other matters as necessary 
to secure the smooth implementation of this change, 
consulting with the Executive Councillor, Chair and Vice 
Chair and opposition spokes of Planning Committee as 
appropriate and necessary. 

 

Page 160



Report Page No: 1 

 

 

Cambridge City Council 
 

Item 

 

To: Executive Councillor for Planning Policy and 
Transport: Councillor Kevin Blencowe 

Report by: Head of Planning Services 

Relevant scrutiny 
committee:  

Environment 
Scrutiny 
Committee 

8/7/2014 

Wards affected: All 
 

 
TRANSFER OF PLANNING ITEMS FROM AREA TO  CENTRAL 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 
Not a Key Decision 

 
 
1. Executive summary  
 
1.1 This report considers the issues inherent in moving to a single 

planning committee dealing with development management and 
enforcement decisions in the City, reverting to the way decisions were 
made prior to 2003. The report considers the benefits and dis-benefits 
of this change, along with two potential options for a single committee 
and concludes that a single planning committee operating on a 
monthly cycle but with a carefully ordered agenda and operating 
principles should be considered.  A transition period will be necessary 
in the implementation of this change and 1st October 2014 is 
suggested as the start of any new arrangements. There should be a 
review of the operation of any new arrangement after 6 months. 

 
2. Recommendations  
 
2.1 The Executive Councillor is asked to recommend to Council: 
 

[1] To rescind the delegation of powers to Area Committees to 
determine planning applications and enforcement matters set out in 
paragraph 11.3 of the terms of reference for Area Committees (section 
11 of Part 3 of the Constitution) to come into effect from 1 October 
2014 
[2] To delegate responsibility for determining those applications and 
enforcement matters to the Planning Committee with effect from 1 
October 2014,  

Page 161



Report Page No: 2 

[3] To endorse the operating principles for the Planning Committee set 
out in paragraph 3.10 of this report and adopting the approach set out 
in option1 in the report, 
[4] To delegate authority to the Heads of Corporate Strategy, Legal 
and Planning Services to make changes to the constitution, committee 
operating arrangements, publications, procedures and any other 
matters as necessary to secure the smooth implementation of this 
change, consulting with the Executive Councillor, Chair and Vice Chair 
and opposition spokes of Planning Committee as appropriate and 
necessary. 

 
3. Background  
 
3.1 Specific types of planning applications have been determined at Area 

Committee since 20031.  In the last two years 173 planning 
applications were considered by the four Area Committees (averaging 
between 5 and 13 items a month). This represents around 6% of the 
total planning applications determined by the council each year 
(Appendix A at the end of this note shows the distribution of 
applications to Area Committees).  The current number of meetings 
held that deal with planning applications is as follows2: 

 

• 2012/13: 29 Area Committees were held with the total number of 

meetings comprising:  East Area 10, North Area 6, South Area 7, 

West/Central Area 6, Planning Committee 13 

• 2013/14: 25 Area Committees held: East Area 9, North Area 6, 

South Area 6, West/Central Area 6, Planning Committee 13 

3.2 The council’s current scheme of delegation provides for applications to 
go to planning committee where they are: 

 

• Major applications (involving more than 10 dwellings  <1,000m2  
floorspace for other types of development),  

• Departures from the development plan 

• Those referred by the Head of Planning Services involving policy or 
other issues that make it inappropriate to be dealt with under 
delegated authority 

• Applications submitted by any member of the council or their 
immediate families 

                                            
1
 Limited to mainly minor applications defined by government as small planning 

applications of up to 9 dwellings and changes of use  
2 Excluding the Joint Development Control (Cambridge Fringes) Committee 

Page 162



Report Page No: 3 

• Area committee type applications but which affect across two area 
committee boundaries 

• City Council own development 

3.3 Area Committees deal with minor applications and those applications 
‘called in’ by councillors as follows:  

• Minor developments of up to 9 dwellings (or where there are 
representations contrary to the officer recommendation) 

• Changes of use (where there are representations contrary to the 
officer recommendation) 

• ‘Called in’ applications3  

• Authority to serve an enforcement notice 

• Authority not to pursue unauthorised development on the grounds 
of expediency 

Options for the Planning Committee 
 
3.4 The transfer of all planning business to a single central planning 

committee could be dealt with in a number of ways but two main 
options for a single committee approach would appear to exist: 

 
1) Continue with the current main planning committee meeting held 

every month (13 meetings per year) 

2) Meet more regularly, say every three weeks (approximately 17 

meetings per year) 

3.5 Both options have benefits and dis-benefits, set out below. 
  

Table 1: Assessment of benefits and dis-benefits – Option 1  

Benefits Dis-benefits 

Option 1 
Monthly/Four-weekly meeting (13 per year) 

Central location for planning 
committees is highly accessible 
 
The Guildhall has committee rooms 
with media and audio visual support 
in place 

Considerably longer planning committee 
meetings each month.  Potential for 
between 5 and 13 extra items each 
meeting 
 
Loss of some direct local input to 

                                            
3 Member requests for committee decisions made on specific planning grounds  

 
 

Page 163



Report Page No: 4 

 
Many customers and service users 
are used to attending committee 
meetings in the Guildhall  
 
Public speakers wishing to attend 
committee and speak may find day 
time/early evening meetings more 
convenient than late night meetings  
 
A single planning committee enables 
greater consistency in decision 
making, fewer members overall are 
constrained by pre-determination 
restraints on advocacy 
 
A single committee enables 
focussed provision of planning 
training and development activities 
 
There has been some criticism and 
complaints about Area Committees 
making planning decisions late at 
night, this approach would reduce 
the council’s risks  
 
Area Committees will have greater 
time to focus on other wards specific 
issues on behalf of and with 
residents 
 
More frequent planning committees 
will assist with meeting government 
performance targets for planning 
applications 

planning decision making.  
 
Visibility of the democratic decision 
making process for particular types of 
planning application moved from a local 
to a central venue. 
 
Loss of minor planning decisions being 
taken in the local area 
 
Some public speakers wishing to attend 
committee and speak may find day 
time/early evening meetings less 
convenient than evening/late night 
meetings  
 
 

 
Table 2: Assessment of benefits and dis-benefits – Option 2 

Benefits Dis-benefits 

Option 2 
Three weekly meeting cycle (17 meetings per year) 

More in number but potentially 
shorter meetings 
 
Central location for planning 
committees is highly accessible 

This would require a greater time 
commitment from Planning Committee 
members than  option 1, staffing and 
other implications also increase, 
including adding costs 

Page 164



Report Page No: 5 

 
The Guildhall has committee rooms 
with media and audio visual support 
in place 
 
Many customers and service users 
are used to attending committee 
meetings in the Guildhall  
 
Public speakers wishing to attend 
committee and speak may find day 
time/early evening meetings more 
convenient than late night meetings  
 
A single committee enables greater 
consistency in decision making, 
fewer members overall are 
constrained by pre-determination 
restraints on advocacy 
 
A single committee enables 
focussed provision of planning 
training and development activities 
 
There has been some criticism 
about Area Committees making 
planning decisions late at night, this 
approach would reduce the council’s 
risks 
 
Area Committees will have greater 
time to focus on other wards specific 
issues on behalf of and with 
residents 
 
More frequent planning committees 
will assist with meeting government 
performance targets for planning 
applications 

 
Loss of some direct local input to 
planning decision making 
 
Visibility of the democratic decision 
making process for particular types of 
planning application moved from a local 
to a central venue. 
 
Loss of minor planning decisions being 
taken in the local area 
 
Some public speakers wishing to attend 
committee and speak may find day 
time/early evening meetings less 
convenient than evening/late night 
meetings  
 
 

 
Preferred Option 
 
3.6 Planning business proposed to be transferred from Area to Planning 

Committee could be handled in a number of ways and clearly there 
will be an increased workload for the committee to deal with whichever 

Page 165



Report Page No: 6 

approach is followed. The table above identifies the main issues, 
benefits and dis-benefits that need to be considered.  

 
3.7 In any scenario, a mix of minor and major applications at each 

committee, separated into agenda sections based upon application 
size and scale, rather than geography would probably be simplest to 
operate.  Changes to the scheme of delegation, strict chairing and 
tightening up on the call-in by members could also assist with the 
overall numbers of applications having to be dealt with by the 
committee but that would need to be looked at separately and is not 
part of the current proposal.   

 
3.8 Increased Government scrutiny of planning application performance 

means anything that has an adverse impact upon overall application 
processing times needs to be avoided. Given this there would need to 
be a transition period to move planning applications from Area to 
Planning Committee or any other option that is agreed. Officers 
suggest that October is the appropriate time to allow effective 
transition into the new arrangement. Whichever option is chosen there 
will be issues that arise that need resolution during implementation 
and the effectiveness of the new arrangement would benefit from a 
review after 6 months to ensure it is delivering against expectations. 
This change may also mean that the timing and frequency of Area 
Committees needs to be reviewed as a consequence. 

 
3.9 Having considered the issues your officers suggest that the existing 

monthly cycle of Planning Committee meetings proposed by option1 
offers the slightly greater degree of benefits over dis-benefits in 
moving to a single planning committee system. 

  
Proposed Operating Principles – Planning Committee 
 
3.10 These principles are suggested as the basis for reshaping the 

Planning Committee to deal with all planning business:  

• The committee will operate on a monthly cycle as now 

• Development Control Forum dates will be arranged on the 
monthly cycle as now 

• Planning Committee will operate on a single committee meeting 
format but organised with a three part agenda, managed as 
follows:  

o Part One agenda – city wide major items  
o Part Two agenda – city wide items that would previously 

have been dealt with at Area Committee 
o Part Three agenda – General and Enforcement items 

• Agenda timings: 

Page 166



Report Page No: 7 

o Part One – 10.00 am start (including where there is a 
scheduled member briefing/development session 
beforehand – these will be programmed to start at 9.00 or 
9.30 am) 

o Part Two – advertised in advance to start no earlier than 
1.00pm 

o Part Three – to follow on from part two agenda items with 
earliest start time advertised where this is appropriate 

• Breaks: 
o There will be a 30 minute lunch break before the part two 

agenda is heard 
o There may be a short break between agenda part two and 

three at the Chair’s discretion 
o Other comfort breaks will be at the Chair’s discretion 

during the meeting 

• Where a meeting lasts to 6pm, a vote will be taken as to whether 
or not the meeting will be adjourned. A decision to adjourn the 
meeting will also agree the date and time of the continuation 
meeting which will be held no later than 7 days from the original 
meeting.  

• Public speaking will operate as it does now with the addition of 
public speaking rights on Enforcement items to operate in the 
same manner as the current scheme provides for planning 
applications  

• The first Planning Committee meeting in this new format will 
take place in October 

• A review report will be prepared for the planning committee after 
6 meetings in the new format have taken place 

 
4. Implications  
 
(a) Financial Implications 
 

Modest savings (cashable) will be delivered through reductions in the 
cost of venue and audio hire and agenda delivery with planning items 
being transferred to Planning Committee for consideration. Longer 
committee meetings at the Guildhall may slightly reduce flexibility in 
available income from accommodation lettings. Some savings in staff 
time (non-cashable) will arise with the transfer from attendance at 
Area Committee to supporting the Planning Committee and 
administratively in planning support in not having to co-ordinate 
production of a number of separate committee agendas. 

 
(b) Staffing Implications  
 

Page 167



Report Page No: 8 

 Planning, Democratic Services and other staff will be able to support 
the Planning Committee meetings more easily if the meetings take 
place in the Guildhall. A wider range of planning officers will also be 
able to present cases to the committee which will help support their 
professional development. 

  
 Legal Services currently attend and support the Planning Committee 

but do not generally attend Area Committees other than on request. 
This arrangement will continue in the new committee format in respect 
of items currently considered at Area Committee level. 

 
(c) Equality and Poverty Implications 
 

An EQIA has been undertaken and is attached at Appendix B. The 
implications identified have been considered in this report. 

 
 (d) Environmental Implications 
 

There are no adverse implications for climate change as a result of 
this proposed change. 

 
(e) Consultation and communication 
 

Civic Affairs Committee was consulted on this proposed change at 
their meeting on 25/6/14. Feedback from that meeting will be reported 
to the Environment Scrutiny Committee. 
  

(f) Community Safety 
 

There are no adverse community safety implications from the 
proposed changes. 

 
5. Background papers  
 
5.1 These background papers were used in the preparation of this report: 
 

Transfer of Planning Business from Area to central Planning 
Committee: Equalities Impact Assessment Report 
 
Report to Civic Affairs Committee 25/6/14 – Transfer of Planning 
Matters from Area to Planning Committee  

 
6. Appendices 
 
Appendix A 
 

 
 
Analysis of Area Committee application numbers 
and meetings 2012 and 2013 

Page 168



Report Page No: 9 

 
Appendix B  

 
Equalities Impact Assessment  

 
7. Inspection of papers  
 
7.1 To inspect the background papers or if you have a query on the report 

please contact: 
 
Author’s Name: Patsy Dell 
Author’s Phone Number:  01223 – 457103 
Author’s Email:  patsy.dell@cambridge.gov.uk 
 

Appendix A: Area Committee planning applications 2012 and 2013 
 

North  South  East  West/Central  

26/1/12 3 9/1/12 0 9/2/12 2 5/1/12 1 

23/3/12 2 5/3/12 2 12/4/12 5 1/3/12 2 

17/5/12 2 10/5/12 0 21/6/12 10 26/4/12 3 

26/7/12 4 16/7/12 1 2/8/12 0 21/6/12 4 

27/9/12 2 5/9/12 4 6/9/12 4 23/8/12 3 

22/11/12 3 19/11/12 7 18/10/12 2 1/11/12 1 

31/1/13 3 14/1/13 0 29/11/12 4 10/1/13 3 

21/3/13 4 7/3/13 0 10/1/13 3 28/2/13 6 

16/5/13 6 9/5/13 1 14/2/13 4 25/4/13 6 

1/8/13 2 15/7/13 10 26/3/13 5 20/6/13 0 

3/10/13 6 16/9/13 3 25/4/13 3 5/9/13 2 

21/11/13 2 4/11/13 2 6/6/13 2 14/11/13 4 

6/2/14 1 13/1/14 4 25/7/13 7 9/1/14 2 

    12/9/13 2   

    17/10/13 2   

Page 169



Report Page No: 10 

    28/11/13 4   

 
   9/1/14 3   

 
40  34  62  37 

Total: 173 

 

Appendix B: EQIA 
Cambridge City Council Equality Impact Assessment 
 
Completing an Equality Impact Assessment will help you to think about 
what impact your strategy, policy, plan, project, contract or major change 
to your service may have on people that live in, work in or visit 
Cambridge, as well as on City Council staff.  
 
The template is easy to use. You do not need to have specialist equalities knowledge to 
complete it. It asks you to make judgements based on evidence and experience. There 
are guidance notes on the intranet to help you. You can also get advice from Suzanne 
Goff, Strategy Officer on 01223 457174 or email suzanne.goff@cambridge.gov.uk or 
from any member of the Joint Equalities Group.  
 
 

1. Title of strategy, policy, plan, project, contract or major change to your service: 

Transfer of Planning items from Area to Planning Committee 

 

2. What is the objective or purpose of your strategy, policy, plan, project, contract 
or major change to your service? 

In the past, planning items have been taken to Area Committees for a decision. The 
change being proposed will mean that planning items will be brought to the Planning 
Committee at the Guildhall. This is a change in the council’s approach to decision 
making on some planning matters. 

 

3. Who will be affected by this strategy, policy, plan, project, contract or major 
change to your service? (Please tick those that apply) 

 
X Residents  - yes 

 

X Visitors  - where their visit relates to a committee considering a planning matter 
 

X Staff  - moderately 

A specific client group or groups (please state):  
Applicants for planning permission and people (individual or in groups) objecting or 
supporting planning applications.  

 

Page 170



Report Page No: 11 

4. What type of strategy, policy, plan, project, contract or major change to your 
service is this? (Please tick)  

 New    
 

X Revised - yes   
 

X Existing   - being changed 

 

5. Responsible directorate and service 

Directorate: Environment  
 
Service:  Planning 

 

 

6. Are other departments or partners involved in delivering this strategy, policy, 
plan, project, contract or major change to your service? 

  No 
 

X   Yes : Democratic Services are involved in delivering this change  
 
      

 

Page 171



Report Page No: 12 

7. Potential impact 

Please list and explain how this strategy, policy, plan, project, contract or major change 
to your service could positively or negatively affect individuals from the following 
equalities groups.   
 
When answering this question, please think about:  

• The results of relevant consultation that you or others have completed (for example 
with residents, people that work in or visit Cambridge, service users, staff or partner 
organisations).  

• Complaints information.  

• Performance information.   

• Information about people using your service (for example whether people from certain 
equalities groups use the service more or less than others).  

• Inspection results.  

• Comparisons with other organisations.  

• The implementation of your piece of work (don’t just assess what you think the impact 
will be after you have completed your work, but also think about what steps you might 
have to take to make sure that the implementation of your work does not negatively 
impact on people from a particular equality group).  

• The relevant premises involved.  

• Your communications.  

• National research (local information is not always available, particularly for some 
equalities groups, so use national research to provide evidence for your conclusions).  

 

Page 172



Report Page No: 13 

(a) Age (any group of people of a particular age, including younger and older people – in 
particular, please consider any safeguarding issues for children and vulnerable adults) 

This change will mean that some types of planning matters that have been considered 
locally, at the Council’s four area committees for the last 11 years will in future be 
considered by a single planning committee based in the Guildhall.   The committee 
meetings will be held in an accessible central location, rather than in a venue local to the 
specific Area Committee. The meetings are more likely to consider the planning items in 
the afternoons in future than the mid to late evenings as is the case with the present 
arrangement.   
 
There are advantages and dis-benefits with both arrangements. 
Advantages: 
The Guildhall is located in the centre of Cambridge, arguably the most accessible part of 
Cambridge. The Guildhall is an accessible public building, set up and fully equipped for 
meetings to take place. Meetings that take place in the afternoon are better for people 
who may not wish to be out in the evenings or late at night or who are not normally 
available in the evening. The availability of public transport is better during the daytime 
compared to late evening. By and large, individuals are not generally directly affected by 
planning matters on a frequent basis and taking the time to attend a meeting is 
something that most are prepared to do. 
 
Disadvantages: 
Working people, people of school age or anyone normally unavailable during the day for 
whatever reason will need to arrange time off to attend an afternoon meeting. For some 
people, attending a meeting in their local area may be more convenient in the evening 
than coming into the centre of Cambridge during the day. 
 

 

(b) Disability (including people with a physical impairment, sensory impairment, learning 
 disability, mental health problem or other condition which has an impact on their daily 
life)  

The change to considering all planning matters at the Guildhall means there is a 
consistent accessible, centrally located venue available for people wishing to attend the 
meetings. It is recognised that the venues used for Area Committees vary and not all of 
them are to the same standard of accessibility and convenience for users. 

 

(c) Gender  

There are no specific gender implications from this proposed change. However, 
attending meetings in the afternoon may be more difficult if individuals have primary 
childcare or caring responsibilities, but this may apply equally to the evening.   

 

(d) Pregnancy and maternity 

There are no specific pregnancy or maternity implications from this proposed change. 

 

Page 173



Report Page No: 14 

(e) Transgender (including gender re-assignment) 

There are no specific Transgender implications from this proposed change. 

 

(f) Marriage and Civil Partnership 

There are no specific Marriage and Civil Partnership implications from this proposed change. 

 

(g) Race or Ethnicity  

There are no specific Race or Ethnicity implications from this proposed change.  

 

(h) Religion or Belief  

There are no specific Religion or belief implications from this proposed change. The 
Guildhall is a civic, secular public venue and formal regulatory meetings generally take 
place on weekdays. The change in time of day for considering planning matters should 
not make it more difficult for anyone to attend specifically because this conflicts with their 
religious adherence or beliefs.  

 

(i) Sexual Orientation  

There are no specific sexual orientation implications from this proposed change. 

 

(j) Other factors that may lead to inequality – in particular – please consider the 
impact of any changes on low income groups or those experiencing the impacts of 
poverty (please state):  

The planning items considered by the Area Committees will be transferred to the main 
planning committee. The Area Committees meet 6 or 8 weekly, the Planning Committee 
meets monthly, this may mean that planning items are considered more frequently but 
that should not lead to inequality.  
 
The change of venue is from a number of local venues to a central, highly accessible 
venue. This may be less convenient than a local venue depending upon the 
circumstances but equally for some it may be more convenient.  
 
The meetings will more often deal with planning matters in the afternoon where these are 
currently dealt with by the Area Committees in the evening. Again this may be less or 
more convenient depending upon an individual’s particular circumstances.  This change 
should not result in a direct dis-benefit to low income groups or those experiencing the 
impacts of poverty. 
 

 

Page 174



Report Page No: 15 

8. If you have any additional comments please add them here 

None 

 

9. Conclusions and Next Steps 

• If you have not identified any negative impacts, please sign off this form.  

• If you have identified potential negative actions, you must complete the action plan at 
the end of this document to set out how you propose to mitigate the impact. If you do 
not feel that the potential negative impact can be mitigated, you must complete 
question 8 to explain why that is the case.  

• If there is insufficient evidence to say whether or not there is likely to be a negative 
impact, please complete the action plan setting out what additional information you 
need to gather to complete the assessment. 

All completed Equality Impact Assessments must be emailed to Suzanne Goff, Strategy 
Officer, who will arrange for it to be published on the City Council’s website.  
Email suzanne.goff@cambridge.gov.uk 

 

10. Sign off 

Name and job title of assessment lead officer:  Patsy Dell, Head of Planning Services 
 
Names and job titles of other assessment team members and people consulted: 
Suzanne Goff, Corporate Strategy Team, David Kidston, Strategy and Partnerships 
Manager and Andrew Limb, Head of Corporate Strategy. 
 
Date of completion: 20/6/14 
 
Date of next review of the assessment: A review of the operation of the changes to 
planning committee is proposed after 6 month operation. This assessment should be 
reviewed at the same time, in spring 2015.   
  

 
 

Page 175



Page 176

This page is intentionally left blank



Civic Affairs Draft Minute: 25 June 2014 

 

 
Transfer of Planning Items from Area to Central Planning Committee 
 

The committee received a report from the Head of Planning Services 
regarding the transfer of planning items from Area Committees to the 
central Planning Committee. 
 
The committee agreed that a special Civic Affairs Committee would be 
held on Tuesday 15 July 2014 at 5pm to discuss the specific 
constitutional impact of any proposed changes.  
 
In response to members’ questions the Leader of the Council said the 
following:  
 

i. Whilst there was no requirement to bring this item to the Civic 
Affairs Committee it was felt important that members were given 
an opportunity to comment on the proposals.  

ii. A full report setting out the proposals in detail would be taken to 
the Environment Scrutiny Committee on 8 July 2014, and then to 
Council on 24 July 2014. 
  

In response to the report Councillor Cantrill made the following points: 
 

i. Area Committees allowed the public to engage with the democratic 
process at a place and time that suited them – i.e. in the evenings 
and in their own locality. Planning applications were also heard 
within in a distinct timeframe – for example between 6pm and 
7.30pm.   

ii. The Guildhall could be quite a formal setting for the public and be 
intimidating for public speakers. 

iii. On average during 2013/14 each central Planning Committee 
lasted 5 hours and this would dramatically increase with the 
addition of local planning applications. A mechanism was needed 
to allow the public to know what time their applications would be 
heard.  

iv. Raised concern about the quality of decision making at very long 
meetings and suggested the introduction of a ‘guillotine’ on the 
length of each meeting.   

 
 
 

Page 177



In response to the report Councillor Benstead made the following points: 
 
v. Supported the decision to bring the report to the Civic Affairs 

Committee for comment. 
vi. Agreed with Councillor Cantrill that a mechanism was needed to 

allow the public to know what time their applications would be 
heard. Suggested that this could be discussed in more detail at the 
Environment Scrutiny Committee on 8 July.  

vii. Some areas in the City were very large. Holding meetings at a 
central and easily accessible location such as the Guildhall would 
therefore be beneficial. 

viii. A recent meeting of East Area Committee had 10 planning 
applications to determine and did not finish until 11.25pm. 

ix. On occasion, due to the large number of planning applications to 
determine, the East Area Committee had had to reconvene on 
another date. This confirmed that concerns identified by Councillor 
Cantrill with regard to timings and lengthy meetings already 
existed under the current system. 

 

In response to the report Councillor Pitt made the following points: 
 

i. Raised concern that there would be, on average, between 5 and 
15 additional planning applications for each central Planning 
Committee. The equated to a 200% increase across the year.  

 
The Head of Planning Services thanked the committee and confirmed 
that their comments would be circulated to members of the Environment 
Scrutiny Committee.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 178



Civic Affairs  Wednesday, 25 June 2014 

 

 
 
 

1 

CIVIC AFFAIRS 25 June 2014 
 6.00pm - 9.00 pm 
 
Present:  Councillors McPherson (Chair), Benstead (Vice-Chair), Cantrill, Pitt 
and Hart 
 

FOR ADOPTION BY THE COUNCIL 

 
14/34/CIV     Assurance Framework, Draft Annual Governance Statement 
and Draft Code of Corporate Governance 2013-14 
 
The committee received a report from the Head of Legal Services regarding 
the Assurance Framework, Draft Annual Governance Statement and Draft 
Code of Corporate Governance 2013-14. 
 
In response to members’ questions the Head of Legal Services and the Chief 
Executive said the following: 
 

i. A full risk assessment and robust business planning would form part of 
any decision on potential shared services. Internal Audit would also be 
involved in any project teams prior to it going to the relevant Scrutiny 
Committee for a final decision.  

ii. The City Council worked hard to ensure that local residents could 
interact and engage with the democratic process.  

iii. Acknowledged the need for shared service arrangements to reflect the 
values, aspirations and service standards of the City Council. Agreed 
that this be reflected in the Action Plan.  

iv. Acknowledged the need to report back on the new budget setting 
arrangements. Agreed that a report be brought back to the committee 
when the new Head of Finance was in post.  

 
In response to members’ questions the Head of Human Resources said the 
following: 
 

i. The City Council had Investors in People accreditation since 1995 and 
there was a requirement to review this every 3 years. The next full 
assessment would take place in 2015. 

 
Resolved (unanimously):  
  

ii. To note the arrangements for compiling, reporting on and signing the 
Annual Governance Statement.   

Agenda Item 5a

Page 179



Civic Affairs  Wednesday, 25 June 2014 

 

 
 
 

2 

 

iii. That the Council approves the Code of Corporate Governance (Appendix 
B of the officer’s report) at Full Council on 24th July.   

 
iv. That a report on the budget setting process be brought back to a future 

meeting.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 180



CAMBRIDGE CITY COUNCIL 

 

 
REPORT OF: Director of Business Transformation 
 
 TO: Civic Affairs Committee 25/06/14 
 
 WARDS: All 

 

 
ASSURANCE FRAMEWORK, DRAFT ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 

AND DRAFT CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 2013/14 
 

 
 
1 INTRODUCTION    
 
1.1 The preparation of an Annual Governance Statement (AGS) is necessary to 

meet the statutory requirements as set out in Regulation 4(3) of the Accounts 
and Audit (England) Regulations 2011. The AGS covers the Council’s 
governance arrangements for the 2013-14 reporting year and is published as 
part of the Statement of Accounts.  

 
1.2 This report includes the draft AGS and incorporated AGS action plan  

(presented in Appendix A) for the Members of Civic Affairs Committee to 
review, challenge and advise the Leader and Chief Executive upon 
accordingly. 

 
1.3 This report also identifies progress with the 2012/13 AGS action plan and 

presents the necessary recommendations for Member approval that will allow 
the Council as a whole to ensure that the AGS is produced in accordance 
with CIPFA guidance and therefore meet External Audit requirements.  

 
1.4 The Council’s Code of Corporate Governance summarises the ways in which 

the authority directs and controls its functions and relates to its communities. 
It is reviewed annually. 

 
2 RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 That Members of Civic Affairs Committee:  
 

· note the arrangements for compiling, reporting on and signing the AGS. 

· critically review the draft AGS and incorporated action plan (Appendix A) 
having regard to the Head of Internal Audit Annual Opinion (earlier on this 
agenda); and 

· advise the Leader of the Council and Chief Executive on any issues arising 
from the draft AGS and action plan. 

 
2.2 That the Council approves the Code of Corporate Governance (Appendix B) 

at Full Council on 24th July. 

Page 181



3 BACKGROUND TO THE AGS 
 

Scope of the AGS 
 
3.1 Internal control and risk management are recognised as important elements 

of good corporate governance.  The scope of governance, as covered in the 
AGS, spans the whole range of the Council’s activities and includes those 
designed to ensure that: 

 

· The Council’s policies are implemented in practice; 

· High quality services are delivered efficiently and effectively;  

· The Council’s values and ethical standards are met; 

· Laws and regulations are complied with; 

· Required processes are adhered to; 

· Its financial statements and other published information are accurate 
and reliable; and  

· Human, financial and other resources are managed efficiently and 
effectively. 

 
Arrangements for Compiling the AGS 

 
3.2 CIPFA, in conjunction with SOLACE, have produced a framework for 

delivering good governance in local government. Since 2003/04, 
responsibility for preparing the AGS rested with Internal Audit and this was 
performed working to the CIPFA/SOLACE framework.  

 
3.3 In December 2010, CIPFA issued its statement on ‘The Role of the Head of 

Internal Audit in Local Government’, which states that the Head of Internal 
Audit should ‘set out the framework of assurance that supports the Annual 
Governance Statement and identify Internal Audit’s role within it’, but ‘should 
not be responsible for preparing the report.’  
 

3.4 Arrangements for compiling the AGS for 2013-14, as last year, have been 
undertaken by the Head of Legal Services (the Council’s Monitoring Officer) 
in conjunction with the Head of Corporate Strategy and the Principal Auditor.  

 
3.5 Assurances from the work of the Internal Audit team relating to 2013/2014 

have been reviewed and have been used to inform the AGS and its 
associated action plan. 

 
3.6 One of the key messages coming out of the CIPFA/SOLACE guidance is that 

good governance relates to the whole organisation and there should be 
corporate ownership of the AGS and governance arrangements.  
 

Page 182



Arrangements for reporting on and signing off the AGS 
 
3.7 The draft AGS and Action Plan is being presented to the Members of this 

Committee for them to review and advise the Leader and Chief Executive 
upon, prior to it being signed off by the Leader and the Chief Executive.  

 
3.8 Members are asked to consider the Head of Internal Audit’s Annual Opinion, 

which is presented earlier on this agenda, in their review of the AGS. 
 

4. Progress with the 2012-13 AGS Action Plan 

 
4.1 All of the actions included in last year’s AGS Action plan have either been 

completed in full or partially completed as follows: 

 

· Budget Setting Forecast - The actions set out in the action plan drawn up in 
response to Ernst & Young’s report on errors identified in the 2012-13 budget 
setting forecast have been implemented. New arrangements have been put in 
place with the Medium Term Financial Strategy being replaced by a Mid-Year 
Financial Review. Staffing related issues have been addressed and changes 
have been made to the structure of the Finance Team to separate the role of 
Section 151 officer from the role of the Director.  
 

Internal Audit have worked with the Finance Team to review these new 
arrangements and have reported that the new processes appear robust and 
include all stages/requirements to deliver appropriate financial control. 
However, as the Council has not yet run through a full financial cycle it has 
not been possible to verify all of these in a 'live' environment. Internal Audit 
will undertake further assurance work during 2014-15, as part of the audit 
plan, to ensure appropriate evidence is in place for all changes to financial 
arrangements. This will be included as an action in the 2013-14 AGS Action 
Plan. 
 

· Risk Management – A follow up to the audit of the Risk Management 
Framework has recently been completed. This concluded that risk 
management is becoming further embedded across the organisation and the 
assurance rating was raised from ‘limited’ to ‘significant’. Twice yearly reports 
are made to the Strategic Leadership Team to update them on the risk 
management process and the Risk Management Team sends quarterly 
reports to Directors on their significant and high risks and overdue actions.  
 

· Contractor Health & Safety – The follow up audit of this area has recently 
been completed to ensure that the agreed actions for documenting checks 
undertaken on contracts have been implemented. The majority of actions 
have now been actioned and therefore the assurance rating for this area has 
been raised from limited to significant. 
 
 
 

Page 183



· Officer Code of Conduct - The Officer Code of Conduct was updated last 
year to provide greater clarity on the acceptance of gifts and hospitality. The 
updated Code was approved at Civic Affairs last year. Whilst the unions 
raised no objection to the changes made to the Code, UNISON did raise 
issues regarding other unrelated aspects of the Code. These have now been 
agreed and the updated Code will be re-issued shortly.  
 

· Scheme of Delegations - Work is in progress to ensure that the Council’s 
Scheme of Delegations is up to date and accurate. A survey of senior officers 
has been completed to identify areas in which delegations might be improved 
and a report elsewhere on this agenda identifies areas for action.  
 

4.2  Appendix A to this report details the action plan to address significant 
governance issues during 2014/15.  

 

5.   BACKGROUND TO THE CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

5.1 The Council adopted a Code of Corporate Governance on 25 April 
2002 and it has been reviewed annually since then.  

5.2 There are no significant changes to the Code this year. The Code has 
been revised to ensure that references to supporting plans, policies 
and procedures are up to date.  

 

6. CONSULTATIONS 

 
6.1 Key officers have been consulted in compiling the 2013-14 AGS and Action 

Plan. The draft AGS and Action Plan have been shared with the Council’s 
External Auditors. 

 
 
7. CONCLUSION 
 
7.1 The draft AGS and draft Code of Corporate Governance set out the 

governance framework for the City Council and identify a number of issues 
where action is planned to improve the level of governance. 

 

  

Page 184



8.       IMPLICATIONS 

 
(a) Financial Implications 
 None 
 
(b) Staffing Implications    

None  
 
(c) Equality and  Poverty Implications 
 None 
 
(d) Environmental Implications 
 None 
 
(e) Community Safety Implications  
 None 
 
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS: The following are the background papers that were used 
in the preparation of this report: 
 

· Delivering Good Governance in Local Government – The Framework and 
Guidance Note for English Authorities – CIPFA/SOLACE plus Addendum 
(December 2012) 

 

· The Annual Governance Statement: Meeting the Requirements of the 
Accounts and Audit Regulations 2003, Incorporating Accounts and Audit 
(Amendment) (England) Regulations 2006  

 

· The CIPFA Finance Advisory Network – A Rough Guide for Practitioners 
2007/08. 

 

· Application Note to Delivering Good Governance in Local Government – a 
Framework – CIPFA/SOLACE – March 2010 

 

· Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2011 
 

· Statement on the Role of the Head of Internal Audit in Local Government – 
CIPFA – December 2010 
 

· Statement on Role of the Chief Financial Officer – CIPFA  
 
 
To inspect these documents contact Bridget Bishop on extension 8182.  
 
 
The author and contact officer for queries on the report is Simon Pugh, Head of 
Legal Services and Monitoring Officer, on (01223) 457401 or email 
simon.pugh@cambridge.gov.uk. 

Page 185



 

Appendix A 

 
Annual Governance Statement 

 
 
Scope of Responsibility 

 
Cambridge City Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in 
accordance with the law and proper standards, and that public money is safeguarded 
and properly accounted for, and used economically, efficiently and effectively. 
Cambridge City Council also has a duty under the Local Government Act 1999 to 
make arrangements to secure continuous improvement in the way in which its 
functions are exercised, having regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness.  
 
In discharging this overall responsibility, Cambridge City Council is responsible for 
putting in place proper arrangements for the governance of its affairs, facilitating the 
effective exercise of its functions, and which includes arrangements for the 
management of risk.  
 
Cambridge City Council has approved and adopted a Code of Corporate 
Governance, which is consistent with the principles of the CIPFA/SOLACE 
Framework Delivering Good Governance in Local Government. A copy of the Code is 
on our website at www.cambridge.gov.uk or can be obtained from the Chief 
Executive, The Guildhall, Cambridge. This statement explains how Cambridge City 
Council has complied with the Code and also meets the requirements of the 
Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2011 regulation 4(3), which requires all 
relevant bodies to prepare an Annual Governance Statement.  
 

 

The Purpose of the Governance Framework  
 
The governance framework comprises the systems and processes, culture and 
values by which Cambridge City Council is directed and controlled and its activities 
through which it accounts to, engages with and leads its communities. It enables the 
authority to monitor the achievement of its strategic objectives and to consider 
whether those objectives have led to the delivery of appropriate services and value 
for money.  
 
The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed 
to manage risk to a reasonable level. It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve 
policies, aims and objectives and can therefore only provide reasonable and not 
absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an 
ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of 
Cambridge City Council’s policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood and 
potential impact of those risks being realised, and to manage them efficiently, 
effectively and economically. 
 
The governance framework has been in place at Cambridge City Council for the year 
ended 31 March 2014 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and 
statement of accounts.  
 

Page 186



 

The Governance Framework 
 
The key elements of the systems and processes that comprise the authority’s 
governance arrangements include: 
 

· The Council’s Objectives, which focus the Council’s efforts in achieving the 
vision for Cambridge. 

· The Annual Statement, which reiterates the vision and sets out a range of 
activities the Council will undertake in the year ahead to achieve the vision, and 
its core underpinning values. 

· The Annual Report, which contains information on financial performance and 
achievement of business objectives as articulated in the portfolio plans. 

· The annual budget and service planning process which translates the Council’s 
Objectives into actions at portfolio and operational level. 

· The Council's Mid-Year Financial Review, which identifies how the Council will 
resource its aspirations and plans for any financial risks. 

· A Budget Setting Report, which sets out overall spending plans and includes a 
Treasury Management Strategy Statement, Annual Investment Strategy and 
Minimum Revenue Provision Policy Statement. 

· The arrangements for regular budget monitoring and reporting of significant 
variances to senior management. 

 

· An independent Internal Audit function with a risk-based audit plan. 

· An annual opinion of the Head of Internal Audit on the authority’s internal control 
environment and risk management framework. 

 

· The Council’s Constitution, which sets out the decision-making process, the 
terms of reference for each committee and the roles and responsibilities of 
Members and officers. 

· The Member/Officer protocol, which aids effective communication between 
officers and Members and clarifies their respective roles and responsibilities. 

· Codes of Conduct for Members and officers, which have been formally approved 
and are reviewed regularly and available to all Members and staff. 

· The Council’s Civic Affairs Committee, which promotes and maintains high 
standards of conduct by Members and which has overall responsibility for the 
Council's compliance with laws and regulations.  

· The role of the Council’s Civic Affairs Committee, which fulfils the core functions 
of an Audit Committee as identified in CIPFA’s ‘Audit Committees – Practical 
Guidance for Local Authorities’. 

· The Council’s Prevention of Fraud and Corruption Policy which is in place and 
reviewed regularly by the Council’s Civic Affairs Committee. 

· A Register of Interests, which is maintained and reviewed regularly. 

· Financial Regulations and Financial Procedure Rules which provide a framework 
for managing the Council’s financial affairs and set out the financial 
accountabilities and responsibilities for Members and officers. 

· A corporate Risk Management Framework, which includes a Risk Management 
Strategy approved by Members and a comprehensive risk register identifying the 
key controls and actions required to manage the Council’s principal risks. 

 

· The Procurement Policy and Strategy and the Council’s Contract Procedure 
Rules, which set out how the Council will promote effective procurement across 
the Council. 

Page 187



 

· The Chief Executive is the Council’s Head of Paid Service and the Head of 
Legal Services is the Council’s Monitoring Officer. Their roles and 
responsibilities are set out in the Council’s Articles of the Constitution.  

 

· A ‘Whistleblowing’ Policy, which is in place and available on the Council’s 
intranet.  

· The Council’s Complaints Procedure, which is available on the Council’s website 
and the Independent Complaints Investigator who can investigate how the 
Council has dealt with its complaints. 

· The annual complaints report to Civic Affairs Committee, which analyses trends 
in complaints against the Council and what has been done to address them. 

 

· Member Induction training and a guide for new Members, together with ongoing 
training for Members on key skills and more in-depth explanations of issues 
concerning the Council.  

· The Council’s Performance Review process which is undertaken annually 
across the Council for all staff.  

· The Council’s Competency Framework, which is in place for all staff and 
managers. 

· The Council’s People Strategy, which sets out how the Council will recruit, 
reward and develop its staff to reach their full potential. 

 

· The Media Protocol, which sets out the processes for drafting and clearing news 
releases and engaging with the media.  

· The new Programme Office, which commissions and monitors projects to 
implement change and transformation. 

 

· The Citizens’ Survey, which is undertaken periodically to gauge the public’s 
perception of Council services, our spending priorities, communication with us 
and feelings of safety. 

 

· The Code of Corporate Governance, which sets out the ways in which the 
Council ensures that its business is conducted in accordance with law and 
proper standards and that public money is safeguarded and properly accounted 
for. 

 

· A framework to guide the Council’s engagement with external partnerships that 
will ensure the Council’s partnerships are accountable and effective. 

 

· The corporate website, residents’ magazine and social media channels, which 
along with other publications and communications provide for informing and 
engaging residents and other stakeholders in service delivery and policy 
formulation. 

· A Code of Best Practice on Consultation and Community Engagement, adopted 
by the Council which sets out the Council’s approach to consultation. 

· Internal quarterly performance reporting against key performance indicators for 
each service prepared for and presented to the strategic leadership team to 
consider necessary remedial action. 

 

Page 188



 

A new Head of Finance post has been created and this post will fulfil the role of the 
S151 officer when the new post-holder starts in July 2014. Following the departure of 
the Director of Resources in February 2014, temporary financial management 
arrangements have been put in place whereby the S151 officer at South 
Cambridgeshire District Council has been covering the S151 role for the City Council 
on strategic financial issues, with the interim Head of Finance providing operational 
financial advice.  
 
CIPFA’s Statement on the Role of the Chief Financial Officer in Local Government 
(2010) sets out some principles regarding the status of the Chief Financial Officer 
(also referred to as the “section 151 officer”.) The statement says: 
 

“Local authorities are required to have a suitably qualified CFO with certain 
defined responsibilities and powers. The governance requirements in the 
Statement are that the CFO should be professionally qualified, report directly 
to the Chief Executive and be a member of the Leadership Team, with a 
status at least equivalent to other members. The Statement requires that if 
different organisational arrangements are adopted the reasons should be 
explained publicly in the authority’s Annual Governance Report , together with 
how these deliver the same impact.” 

 
The staffing structure adopted by the Council in July 2012, and implemented from the 
beginning of 2014, provides for the new Head of Finance post to be the Chief 
Financial Officer, reporting to the Director of Business Transformation. Although this 
is not a director level appointment, and not a direct report to the Chief Executive, 
organisational arrangements are in place to ensure that the outcomes of the CIPFA 
governance requirements are met and the Council’s auditors were content with the 
proposals. Whilst line management responsibility will rest with the Director of 
Business Transformation, the new Head of Finance will be a full member of the 
Council’s Strategic Leadership Team and will report directly to the Chief Executive on 
financial matters.  
 

Page 189



 

Review of Effectiveness  
 
Cambridge City Council has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review 
of the effectiveness of its governance framework including the system of internal 
control. The review of effectiveness is informed by the work of the Directors and 
Heads of Service within Cambridge City Council who have responsibility for the 
development and maintenance of the governance environment, the Head of Internal 
Audit’s annual opinion, and also by comments made by the external auditors and 
other review agencies and inspectorates.  

 
The Council’s Constitution details Directors’ responsibilities for the maintenance of 
controls within their departments.  The system of internal control is subject to regular 
review by Internal Audit.  The work of the service is informed by the Council’s risk 
register, with the allocation of audit resources controlled through an annual risk- 
based operational plan, which is agreed, annually, by the Council’s Civic Affairs 
Committee.  
 
Individual Internal Audit reports are issued directly to the relevant Director, the 
Director of Resources (now the Director of Business Transformation), the Leader of 
the Council and the relevant Executive Councillor. Executive Summaries of Internal 
Audit reports are circulated to the Chief Executive and the Council’s Monitoring 
Officer to ensure that they are informed of potential areas of non-compliance with 
legislation.  Each audit report contains an independent assurance opinion on the 
adequacy and effectiveness of the internal controls in place to mitigate risks.  
Management actions agreed in Internal Audit reports are entered into to the Council’s 
Risk Register and progress on their implementation is reported to and monitored by 
the Chief Executive and the Strategic Leadership Team.  
 
In addition to these arrangements the Council receives and responds to reports from 
other review and assurance mechanisms. 
 
The Director of Resources was the Authority’s Chief Financial Officer and therefore 
responsible for the proper administration of the authority’s financial affairs up until the 
end of February 2014. A new Head of Finance post has been created and going 
forward, this post will fulfil the role of the S151 officer when the new post-holder 
starts in July 2014. During the interim period, between March and July 2014, the 
S151 officer at South Cambridgeshire District Council has been covering the S151 
role for the City Council on strategic financial issues, with the interim Head of 
Finance providing operational financial advice. 
 
The Council’s Civic Affairs Committee is responsible for advising on and monitoring 
the Members Code of Conduct and for advising the Council on the ethical aspects of 
the corporate governance framework.  This arrangement replaces the previous 
responsibilities of the Council’s Standards Committee, which was disbanded in July 
2012. 
 
We have been advised on the implications of the result of the review of the 
effectiveness of the governance framework by Civic Affairs Committee and that the 
arrangements continue to be regarded as fit for purpose in accordance with the 
governance framework. The areas already addressed and those specifically 
addressed with new actions planned are outlined below. 
 

Page 190



 

A
c

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 t
o

 A
d

d
re

s
s

 S
ig

n
if

ic
a

n
t 

G
o

v
e
rn

a
n

c
e
 I

s
s
u

e
s
 d

u
ri

n
g

 2
0
1
4

-1
5
 

    
Is

s
u

e
 

A
c

ti
o

n
 

T
a
rg

e
t 

D
a
te

 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 

1
 

 
B

u
d

g
e
t 

S
e
tt

in
g

 A
rr

a
n

g
e
m

e
n

ts
 

 T
h
e
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 d

ra
w

n
 u

p
 i
n
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 

E
rn

s
t 
&

 Y
o
u
n
g

’s
 r

e
p
o
rt

 o
n
 e

rr
o
rs

 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 

th
e
 2

0
1
2
-1

3
 b

u
d
g

e
t 

s
e
tt
in

g
 f

o
re

c
a
s
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 a

n
d

 n
e
w

 b
u
d
g

e
t 

s
e
tt

in
g
 

a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 h
a
v
e

 b
e
e
n
 p

u
t 
in

 p
la

c
e
. 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 h

a
v
e
 w

o
rk

e
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 F

in
a
n
c
e
 

T
e
a
m

 t
o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 t

h
e
s
e
 n

e
w

 a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 

h
a
v
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
y
 a

p
p
e
a
r 

ro
b
u
s
t 
a
n
d
 

in
c
lu

d
e
 a

ll 
s
ta

g
e
s
/r

e
q

u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
c
o
n
tr

o
l.
 

 H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 a
s
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 n

o
t 
y
e
t 
ru

n
 

th
ro

u
g

h
 a

 f
u
ll 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
c
y
c
le

 i
t 

h
a
s
 n

o
t 
b
e
e
n
 

p
o
s
s
ib

le
 t

o
 v

e
ri
fy

 a
ll 

o
f 

th
e
s
e
 i
n
 a

 'l
iv

e
' 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t.

 

·
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 t

o
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 w

o
rk

 d
u
ri
n
g

 2
0
1
4

-1
5
, 
a
s
 p

a
rt

 
o
f 

th
e
 a

u
d
it
 p

la
n
, 
to

 e
n
s
u
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 
e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 i
s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 f

o
r 

a
ll 

c
h
a
n
g

e
s
 t

o
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

. 
 

 

·
 

O
n
-g

o
in

g
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

n
e
w

 b
u
d
g

e
t/
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 
n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 s
a
v
in

g
s
 a

re
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 i
n
 f

u
tu

re
 

y
e
a
rs

. 
 

 

3
1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
5

 
     3
1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
5

 
 

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
In

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d
it
 

     H
e
a
d
 o

f 
F

in
a
n
c
e
 

2
 

 
G

o
v
e
rn

a
n

c
e
 A

rr
a
n

g
e
m

e
n

ts
 f

o
r 

N
e
w

 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 D

e
li

v
e
ry

 M
e
th

o
d

s
 

 T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

is
 u

n
d
e
rg

o
in

g
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 
c
h
a
n
g

e
 

in
 t

h
e
 w

a
y
 i
t 

d
e
liv

e
rs

 s
o
m

e
 o

f 
it
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
s
h
a
re

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 s

o
m

e
 a

re
a
s
 o

f 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
, 

s
u
c
h
 a

s
 t
h
e
 p

a
y
ro

ll 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 

in
tr

o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 C

it
y
 D

e
a
l.
 T

h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 r
is

k
 

th
a
t 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 i
n
te

re
s
ts

 m
a
y
 n

o
t 
b
e
 

p
ro

te
c
te

d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 a

n
d
 a

ft
e
r 

p
e
ri
o
d
s
 o

f 
tr

a
n
s
it
io

n
. 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 t
o
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 a

 r
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 

g
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 a

rr
a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 p
u
t 

in
 p

la
c
e
 f

o
r 

n
e
w

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 m
e
th

o
d
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 C

it
y
 

D
e
a
l 
to

 e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
y
 a

re
 s

o
u
n
d
 a

n
d
 p

ro
te

c
t 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 i
n
te

re
s
ts

. 
 

3
1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
5

 
H

e
a
d
 o

f 
In

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d
it
 

Page 191



 

  
Is

s
u

e
 

A
c

ti
o

n
 

T
a
rg

e
t 

D
a
te

 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 

3
 

 
D

is
c
h

a
rg

e
 o

f 
S

1
5
1
 R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

ie
s
 

 T
h
e
 d

is
c
h
a
rg

e
 o

f 
S

1
5
1
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 w

a
s
 

la
s
t  

a
u
d
it
e
d
 i
n
 2

0
0
7
/0

8
. 
N

e
w

 a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 
fo

r 
th

is
 h

a
v
e
 r

e
c
e
n
tl
y
 b

e
e
n
 p

u
t 
in

 p
la

c
e
 w

h
ic

h
 

m
e
a
n
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 n
o
 l
o
n
g

e
r 

c
o
m

p
lie

s
 

w
it
h
 C

IP
F

A
’s

 S
ta

te
m

e
n
t 
o
n
 t

h
e
 R

o
le

 o
f 

th
e
 

C
h
ie

f 
F

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

in
 L

o
c
a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

(2
0
1
0
).

 I
t 
w

o
u
ld

 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 b
e
 t
im

e
ly

 t
o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 

th
e
s
e
 a

rr
a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
a
ll 

S
1
5
1
 

d
u
ti
e
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 p

ic
k
e
d
 u

p
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

. 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 t
o
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 a

n
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

re
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 d

is
c
h
a
rg

e
 o

f 
S

1
5
1
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
a
u
d
it
 

p
la

n
. 
 

 

3
1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
5

 
H

e
a
d
 o

f 
In

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d
it
 

        

Page 192



 

4
 

 
In

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 S
e
c
u

ri
ty

  
 

 In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 S

e
c
u
ri
ty

 i
s
 a

 k
e
y
 r

is
k
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il.

 A
 g

re
a
t 

d
e
a
l 
o
f 
w

o
rk

 h
a
s
 a

lr
e
a
d
y
 

b
e
e
n
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 l
a
s
t 

y
e
a
r 

to
 t
ry

 a
n
d
 

a
d
d
re

s
s
 t
h
is

 i
s
s
u
e
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h
e
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 S

e
c
u
ri
ty

 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

G
ro

u
p
; 
th

e
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
fo

u
r 

D
a
ta

 
P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
 W

o
rk

s
h
o
p
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

to
 

h
e
lp

 i
n
fo

rm
 o

u
r 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
; 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 u

p
d
a
ti
n
g
 

o
f 

th
e
 D

a
ta

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 P

o
lic

y
. 

 
 F

u
rt

h
e
r 

w
o
rk

 n
e
e
d
s
 t

o
 b

e
 d

o
n
e
 t
o
 h

e
lp

 r
a
is

e
 

a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
m

o
n
g

s
t 
a
ll 

s
ta

ff
 a

n
d
 m

a
n
a
g

e
rs

. 

F
u
rt

h
e
r 

D
a
ta

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n

 t
ra

in
in

g
 i
s
 t

o
 b

e
 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d
 f

o
r 

m
a
n
a
g

e
rs

 a
n
d
 k

e
y
 s

ta
ff

 
a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

to
 m

e
e
t 
th

e
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 
n
e
e
d
s
/g

a
p
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
h
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e
 D

a
ta

 
P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
 w

o
rk

s
h
o
p
s
. 

3
1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
5

 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

5
 

C
o

u
n

te
r-

F
ra

u
d

 A
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e
n

ts
  

 In
 l
ig

h
t 

o
f 
th

e
 c

h
a
n
g

e
s
 a

ri
s
in

g
 f

ro
m

 W
e
lf
a
re

 
R

e
fo

rm
 a

n
d
 i
n
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 w

it
h
 b

e
s
t 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 

s
e
t 

o
u
t 

in
 t

h
e
 A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
’s

 r
e
p
o
rt

: 
‘P

ro
te

c
ti
n
g

 t
h
e
 P

u
b
lic

 P
u
rs

e
’,
 i
t 

w
o
u
ld

 b
e
 

ti
m

e
ly

 t
o
 c

o
n
d
u
c
t 
a
n
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
re

v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 c

o
u
n
te

r-
fr

a
u
d
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 
a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

. 
 

U
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 a

 c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
c
o
u
n
te

r-
fr

a
u
d
 a

rr
a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

, 
n
o
t 
o
n
ly

 i
n
 r

e
s
p
e
c
t 

o
f 

b
e
n
e
fi
t 
fr

a
u
d
 b

u
t 
fo

r 
a
ll 

ty
p
e
s
 o

f 
fr

a
u
d
. 

 

3
0
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
4

 
H

e
a
d
 o

f 
In

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d
it
 

a
n
d
 H

e
a
d
 o

f 
R

e
v
e
n
u
e
s
 

&
 B

e
n
e
fi
ts

 

Page 193



 

 6
 

M
e
m

b
e
r 

T
ra

in
in

g
 

 In
 l
ig

h
t 

o
f 

th
e
 r

e
c
e
n
t 

c
h
a
n
g

e
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 m

a
k
e
 u

p
 

o
f 

th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il’

s
 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

h
ip

, 
it
 

w
o
u
ld

 
b
e
 

ti
m

e
ly

 
to

 
re

v
ie

w
 
th

e
 
p
ro

v
is

io
n
 
o
f 

tr
a
in

in
g

 
to

 
M

e
m

b
e
rs

. 
 C

IP
F

A
 h

a
s
 r

e
c
e
n
tl
y
 u

p
d
a
te

d
 i

ts
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 o

n
 

b
e
s
t 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 f

o
r 

A
u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
s
. 

W
it
h
 t

h
e
 

re
c
e
n
t 

c
h
a
n
g

e
s
 

to
 

th
e
 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

h
ip

 
o
f 

th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il’

s
 

A
u
d

it
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 

(C
iv

ic
 

A
ff

a
ir
s
) 

it
 

w
o
u

ld
 a

g
a
in

 b
e
 t

im
e
ly

 t
o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 
w

it
h
 t

h
is

. 
 

R
e
v
ie

w
 t

h
e
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o

f 
a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 

p
la

c
e
 f

o
r 

p
ro

v
id

in
g

 t
ra

in
in

g
 t

o
 n

e
w

 (
a
n
d
 

e
x
is

ti
n
g

) 
M

e
m

b
e
rs

.  
 R

e
v
ie

w
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 w

it
h
 C

IP
F

A
’s

 b
e
s
t 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 o

n
 A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
s
. 

3
1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
5
 

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

  H
e
a
d
 o

f 
In

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d
it
 

7
 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
C

h
a
n

g
e
 &

 B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 

T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

 
 In

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 t

a
k
e
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 a
n
 a

m
b
it
io

u
s
 c

h
a
n
g

e
 

a
n
d
 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 

tr
a
n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

a
g

e
n
d
a
, 

n
e
w

 
a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 p

u
t 

in
 p

la
c
e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 

m
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

p
ro

je
c
ts

. 
 

R
e
v
ie

w
 t

h
e
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
w

 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

ff
ic

e
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 p
u
t 
in

 p
la

c
e
 

to
 m

a
n
a
g

e
 n

e
w

 p
ro

je
c
ts

. 

3
1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
5

 
S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 L
e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 
T

e
a
m

 

  

Page 194



 

W
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 c

o
m

in
g

 y
e
a
r 

to
 t

a
k
e
 s

te
p
s
 t

o
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 t

h
e
 a

b
o
v
e
 m

a
tt

e
rs

 t
o
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

e
n
h
a
n
c
e
 o

u
r 

g
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 a

rr
a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

. 
W

e
 a

re
 

s
a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
s
e
 s

te
p
s
 w

ill
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 t

h
e
 n

e
e
d
 f

o
r 

im
p

ro
v
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
h
a
t 

w
e
re

 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 o

u
r 

re
v
ie

w
 o

f 
e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 w

il
l 
m

o
n
it
o
r 

th
e
ir
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

o
u
r 

n
e
x
t 
a
n
n
u
a
l 
re

v
ie

w
. 

 
  S

ig
n
e
d
: 
 

    …
…

…
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
  

C
o
u
n
c
ill

o
r 

L
e
w

is
 H

e
rb

e
rt

 
L
e
a
d
e
r 

o
f 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

 
  D

a
te

: 
 

 
 

 
 

2
0
1
4
 

    …
…

…
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
  

A
n
to

in
e
tt

e
 J

a
c
k
s
o
n
 

C
h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e

 
  D

a
te

: 
 

 
 

 
 

 
2
0
1
4
 

Page 195



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 B
 -

 C
a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 C

it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 -
 C

o
d

e
 o

f 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 G

o
v
e

rn
a
n

c
e

 2
0
1
4
-1

5
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

 R
e
v
ie

w
 D

a
te

: 
J
u

n
e
 2

0
1
4
 

 A
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 C

o
d
e
 o

f 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 i
s
  

 “
 t

h
e
 s

y
s
te

m
 b

y
 w

h
ic

h
 l

o
c
a
l 
a
u

th
o

ri
ti

e
s
 d

ir
e
c
t 

a
n

d
 c

o
n

tr
o

l 
th

e
ir

 f
u

n
c
ti

o
n

s
 a

n
d

 r
e
la

te
 t

o
 t

h
e
ir

 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
”
 

 G
u
id

a
n
c
e
 f
ro

m
 C

IP
F

A
 a

n
d
 S

O
L
A

C
E

 s
u
g
g
e
s
ts

 e
a
c
h
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u

th
o
ri
ty

 s
h
o
u
ld

 h
a
v
e
 a

 C
o
d
e
 o

f 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

G
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 6

 p
ri
n
c
ip

le
s
: 

 1
  
 F

o
c
u
s
in

g
 o

n
 t
h
e
 p

u
rp

o
s
e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

; 
o
n
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
; 

a
n
d
  
  

 
  
  
 c

re
a
ti
n
g
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ti
n
g
 a

 v
is

io
n
 f

o
r 

th
e
 l
o
c
a

l 
a
re

a
. 

 2
. 
 M

e
m

b
e
rs

 a
n
d
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

 w
o
rk

in
g
 t
o
g
e
th

e
r 

to
 a

c
h
ie

v
e

 c
o
m

m
o
n
 p

u
rp

o
s
e
s
  

 
  
  
 w

it
h
 c

le
a
rl
y
 d

e
fi
n
e
d
 f

u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 r

o
le

s
. 

 3
. 

P
ro

m
o
ti
n
g
 v

a
lu

e
s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
n
d
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
ti
n

g
 t
h
e
 v

a
lu

e
s
 o

f 
g
o
o
d
  

  
  

g
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 u

p
h
o
ld

in
g
 h

ig
h
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 o

f 
c
o
n
d
u
c
t 
a
n
d
 b

e
h
a
v
io

u
r.

 
 4
. 

T
a
k
in

g
 i
n
fo

rm
e
d
 a

n
d
 t

ra
n
s
p
a
re

n
t 

d
e
c
is

io
n
s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 s

u
b
je

c
t 
to

 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
  

  
  
 s

c
ru

ti
n
y
 a

n
d
 r

is
k
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t.

 
 5
. 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 t
h
e
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y
 a

n
d
 c

a
p
a
b
ili

ty
 o

f 
M

e
m

b
e
rs

 a
n
d
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

 t
o
 b

e
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
. 

6
. 

E
n
g
a
g
in

g
 w

it
h
 l
o
c
a
l 
p
e
o
p
le

 a
n
d
 o

th
e
r 

s
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 r
o
b
u
s
t 
p
u
b
lic

  
  

 
  
  

a
c
c
o
u
n
ta

b
ili

ty
. 

Page 196



T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
d
o
p
te

d
 a

 C
o
d
e
 o

f 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 o

n
 2

5
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
0
2
. 
It
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 a

n
n
u
a

lly
 s

in
c
e
 

th
e
n
. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 t

h
e
 2

0
1
4

 r
e
v
ie

w
. 

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 C

iv
ic

 A
ff
a
ir
s
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

s
k
e
d
 t
o
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

th
e
 r

e
v
is

e
d
 C

o
d
e
 

a
n
d
 t

o
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
 i
t 
to

 f
u
ll 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

fo
r 

a
d
o
p
ti
o
n
. 

  T
h
is

 C
o
d
e
 t
a
k
e
s
 e

a
c
h
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ri
n
c
ip

le
s
 o

f 
g
o
o
d
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 i
n
 t
u
rn

 a
n
d
 s

e
ts

 o
u
t 
th

e
 s

y
s
te

m
s
, 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 a

n
d
 

p
ri
n
c
ip

le
s
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 p

u
t 

in
 p

la
c
e
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 g
o

o
d
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
. 

 T
h
e
 C

o
d
e
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 a

n
n
u
a
lly

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 s

ta
te

m
e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
, 
w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 t
h
e

 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 b

e
 t
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 e

n
h
a
n
c
e
 t
h
e
 c

o
d
e
 o

r 
a
d
d
re

s
s
 a

n
y
 l
im

it
a
ti
o
n
s
 w

it
h
 i
n
 i
t.
  

 S
im

o
n
 P

u
g
h
 

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
L
e
g
a
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 M

o
n
it
o
ri

n
g
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

 
 1
3
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
1
4
 

Page 197



1
 

F
o

c
u

s
in

g
 o

n
 t

h
e
 p

u
rp

o
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 a

u
th

o
ri

ty
; 

o
n

 o
u

tc
o

m
e
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
; 

c
re

a
ti

n
g

 a
n

d
 

im
p

le
m

e
n

ti
n

g
 a

 v
is

io
n

 f
o

r 
th

e
 l

o
c
a
l 

a
re

a
 

  
 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 E
v
id

e
n

c
e

 

1
.1

 
T

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 w
il
l 
h

a
v
e
 a

 c
le

a
r 

v
is

io
n

 f
o

r 
th

e
 C

it
y
 a

n
d

 s
e
t 

o
b

je
c
ti

v
e
s
 t

o
 

g
u

id
e
 t

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il
's

 a
c
ti

v
it

ie
s
. 

It
 w

il
l 
re

v
ie

w
 t

h
o

s
e
 o

b
je

c
ti

v
e
s
 e

a
c
h

 y
e

a
r,

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 A

n
n

u
a
l 

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
a
g

re
e
d

 a
t 

th
e
 A

n
n

u
a
l 

C
o

u
n

c
il
 m

e
e
ti

n
g

. 

V
is

io
n
 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
S

ta
te

m
e
n
t 

1
.2

 
T

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 w
il
l 
w

o
rk

 w
it

h
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 t
o

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
d

 d
e
li
v
e
r 

a
n

 
o

p
e
ra

ti
o

n
a
l 
p

la
n

 f
o

r 
th

e
 L

o
c
a
l 
E

n
te

rp
ri

s
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

, 
(i

n
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e
 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 E
c
o

n
o

m
ic

 P
la

n
 a

n
d

 E
u

ro
p

e
a
n

 S
tr

u
c
tu

ra
l 
&

 I
n

v
e
s
tm

e
n

t 
F

u
n

d
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
) 

a
n

d
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
te

 t
o

 t
h

e
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
p

ri
o

ri
ti

e
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 H

e
a
lt

h
 &

 
W

e
ll

b
e
in

g
 B

o
a
rd

 a
n

d
 o

th
e
r 

re
le

v
a
n

t 
c
o

u
n

ty
w

id
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
. 

L
o
c
a
l 
E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 

P
la

n
s
 

H
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 W

e
llb

e
in

g
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y

 

1
.3

 
T

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 w
il
l 
h

a
v
e
 a

 M
id

-Y
e
a
r 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
R

e
v
ie

w
 t

o
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
 t

h
e
 

C
o

u
n

c
il

's
 a

s
p

ir
a
ti

o
n

s
 a

n
d

 t
o

 a
s
s
e
s
s
 a

n
d

 p
la

n
 f

o
r 

a
n

y
 f

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
ri

s
k
s
. 
T

h
e
 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 w

il
l 

b
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d

 a
n

n
u

a
ll

y
. 

 

M
id

-Y
e
a
r 

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
R

e
v
ie

w
  

1
.4

 
T

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 w
il
l 
p

u
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 p

u
b

li
c
 f

ir
s
t.

 T
h

e
 a

n
n

u
a
l 

p
o

rt
fo

li
o

 
p

la
n

n
in

g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 w

il
l 
b

e
 u

s
e
d

 t
o

 a
g

re
e
 t

h
e
 p

ri
o

ri
ti

e
s
 f

o
r 

e
a
c
h

 a
re

a
 o

f 
E

x
e
c
u

ti
v
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il
lo

r 
re

s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
. 

T
h

e
 P

la
n

s
 e

x
p

re
s
s
 t

h
e
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 
o

b
je

c
ti

v
e
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 p

o
rt

fo
li

o
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 f

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r 

2
0
1

4
/1

5
 a

n
d

 b
e

y
o

n
d

. 
B

e
n

e
a
th

 e
a
c
h

 o
f 

th
e
 o

b
je

c
ti

v
e
s
 a

re
 d

e
ta

il
e
d

 t
h

e
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
r 

o
u

tc
o

m
e
s
 t

o
 

b
e
 a

c
h

ie
v
e
d

 i
n

 2
0
1
4

/1
5
. 

F
in

a
ll

y
 t

h
e
 p

la
n

s
 w

il
l 
in

c
lu

d
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 

P
o
rt

fo
lio

 P
la

n
s
 

A
g
e
n
d
a
 f
o

r 
S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
s
 M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
4
/1

5
 c

y
c
le

  

 

Page 198



m
e
a
s
u

re
s
 t

h
a
t 

w
il
l 
p

ro
v
id

e
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n

 
a
c
h

ie
v
e
d

. 

T
h

is
 i

n
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

 w
il
l 
e
n

a
b

le
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 a
n

d
 t

h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

n
g

 t
o

 
th

e
 d

e
li
v
e
ry

 o
f 

th
e
 p

la
n

 t
o

 b
e
 c

le
a
r 

a
b

o
u

t  
th

e
 p

ri
o

ri
ti

e
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 p

o
rt

fo
li

o
 

a
n

d
 w

il
l 
a
s
s
is

t 
in

 d
e
c
is

io
n

s
 a

b
o

u
t 

w
h

e
re

 r
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 f

o
c
u

s
s
e
d

 
w

it
h

in
 t

h
e
 p

o
rt

fo
li
o

. 

H
e
a
d

s
 o

f 
in

d
iv

id
u

a
l 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 a

re
a
s
 p

re
p

a
re

 o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a
l 
p

la
n

s
 i

n
d

ic
a
ti

n
g

 
h

o
w

 t
h

e
y
 w

il
l 
m

e
e
t 

o
b

je
c
ti

v
e
s
 s

e
t 

in
 p

o
rt

fo
li

o
 p

la
n

s
 a

n
d

 s
e

tt
in

g
 o

u
t 

th
e
ir

 
p

ri
o

ri
ti

e
s
 a

n
d

 w
o

rk
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 y

e
a
r 

a
h

e
a
d

.  
 

      O
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
P

la
n
s
 

 

1
.5

 
E

a
c
h

 y
e
a
r 

th
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 w

il
l 

p
u

b
li
s
h

 a
n

 A
n

n
u

a
l 

R
e
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 S

ta
te

m
e
n

t 
o

f 
A

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 g

iv
in

g
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 o
n

 t
h

e
 a

u
th

o
ri

ty
's

 v
is

io
n

, 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
, 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
, 
fu

tu
re

 p
la

n
s
 a

n
d

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
. 

 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
R

e
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 

S
ta

te
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
A

c
c
o
u
n
ts

 

1
.6

 
T

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 w
il
l 
s
e
e
k
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 v

a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

m
o

n
e

y
 t

o
 l

o
c
a
l 

p
e
o

p
le

. 
 

It
 w

il
l 
w

o
rk

 t
o

 m
a
x
im

is
e
 i
ts

 r
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 b

y
 d

e
li

v
e
ri

n
g

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

s
 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
tl

y
 a

s
 p

o
s
s

ib
le

, 
w

o
rk

in
g

 i
n

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
it

h
 o

th
e
rs

 a
n

d
 u

s
in

g
 

o
th

e
r 

p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 w
h

e
re

 t
h

e
s
e
 a

re
 t

h
e
 b

e
s
t 

o
p

ti
o

n
s
. 

 

It
 w

il
l 
h

a
v
e
 a

 c
le

a
r 

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d

 t
o

 m
e
e
t 

th
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il
’s

 
w

id
e
r 

o
b

je
c
ti

v
e
s
 a

n
d

 C
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

P
ro

c
e
d

u
re

s
 R

u
le

s
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d

 t
o

 d
e
li
v
e
r 

ro
b

u
s
t 

a
n

d
 f

a
ir

 p
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
. 

  
 

     P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
S

tr
a
te

g
y

 

Page 199



2
 

M
e
m

b
e
rs

 a
n

d
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

 w
o

rk
in

g
 t

o
g

e
th

e
r 

to
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

 c
o

m
m

o
n

 p
u

rp
o

s
e
s
 w

it
h

 c
le

a
rl

y
 

d
e
fi

n
e
d

 f
u

n
c
ti

o
n

s
 a

n
d

 r
o

le
s

 
  

 
S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 E

v
id

e
n

c
e

 

2
.1

 
T

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 w
il
l 
s
e
t 

o
u

t 
a
 c

le
a
r 

s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
th

e
 r

o
le

s
 a

n
d

 
re

s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

ie
s
 o

f 
E

x
e
c
u

ti
v
e
 M

e
m

b
e
rs

, 
o

th
e
r 

M
e
m

b
e
rs

 a
n

d
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 

O
ff

ic
e
rs

 i
n

 i
ts

 C
o

n
s
ti

tu
ti

o
n

.  

T
h

e
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 o

f 
d

e
le

g
a
ti

o
n

 w
it

h
in

 t
h

e
 C

o
n

s
ti

tu
ti

o
n

 w
il
l 
m

a
k
e
 c

le
a
r 

w
h

a
t 

m
a
tt

e
rs

 a
re

 r
e
s
e
rv

e
d

 f
o

r 
c
o

ll
e
c
ti

v
e
 d

e
c
is

io
n

-m
a
k
in

g
 b

y
 f

u
ll
 C

o
u

n
c
il
. 

 

C
o
n
s
ti
tu

ti
o
n
 

M
e
m

b
e
r/

O
ff

ic
e
r 

P
ro

to
c
o
l 

2
.2

 
A

 M
e
m

b
e
r/

O
ff

ic
e
r 

p
ro

to
c
o

l 
w

il
l 
b

e
 u

s
e
d

 t
o

 a
id

 e
ff

e
c
ti

v
e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti

o
n

 
b

e
tw

e
e
n

 O
ff

ic
e
rs

 a
n

d
 M

e
m

b
e
rs

 a
n

d
 t

o
 c

la
ri

fy
 t

h
e
ir

 r
e
s
p

e
c
ti

v
e
 r

o
le

s
 a

n
d

 
a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 w
a

y
s
 o

f 
w

o
rk

in
g

. 
 

2
.3

 
T

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

’s
 C

h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c

u
ti

v
e
 i

s
 i

ts
 H

e
a
d

 o
f 

P
a
id

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 

a
n

d
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ta
b

le
 t

o
 t

h
e
 a

u
th

o
ri

ty
 f

o
r 

it
s
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o

n
a
l 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t.
 

T
h

e
 H

e
a
d

 o
f 

F
in

a
n

c
e

 i
s
 t

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

’s
 C

h
ie

f 
F

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

a
n

d
 S

1
5
1
 

O
ff

ic
e
r,

 r
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 t

o
 t

h
e
 a

u
th

o
ri

ty
 f

o
r 

e
n

s
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
a
t 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 a
d

v
ic

e
 

is
 g

iv
e
n

 o
n

 a
ll

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
m

a
tt

e
rs

, 
fo

r 
k
e
e
p

in
g

 p
ro

p
e
r 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
re

c
o

rd
s
 a

n
d

 
a
c
c
o

u
n

ts
, 

a
n

d
 f

o
r 

m
a
in

ta
in

in
g

 a
n

 e
ff

e
c
ti

v
e
 s

y
s
te

m
 o

f 
in

te
rn

a
l 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
c
o

n
tr

o
l.
  

   

C
o
n
s
ti
tu

ti
o
n
 

J
o
b
 D

e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 

C
h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
, 

H
e
a
d
 

o
f 

F
in

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

S
c
h
e
d
u
le

 o
n
 t
h
e
 R

o
le

 o
f 

th
e
 C

h
ie

f 
F

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

Page 200



T
h

e
  

H
e
a
d

 o
f 

L
e
g

a
l 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 i

s
 t

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

’s
 M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 O

ff
ic

e
r,

 
re

s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 t

o
 t

h
e
 a

u
th

o
ri

ty
 f

o
r 

e
n

s
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
a
t 

a
g

re
e
d

 p
ro

c
e
d

u
re

s
 a

re
 

fo
ll

o
w

e
d

 a
n

d
 t

h
a
t 

a
ll
 a

p
p

li
c
a
b

le
 s

ta
tu

te
s
 a

n
d

 r
e
g

u
la

ti
o

n
s
 a

re
 c

o
m

p
li
e
d

 
w

it
h

.  
 

2
.4

 
T

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 w
il
l 
e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
s
e
 S

ta
tu

to
ry

 O
ff

ic
e
rs

 h
a
v
e
 t

h
e
 s

k
il
ls

, 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

n
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 t
o

 p
e
rf

o
rm

 e
ff

e
c
ti

v
e
ly

 i
n

 t
h

e
ir

 r
o

le
s
 

a
n

d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
s
e
 r

o
le

s
 a

re
 p

ro
p

e
rl

y
 u

n
d

e
rs

to
o

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
o

u
t 

th
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il
. 

 

P
o
rt

fo
lio

 P
la

n
s
 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 R

e
v
ie

w
s
 

P
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
l 

Q
u
a
lif

ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 

tr
a
in

in
g

 

2
.5

 
T

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

’s
 C

iv
ic

 A
ff

a
ir

s
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e
 w

il
l 

b
e
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

c
o

n
s
ti

tu
ti

o
n

a
l 
is

s
u

e
s
 a

n
d

 w
il
l 

e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 c

o
n

s
ti

tu
ti

o
n

 i
s
 m

o
n

it
o

re
d

 
a
n

d
 u

p
d

a
te

d
 w

h
e
n

 r
e
q

u
ir

e
d

. 
 

T
e
rm

s
 o

f 
R

e
fe

re
n
c
e
 o

f 
C

iv
ic

 A
ff

a
ir
s
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 

2
.6

 
T

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 w
il
l 
u

s
e
 a

n
 I
n

d
e
p

e
n

d
e
n

t 
R

e
m

u
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 P

a
n

e
l 

to
 g

iv
e
 a

d
v
ic

e
 

o
n

 p
a

y
m

e
n

ts
 f

o
r 

M
e
m

b
e
rs

 a
n

d
 c

o
n

s
id

e
r 

th
e
ir

 a
d

v
ic

e
 w

h
e
n

 s
e
tt

in
g

 t
h

e
 

M
e
m

b
e
rs

’ 
A

ll
o

w
a
n

c
e
 S

c
h

e
m

e
. 

 

T
h

e
 P

a
n

e
l 
w

il
l 
o

p
e
ra

te
 i

n
 a

n
 o

p
e
n

 a
n

d
 t

ra
n

s
p

a
re

n
t 

m
a
n

n
e
r,

 m
a
k
in

g
 t

h
e
ir

 
a
g

e
n

d
a
s
, 

re
p

o
rt

s
 a

n
d

 m
in

u
te

s
 a

v
a
il
a
b

le
 t

o
 t

h
e
 p

u
b

li
c
. 

T
h

e
 M

e
m

b
e
rs

’ 
A

ll
o

w
a
n

c
e
 S

c
h

e
m

e
 w

il
l 
a
ls

o
 b

e
 m

a
d

e
 a

v
a
il

a
b

le
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

p
u

b
li

c
 a

n
d

 o
n

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

’s
 w

e
b

s
it

e
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 w

il
l 

b
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d

 
a
n

n
u

a
ll

y
.  

In
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

R
e
m

u
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 P

a
n
e
l 

T
e
rm

s
 o

f 
R

e
fe

re
n
c
e
  

In
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

R
e
m

u
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 P

a
n
e
l 

a
g
e
n
d
a
s
, 
re

p
o
rt

s
 a

n
d
 

m
in

u
te

s
 

M
e
m

b
e
rs

’ 
A

llo
w

a
n
c
e
 

S
c
h
e
m

e
 

P
a
y
 P

o
lic

y
 S

ta
te

m
e
n
t 

 

Page 201



2
.7

 
W

h
e
n

 w
o

rk
in

g
 i

n
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 t

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 w
il
l 

e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a
t 

M
e
m

b
e
rs

 a
re

 
c
le

a
r 

a
b

o
u

t 
th

e
ir

 
ro

le
s
 

a
n

d
 

re
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

ie
s
, 

b
o

th
 

in
d

iv
id

u
a
ll

y
 

a
n

d
 

c
o

ll
e
c
ti

v
e
ly

, 
in

 r
e
la

ti
o

n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 a

n
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

. 

It
 
w

il
l 

a
ls

o
 
e
n

s
u

re
 
th

a
t 

th
e
re

 
is

 
c
la

ri
ty

 
a

b
o

u
t 

th
e
 
le

g
a
l 

s
ta

tu
s
 
o

f 
e
a
c
h

 
p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 a
n

d
 t

h
a
t 

a
ll

 r
e
p

re
s
e
n

ta
ti

v
e
s
 i

n
 t

h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 h
a
v
e
 c

la
ri

ty
 

a
b

o
u

t 
th

e
ir

 
p

o
w

e
rs

 
to

 
b

in
d

 
th

e
ir

 
o

w
n

 
o

rg
a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

 
to

 
p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
d

e
c
is

io
n

s
. 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 w
il
l 
o

p
e
ra

te
 i
n

 a
c
c
o

rd
a
n

c
e
 w

it
h

 p
ri

n
c
ip

le
s
 o

f 
p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
w

o
rk

in
g

 a
g

re
e
d

 w
it

h
 o

u
r 

k
e

y
 p

a
rt

n
e
r 

o
rg

a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

s
.  

 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 T
e
rm

s
 o

f 
R

e
fe

re
n
c
e
 

P
ri
n
c
ip

le
s
 o

f 
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
W

o
rk

in
g

 

 

Page 202



3
  

 P
ro

m
o

ti
n

g
 v

a
lu

e
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 a

u
th

o
ri

ty
 a

n
d

 d
e

m
o

n
s
tr

a
ti

n
g

 t
h

e
 v

a
lu

e
s
 o

f 
g

o
o

d
 g

o
v
e

rn
a
n

c
e
 

th
ro

u
g

h
 u

p
h

o
ld

in
g

 h
ig

h
 s

ta
n

d
a
rd

s
 o

f 
c
o

n
d

u
c
t 

a
n

d
 b

e
h

a
v
io

u
r 

 

  
 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 E
v
id

e
n

c
e

 

3
.1

 
T

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 w
il
l 
e
x
p

e
c
t 

th
e
 a

u
th

o
ri

ty
's

 l
e
a
d

e
rs

h
ip

 –
 b

o
th

 M
e
m

b
e
rs

 a
n

d
 

O
ff

ic
e
rs

 -
 t

o
 c

re
a
te

 a
 c

li
m

a
te

 o
f 

o
p

e
n

n
e
s
s
, 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 r

e
s
p

e
c
t 

a
n

d
 t

o
 

u
p

h
o

ld
 t

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c

il
’s

 v
a
lu

e
s
 a

s
 e

x
p

re
s
s
e
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il
’s

 M
id

-Y
e
a
r 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
R

e
v
ie

w
 d

o
c
u

m
e
n

t.
 

T
h

e
 s

ta
n

d
a
rd

s
 o

f 
c
o

n
d

u
c
t 

a
n

d
 p

e
rs

o
n

a
l 

b
e
h

a
v
io

u
r 

e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 o

f 
M

e
m

b
e
rs

 
a
n

d
 s

ta
ff

 w
il
l 
b

e
 s

e
t 

o
u

t 
in

 t
h

e
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

C
o

d
e
 o

f 
C

o
n

d
u

c
t,

 t
h

e
 M

e
m

b
e
r 

C
o

d
e
 o

f 
C

o
n

d
u

c
t 

a
n

d
 i

n
 t

h
e
 M

e
m

b
e
r/

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

p
ro

to
c
o

l.
 A

n
 u

p
-t

o
-d

a
te

 
re

g
is

te
r 

o
f 

M
e
m

b
e
r 

a
n

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

S
e
n

io
r 

O
ff

ic
e
r 

In
te

re
s
ts

 w
il
l 

b
e
 

m
a
in

ta
in

e
d

. 
 

C
o
n
s
ti
tu

ti
o
n
 

C
o
n
fi
d
e
n
ti
a
l 

W
h
is

tl
e
b
o
lw

in
g
 P

o
lic

y
 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
C

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 
R

e
p
o
rt

 

P
re

v
e
n
ti
o
n
 o

f 
F

ra
u
d
 a

n
d
 

C
o
rr

u
p
ti
o
n
 P

o
lic

y
 

R
e
g
is

te
r 

o
f 
In

te
re

s
ts

  

3
.2

 
T

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 h
a
s
 a

d
o

p
te

d
 a

 C
o

d
e
 o

f 
C

o
n

d
u

c
t 

fo
r 

C
o

u
n

c
il
lo

rs
 a

n
d

 h
a
s
 p

u
t 

in
 p

la
c
e
 p

ro
c
e
d

u
re

s
 f

o
r 

c
o

n
s
id

e
ri

n
g

 c
o

m
p

la
in

ts
. 
T

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 h
a
s
 

a
p

p
o

in
te

d
 t

w
o

 “
in

d
e
p

e
n

d
e
n

t 
p

e
rs

o
n

s
”
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
is

, 
in

 a
c
c
o

rd
a
n

c
e
 

w
it

h
 t

h
e
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
 o

f 
th

e
 L

o
c
a
li
s
m

 A
c
t,

 2
0
1
1
.  

It
 w

il
l 
m

a
in

ta
in

 a
 W

h
is

tl
e
b

lo
w

in
g

 p
o

li
c

y
 t

o
 e

n
a
b

le
 c

o
n

fi
d

e
n

ti
a
l 
re

p
o

rt
in

g
 

o
f 

s
u

s
p

e
c
te

d
 b

re
a
c
h

e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

C
o

d
e
 o

f 
C

o
n

d
u

c
t 

o
r 

u
n

e
th

ic
a
l 

b
e
h

a
v
io

u
r 

a
n

d
 w

il
l 
re

p
o

rt
 o

n
 h

o
w

 t
h

e
 p

o
li

c
y
 i

s
 u

s
e
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 A

n
n

u
a
l 

R
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 P

re
v
e
n

ti
o

n
 o

f 
F

ra
u

d
 a

n
d

 C
o

rr
u

p
ti

o
n

 P
o

li
c

y
. 

  

  C
o
d
e
 o

f 
C

o
n
d
u
c
t 
fo

r 
C

o
u
n
c
ill

o
rs

 
 T

e
rm

s
 o

f 
re

fe
re

n
c
e
 f
o
r 

In
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
P

e
rs

o
n
s
 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
C

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 
R

e
p
o
rt

  
 W

h
is

tl
e
b
lo

w
in

g
 P

o
lic

y
 

Page 203



It
 w

il
l 
a
ls

o
 m

a
in

ta
in

 a
 P

re
v
e
n

ti
o

n
 o

f 
F

ra
u

d
 a

n
d

 C
o

rr
u

p
ti

o
n

 P
o

li
c

y
 a

n
d

 
b

o
th

 p
o

li
c
ie

s
 w

il
l 
b

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d

 r
e
g

u
la

rl
y
 b

y
 t

h
e
 C

iv
ic

 A
ff

a
ir

s
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e
. 

 T
h

e
 t

e
rm

s
 o

f 
re

fe
re

n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 C

iv
ic

 A
ff

a
ir

s
 c

o
m

m
it

te
e
 i
n

c
lu

d
e
s
 

re
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 f

o
r 

a
d

v
is

in
g

 o
n

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

’s
 e

th
ic

a
l 
fr

a
m

e
w

o
rk

 a
n

d
 t

h
e
 

p
ro

m
o

ti
o

n
 o

f 
o

p
e
n

n
e
s
s
, 

a
c
c
o

u
n

ta
b

il
it

y
 a

n
d

 p
ro

b
it

y
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
e
 h

ig
h

e
s
t 

s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 o

f 
c
o

n
d

u
c
t.

 

 P
re

v
e
n
ti
o

n
 o

f 
F

ra
u
d
 a

n
d
 

C
o
rr

u
p
ti
o
n
 P

o
lic

y
 

 T
e
rm

s
 o

f 
re

fe
re

n
c
e
 f
o
r 

C
iv

ic
 A

ff
a
ir
s
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 

3
.3

 
T

h
e
 b

e
h

a
v
io

u
r 

e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 a

n
d

 m
a
n

a
g

e
rs

 w
il
l 

b
e
 s

e
t 

o
u

t 
in

 t
h

e
 

C
o

u
n

c
il

's
 c

o
m

p
e
te

n
c

y
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 a
n

d
 t

h
is

 w
il
l 
b

e
 u

s
e
d

 a
s
 t

h
e
 b

a
s
is

 f
o

r 
s
ta

ff
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 a

p
p

ra
is

a
l.

 

C
o
m

p
e
te

n
c
y
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 

G
ri
e
v
a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 

D
is

c
ip

lin
a
ry

 P
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
 

3
.4

 
T

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

’s
 s

ta
n

d
in

g
 o

rd
e
rs

 a
n

d
 f

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
re

g
u

la
ti

o
n

s
 w

il
l 
p

u
t 

in
 p

la
c
e
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a
t 

M
e
m

b
e
rs

 a
n

d
 e

m
p

lo
y
e
e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 

a
u

th
o

ri
ty

 a
re

 n
o

t 
in

fl
u

e
n

c
e
d

 b
y
 p

re
ju

d
ic

e
, 

b
ia

s
 o

r 
c
o

n
fl

ic
ts

 o
f 

in
te

re
s
t 

in
 

d
e
a
li

n
g

 w
it

h
 d

if
fe

re
n

t 
s
ta

k
e
h

o
ld

e
rs

.  
 

C
o
n
s
ti
tu

ti
o
n
 

3
.5

 
T

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 w
il
l 
e
n

s
u

re
 a

ll
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 w

it
h

 w
h

ic
h

 i
t 

is
 e

n
g

a
g

e
d

 h
a
v
e
 a

 
s
e
t 

o
f 

v
a
lu

e
s
 o

r 
c
ri

te
ri

a
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

w
h

ic
h

 d
e
c
is

io
n

-m
a
k
in

g
 a

n
d

 a
c
ti

o
n

s
 c

a
n

 
b

e
 j

u
d

g
e
d

. 
 I
t 

w
il
l 
w

o
rk

 w
it

h
 t

h
o

s
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
e

y
 a

re
 o

p
e
n

 
a
n

d
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ta
b

le
 a

n
d

 h
a
v
e
 c

le
a
r 

g
o

v
e
rn

a
n

c
e
 s

tr
u

c
tu

re
s
 i

n
 p

la
c
e
. 

 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 T
e
rm

s
 o

f 
R

e
fe

re
n
c
e
 

P
ri
n
c
ip

le
s
 o

f 
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
W

o
rk

in
g

 

Page 204



4
. 

T
a
k
in

g
 i

n
fo

rm
e
d

 a
n

d
 t

ra
n

s
p

a
re

n
t 

d
e
c
is

io
n

s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 s

u
b

je
c
t 

to
 e

ff
e
c

ti
v
e
 s

c
ru

ti
n

y
 a

n
d

 
ri

s
k
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t.
 

  
 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 E
v
id

e
n

c
e

 

4
.1

 
T

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 w
il
l 
o

p
e
ra

te
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e
 l
e
g

a
l 

fr
a
m

e
w

o
rk

 f
o

r 
lo

c
a
l 
c
o

u
n

c
il
s
 

c
o

m
p

ly
in

g
 w

it
h

 i
ts

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 d

u
ti

e
s
 a

n
d

 m
a
k
in

g
 t

h
e
 m

o
s
t 

o
f 

it
s
 p

o
w

e
rs

 t
o

 
m

e
e
t 

th
e
 n

e
e
d

s
 o

f 
th

e
 C

it
y
 a

n
d

 i
ts

 r
e
s
id

e
n

ts
. 

C
o
re

 C
o
m

p
e
te

n
c
ie

s
 f
o
r 

m
a
n
a
g
e
rs

 

M
a
n
a
g
e
rs

’ 
J
o
b
 

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
s
 

R
o
le

 o
f 
M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 

O
ff

ic
e
r 

4
.2

 
T

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 w
il
l 
h

o
ld

 i
ts

 m
e
e
ti

n
g

s
, 
a
n

d
 t

h
o

s
e
 o

f 
it

s
 c

o
m

m
it

te
e
s
 a

n
d

 
w

o
rk

in
g

 g
ro

u
p

s
, 
in

 p
u

b
li

c
 u

n
le

s
s
 t

h
e
re

 a
re

 g
o

o
d

 r
e
a
s
o

n
s
 f

o
r 

c
o

n
fi

d
e
n

ti
a
li
ty

. 
T

h
e
 p

u
b

li
c
 w

il
l 

b
e
 a

ll
o

w
e
d

 t
o

 a
s
k
 q

u
e
s
ti

o
n

s
 a

t 
a
ll
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 

a
n

d
 c

o
m

m
it

te
e
 m

e
e
ti

n
g

s
.  

 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 A

g
e
n
d
a
s
 

C
o
n
s
ti
tu

ti
o
n
 

 C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 F

o
rw

a
rd

 
P

la
n
  

4
.3

 
T

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 w
il
l 
m

a
k
e
 s

u
re

 m
e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

th
e
 p

u
b

li
c
 h

a
v
e
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

 a
b

o
u

t 
th

e
 w

o
rk

in
g

s
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

. 
 I
t 

w
il
l 
m

a
k
e
 c

le
a
r 

w
h

a
t 

in
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

 i
s
 r

o
u

ti
n

e
ly

 p
u

b
li

s
h

e
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 i
ts

 F
re

e
d

o
m

 o
f 

In
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

 
P

u
b

li
c
a
ti

o
n

 s
c
h

e
m

e
 a

n
d

 w
il
l 
re

s
p

o
n

d
 p

ro
m

p
tl

y
 t

o
 r

e
q

u
e
s
ts

 f
o

r 
in

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

. 
T

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 w
il
l 

p
u

b
li
s
h

 o
n

 i
ts

 w
e
b

s
it

e
 a

ll
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
e
s
 t

o
 

F
re

e
d

o
m

 o
f 

In
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

 r
e
q

u
e
s
ts

. 

P
u
b
lic

a
ti
o
n
 S

c
h
e
m

e
 

F
re

e
d
o
m

 o
f 
In

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

re
q
u
e
s
ts

 m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 

re
p
o
rt

s
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

W
e
b
s
it
e
 

O
p
e
n
 d

a
ta

 

Page 205



4
.4

 
T

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 w
il
l 
re

s
p

e
c
t 

 t
h

e
 p

e
rs

o
n

a
l 

d
a
ta

 o
f 

it
s
 c

it
iz

e
n

s
, 

e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
s
, 

s
u

p
p

li
e
rs

 a
n

d
 o

th
e
rs

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 m

a
y
 c

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
te

 w
it

h
 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 

p
ri

n
c
ip

le
s
 o

f 
th

e
 D

a
ta

 P
ro

te
c
ti

o
n

 l
e
g

is
la

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 w
il
l 

m
a
k
e
 t

h
is

 c
le

a
r 

in
 

it
s
 o

w
n

 D
a
ta

 P
ro

te
c
ti

o
n

 P
o

li
c

y
. 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 w
il
l 
re

s
p

e
c
t 

th
e
 p

ri
v
a
c

y
 o

f 
m

e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

th
e
 p

u
b

li
c
 w

h
e
n

 c
a
ry

in
g

 o
u

t 
in

v
e
s
ti

g
a
ti

o
n

s
 a

n
d

 w
il
l 

e
n

s
u

re
 

th
a
t 

p
ri

v
a
c

y
 i

s
 o

n
ly

 i
n

te
rf

e
re

d
 w

it
h

 w
h

e
n

 t
h

e
 l
a
w

 p
e
rm

it
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 

c
le

a
r 

p
u

b
li
c
 i
n

te
re

s
t 

j u
s
ti

fi
c
a
ti

o
n

. 
 

D
a
ta

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 P

o
lic

y
  

R
e
g
u
la

ti
o
n
 o

f 
In

v
e
s
ti
g
a
to

ry
 P

o
w

e
rs

 
A

c
t 
2
0
0
0
 –

 P
ro

c
e
d
u
re

 
g
u
id

a
n
c
e
 

In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 S

e
c
u
ri
ty

 
G

ro
u
p
 

S
e
ri
o
u
s
 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

R
is

k
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

4
.5

 
T

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 w
il
l 
re

c
o

rd
 t

h
e
 d

e
li

b
e
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
s
c
ru

ti
n

y
 c

o
m

m
it

te
e
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 

re
a
s
o

n
s
 f

o
r 

E
x
e
c
u

ti
v
e
 a

n
d

 R
e
g

u
la

to
ry

 d
e
c
is

io
n

s
 a

n
d

 m
a
k
e
 a

g
e
n

d
a
 

p
a
p

e
rs

 a
n

d
 m

in
u

te
s
 a

v
a
il

a
b

le
 o

n
 t

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

’s
 w

e
b

s
it

e
. 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 w

il
l 

a
ls

o
 r

e
c
o

rd
 a

n
d

 p
u

b
li

s
h

 o
n

 t
h

e
 w

e
b

s
it

e
 w

ri
tt

e
n

 q
u

e
s
ti

o
n

s
 a

s
k
e
d

 a
t 

C
o

u
n

c
il

 m
e
e
ti

n
g

s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
ir

 a
n

s
w

e
rs

, 
a
n

d
 o

ra
l 
q

u
e
s
ti

o
n

s
 a

n
d

 a
n

s
w

e
rs

 
w

h
e
re

 t
h

e
s
e
 a

re
 a

v
a
il

a
b

le
.  

  

A
g
e
n
d
a
s
 a

n
d
 M

in
u
te

s
 o

f 
C

o
m

m
it
te

e
s
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

w
e
b
s
it
e

 

4
.6

 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 w
il
l 

u
s
e
 s

ta
n

d
a
rd

 r
e
p

o
rt

 t
e
m

p
la

te
s
 f

o
r 

c
o

m
m

it
te

e
 a

n
d

 e
x
e
c
u

ti
v
e
 

re
p

o
rt

s
 t

o
 h

e
lp

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a
t 

re
a
d

e
rs

 a
re

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 w
it

h
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 t
h

a
t 

is
 

a
c
c
u

ra
te

, 
c
o

m
p

le
te

 a
n

d
 u

n
b

ia
s
e
d

. 
R

e
p

o
rt

s
 w

il
l 
m

a
k
e
 c

le
a
r 

th
e
 o

p
ti

o
n

s
 

a
v
a
il

a
b

le
 s

o
 t

h
a
t 

th
e

 i
m

p
li

c
a
ti

o
n

s
 o

f 
a
ll
 d

e
c
is

io
n

s
 a

n
d

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 r
is

k
s
 c

a
n

 
b

e
 a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d

 b
e
fo

re
 t

h
o

s
e
 d

e
c
is

io
n

s
 a

re
 m

a
d

e
.  

    

S
ta

n
d
a
rd

 c
o
m

m
it
te

e
 

re
p
o
rt

 t
e
m

p
la

te
s

 

Page 206



4
.7

 
T

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 w
il
l 
a
c
ti

v
e
ly

 c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

th
e
 e

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

ta
l 
im

p
a
c
t 

o
f 

th
e
 

C
o

u
n

c
il

’s
 d

e
c
is

io
n

s
 b

e
fo

re
 t

h
o

s
e
 d

e
c
is

io
n

s
 a

re
 m

a
d

e
. 

C
lim

a
te

 C
h
a
n
g
e
 R

a
ti
n
g
 

T
o
o
l 
fo

r 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

P
o
lic

ie
s
 

P
la

n
s
 a

n
d
 P

ro
je

c
ts

 

C
lim

a
te

 C
h
a
n
g
e
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

C
a
rb

o
n
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
 

B
u
d
g
e
t 
S

e
tt

in
g
 R

e
p
o
rt

  
4

.8
 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 w
il
l 
d

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
d

 m
a
in

ta
in

 a
n

 e
ff

e
c
ti

v
e
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 

e
n

c
o

u
ra

g
e
 c

o
n

s
tr

u
c
ti

v
e
 c

h
a
ll
e
n

g
e
 a

n
d

 e
n

h
a
n

c
e
 t

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

’s
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
. 

It
 w

il
l 
a
ls

o
 h

a
v
e
 c

le
a
r 

p
ro

to
c
o

ls
 a

b
o

u
t 

M
e
m

b
e
rs

’ 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 
a
n

d
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

a
d

v
ic

e
 t

o
 e

n
a
b

le
 t

h
e
m

 t
o

 p
e
rf

o
rm

 t
h

e
ir

 r
o

le
s
. 

 

T
e
rm

s
 o

f 
R

e
fe

re
n
c
e
 o

f 
S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
s
 

P
ro

to
c
o
l 

4
.9

 
T

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 w
il
l 
h

a
v
e
 a

 n
e
tw

o
rk

 o
f 

A
re

a
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e
s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 

n
e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

 i
s
s
u

e
s
 a

re
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 i

n
 t

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il
’s

 d
e
c
is

io
n

-m
a
k
in

g
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
.  

 

A
re

a
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 t

e
rm

s
 

o
f 

re
fe

re
n
c
e

 

4
.1

0
 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 w
il
l 
h

a
v
e
 a

 J
o

in
t 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
C

o
n

tr
o

l 
C

o
m

m
it

te
e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 

C
o

u
n

ty
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 a
n

d
 S

o
u

th
 C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
s
h

ir
e
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
o

u
n

c
il

 f
o

r 
d

e
c
is

io
n

s
 a

ff
e
c
ti

n
g

 g
ro

w
th

 s
it

e
s
 b

o
rd

e
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 C

it
y
 a

n
d

 S
o

u
th

 
C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
s
h

ir
e
. 

 

T
e
rm

s
 o

f 
re

fe
re

n
c
e
 o

f 
J
o
in

t 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

C
o
n
tr

o
l 
C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 

Page 207



4
.1

1
 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 w
il
l 
h

a
v
e
 a

 c
le

a
r 

a
n

d
 p

u
b

li
c
is

e
d

 c
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 s

y
s
te

m
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e
 a

p
p

o
in

tm
e
n

t 
o

f 
a
n

 i
n

d
e
p

e
n

d
e
n

t 
c
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 i

n
v
e
s
ti

g
a
to

r,
 

s
o

 t
h

a
t 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

th
e
 p

u
b

li
c
 c

a
n

 e
x
p

re
s
s
 d

is
s
a
ti

s
fa

c
ti

o
n

 w
it

h
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
ir

 c
o

n
c
e
rn

s
 c

a
n

 b
e
 m

o
n

it
o

re
d

 a
n

d
 a

d
d

re
s
s
e
d

. 

It
 w

il
l 
p

u
b

li
s
h

 a
n

 A
n

n
u

a
l 

C
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 r

e
p

o
rt

 a
n

a
ly

s
in

g
 t

re
n

d
s
 i

n
 

c
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

th
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 a

n
d

 w
h

a
t 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n

 d
o

n
e
 t

o
 a

d
d

re
s
s
 

th
e
m

. 
 

C
o
m

p
la

in
ts

 l
e
a
fl
e
t 

O
n
-l
in

e
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 f
o
rm

  

A
n
n
u
a
l 
C

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 
re

p
o
rt

 

 

4
.1

2
 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

’s
 C

iv
ic

 A
ff

a
ir

s
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e
 w

il
l 
fu

lf
il
 t

h
e
 c

o
re

 f
u

n
c
ti

o
n

s
 o

f 
a
n

 
A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e
. 

 

T
e
rm

s
 o

f 
R

e
fe

re
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 

4
.1

3
 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 w
il
l 
m

a
in

ta
in

 a
n

 i
n

d
e
p

e
n

d
e
n

t 
In

te
rn

a
l 

A
u

d
it

 f
u

n
c
ti

o
n

, 
w

it
h

 a
 

ri
s
k
-b

a
s
e
d

 a
n

n
u

a
l 
a
u

d
it

 p
la

n
, 
d

e
s
ig

n
e
d

 t
o

 t
e
s
t 

re
g

u
la

rl
y
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 

C
o

u
n

c
il

’s
 p

o
li

c
ie

s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 o

p
e
ra

te
 i
n

 p
ra

c
ti

c
e
 a

n
d

 t
h

a
t 

th
e
 

C
o

u
n

c
il

 c
o

m
p

li
e
s
 w

it
h

 l
e
g

is
la

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 g
o

o
d

 p
ra

c
ti

c
e
. 

  

T
h

e
 H

e
a
d

 o
f 

In
te

rn
a
l 

A
u

d
it

 w
il
l 

p
ro

d
u

c
e
 a

n
 a

n
n

u
a
l 
o

p
in

io
n

 o
n

 t
h

e
 

C
o

u
n

c
il

’s
 i
n

te
rn

a
l 
c
o

n
tr

o
l 

e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
to

 m
e
e
t 

th
e
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
 o

f 
th

e
 

C
o

d
e
 o

f 
P

ra
c
ti

c
e
 f

o
r 

In
te

rn
a
l 

A
u

d
it

 i
n

 L
o

c
a
l 

G
o

v
e
rn

m
e
n

t 
in

 t
h

e
 U

K
, 

2
0
0
6
.T

h
e
 H

e
a
d

 o
f 

In
te

rn
a
l 

A
u

d
it

 O
p

in
io

n
 w

il
l 
b

e
 u

s
e
d

 t
o

 i
n

fo
rm

 a
n

 
A

n
n

u
a
l 

G
o

v
e
rn

a
n

c
e
 S

ta
te

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 t

h
is

 w
il
l 
b

e
 s

ig
n

e
d

 o
ff

 b
y
 t

h
e
 C

h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u

ti
v
e
 a

n
d

 L
e
a
d

e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il
. 

    

A
n
n
u
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 P

la
n
 

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
In

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d
it
 

O
p
in

io
n
 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 

S
ta

te
m

e
n
t 

Page 208



4
.1

4
 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 w
il
l 
a
ls

o
 a

g
re

e
 a

n
 a

n
n

u
a
l 
w

o
rk

 p
la

n
 w

it
h

 i
ts

 E
x
te

rn
a
l 

A
u

d
it

o
rs

 t
o

 t
e
s
t 

th
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

’s
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
e
 t

o
 m

a
jo

r 
le

g
is

la
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 t

h
e
 

s
o

u
n

d
n

e
s
s
 o

f 
it

s
 f

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
a
n

d
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n

c
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
. 

 
R

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

s
 a

ri
s
in

g
 f

ro
m

 i
n

te
rn

a
l 
a
n

d
 e

x
te

rn
a
l 
a
u

d
it

 a
n

d
 

in
s
p

e
c
ti

o
n

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 w

il
l 

b
e
 u

s
e
d

 t
o

 i
n

fo
rm

 f
u

tu
re

 d
e
c
is

io
n

-m
a
k
in

g
. 

 

T
e
rm

s
 o

f 
R

e
fe

re
n
c
e
 o

f 
C

iv
ic

 A
ff

a
ir
s
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 

R
is

k
 R

e
g
is

te
r  

A
n
n
u
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 l
e
tt

e
r 

4
.1

5
 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 w
il
l 
e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a
t 

ri
s
k
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
is

 e
m

b
e
d

d
e
d

 i
n

to
 t

h
e
 

c
u

lt
u

re
 o

f 
th

e
 a

u
th

o
ri

ty
, 
w

it
h

 m
a
n

a
g

e
rs

 a
t 

a
ll
 l
e
v
e
ls

 r
e
c
o

g
n

is
in

g
 t

h
a
t 

ri
s
k
 

m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
is

 p
a
rt

 o
f 

t h
e
ir

 j
o

b
. 

It
 w

il
l 
h

a
v
e
 a

 R
is

k
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
, 

s
u

p
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

 b
y
 p

ro
c
e
d

u
re

s
 

a
n

d
 g

u
id

a
n

c
e
.  

 

R
is

k
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
  

P
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
 a

n
d
 

g
u
id

a
n
c
e
 o

n
 t

h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il’

s
 I
n
tr

a
n
e
t 

4
.1

6
 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 w
il
l 
u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e
 s

y
s
te

m
a

ti
c
 r

is
k
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

ts
 i

n
 a

ll
 a

re
a
s
 o

f 
C

o
u

n
c
il

 a
c

ti
v
it

y
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
o

s
e
 c

o
v
e
re

d
 b

y
 H

e
a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 S
a
fe

ty
 

le
g

is
la

ti
o

n
. 

It
 w

il
l 
m

a
in

ta
in

 a
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 r

is
k
 r

e
g

is
te

r 
d

e
ta

il
in

g
 t

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

’s
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 
a
n

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 r

is
k
s
 a

n
d

 r
e
v
ie

w
 t

h
is

 r
e
g

u
la

rl
y
.  

 

R
is

k
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 

 R
is

k
 R

e
g
is

te
r  

4
.1

7
 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 w
il
l 
e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a
t 

ri
s
k
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
is

 i
n

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

d
 i

n
to

 t
h

e
 

C
o

u
n

c
il

’s
 d

e
c
is

io
n

 m
a
k
in

g
 a

n
d

 M
e
m

b
e
rs

 a
re

 a
d

v
is

e
d

 o
f 

th
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il
’s

 
ri

s
k
 p

ro
fi

le
 a

t 
k
e

y
 s

ta
g

e
s
. 

 

R
is

k
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d
 G

u
id

a
n
c
e

 

 

Page 209



 

5
. 

  
D

e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 t

h
e
 c

a
p

a
c
it

y
 a

n
d

 c
a
p

a
b

il
it

y
 o

f 
M

e
m

b
e
rs

 a
n

d
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

 t
o

 b
e
 e

ff
e
c

ti
v

e
 

  
 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 E
v
id

e
n

c
e

 

5
.1

 
T

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 w
il
l 
s
e
e
k
 t

o
 m

a
in

ta
in

 i
ts

 I
n

v
e
s
to

rs
 i
n

 P
e
o

p
le

 a
c
c
re

d
it

a
ti

o
n

. 
 

II
P

 A
c
c
re

d
it
a
ti
o
n

 

5
.2

 
T

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

’s
 P

e
o

p
le

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 w

il
l 

s
e
t 

o
u

t 
h

o
w

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 w
il
l 

re
c
ru

it
, 

re
w

a
rd

 a
n

d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 i

ts
 s

ta
ff

 t
o

 r
e
a
c
h

 t
h

e
ir

 f
u

ll
 p

o
te

n
ti

a
l.
  

S
ta

ff
 j
o

in
in

g
 t

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 w
il
l 
b

e
 o

ff
e
re

d
 a

n
 i
n

d
u

c
ti

o
n

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 a

n
d

 
th

e
ir

 t
ra

in
in

g
 a

n
d

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
n

e
e
d

s
 w

il
l 
b

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d

 r
e
g

u
la

rl
y
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 

th
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

’s
 a

n
n

u
a
l 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
, 
w

h
ic

h
 a

p
p

li
e
s
 t

o
 a

ll
 

s
ta

ff
.  

 

P
e
o
p
le

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
  

C
o
u
n
c
il 

In
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 R

e
v
ie

w
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s

 

5
.3

 
T

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 w
il
l 
h

a
v
e
 u

p
-t

o
-d

a
te

 j
o

b
 d

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

s
. 
 I

t 
w

il
l 

s
e
t 

a
n

d
 m

o
n

it
o

r 
c
le

a
r 

o
b

je
c
ti

v
e
s
 f

o
r 

O
ff

ic
e
rs

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 a

n
n

u
a
l 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
. 

 It
 w

il
l 
a
g

re
e
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a
te

 r
e
m

u
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

o
ff

ic
e
rs

 b
a
s
e
d

 o
n

 a
n

 a
g

re
e
d

 
fr

a
m

e
w

o
rk

 o
f 

n
a
ti

o
n

a
l 

a
n

d
 l

o
c
a
l 
a
g

re
e
m

e
n

ts
 w

h
ic

h
 i
n

c
lu

d
e
 j

o
b

 
e
v
a
lu

a
ti

o
n

. 
     

J
o
b
 D

e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
s
 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 R

e
v
ie

w
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 

 C
o
m

p
e
te

n
c
y
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 

Page 210



5
.4

 
T

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 w
il
l 
o

ff
e
r 

a
ll
 n

e
w

 M
e
m

b
e
rs

 a
n

 i
n

d
u

c
ti

o
n

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

y
 t

o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
, 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 M

e
m

b
e
r 

T
ra

in
in

g
 C

h
a
m

p
io

n
s
, 
a
 t

a
il
o

re
d

 
p

e
rs

o
n

a
l 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
p

la
n

 t
o

 m
e
e
t 

th
e
ir

 n
e
e
d

s
. 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 w
il
l 

a
ls

o
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 f

o
r 

tr
a
in

in
g

, 
a
tt

e
n

d
in

g
 c

o
n

fe
re

n
c
e
s
/s

e
m

in
a
rs

 a
n

d
  

b
ri

e
fi

n
g

s
 i

n
-h

o
u

s
e
 f

o
r 

a
ll
 e

le
c
te

d
 M

e
m

b
e
rs

. 
 I

t 
w

il
l 
k
e
e
p

 a
 r

e
g

is
te

r 
o

f 
th

e
 

tr
a
in

in
g

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
d

 b
y
 M

e
m

b
e
rs

 a
n

d
 w

il
l 
in

v
o

lv
e
 t

h
e
 M

e
m

b
e
r 

T
ra

in
in

g
 

C
h

a
m

p
io

n
s
 i

n
 r

e
v
ie

w
in

g
 t

ra
in

in
g

 n
e
e
d

s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

v
a
il

a
b

le
 

d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e
 y

e
a
r.

 

M
e
m

b
e
r 

In
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

5
.5

 
T

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 w
il
l 
e
n

c
o

u
ra

g
e
 a

n
d

 f
a
c
il
it

a
te

 M
e
m

b
e
rs

 t
o

 h
a
v
e
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a
te

 
tr

a
in

in
g

 o
r 

b
ri

e
fi

n
g

 b
e
fo

re
 p

e
rf

o
rm

in
g

 c
e
rt

a
in

 r
o

le
s
 (

e
.g

. 
d

e
a
li
n

g
 w

it
h

 
s
ta

ff
 r

e
c
ru

it
m

e
n

t 
o

r 
d

is
c
ip

li
n

a
ry

 i
s
s
u

e
s
, 

b
e
in

g
 a

 m
e
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 

o
r 

L
ic

e
n

s
in

g
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e
s
).

 

 

5
.6

 
T

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 w
il
l 
s
e
e
k
 e

x
p

e
rt

is
e
 f

ro
m

 o
u

ts
id

e
 t

h
e
 a

u
th

o
ri

ty
 w

h
e
n

 i
t 

d
o

e
s
 

n
o

t 
h

a
v
e
 t

h
e
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 s
k
il

ls
 i
n

-h
o

u
s
e
, 
m

a
k
in

g
 u

s
e
 o

f 
p

e
e
r 

re
v
ie

w
s
 a

n
d

 
o

th
e
r 

m
e
c
h

a
n

is
m

s
 f

o
r 

e
n

s
u

ri
n

g
 c

h
a
ll

e
n

g
e
 o

f 
C

o
u

n
c
il
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
.  

 

5
.7

 
T

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 w
il
l 
s
e
e
k
 t

o
 e

n
c
o

u
ra

g
e
 e

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
in

 i
ts

 w
o

rk
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 a

 
v
a
ri

e
ty

 o
f 

m
e
a
n

s
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 a

re
a
 c

o
m

m
it

te
e
s
, 
p

u
b

li
c
 

re
p

re
s
e
n

ta
ti

v
e
s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 E

q
u

a
li
ti

e
s
 P

a
n

e
l,
 T

e
n

a
n

t 
R

e
p

re
s
e
n

ta
ti

v
e
s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e
 a

n
d

 i
n

v
o

lv
e
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
a
p

p
o

in
te

d
 

“
In

d
e
p

e
n

d
e
n

t 
P

e
rs

o
n

s
”
 i
n

 t
h

e
 w

o
rk

 o
f 

th
e
 C

iv
ic

 A
ff

a
ir

s
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e
. 

It
 w

il
l 
a
ls

o
 p

u
t 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 i
n

to
 o

u
tr

e
a
c
h

 w
o

rk
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 i

ts
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
o

 t
e
n

a
n

t 
a
n

d
 l
e
a
s
e
h

o
ld

e
r 

re
p

re
s
e
n

ta
ti

v
e
s
.  

M
e
m

b
e
rs

h
ip

 a
n
d
 T

e
rm

s
 

o
f 

R
e
fe

re
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
s
e
 

b
o
d
ie

s
 

P
u
b
lic

 Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 

p
e
ti
ti
o
n
s
 

 

Page 211



6
 

E
n

g
a
g

in
g

 w
it

h
 l

o
c
a
l 

p
e

o
p

le
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

s
ta

k
e
h

o
ld

e
rs

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 r

o
b

u
s
t 

p
u

b
li

c
 

a
c
c
o

u
n

ta
b

il
it

y
 

  
 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 E
v
id

e
n

c
e

 

6
.1

 
T

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 w
il
l 
e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 a

u
th

o
ri

ty
 a

s
 a

 w
h

o
le

 i
s
 o

p
e
n

 a
n

d
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 t

o
 t

h
e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
, 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 a
n

d
 i
ts

 s
ta

ff
.  

It
 w

il
l 
p

ro
m

o
te

 t
h

e
 r

o
le

 o
f 

C
o

u
n

c
il

lo
rs

 a
n

d
 m

a
k
e
 t

h
e
 p

u
b

li
c
 k

n
o

w
 w

h
o

 t
h

e
 

C
o

u
n

c
il

lo
rs

 a
re

, 
w

h
a
t 

ro
le

s
 t

h
e

y
 h

a
v

e
 o

n
 t

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 a

n
d

 h
o

w
 t

o
 c

o
n

ta
c
t 

th
e
m

. 

It
 w

il
l 
tr

e
a
t 

e
v
e
ry

o
n

e
 f

a
ir

ly
 a

n
d

 s
tr

iv
e
 t

o
 t

re
a
t 

a
ll
 a

s
 r

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

p
e
o

p
le

 a
b

le
 

to
 m

a
k
e
 u

p
 t

h
e
ir

 o
w

n
 m

in
d

s
. 

It
 w

il
l 
a
ls

o
 s

tr
iv

e
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 b

a
s
is

 o
f 

n
e
e
d

 r
a
th

e
r 

th
a
n

 
a
b

il
it

y
 t

o
 p

a
y
. 

 

C
it
iz

e
n
 S

u
rv

e
y
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 

P
u
b
lic

 Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 T

im
e
 

a
n
d
 P

e
ti
ti
o
n
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

W
e
b
s
it
e
 

C
a
m

b
ri
d
g
e
 M

a
tt
e
rs

 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
S

ta
te

m
e
n
t 

C
h
a
rg

in
g
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 f
o
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

 

6
.2

 
T

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 w
il
l 
m

a
k
e
 c

le
a
r 

th
ro

u
g

h
 i

ts
 w

e
b

s
it

e
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

C
o

u
n

c
il
 

p
u

b
li

c
a
ti

o
n

s
 t

h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

h
a
t 

it
 i
s
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 f

o
r,

 h
o

w
 p

e
o

p
le

 c
a
n

 
c
o

n
ta

c
t 

th
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 s

ta
n

d
a
rd

s
 t

h
e

y
 c

a
n

 e
x
p

e
c
t.

  
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

w
e
b
s
it
e
  

C
o
u
n
c
il 

T
a
x
 L

e
a
fl
e
t 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
R

e
p
o
rt

 

O
p
e
n
 D

o
o
r 

C
a
m

b
ri
d
g
e
 M

a
tt
e
rs

 

6
.3

 
T

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 w
il
l 
u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e
 s

u
rv

e
y
s
 o

f 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a
t 

it
 h

a
s
 u

p
 

to
 d

a
te

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 a
b

o
u

t 
th

e
ir

 p
ri

o
ri

ti
e
s
 a

n
d

 l
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 

s
a
ti

s
fa

c
ti

o
n

 w
it

h
 

th
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 a
n

d
 i

ts
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

C
it
iz

e
n
s
 S

u
rv

e
y
s

 

Page 212



6
.4

 
T

h
e
 

C
o

u
n

c
il

’s
 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
 

w
il
l 

e
n

s
u

re
 

th
a
t 

th
e
 

C
o

u
n

c
il
 

p
ro

a
c
ti

v
e
ly

 s
e
e
k
s
 t

h
e
 v

ie
w

s
 o

f 
a
 w

id
e
 r

a
n

g
e
 o

f 
p

e
o

p
le

 a
n

d
 e

n
g

a
g

e
s

 w
it

h
 

a
ll
 s

e
c
ti

o
n

s
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 e

ff
e
c
ti

v
e
ly

. 

T
h

is
 w

il
l 

b
e
 a

c
h

ie
v
e
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 a
 m

ix
 o

f 
c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 c
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 

w
it

h
 m

o
re

 t
a
rg

e
te

d
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

 o
n

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 s

p
e
c
if

ic
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 l

e
d

 b
y
 

re
le

v
a
n

t 
d

e
p

a
rt

m
e
n

ts
.  

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
 

S
ta

te
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 I

n
v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t 

 

C
o
d
e
 o

f 
B

e
s
t 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e
 

o
n
 C

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

E
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

6
.5

 
T

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 w
il
l 

s
e
e
k
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 a

ll
 v

ie
w

s
 a

re
 a

c
ti

v
e
ly

 c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 w

h
e
n

 
m

a
k
in

g
 d

e
c
is

io
n

s
, 

re
c
o

g
n

is
in

g
 t

h
a
t 

it
 i

s
 n

o
t 

a
lw

a
y
s
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 t

o
 r

e
c
o

n
c
il
e
 

c
o

n
fl

ic
ti

n
g

 v
ie

w
p

o
in

ts
.  

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 w
il
l 
e
n

s
u

re
 i

t 
m

a
k
e
s
 f

e
e
d

b
a
c
k
 a

v
a
il

a
b

le
 t

o
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
e
e
s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 

o
u

tc
o

m
e
s
 o

f 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

, 
w

h
a
t 

h
a
s
 c

h
a
n

g
e
d

 a
s
 a

 r
e
s
u

lt
 a

n
d

 e
x
p

la
in

in
g

 
w

h
y
 i

t 
h

a
s
 m

a
d

e
 t

h
e
 d

e
c
is

io
n

s
 i
t 

h
a
s
.  

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 p

a
g
e
s
 o

n
 

w
e
b
s
it
e
  

C
o
u
n
c
il 

P
u
b
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
  

C
o
d
e
 o

f 
B

e
s
t 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e
 

o
n
 C

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

E
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

6
.6

 
T

h
e
 
C

o
u

n
c
il

 
w

il
l 

u
n

d
e
rt

a
k
e
 
E

q
u

a
li

ty
 
Im

p
a
c
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s

m
e
n

ts
 
o

f 
a
ll

 
m

a
jo

r 
C

o
u

n
c
il

 
d

e
c
is

io
n

s
 
a
n

d
 
ta

k
e
 
a
c
ti

o
n

 
to

 
im

p
le

m
e
n

t 
c
h

a
n

g
e
s
 
re

q
u

ir
e
d

, 
to

 
e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a
t 

c
o

u
n

c
il

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d

 p
o

li
c
ie

s
 c

o
n

s
id

e
r 

th
e
 d

iv
e
rs

e
 n

e
e
d

s
 o

f 
it

s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 a
n

d
 c

it
iz

e
n

s
. 

It
 h

a
s
 a

 S
in

g
le

 E
q

u
a
li

ti
e
s
 S

c
h

e
m

e
 c

o
v
e
ri

n
g

 r
a
c
e
, 

d
is

a
b

il
it

y
, 

g
e
n

d
e
r 

a
g

e
, 

s
e
x
u

a
l 

o
ri

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 
a
n

d
 
 
re

li
g

io
n

 
o

r 
b

e
li
e
f 

a
n

d
 
a
n

 
A

c
ti

o
n

 
P

la
n

 
w

il
l 

b
e
 

re
v
ie

w
e
d

 a
n

n
u

a
ll

y
. 

 

It
 w

il
l 
a
ls

o
 u

s
e
 "

M
a
p

p
in

g
 P

o
v
e
rt

y
"
 r

e
s
e
a
rc

h
 d

a
ta

, 
o

r 
o

th
e
r 

re
le

v
a
n

t 
d

a
ta

, 
to

 i
n

fo
rm

 d
e

c
is

io
n

s
 a

b
o

u
t 

re
la

ti
v
e
 d

e
p

ri
v
a
ti

o
n

 i
n

 t
h

e
 C

it
y
. 

E
x
a
m

p
le

s
 o

f 
E

q
u
a
lit

y
 

Im
p
a
c
t 
A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
R

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
E

q
u
a
lit

ie
s
 

S
in

g
le

 E
q
u
a
lit

y
 S

c
h
e
m

e
 

C
o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 

E
q
u
a
lit

ie
s
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n

 

M
a
p
p
in

g
 P

o
v
e
rt

y
 r

e
p
o
rt

 

Page 213



6
.7

 
T

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

’s
 E

q
u

a
li

ti
e
s
 P

a
n

e
l 

(w
h

ic
h

 h
a
s
 s

ta
ff

, 
m

e
m

b
e
r 

a
n

d
 p

u
b

li
c
 

re
p

re
s
e
n

ta
ti

v
e
s
) 

w
il
l 
h

e
lp

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 e

v
a
lu

a
te

 i
ts

 s
u

c
c
e
s
s
 i
n

 p
ro

m
o

ti
n

g
 

d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 a

n
d

 m
e
e
ti

n
g

 a
 b

ro
a
d

 r
a
n

g
e
 o

f 
n

e
e
d

s
. 

 

T
e
rm

s
 o

f 
R

e
fe

re
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 

a
g
e
n
d
a
s
 o

f 
m

e
e
ti
n
g
s

 

6
.8

 
T

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 w
il
l 
e
n

te
r 

in
to

 c
o

m
p

a
c
ts

 w
it

h
 T

e
n

a
n

ts
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 V

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 

S
e
c
to

r 
a
g

re
e
in

g
 w

a
y
s
 o

f 
w

o
rk

in
g

 w
it

h
 t

h
e
s
e
 t

w
o

 s
ta

k
e
h

o
ld

e
r 

g
ro

u
p

s
. 

T
h

e
 C

o
m

p
a
c
ts

 w
il
l 

b
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d

 o
n

 a
 r

e
g

u
la

r 
b

a
s
is

. 

C
o
m

p
a
c
t 
d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 

6
.9

 
T

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 w
il
l 
s
e
t 

o
u

t 
in

 i
ts

 c
o

ll
e
c
ti

v
e
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n

ts
, 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
p

o
li

c
ie

s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

c
e
d

u
re

s
, 
a
n

d
 t

e
rm

s
 o

f 
re

fe
re

n
c
e
 f

o
r 

fo
ru

m
s
 a

n
d

 
m

e
e
ti

n
g

s
 i
n

v
o

lv
in

g
 t

ra
d

e
 u

n
io

n
s
, 

a
n

d
 h

o
w

 i
t 

w
il
l 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
 w

it
h

 s
ta

ff
 a

n
d

 
T

ra
d

e
 U

n
io

n
s
. 
  

C
o
lle

c
ti
v
e
 A

g
re

e
m

e
n
ts

 

E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

p
o
lic

ie
s
 

a
n
d
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
 

T
ra

d
e
 U

n
io

n
 F

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 

A
g
re

e
m

e
n
t 

6
.1

0
 

M
e
m

b
e
rs

 w
il
l 
m

e
e
t 

w
it

h
 t

h
e
 T

ra
d

e
 U

n
io

n
s
 i

n
 a

 J
o

in
t 

S
ta

ff
/ 
E

m
p

lo
y
e
r 

F
o

ru
m

. 
E

a
c
h

 c
o

u
n

c
il
 d

e
p

a
rt

m
e
n

t 
w

il
l 
h

a
v
e
 d

e
p

a
rt

m
e
n

ta
l 

s
ta

ff
 f

o
ru

m
s
 

a
n

d
 t

h
e
re

 w
il
l 
b

e
 a

 m
o

n
th

ly
 J

o
in

t 
T

ra
d

e
 U

n
io

n
s
 G

ro
u

p
 m

e
e
ti

n
g

.  

J
o
in

ts
 S

ta
ff
 /
E

m
p
lo

y
e
r 

F
o
ru

m
 T

e
rm

s
 o

f 
R

e
fe

re
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 

A
g
e
n
d
a
s
/J

o
in

t 
T

ra
d
e
 

U
n
io

n
s
 G

ro
u
p
 A

g
e
n
d
a
s
 

a
n
d
 M

in
u
te

s
 

T
ra

d
e
 U

n
io

n
 F

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 

A
g
re

e
m

e
n
t 

 

Page 214



 

Report Page No: 1 Agenda Page No: 

 
Agenda Item          

 

CAMBRIDGE CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
REPORT OF: Chief Executive/Monitoring Officer 
   
 TO: Civic Affairs Committee 15/7/2014 
   
 WARDS: All 
 
CONSTITUTIONAL IMPACT - TRANSFER OF PLANNING ITEMS FROM 

AREA TO CENTRAL PLANNING COMMITTEE  

 
1 INTRODUCTION    
 
1.1 The Executive Councillor for Planning Policy and Transport on 8 July 

is due to make recommendations to Council on the transfer of 
planning decisions from area committees to the Planning Committee.  
Council will consider these recommendations at its meeting on 24 
July. 
 

1.2 A reduction in the known workload of area committees with  the 
removal of the need to comply with deadlines for determining 
household planning applications, mean that there is scope to reduce 
the frequency of Area Committees, and a report to explore this has 
been requested by the ruling group. The frequency is set out in the 
Constitution under the Area Committee Procedure Rules. Council will 
need to change the rules to effect the change proposed.  

 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
That the Committee requests Council to: 
 
i) agree Area Committee meeting frequency is altered from the current 
‘every eight weeks’ to ‘at least four times per year’ commencing from 
October 2014, with each Area Committee continuing, as now, to set its own 
timetable of meetings for the municipal year; and 
 
ii) instruct the Head of Legal Services to amend the Constitution to reflect 
this change. 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 5b

Page 215



 

Report Page No: 2 Agenda Page No: 

3. BACKGROUND 
 
 
3.1 Part 4EE of the Constitution covers the Area Committee Procedure 

Rules.  These currently require area committees to: “set their own 
timetable of meetings, but shall, so far as practical, meet every 8 
weeks.”  If Council agrees to move planning decisions to a single 
Planning Committee, the frequency of Area Committees can be 
reviewed as it was geared to the turnaround time for determining 
household planning applications.  Without that planning-driven 
requirement, there would no longer be the need for Area Committees 
to meet so frequently. 

 
3.2 Officers have reviewed the requirements of both partners and council 

services for the remainder of the 2014/15 municipal year.  The 
Forward Plan of the known business is appended.  This illustrates 
that there are meetings currently in the schedule which would no 
longer be essential for Council or partner business.  Removing some 
or all of these meetings would still allow the Council to conduct its 
core business and provide a forum for community engagement, but 
would also free up a certain amount of member and officer time and 
resources over the year. 

 
3.3 Each Area Committee will be asked to consider and decide on its 

schedule at the next round of meetings following 24 July Council ie. 
starting with the East Area Committee on 31 July. In September, 
Area Committee chairs will meet with officers to review agenda 
priorities and further ways to increase public involvement in meetings 
which will inform a report to each Area Committee from October.  The 
lessons learned from the Council’s “North Area Pilot” in 2011/12, as 
reported to Strategy & Resources Committee on 9 July 2012, may be 
helpful in this regard. 

 
3.4 Amending the Constitution to require at least four meetings per year, 

would allow for any Area Committee to meet more often than that if 
its business requires it to do so. 

 
4. CONSULTATIONS 
 
 This report has been sent to all Members for comment.  The minute 

of the Committee will be considered by the Council at its meeting on 
24 July.  

 
 
 

Page 216



 

Report Page No: 3 Agenda Page No: 

5. OPTIONS    
 
 The committee could choose not to make a recommendation to 

Council or to amend the recommendation. 
 
6. IMPLICATIONS 
 
(a) Financial Implications 
  

The budget amendment to Council on 24 July includes savings from 
fewer area committee meetings in 2014/15, based on an assumption 
that area committees would meet five times per whole year in future.  
If area committees met more often than this then there would be 
fewer savings.  Any further savings for 2015/16 onwards will be 
included in the budget setting report in January 2015. 

 
(b) Staffing Implications   (if not covered in Consultations Section) 
 (c) Equalities and Poverty Implications 
(d) Environmental Implications 
(e) Procurement Implications 
(f) Consultation and communication 
(g) Community Safety Implications 
 
(b)-(g) If an area committee met less frequently, public engagement with 
councillors may happen in other ways and would continue to take place at 
the meetings which remain in the Municipal Calendar.  It is possible that 
with fewer meetings, some public engagement would be missed but that 
cannot be quantified.   
 
There will be communication (f) about the change to frequency of meetings 
in Cambridge Matters and through other council communication channels, 
through committee manager distribution lists and at the Area Committees 
between July and October.   
 
For staff (b), there would be fewer meetings to plan, prepare for, manage 
and attend.  Community Safety (g) would continue to be considered at area 
committees on a regular basis. 
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS: The following are the background papers that 
were used in the preparation of this report:  
 
Report on Area Working: Review of Participation Pilot to Cambridge City 
Council Strategy and Resources Scrutiny Committee, 9th July 2012. 
 
 

Page 217



 

Report Page No: 4 Agenda Page No: 

 
 
The author and contact officer for queries on the report is Gary Clift on 
01223 457011 gary.clift@cambridge.gov.uk 
 
 
Date originated:  15 July 2014 
Date of last revision: 15 July 2014 
  

Page 218



 

Report Page No: 5 Agenda Page No: 

 
Forward Plan of known Area Committee business 
 
East 
23/10/14 
4/12/14 
8/1/15 policing and safer neighbourhoods 
19/2/15 
9/4/15 annual grants 
 
North 
30/10/14 
18/12/14 policing and safer neighbourhoods 
12/2/15 
9/4/15 annual grants, policing and safer neighbourhoods 
 
South 
13/10/14 policing and safer neighbourhoods 
8/12/14 
2/2/15 policing and safer neighbourhoods 
30/3/15 annual grants 
 
West/Central 
29/10/14 
7/1/15 policing and safer neighbourhoods 
5/3/15 
23/4/15 annual grants, policing and safer neighbourhoods 

Page 219



Page 220

This page is intentionally left blank



CAMBRIDGE CITY COUNCIL 
 

Record of Executive Decision 
 

Building Cleaning In House Bid 

 

Decision of:  Executive Councillor for Environment and Waste 
Services: Councillor Jean Swanson 

Reference:  14/URGENCY/CNCL/3 

Date of 
decision:    

08/04/14 Recorded 
on:  

08/04/14 

Decision Type:   Key 

Matter for 
Decision:  

The Executive Councillor is asked to approve the 
making of an in-house bid for Building Cleaning 
Services. 

Why the 

decision had to 

be made (and 

any alternative 

options): 

On the 20th January 2014, the Strategy and Resources 
Scrutiny Committee agreed the procurement exercise 
for Building Cleaning Services. 
 
This decision is for an in-house bid to be made.  
An alternative would be for the in-house team not to bid. 
 

The Executive 
Councillor’s 
decision(s): 

Approved the making of an in-house bid for Building 
Cleaning Services. 

Reasons for the 
decision: 

 
The procurement process is likely to be split into three 
lots. The Director of Environment has reviewed the 
scope for a successful in-house bid.  The details of the 
hard market testing process are set out in the attached 
Strategy and Resources Scrutiny Committee report. 
 
The Director has concluded that, subject to further work 
on service improvements, there is a reasonable 
prospect of a successful bid on one or more of the 
anticipated lots.   
 

Scrutiny 
consideration: 

The Executive Councillor and Spokesperson were 

consulted prior to the decision being made. 

Report: See attached report.    

Agenda Item 9a

Page 221



Conflicts of 
interest: 

No conflicts of interest were declared by the Executive 
Councillor. 

Comments: None. 

 
 

Page 222



1 
o/procurement/cleaning/S&R reports/S&RC report 2 

Cambridge City Council Item 

To: Executive Councillor for Customer Services and 
Resources: Councillor Julie Smith 

Report by: David Horspool, Director of Resources 

Relevant scrutiny 
committee:  

Strategy & Resources  20/1/2014

Wards affected: All Wards 

DRAFT 

THE FUTURE DELIVERY OF BUILDING CLEANING SERVICES 

Key Decision 

1. Executive summary  

The future delivery of building cleaning services is being reviewed. At present most of the 

service is delivered by an in-house team with some small elements provided by 

commercial suppliers.  

Consideration is being given to all options for the delivery of the service including hard 

market testing.  If the Council agrees to carry out a procurement process, it is important 

that this will attract a competitive market and also achieve best value. 

In order to understand more about the commercial building cleaning market, its attitude 

to how services might be delivered, the apportionment of risk and other factors that could 

contribute to the shape of any future procurement a �Request for Information� (RFI) � 

commonly known as soft market testing - process has been undertaken.  

This report outlines key information from the analysis of submissions to the RFI request 

together with a recommended way forward relating to future provision of the service.  

2. Recommendations 

The Executive Councillor is recommended: 

2.1  To approve the carrying out and completion of a procurement exercise for 

Building Cleaning Services on the following basis 

Agenda Item 10

Page 1Page 223



2 
o/procurement/cleaning/S&R reports/S&RC report 2 

• A contract term of five years (with a provision to terminate at the end of year 3 if 

performance is inadequate) with an option to extend by up to two further years, if 

the contractor is performing satisfactorily and the service can be shown to 

continue to provide best value to the Council, giving a maximum possible contract 

length of 7 years 

• A three lot structure with bidders being given the opportunity to bid for one, two or 

three �Lots�, with a discount on the tender price if two or three �Lots� are won by 

the same bidder to provide a balance between giving opportunities for SMEs to 

bid and achieving best value from the contract  

• A fixed price for the first two years of the term and thereafter index-linked to an 

appropriate index 

• A price/quality split of 50% price/50% quality 

• Incorporation in the contract of incentive scheme to drive continuous improvement 

in the delivery of the service. 

2.2 To approve  giving the Director of Business Transformation authority to take 

delegated decisions in consultation with Executive Councillor, Chair and 

Opposition Spokes as required during the procurement process, including the 

items detailed in e) to i) of paragraph 4.1.  

2.3 To make an in principle decision about whether or not the contract should include 
a condition requiring that the Living Wage is to be paid to staff delivering cleaning 
services to the Council subject to the outcome of the further work referred to in 
para 4.2.12 below. 

�

2.4 To note an anticipated service start date of January 2015.  Achieving this date 

depends on sufficient project resources being made available 

3. Background 

3.1 At its meeting on the 16 January 2012, the Strategy and Resources Committee 
considered a report from the Director of Environment entitled �Procurement of 
Building Cleaning and Associated Services�. The Executive Councillor resolved to:  

(a) Approve the hard market testing of Building Cleaning and Associated Services 
through procurement. 

(b) Support Option 1(tender for services on a City only basis), as included in the 
officer�s report, as the preferred method of procurement 

(c) Take delegated decisions as required during the procurement process after 
minimum quality requirements had been discussed between the Executive 
Councillor and the Opposition Spokes. 

(d) Approve a price/ quality split of 50% cost / 50% quality. 

3.2 A Project Team including officers from Procurement, Legal, Human Resources, 
Internal Audit, Streets and Open Spaces and various service managers was 
formed to provide oversight and direction. ESPO were appointed to assist in the 
procurement process. Specifications are in the process of being finalised that will 
form the core of the procurement process for the following areas of cleaning: 

Page 2Page 224



3 
o/procurement/cleaning/S&R reports/S&RC report 2 

• Administrative and Operational Buildings 

• Communal areas of City Homes housing stock 

• Multi Storey Car Parks 

• Public Toilets 

• Sheltered Housing Accommodation Schemes     

3.3 The current in-house service involves 33 directly employed staff (30.26 FTE) 
within the Streets & Open Spaces Building Cleaning team, with an additional 11 
agency staff. Some activities are currently provided by contractors.  Any market 
testing exercise will involve the need to identify the number of staff deemed to be 
affected and their eligibility under the TUPE regulations. 

 Following a review of the procurement project to date, it was agreed in early 
September 2013 that it would be appropriate to carry out a soft market testing 
exercise to better understand the current views of the market in a number of key 
areas.  In particular the team were keen to find out more about the market�s views 
on how services might be packaged (as a single lot or several lots), options for 
service delivery, the apportionment of risk and other factors that could contribute 
to the shape of any future procurement.  

 A �Request for Information� (RFI) document was issued on the 6 November 2013, 
with a closing date on the 6 December 2013. An advertisement was published 
inviting commercial suppliers to take part in the exercise and over 60 contractors 
were contacted directly to advise them that the RFI had been published.  Thirteen 
contractors responded, varying in size from local SMEs to regional and national 
organisations. Respondents were told that information provided by them would be 
confidential to the Council.   

3.4 The RFI asked 18 main questions (and a number of supplemental ones) under 11 
headings: 

• Contract length 

• Structure of Service Schedule/ Lots 

• Local and Social Value 

• Living Wage 

• Price and Payment 

• Indicative price range 

• Contract terms and risks 

• Contract Management 

• Approaches over method of delivery and service standards 

• Sustainability 

• General 

A summary of the key aspects of the feedback from participants is outlined below: 

Page 3Page 225



4 
o/procurement/cleaning/S&R reports/S&RC report 2 

Contract length 

 There were a number of different views on the contract length, varying from 2 to 
7/10 years. The average was for a 5 year contract with extensions in multiples of 2 
years. Typical service mobilisation periods from contract award were between one 
and three months.  

 Structure of Service Schedule/ Lots 

 Contractors were informed about the suggested �Lot� makeup and also of services 
that are not currently within the scope of building cleaning. The majority of 
responses suggested that a single �Lot� would be the most attractive to the market 
as allowing for economies of scale and overheads to be realised.  It was 
acknowledged by some organisations that breaking the contract into 2, or even 3, 
lots would give the Council greater flexibility and provide increased opportunities 
for SMEs to bid.  

  
If a multiple-lot approach were to be adopted, one possible solution that seems to 
provide a good balanced compromise was: 

• Multi-storey car parks and public toilets 

• Administration & operational buildings 

• Communal areas/ Sheltered Housing schemes   

Local and Social Value 

 This part of the RFI was covered in detail in the majority of submissions. 
Contractors recognised that this area is becoming more important in order to win 
and retain tenders and as part of their �corporate social responsibility�. Areas 
highlighted as relevant to the service included: 

• Recruitment and training of staff from locality 

• Community voluntary work 

• NVQ�s 

• Apprenticeships 

• Voluntary work 

• Sourcing of local suppliers 

• Charity work 

Living Wage 

The majority of respondents stated that if the Council required the Living Wage it 
should be payable from the start of the contract and not phased in. Respondents 
wanted clear information in the PQQ and the tender document about any 
requirement to pay the Living Wage. A number of the respondents also stated that 
they either paid their workforce the Living Wage currently or they pay a higher 
amount. Other respondents indicated that, if the workforce was currently being 
paid the minimum wage and the Living Wage was introduced at the start of the 
contract, labour costs would increase by between 8% and 21%.

Page 4Page 226



5 
o/procurement/cleaning/S&R reports/S&RC report 2 

As the current in-house staff are currently paid at least the Living Wage, then 
those eligible for transfer under TUPE regulations would move on that basis, if a 
contract were to awarded to an external contractor.

Price and Payment 

The majority of contractors suggested that contract price should be paid in 12 
equal monthly instalments with additional work paid for by: per m2; per item; per 
lump sum etc. Some reference was also made to possible gain-share 
arrangements in respect of any savings achieved on the contract price.  

All contractors stated that as the majority of the contract costs are labour costs the 
index should be linked to wage rates (such as the Living Wage or to the Average 
Earnings Index or to the Consumer Price Index (CPI)). 

Indicative Price Range 

A small number of respondents were willing to give estimates of likely costs 
(based on paying the Living Wage, but in the absence of detailed TUPE 
information).  The costs given ranged from less than £300k to more than £1.25m a 
year. The extremes of the range are unlikely to be representative, and may reflect 
the level of information available to respondents at this stage � indeed a number 
of non-respondents to this aspect noted that they felt it would be too difficult to 
comment without further detailed information.   

The majority of those who responded to this question suggested prices in the mid-
value bands giving a broad indication of cost which would indicate the potential for 
a saving of at least £300k could be obtained from market-testing, compared with 
current service costs.  Details of the responses together with financial details of 
current budgets is shown in (CONFIDENTIAL) Appendix B.  

Contract Terms & Risk 

All respondents stated that the main risks on any procurement are: 

• Pension  

• Default/ termination provisions 

• Terms and conditions of transferring staff (TUPE) 

• Potential redundancy costs 

Reducing or sharing the above risks will reduce the costs payable by the Council 
to the contractor. 

Contract Management 

There were a number of varying views on this section, apart from them all stating 
that a dedicated contract manager would be required with a number of working 
supervisors. Also, if there is more than a single �Lot,� and an increase in contractor 
numbers, management costs of both the contractor and Council would increase. 
Joint Venture / Partnership working were identified as other possible contract 
management models. 

Page 5Page 227



6 
o/procurement/cleaning/S&R reports/S&RC report 2 

Approaches to Methods of Delivery and Service Standards 

All contractors commented on the need for the contractor and the Council to be 
flexible in its approach to the cleaning - routes and building cleaning resource 
optimisation; hours of work; reduced noise cleaning machines; overnight cleaning 
etc. 
A theme running through the submissions was that if an area is not dirty it does 
not need to be cleaned, therefore an output-based specification, specifying the 
standards to be achieved, may be more appropriate in some locations; with, for 
example, cleaning heavily trafficked areas daily and others weekly. 

Sustainability 

Contractors are using methods of cleaning, with consumables, materials, 
machines that are reducing the carbon footprint: 

• Biodegradable cleaning materials 

• Green label accreditation 

• ISO 14001 accreditation (a number of contractors suggested this 
should form part of the PQQ and ITT) 

• Daytime cleaning to use natural light 

• Paper free 

• Onsite laundry facilities for micro-fibre cleaning cloths 

4 Comments and Conclusions in the light of the RFI analysis 

4.1 The submissions by the contractors were considered at a Project Group meeting 

on the 10 December 2013 and the following are proposed as recommendations 
for the structure of any future procurement of the Building Cleaning Service in light 
of the soft market testing:

The contract length should be set at five years (albeit with a provision to terminate 
at the end of year 3 if performance is inadequate) with an option to extend by up 
to two further years, if the contractor is performing satisfactorily, and the service 
can be shown to continue to provide best value to the Council. 

(a) The procurement should be carried out on the basis of a three lot structure.  
The recommended lots are:  

• Multi-storey car parks and public toilets 

• Administration and operational buildings 

• Communal areas/sheltered housing schemes 

(b) Contractors are given the opportunity to bid for one, two or three �Lots�, with a 
discount on the tender price if two or three �Lots� are won by the same 
contractor � providing a balance of maximising opportunities for SMEs to bid 
against achieving best value from the contract.  

(c) The contract should be tendered on the basis of a fixed price for the first two 
years, and thereafter index-linked.  

Page 6Page 228



7 
o/procurement/cleaning/S&R reports/S&RC report 2 

(d) An incentive scheme to drive continuous improvement in the delivery of the 
service is incorporated in the contract  

It is recommended that the following items are subject to final agreement in 
accordance with the delegations requested: 

(e) Determination of the social value objectives for the cleaning contract.  Once 
these are identified in the OJEU notice and PQQ, the individual improvements 
that the contractor(s) can bring to the service will be identified by them in their 
tenders. 

(f) The apportionment of risk between the Council and Contractor. 

(g) Whether or not vehicles plant, equipment (and possibly rental of depot space) 
that the in-house team use are offered for purchase or free of charge (with 
appropriate allowances made in the price evaluation) to bidders.    

(h) The Project Team recognise the need to maintain maximum flexibility in the 
contract, given the potential for changes in the scale and nature of the services 
(e.g. introduction of shared service arrangements, outsourcing, changes to 
service levels, etc.). This is always a balancing act, as additional flexibility to 
the Council will be perceived as risk by tenderers and will therefore be 
reflected in the price offered. The contract will make provision for these 
potential major variations by the insertion of a contract change mechanism. ,  

(i) Attached at Appendix A is a �Facility Update� which details the proposed scope 
of the works, i.e. those buildings that are included within the procurement 
process and those buildings that are not currently included. The approval of 
the inclusions and exclusions will provide the basis for finalising the 
specification and also the numbers and types of staff who are  potentially 
affected by TUPE.   

4.2 Living Wage 

4.2.1 In January 2013 the Council adopted the following policy �to encourage 
contractors to adopt the Living Wage through the Council�s procurement 
processes�.  We therefore wanted to know about the market�s response to the 
Living Wage in connection with the building cleaning contract.  We presented the 
market with two options, payment of the Living Wage from the start of the contract 
or moving to the Living Wage or phased in at some stage during the life of the 
contract.  

4.2.2 As identified above, the majority of contractors stated that the Living Wage should 
be paid from the start of the contract, if required, and not phased in.  

4.2.3 If a market testing exercise resulted in a contract for the service being awarded 
externally, relevant Council staff (who are paid the Living Wage or above) would 
TUPE transfer to the new service provider. There might also be a small number of 
non-Council staff that would transfer, but the rates of pay for these staff are not 
known.   We currently pay private sector companies approximately £250k pa for 
cleaning services; and if their workforce are paid at the minimum wage, and using 

Page 7Page 229



8 
o/procurement/cleaning/S&R reports/S&RC report 2 

the 8% to 21 % range from para 3.4, the financial implication of introducing the 
Living Wage could be between £16k - £36k per annum in additional costs (or £0 
for any private sector workforce that is currently paid Living wage or above)

4.2.4 Given the response of the market to the question of the Living Wage, the Council 
might opt to include a contract condition requiring the contractor to pay the Living 
Wage to those staff delivering the services to the Council.  

4.2.5 Officers are aware that the imposition of a living wage requirement is becoming 
more common and, so far as we are aware, no legal challenges on this basis have 
been launched. However, there would still be a risk of a successful legal challenge 
even if the Council�s decision is based on best value or social value. 

4.2.6 The risk of successful challenge or judicial review may be reduced if the Council 
satisfies itself that there is a sound, best value justification for requiring the 
successful contractor to pay the living wage, i.e. that by doing so the Council 
would, in return, achieve a  better value service than if the Living Wage was not 
paid.  The justification would have to be relevant to the cleaning service and 
proportionate to the cost involved.  Payment of the Living Wage could not be 
justified simply on the grounds that it is a socially or morally desirable thing to do.  

4.2.7 In terms of the building cleaning contract, the primary best value benefits of 
paying staff the Living Wage are likely to be: 

• Improved retention and continuity of staff. 

The benefits of continuity of staff are twofold - improved physical and 
information security in offices and vulnerable areas such as sheltered 
housing and community centres and improved quality of services as staff 
are not constantly learning on the job. 

• Easier recruitment of staff and less reliance on agency staff.   

Since we started to pay the living wage to Council staff in April 2013, we 
have found it easier to recruit cleaning staff � mostly to replace agency staff 
(11 posts since April 2013). Successful recruitment reduces the time and 
money spent on repeat recruitment exercises and on agency costs. 

• Better motivated staff leading to increased productivity. 

Pay is one of the factors that motivates staff (but not the only factor).   

• Better qualified/ experienced.

 The Council�s experience of paying the living wage is limited (less than 12 
months) so direct evidence of the claimed benefits, apart from recruitment, is not 
available.  However, evidence can be found in other authorities (e.g. Islington 
LBC) that have worked with the living wage for longer and studies by the Greater 
London Authority and Queen Mary�s University have found that where a Living 
Wage has been introduced employers and employees (not exclusively cleaning 
staff) believe that paying the Living Wage has increased the quality of work and 

Page 8Page 230



9 
o/procurement/cleaning/S&R reports/S&RC report 2 

employers have also reported a drop in absenteeism, improved recruitment and 
retention. 

 On the other hand a study carried out by the Scottish Parliament into the 
experiences of several Scottish authorities is less conclusive and recommends 
caution in the making a direct correlation between payment of the Living Wage 
and improvements in services/absenteeism 

 The criteria that we would have to use as measures of best value would include 
the quality of the service, the technical efficiency of the service and cost 
effectiveness.   

4.2.8 There may also be scope for imposing a living wage requirement if this is done 
pursuant to the Council�s obligations to take account of �social value� in 
procurement. 

4.2.9 The Social Value Act 2012 applies to all services contracts above the EU 
threshold. We are under a duty to consider how what is being procured might 
improve the economic, social and environmental well-being of our area.  Any 
improvement sought must be proportionate and relevant to the services being 
procured. 

 In some circumstances the payment of the Living Wage to workers employed by a 
contractor to deliver services to the Council may be seen as improving the social 
and economic well-being of any area and so the Living Wage is likely to be a 
relevant consideration under the Act if proportionality and relevance can be 
established. 

 As to relevance, building cleaning is typically low paid employment.  The Council 
has objectives to prioritise the disadvantaged, strive for community well-being and 
a thriving local economy that benefits the whole community.  Evidence given to 
the Scottish Parliament identified payment of the Living Wage as one measure to 
tackle poverty and reduce the cost to the local economy of the services required 
to support families in poverty.  The Living Wage is not a magic wand and 
ultimately can only be part of a wider strategy, but it is a start and by adopting it 
for this contract, the Council would be setting an example to local employers. 

 Evidence was also given to the Scottish Parliament by some authorities that the 
living wage had the potential to have a beneficial effect on the local economy by 
increasing the spend potential of local families. 

4.2.10 The inclusion of a suitably worded Living Wage contract clause would offer a 
number of advantages for the contractor. Contractors have stated in their 
submissions that the payment of the Living wage would attract and retain the best 
personnel as cleaning is an area  where there is often a high turnover of staff. 
Retention of staff would assist in training and development of key members that 
would ensure that the cleaning would be carried out more productively and 
thoroughly. This is especially the case within the cleaning of the multi storey car 
parks, where the quality of cleaning of the parking areas directly affects the life of 
the membrane (normally 10 years, with a £200k replacement cost) 

Page 9Page 231



10 
o/procurement/cleaning/S&R reports/S&RC report 2 

4.2.11 It is important that the multi-storey car parks are properly cleaned on a regular 
basis with a deep clean at least once a year (preferably two).  This is necessary to 
maintain the integrity of the deck coating.  If this becomes holed, water and salts 
can penetrate the concrete and rot the metal supporting bars.  The deck 
surfacings should last 10 years but this can be reduced to 8 if adequate cleaning 
is not carried out.  The coatings come with a warranty which is dependent on an 
appropriate cleaning regime (including materials). High quality specialist services 
will be required to ensure a suitable level of cleanliness is maintained in order to 
protect the Council�s investment in its car parks. 

 It is, however, difficult to conclusively establish an evidential link between payment 
of the Living Wage to staff employed in delivering the specialist car park cleaning 
service and any financial savings (through protection of the car park infrastructure 
and warranties) that might result from additional quality in service delivery over 
and above that which would have been available without payment of the 
enhanced rate from a specialist service provider. 

4.2.12 If Members  so wish, an in principle decision could be made about whether or not 
contractors should be required to pay at least the National  Living Wage to staff 
engaged in the delivery of the cleaning contract subject to the further detailed 
consideration of a best value and/or social value justification in this case. 

5 Outline Business Case 

5.1 The estimated budget for 2014/15 is in the region of £1,715,240 (in house team 
and private sector costs). If a procurement exercise is undertaken the 
respondents submissions from the RFI indicate that a saving in the region of 
£300k p.a. could be achieved.   

5.2 The above savings are based on the assumption that there would be limited 
savings achievable from internal recharges.  However, work is already underway 
to determine the ability of services to reduce these cost so that further savings can 
be quantified.  This work will depend on a number of factors, including the relative 
timing to other changes in demand for support services which would enable step-
changes in cost of service provision to be achieved. 

5.3 The initial financial analysis suggests that there is sufficient financial case for the 
market-testing of the service. 

5.4 Any cost savings would become deliverable from the contract service delivery 
start date, which is projected to be by the start of January 2015 subject to 
adequate project resources being made available.  On the basis of this, we expect 
the PQQ to be issued in March 2014, with tender issue in early June 2014, Tender 
return mid to late July 2014 and contract award in September 2014.  This would 
allow three months for service implementation. 

6. Implications 

(a) Financial Implications

Page 10Page 232



11 
o/procurement/cleaning/S&R reports/S&RC report 2 

 The financial implications of decisions about the future delivery of the cleaning 
service are set out above. 

(b) Staffing Implications    
  
 If a decision is taken to market test the service and this exercise were to result in 

a contract with an external provider, the estimated number of Council staff that 
might be the subject of a TUPE transfer in the event that a contract is awarded 
externally are identified at para 3.3 above. These figures may vary if a Lot 
structure is adopted. 

(c) Equal Opportunities Implications

An EQIA is currently being prepared that will inform the final form of the cleaning 
specification. 

  
(d) Environmental Implications 

There are no direct environmental implications as part of this report. However, if 
the in-house team is retained or if an external contractor is appointed to carry out 
cleaning works, there will be environmental implications due to the type and 
method of cleaning carried out. The PQQ and ITT will consider, in-depth, the 
service provider�s policy on the environment.  

(e) Procurement 

If a decision is made to market test the cleaning service this contract will be above 
the European services threshold and will therefore be subject to the Public 
Contracts Regulations 2006 (or any amendments to them).   

(f) Consultation and communication 

Consultation on the RFI (soft market testing) has been carried out with the Trade 
Unions, the private sector (also as part of the RFI process) and leaseholders. 
Further consultation will take place with Trade Unions, individual officers, the 
private sector, leaseholders and Housing Regulation Panel at appropriate points 
in the procurement process.  

(g) Community Safety 

A poor quality cleaning service to the public toilets, sheltered units, community 
centres etc. will impact on community safety and will therefore inform the 
development of the specification.

7. Background papers 

7.1   Building Cleaning RFI Advertisement 
7.2   Building Cleaning RFI Questionnaire Form 

  

Page 11Page 233



12 
o/procurement/cleaning/S&R reports/S&RC report 2 

8. Appendices 

6.1   Appendix A � Facility Update  
6.2  (CONFIDENTIAL) Appendix B � Financial Issues     

7. Contact Officer 

If you have a query on the report please contact: 

Author�s Name: Paul Evans, Building Cleaning Procurement Project Officer 
Author�s Email:  Paul.evans@cambridge.gov.uk

  

Page 12Page 234



13 
o/procurement/cleaning/S&R reports/S&RC report 2 

Appendix A 

List of Facilities Covered 

CATEGORY INCLUDED WITHIN SCOPE 
NOT INCLUDED WITHIN 

SCOPE 

Car Parks Grand Arcade 
Park Street 
Grafton East 
Grafton West 
Queen Anne Terrace 

Adam and Eve Street 
Off East Road  

Gwydir Street 
Off Mill Road  

Castle Park 
Castle Street (Castle Court 
Business Park)  

Abbey Road (Riverside) 

Public Toilets Arbury Court 
Barnwell Road 
Cherry Hinton Hall 
Cherry Hinton Rec 
Chesterton Rec. 
Chesterton Road 
Coleridge Rec. 
Drummer Street 
Gonville Place 
Jesus Green 
Kings Hedges Rec. 
Lammas Land 
Lion Yard 
Mill Road/Gwydir Street 
Nightingale Rec. 
Park Street Car Park 
Quayside 
Romsey Rec. 
Silver Street 
Victoria Avenue 

Drummer Street (as this is 
managed by Adshel). 

Pavilions 

Cherry Hinton Recreation Ground 
Pavilion 
Chesterton Recreation Ground 
Pavilion 
Coleridge Recreation Ground 
Hobbs Pavilion 
Nightingale Recreation Ground 
Pavilion 

Alexandra Gardens Bowls 
Pavilion; Barnwell Bowls Pavilion; 
Christ Pieces Bowls Pavilion; 
Newnham Bowls Pavilion; 
Trumpington Bowls Pavilion 
cleaned by Bowls Club Groups 
Jesus Green Rouse Pavilion not 
currently used 
Nunns Way Recreation Ground 
Pavilion and Trumpington 
Recreation Ground Pavilion 
cleaned by Resident�s Groups. 

City Homes Offices North Area Offices 
South Area Offices 

Sheltered Housing ANNESLEY - Block 1 - 6 All 
BRANDON COURT - Block 1 - 36 All 
DITTON COURT - Block 1 - 26 All 
FERNWOOD - Communal Area 13 - 
18 All 
GREYSTOKE COURT - Communal 
Area 13 - 18 All 

Page 13Page 235



14 
o/procurement/cleaning/S&R reports/S&RC report 2 

CATEGORY INCLUDED WITHIN SCOPE 
NOT INCLUDED WITHIN 

SCOPE 
HEATHERFIELD - Communal Area 13 
- 18 All 
LICHFIELD ROAD - Block 105 - 115 
Odds 
MANSEL COURT - Block 1-27 
NEVILLE ROAD - Block 27 - 37 Odds 
RAWLYN COURT - Block 1 - 26 All 
SCHOOL COURT - Block 2 - 22 All 
STANTON HOUSE - Block 1 � 32 
TALBOT HOUSE - Block 1 - 28 All 
WESTGATE - Block 1 - 6 All 
WHITEFRIARS - Block 1 - 20 All 

General Housing AINSDALE  
ALBEMARLE WAY  
ANCASTER WAY  
ANNESLEY  
ANNS ROAD  
ANSTEY WAY  
ARAGON CLOSE  
ARBURY COURT  
ARRAN CLOSE  
ASHBURY CLOSE  
ASHFIELD ROAD - 
ATKINS CLOSE  
BLISS WAY 
BORROWDALE  
BRACKLEY CLOSE 
BRACONDALE 
BRANDON COURT 
BRITTEN PLACE 
BROOKS ROAD 
BUDLEIGH CLOSE  
BURGESS HOUSE 
CARLTON TERRACE  
COCKERELL ROAD  
COLVILLE ROAD 
COOPER HOUSE  
CORONATION MEWS  
DANIELS HOUSE  
DAVY ROAD  
DENNIS ROAD  
DITCHBURN PLACE 
DITTON COURT  
EDGECOMBE  
EKIN ROAD 
EKIN WALK  
FANSHAWE ROAD  
FERNWOOD  
FISON ROAD  
FORDWICH CLOSE  
FRANCIS DARWIN COURT  
FULBOURN OLD DRIFT  
GIBBONS HOUSE 
GILBERT CLOSE 
GOLDING ROAD -  
GREEN END ROAD  
GREYSTOKE COURT  
HANSON  
HAWKINS ROAD  
HAZELWOOD CLOSE  

Page 14Page 236



15 
o/procurement/cleaning/S&R reports/S&RC report 2 

CATEGORY INCLUDED WITHIN SCOPE 
NOT INCLUDED WITHIN 

SCOPE 
HEADFORD CLOSE  
HEATHERFIELD  
HELEN CLOSE  
HIGHDENE ROAD  
HILLS AVENUE  
LANGDALE CLOSE 
LARKIN CLOSE  
LICHFIELD ROAD  
MANSEL COURT  
MARKHAM CLOSE  
MINERVA WAY  
MOLEWOOD CLOSE  
MONKSWELL  
NEVILLE ROAD  
NEWMARKET ROAD 
NICHOLSON WAY  
NORFOLK STREET  
PERSE WAY  
RACHEL CLOSE  
RAWLYN COURT  
ROBERT MAY CLOSE  
RUSH GROVE  
RUSSELL COURT  
RUTLAND CLOSE  
SACKVILLE CLOSE  
SANDWICK CLOSE  
SCHOOL COURT  
SOMERVELL COURT  
SPENCER HOUSE  
STANTON HOUSE  
ST BEDES CRESCENT  
ST DAVIDS HOUSE  
ST KILDA AVENUE  
TALBOT HOUSE  
TAUNTON CLOSE  
TEMPLE COURT  
TENBY CLOSE  
TEYNHAM CLOSE  
TIVERTON WAY  
TREVONE PLACE  
TWEEDALE - 
WALKER COURT  
WALPOLE ROAD  
WELSTEAD ROAD  
WENVOE CLOSE  
WESTGATE  
WHITEFRIARS  
WILSON CLOSE   
WOBURN CLOSE   
WYCLIFFE ROAD  

Community Centres 82 Akeman Street 
The Meadows 

Buchan Street Neighbourhood 
Centre 
Ross Street Community Centre 
37 Lawrence Way Community 
House 
Brown�s Field Youth and 
Community Centre 
Nuns Way Pavilion 

Cambridge City Cambridge City Crematorium & 

Page 15Page 237



16 
o/procurement/cleaning/S&R reports/S&RC report 2 

CATEGORY INCLUDED WITHIN SCOPE 
NOT INCLUDED WITHIN 

SCOPE 

Crematorium & 
Huntingdon Road 
Cemetery 
New Market Road 
Cemetery 

Huntingdon Road Cemetery 
New Market Road Cemetery 

Administrative 
Buildings 

Guild Hall 
Mandela House 
Hobson House 
Mill Road Depot 
Llandaff Chambers 
Parsons Court 

Lion House 
Corn Exchange 

Commercial Buildings Orwell House Offices 
Barnwell House Offices 
Gwydir Enterprise Centre 
Dales Brewery. 

Page 16Page 238



CAMBRIDGE CITY COUNCIL 

Record of Executive Decision 

 

Consultation About Area Joint Committee Proposal 

 

Decision of:  Councillor Tim Ward, Executive Councillor for  Planning and 
Climate Change 

Reference:  14/URGENCY/CNCL/4 

Date of decision:  
  

10/04/14 Recorded 
on:   

10/04/14 

Decision Type:  Key 

Matter for 
Decision:  

The Executive Councillor is asked to approve a response to a 
consultation by Cambridgeshire County Council concerning a 
future Area Joint Committee proposal. 

Why the decision 
had to be made 
(and any 
alternative 
options): 

County Council officers are preparing a report to the 
Constitution and Ethics Committee of the County Council about 
reinstating a Cambridge Area Joint Committee and the views of 
the City Council are invited. 

The Executive 
Councillor’s 
decision(s): 

To support the proposed Area Joint Area Committee Terms of 
Reference appended to this Decision with the committee 
comprising 12 elected members drawn equally from 
Cambridgeshire County and Cambridge City Councils. 

Reasons for the 
decision: 

The proposed committee working within the attached Terms of 
Reference will facilitate improved decision making on transport 
matters within Cambridge. 

Scrutiny 
consideration: 

The Chair and Spokesperson of Environment Scrutiny 
Committee were consulted prior to the action being authorised. 
The Opposition Spokesperson made the points set out in the 
attached document. The Chair supported the proposals. The 
Executive Councillor has reviewed the Spokespersons 
comments and is of the view that the proposed Terms of 
Reference address concerns that the committee will be able to 
make decisions and will also fit within the structure of county 
committees. On the issue of elected member numbers he is of 
the view that 12 members is the optimum number to ensure 
good decision making in this case. 

Report: As above 

Conflicts of 
interest: 

No conflicts of interest were declared by the Executive 
Councillor. 

Comments: None 

 

Agenda Item 9b

Page 239



Page 240

This page is intentionally left blank



31/01/14 

CAMBRIDGE CITY AREA JOINT COMMITTEE 
Draft Terms of Reference 

 
 

• A new AJC will be formed, as a sub-committee of the County Council’s Highways and 
Community Infrastructure Committee, to consider and determine significant transport 
issues within Cambridge City, and to advise on, but not determine schemes of strategic 
importance. 
 

• The Committee will be delegated powers by the H and CI Committee appropriate for joint 
consideration.  Delegation is subject to accordance with the policies of Cambridgeshire 
County Council and Cambridge City Council and available budgets. 

 

• The powers of the AJC comprise: 
 

1. Determining priorities for the Local Highway Improvement Initiative, having regard to 
the budget available. 

2. Consider and advise on the need for traffic management, parking, regulation, cycle 
and pedestrian schemes of more than local significance, and the results of 
consultations, having regard to available resource. 

3. Advise the County Council and City Council on on-street and off-street parking 
charges. 

4. Advise on priorities for Section 106 funding for traffic management and other 
transport schemes 

5. Determining objections relating to Traffic Regulation Orders of significance, when 
referred by the relevant member or officer under the County Council’s scheme of 
delegation.   

6. Resolving detailed design issues for traffic management proposals 
 

• The Committee will be made of 12 members, comprising equal numbers from each 
authority.  Members to be appointed as deemed appropriate by the relevant authority. 

 

• The Committee to meet, in public, at least once a year and no more frequently than once 
every two months, and only if there is relevant business to discuss. 

 

• The chair of the Committee to alternate between the two authorities on an annual basis, 
and to be elected by the Committee. 

 

• A vice-chair to be elected by the committee from the council that does not hold the chair. 
 

• Administrative arrangements for the committee TO BE AGREED 
 

• The Committee will be open to the public to attend SPEAKING RIGHTS TO BE 
AGREED 

 

• All papers will be made available to the public and published on the Councils’ websites 
and conform with both authorities Access to Information Rules. 

Page 241



Page 242

This page is intentionally left blank



SUMMARY OF CONSULTATION RESPONSE FROM COUNCILLOR BLENCOWE 

PROPOSED AJC TERMS OF REFERENCE 

• 12 members are too many, 8 is a better number (for instance this works for 

Planning Committee. 

• Prior consultation on very local traffic matters can be done via Area 

committees so that ward residents and ward members can feed in views early 

and do not feel they necessarily have to attend committees themselves 

having made their points already. 

• [N/S/E/W]Transport Corridor based issues can again be discussed at the 

appropriate area committee. 

• City-wide/strategic matters could also be discussed at area committees when 

appropriate but we need to be mindful of repeating discussions at a new 

improved AJC. 

• Decision making boundaries between the AJC and the relevant county 

committee need to be clear and transparent. 

7 April 2014 

Page 243



Page 244

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 12 June 2014
	4a Budget 2014/15 Œ Amendment by the Executive (Executive Councillor for Finance and Resources)
	Budget Amendment

	4b 2013/14 Revenue and Capital Outturn, Carry Forwards and Significant Variances - Overview (Executive Councillor for Finance and Resources)
	Budget - Overview

	4c Annual Treasury Management Report 2013/14, including changes to Treasury Management Strategy 2014/15 (Executive Councillor for Finance and Resources)
	TreasuryManagement

	4d New Convention for Planning Committee Relating to Decisions Contrary to Officer Advice (Executive Councillor for Planning Policy and Transport)
	Planning decisions against officer advice

	4e Changes to the Consideration of Planning Applications at Area Committees (Executive Councillor for Planning Policy and Transport)
	Planning and ACs
	Planning and ACs (ap 1)

	5a Code of Corporate Governance
	Code of Corp Governance

	5b Constitutional Impact - Transfer of Planning Items from Area to Central Planning Committee
	9a Building Cleaning In House Bid
	The future delivery of Building Cleaning Services 20th-Jan-2014 17.00 Strategy and Resources Scrut

	9b Consultation About Area Joint Committee Proposal
	AJC draft terms of ref - consult 2.4.14
	7.4.14 Councillor Blencowe comments


